# PENDING RULES

# COMMITTEE RULES REVIEW BOOK

**Submitted for Review Before** 

# House Commerce & Human Resources Committee

67th Idaho Legislature Second Regular Session – 2024



Prepared by:

Office of the Administrative Rules Coordinator Division of Financial Management

January 2024

#### HOUSE COMMERCE & HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

#### ADMINISTRATIVE RULES REVIEW

### Table of Contents

### 2024 Legislative Session

IDAPA 15 – OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR / DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND PERSONNEL COMMISSION	
15.04.01 – Rules of the Division of Human Resources and Idaho Personnel Commi Docket No. 15-0401-2301 (ZBR Chapter Rewrite)	
IDAPA 17 – IDAHO INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION	
17.10.01 – Administrative Rules Under the Crime Victims Compensation Act Docket No. 17-1001-2301 (ZBR Chapter Rewrite)	62
IDAPA 21 – DIVISION OF VETERANS SERVICES	
21.01.04 – Rules Governing Idaho State Veterans Cemeteries Docket No. 21-0104-2301	77
IDAPA 59 – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO	
59.01.01 – Rules for the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI)  Docket No. 59-0101-2301 (ZBR Chapter Rewrite)	82
59.02.01 – Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund	4.40
Docket No. 59-0201-2301 (ZBR Chapter Rewrite)	140

# IDAPA 15 – OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND PERSONNEL COMMISSION

# 15.04.01 – RULES OF THE DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND IDAHO PERSONNEL COMMISSION

# DOCKET NO. 15-0401-2301 (ZBR CHAPTER REWRITE) NOTICE OF RULEMAKING – ADOPTION OF PENDING RULE

LINK: LSO Rules Analysis Memo

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** This rule has been adopted by the agency and is now pending review by the 2024 Idaho State Legislature and must be approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature to go into effect, in accordance with Section 67-5224(2)(c), Idaho Code. The pending rule will become final and effective upon the adjournment, *sine die*, of the First Regular Session of the Sixty-eighth Idaho Legislature.

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5224, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has adopted a pending rule. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 67-5308 and 67-5309, Idaho Code.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a concise explanatory statement of the reasons for adopting the pending rule and a statement of any change between the text of the proposed rule and the text of the pending rule with an explanation of the reasons for the change:

Under Executive Order 2020-01, Zero-Based Regulation, the Division of Human Resources is striving to prevent the accumulation of costly, ineffective, and/or outdated regulations and reduce regulatory burden to achieve a more efficient operation of government. The proposed rule changes reflect a comprehensive review of this chapter by collaborating with the public to streamline or simplify the rule language in this chapter and to use plain language for better understanding. This proposed rulemaking updates the rules to comply with governing statute and Executive Order 2020-01.

There are no changes to the pending rule and it is being adopted as originally proposed. The complete text of the proposed rule was published in the October 4, 2023, Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-10 pages 294-331.

**FEE SUMMARY:** Pursuant to Section 67-5224(2)(d), Idaho Code, this pending fee rule shall not become final and effective unless affirmatively approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature. The following is a description of the fee or charge imposed or increased in this rulemaking: N/A.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year: N/A.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS: For assistance on technical questions concerning this pending rule, contact: Michelle Peugh, Policy Bureau Chief, at (208) 334-2263, Michelle Peugh@dhr.idaho.gov.

DATED this 13th day of November, 2023.

Janelle White Interim Administrator 304 North 8th Street P.O. Box 83720 Boise, Idaho 83720-0066 Janelle. White@dhr.idaho.gov

Phone: (208) 334-2263

#### THE FOLLOWING NOTICE PUBLISHED WITH THE PROPOSED RULE

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 67-5308 and 67-5309, Idaho Code.

**PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:** Public hearing(s) concerning this rulemaking will be scheduled if requested in writing by twenty-five (25) persons, a political subdivision, or an agency, not later than October 18, 2023.

The hearing site(s) will be accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for accommodation must be made not later than five (5) days prior to the hearing, to the agency address below.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

Under Executive Order 2020-01, Zero-Based Regulation, the Division of Human Resources is striving to prevent the accumulation of costly, ineffective, and/or outdated regulations and reduce regulatory burden to achieve a more efficient operation of government. The proposed rule changes reflect a comprehensive review of this chapter by collaborating with the public to streamline or simplify the rule language in this chapter and to use plain language for better understanding. This proposed rulemaking updates the rules to comply with governing statute and Executive Order 2020-01.

FEE SUMMARY: The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased: N/A

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year resulting from this rulemaking: N/A

**NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING:** Pursuant to Section 67-5220(1), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was conducted. The Notice of Intent to Promulgate Rules - Negotiated Rulemaking was published in the August 2, 2023 Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-8, Pages 14-15.

**INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE:** Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, the following is a brief synopsis of why the materials cited are being incorporated by reference into this rule: N/A

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the proposed rule, contact Michelle Peugh, Bureau Chief, 208-854-3073.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding this proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before October 25, 2023.

DATED this 31st day of August, 2023.

#### THE FOLLOWING IS THE TEXT OF ZBR DOCKET NO. 15-0401-2301

## 15.04.01 – RULES OF THE DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND IDAHO PERSONNEL COMMISSION

<b>000. LEGAL</b> Section 67-5309	L AUTHORITY. , Idaho Code.	(	)
001. SCOPE These rules estab	E blish the policies and procedures of the Idaho Personnel System.	(	)
002 005.	(RESERVED)		
The administrato	ER OF RULES.  or reserves the right to waive any rule in specific instances when, in his/her opinion, such wai and justified in the interests of a more effective and responsive system of personnel administ		
007 008.	(RESERVED)		
Each of the term	ITION. s defined in these rules have the meaning given herein unless a different meaning is clearly additional definitions are contained in Section 67-5302, Idaho Code.	require (	:d )
<b>01.</b> remain intact.	Administrative Leave. Temporary paid leave from a job assignment where pay and	benefii (	ts )
<b>02.</b> action filed with application, petit	<b>Appeal</b> . Any written request for relief from dismissal, demotion, suspension, or other the Commission by an employee, appointing authority, or applicant. The meaning of appeal ition, or protest.	advers nclude	se es )
<b>03.</b> with the Commis	<b>Appellant</b> . An employee, appointing authority, or applicant filing an appeal or a petition for ssion.	reviev (	w )
<b>04.</b> projected to be o	<b>Appointment, Limited</b> . The appointment of a person to a classified position where the f limited duration, for which the person has qualified by examination.	work i	is )
employment is p	<b>Appointment, Permanent</b> . The appointment of a person to a classified position who happointing authority to have successfully completed the required probationary period and termanent, subject to removal or discipline only under the provisions of Title 67, Chapter 53 les of the Division and Idaho Personnel Commission.	d whos 3, Idah	se
<b>06.</b> person has quali appointment.	<b>Appointment, Probationary</b> . The appointment of a person to a classified position for wl fied by examination but is serving a work trial period as a condition for certification to per	hich th rmanei (	ie nt )
07. other compensation	<b>Base Pay</b> . The rate paid for performing a job, excluding bonuses, shift differentials, over ion premiums.	rtime o	or )
<b>08.</b> Code, as defined	<b>Classified Service</b> . That body of positions in state agencies subject to Title 67, Chapter 53 therein and excludes temporary, and nonclassified appointments.	3, Idah (	10 )
	<b>Compensation Plan</b> . The overall system of salary administration for classified service in 9B and 67-5309C, Idaho Code; the classification and compensation schedules, Division an assign rules and policies, and agency policies governing employee pay.	d Idah	

	10.	Compensation Schedule. The pay grades established by the Division and associated rates of	f pay.	)
service.	11.	Consultant. An independent contractor who provides professional or technical advice, coun	isel, o (	r )
appointi	1 <b>2.</b> ng author	<b>Dismissal</b> . The separation of an employee from classified service with cause assigned rity pursuant to Rule 190.	by th	e )
	13.	<b>Division</b> . The Idaho Division of Human Resources.	(	)
		<b>Due Process</b> . As related to Idaho's Personnel System for permanent classified employed to address an individual's constitutional right to notice and an opportunity to be heard Idaho Code)		
		<b>Employment History</b> . The information available to the public without the employee's consection 74-106, Idaho Code, for every agency for which a current or former public official cial reasons for separation from employment but not including accrued leave balances or usage	works	
	16.	Good Cause. The conduct of a reasonable person in the same or similar circumstances.	(	)
the pay	17. system.	Hay Method. A methodology for establishing the relative value of jobs and used as a dimensional distribution of the control of	sion o (	of )
		<b>Hiring List</b> . A hiring list is a subset of a register consisting of the top twenty-five (25) individuals all individuals tied for the twenty-fifth position, certified as eligible for a specific recruit instatement or transfer may be considered and are provided in addition to the top twenty-five	itment	t.
	19.	<b>Incumbent</b> . Any person holding a classified or non-classified position in state service.	(	)
as a resu	<b>20.</b> ılt of a ma	<b>Involuntary Transfer</b> . A significant change in work location, shift and/or organizational unitanagement decision as opposed to an employee's request or agreement to transfer.	t mad (	e )
service e	<b>21.</b> either by 1	<b>Layoff.</b> An involuntary reduction in hours of work or separation of an incumbent in the cla reduction in force due to shortage of work or funds, or abolishment of positions.	ssifie	d )
recovery	<b>22.</b>	<b>Light or Limited Duty</b> . A general term describing a temporary limited assignment in relaury, illness or other limiting condition as approved by the appointing authority.	tion to	o )
perform	23. ance in ac	<b>Merit Increase</b> . The advancement of an employee's compensation within a pay grade based coordance with Section 67-5309B(3) and (4), Idaho Code.	d upo	n )
perform	24. ance and	<b>Merit Increase Matrix</b> . A pay distribution tool used to advance employee pay bas market data.	sed o	n )
positions classific		Minimum Qualification Specialty. A minimum qualification required for one (1) or assification that is in addition to the other minimum qualifications required for all positions		
during h	<b>26.</b> nours that	<b>On-Call Time</b> . Time when an employee is required to be available if called upon by their are outside of their normally defined work schedule.	agenc	y )
Code, in		<b>Pay Line Exception</b> . A temporary assignment of pay grade, pursuant to Section 67-5309D, of the pay grade allocated pursuant to Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code, as approved by		

28. entrance probatio 5309(n), Idaho C	<b>Permanent Employee</b> . An employee in the classified service who has successfully coron. Permanent employees remain subject to separation as set forth in these rules and Section Code.	
29. status from a po higher paygrade.	<b>Promotion</b> . The advancement through the competitive process of an employee with persition which he occupies in one (1) classification to a position in another classification has	
30. the pay grade to	<b>Reduction in Pay</b> . A reduction of an employee's salary from one (1) pay rate to a lower rate which the employee's classification is allocated.	within (
<b>31.</b> eligible for emp administrator.	<b>Register</b> . A list of names of persons or the name of one (1) person who has been determine loyment in a classification on the basis of examination and merit factors as established	
32.	Resignation. The voluntary quitting or abandonment of state employment, excluding retirer	ment.
33.	<b>Respondent</b> . The party whose interests are adverse to those of the appellant.	( )
34. based upon facto	<b>Salary Equity Increase</b> . The advancement of an employee's compensation within a payers such as market demand, compression within the agency or classification, or inequities.	y grade
35. felony charges, o	<b>Suspension</b> . An enforced period of absence, with or without pay, for disciplinary purposer pending investigation of charges made against an employee pursuant to Rule 190.	ses, for
<b>36.</b> service for unsat pursuant to Rule	<b>Termination</b> . The separation of an entrance or voluntary probationary employee from classifactory service during the probationary period without cause assigned by the appointing at 152.	
37. position to anoth	<b>Transfer</b> . A change of work location of an employee in which the employee changes from er in the same classification or to another classification in the same pay grade.	one (1)
38. while being com	<b>Underfill</b> . Administrator-approved appointment to a position established at a higher classiful pensated at a lower pay grade during completion of a training plan.	fication
	<b>USERRA</b> . Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act, 38 U.S.C. S 333. Prohibits employment discrimination against persons because of their service in the the National Guard, or other uniformed services.	
40.	Workweek. A period of seven (7) consecutive days beginning 12:01 a.m. Sunday.	( )
010 019.	(RESERVED)	
All appointment	MERIT AND SALARY REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERSONNEL SYSTEM. s, promotions and separations in the classified service shall be based on competence, vad individual performance.	alid job
<b>01.</b> ability to perform	<b>Examinations</b> . Examinations shall be designed to evaluate factors pertinent to an individual competently the duties of the classification.	vidual's ( )
<b>a.</b> evaluate the suita	Content of Examinations. Examinations may include any questions, tests or criteria designability of applicants for job openings within a classification.	gned to

**b.** Job Analysis and Confidentiality. No information concerning the specific content of the examination will be divulged to unauthorized personnel by the Division or other personnel who have access to the

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE – DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

examinations. ( )

- **02.** Eligible Candidates. The appointing authority shall make a selection from a hiring list containing eligible candidates.
- **a.** Failing Score. Failure in any part of the examination may disqualify an applicant in the entire examination and from having his name placed on the hiring list.
- **03. Authorized Pay Rates.** No employee in the state classified service will be paid at a rate less than the minimum nor greater than the maximum rate of the pay grade assigned to the classification. ( )
- **a. Payline Exceptions**. Temporary assignments to a new pay grade may be made by the administrator. Such assignments apply to an entire classification for the purpose of recruitment or retention and will be reviewed annually to determine the need for continuance.
- **b.** Salary Equity Increases. An appointing authority may, with approval by the administrator, advance an employee's salary within a pay grade based upon factors such as market demand, to address compression within an agency or classification, or inequities.
- c. Salary Upon Transfer. A transfer between agencies in the same classification or one of equal pay grade does not require a change in the employee's salary, but a lower or higher rate may be negotiated between the employee and the appointing authority. If the transfer is to a classification of lower pay grade (demotion), the employee's salary is negotiable between the employee and appointing authority within the lower pay grade. ( )
- **d.** Salary Upon Reinstatement. Unless related to reemployment after a layoff, the salary of a reinstated employee is negotiable between the employee and appointing authority in the current pay grade for the classification in which the employee has reinstatement privileges.
- e. Salary After Reappointment from Layoff. Employees appointed by the agency that laid them off will be paid in the current pay grade for the classification to which reappointed or at the same payrate the employee received immediately preceding layoff, whichever is greater, but not to exceed the maximum of the current pay grade.
- **f.** Salary Upon Return from Military Duty. An employee who returns to state service from active military duty in accordance with the provisions of Section 65-508, Idaho code, and USERRA will be paid at a comparable rate in the current pay grade for the classification to which they were assigned prior to leaving for military service.
- g. Reduction of Salary. The salary of an employee receiving more than the lowest rate of the pay grade for his classification may be reduced to a lower rate within the pay grade by the appointing authority for disciplinary reasons enumerated in Rule 190.

#### 021. BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR VETERANS AND MILITARY PERSONNEL.

- **01. Application by Military Personnel**. An application will be accepted after the closing date of the announcement from a person who was serving in the armed forces or undergoing service-connected hospitalization of no more than one (1) year following discharge, during any period in which the announcement was open. The application must be submitted within one hundred twenty (120) days of the applicant's separation from the armed forces or hospitalization and prior to the expiration of the register established as a result of an examination. ( )
- **Return from Military Duty**. An employee returning from military leave without pay who is relieved or discharged from military duty under conditions other than dishonorable will be, upon application, reinstated in his former position, or one of comparable classification, without loss of credited state service, status, or pay as prescribed by Sections 46-216, 65-508, and 65-511, Idaho Code, USERRA, or the Military Selective Service Act, Title 38, Chapter 43, U.S. Code. Application for reemployment must be made in accordance with the provisions of USERRA.

			_
which a classific	register ation, do	Application by Disabled Veterans. A disabled veteran may file an application at any time up unity classification for which the Division maintains a register as a source for future job openings or is about to be established, provided the veteran has not already been examined twice for the same sets not have current eligibility on that register, or is not serving in a competitive position in the same classification for which application is made.	for ne
	04.	Veterans' Preference Points. (	)
	a.	Veterans' and disabled veterans' preference points must not be used to achieve a passing score.	)
defined	in Section	Veterans' and disabled veterans' preference points, when applicable under state law, will be added a achieved in the examinations. Five (5) points will be added to the earned rating of any veteran, on 65-203, Idaho Code, and the widow or widower of any veteran, as defined in Section 65-20 and as the widow or widower remains unmarried.	as
disabled	l veterans	Disabled veterans', Purple Heart recipients, spouses of any eligible disabled veterans who can bublic employment because of a service-connected disability, and unmarried widows or widowers sentitled to ten (10) point preference will be placed on the open-competitive register in order of the examination augmented by preference points.	of
	s with a d	Disabled veterans who have a current service-connected disability of thirty percent (30%) or more interview when their final score places them on the hiring list. If more than ten (10) disabled disability rating of thirty percent (30%) or more place on a hiring list, at least ten (10) will be offer (	ed
		FISM.  all work under the immediate supervision of a supervisor who is a spouse, child, parent, broth e relation by marriage.	er,
	vill be no The em	EMPLOYMENT.  o conflicting hours of work when a classified employee is employed by more than one (1) staployee must obtain approval from all appointing authorities concerned prior to beginning duty.	
024 (	059.	(RESERVED)	
060. The Div the dete	ision wil	YSIS OF CLASSIFICATIONS.  Il assist appointing authorities in the analysis of positions in determining proper classification and, n of the administrator, will conduct independent classification reviews of the various agencies.	at )
061.	AMEN	DMENT OF CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE.	
to revise	<b>01.</b> e a positio	<b>Changes To Classifications</b> . Whenever it is necessary to establish or delete a classified position on's responsibilities, the appointing authority will submit proposed changes to the administrator.  (	or )
the com		<b>Approval</b> . Each appointing authority, prior to establishing any new position within the agency, wal of the administrator for the classification of such positions and their assignment to a pay grade in schedule. Approval by the administrator of the Division of Financial Management for sufficient equired.	in
		Assignment to Pay Grade Required. No person will be appointed to, employed in, or paid classified position until the position has been established, classified, and assigned to a pay grade these rules.	

062.	APPR(	OVAL OF NEW, REVISED AND DELETED CLASSIFICATIONS.	
require fiscal in		<b>New and Refactored Classifications</b> . New classifications of work and revised classifications by both the administrator and the Division of Financial Management administrator when the	
classific	<b>02.</b> cations de	<b>Revised and Deleted Classifications</b> . Revised classifications with no fiscal impareleted from the classification schedule require approval only of the administrator.	act and
	ointing a	ISHMENT OF POSITIONS. uthority may abolish a position for reasons of administrative efficiency. Employees to be separate layoff and reemployment preference in accordance with Rules 140 through 147.	rated as
064.	RECL	ASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS.	
	position	<b>Procedure</b> . Positions may be reclassified in the same pay grade, upward, or downwant analysis by the Division of the duties and responsibilities assigned by appointing authors. An incumbent occupying a reclassified position shall be properly classified by an appropriate the property classified by a property classified	rities to
		<b>Effective Date</b> . Reclassifications of positions are not effective until they are approved ut may be retroactive to the beginning of the pay period during which approval is g of an employee may not precede the effective date of the reclassification of the position.	by the granted.
065.	(RESE	RVED)	
066.	COMP	PENSATION SURVEYS.	
that rep	<b>01.</b> resent lal	<b>Salary Surveys</b> . The Division will conduct or approve salary surveys, to determine salary bor market average rates for Hay point factored positions in classified service.	ranges
	<b>02.</b> s for specdetermin	<b>Relevant Labor Markets</b> . Labor markets used for wage comparison will be based on recific job classifications. Consultation with various appointing authorities will also contribute ation.	
067.	CALC	ULATION OF PAY.	
calculat	01. the	<b>Standard Calculation of Pay</b> . For other than police, correctional officers, or fire employees following order:	s, pay is
	a.	Holiday pay;	( )
	b.	All hours worked on a holiday as overtime;	( )
work;	c.	All hours worked over forty (40) in the workweek as overtime, excluding occasional or s	sporadic
	d.	Vacation, sick and other paid or unpaid leaves; and	( )
	e.	All remaining hours worked at the employee's regular rate of pay.	( )
Shift di	fferential	Shift Differential. Additional compensation paid to employees (including temporary or pay work specific, designated hours. Shift differential is paid in addition to any other compensation be awarded in amounts up to and including twenty-five percent (25%) of hourly rates, bectice for similar jobs.	nsation.

(RESERVED)

068. -- 079.

080.	METHODS OF RECRUITMENT
vov.	

For the purpose of establishing eligibility registers, there are three (3) methods of recruitment: open competitive, agency promotional, or statewide promotional.

#### 081. -- 118. (RESERVED)

#### 119. LIMITED SERVICE APPOINTMENTS.

- **01. Designation.** Classified positions expected to be of limited duration due to funding or nature of the position or project must be identified and designated in advance of announcement.
- **02. Permanent Status and Expedited Layoff.** Employees appointed under limited-service appointments have permanent classified status after successful completion of probation. These employees have the same rights and responsibilities as other permanent employees but may be subject to expedited layoff ()
- **03. Limited Service Agreement**. Appointing authorities making limited-service appointments must prepare, no later than the date of appointment, a written agreement for signature of both the employee and appointing authority describing the non-career nature of the appointment, potential for layoff, and the duration the employee may expect to work. Renewals and updated agreements are required every two (2) years. A copy of the agreement must be kept in the employee's personnel file.

#### 120. SEASONAL APPOINTMENT.

**01. Employee Rights.** Employees appointed under a seasonal appointment will have all obligations, rights, and privileges of any classified employee except those accorded by Rules 140 through 147, relating to reduction in force.

#### 121. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS (NON-CLASSIFIED).

- **01. Hours Limitation**. Temporary appointments are limited to one thousand three hundred eighty-five (1,385) hours of work in any twelve (12) month period for any one agency. Both calculations begin on the date of the original temporary appointment.
- **02. Transition to Classified Service**. Temporary employees who have served at least one thousand forty (1,040) hours of continuous service, may go from temporary status to classified entrance probation status in that same position without further application if the announcement for the temporary position from which the certified register was created indicates that the temporary position has the potential of becoming a permanent classified position. The classified position must be in the same classification and at the same location as announced.

#### 122. (RESERVED)

#### 123. REINSTATEMENTS.

- **01.** Eligibility. A current or former employee will be eligible for reinstatement to a classification in which he held permanent status, or if deleted its successor, or to another classification of equal or lower pay grade under the following conditions.
- **a.** Reinstatement is limited to a period equal to the length of the employee's probationary and permanent employment combined.
- **b.** The current or former employee must meet the current minimum qualifications of the classification to which reinstatement is desired.
- **02. Examination.** A current or former employee may be required to pass an examination for the classification to which reinstatement is desired.

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

**03. Probationary Period**. An appointing authority may negotiate for a probationary period as a condition of reinstatement except where prohibited..

#### 124. TRANSFERS.

- **01. Authority to Transfer.** An appointing authority may transfer an employee at any time from one position to another in the same classification.
- **02. Transfer Within Pay Grade**. An appointing authority may transfer an employee from a classification in which he holds permanent status to another classification allocated to the same pay grade for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications.
- **03. Probationary Period**. An appointing authority may negotiate with an employee for a probationary period as a condition for a voluntary transfer.
- **04.** Transfer Between Agencies. An employee is eligible for transfer between agencies in the same classification in which he holds permanent status or to another classification in the same or lower pay grade for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications.

#### 125. RESIGNATION.

- **01. Notice.** A classified employee may resign at any time. A resignation is effective at the time designated by the employee, without need for written or advance notice, or acceptance of the resignation by the appointing authority.
- **Rescission and Reinstatement**. Once an employee has submitted a resignation, reinstatement is in the discretion of the appointing authority as. The appointing authority may but is not required to allow an employee to rescind a resignation prior to its effective date.
  - **Resignation in Lieu of Dismissal**. An employee may resign in lieu of being dismissed for cause.

#### 126. -- 128. (RESERVED)

#### 129. ACTING APPOINTMENT TO A POSITION.

- **01. Conditions for Acting Appointment.** At the discretion of an appointing authority, a classified employee with permanent status may be appointed to a position in a classification of higher pay grade within his own agency in an acting capacity whenever:
  - **a.** The incumbent of the position in the higher classification is on authorized leave of absence; or
- **02. Minimum Qualifications**. To be eligible for an acting appointment, an employee must meet the minimum qualifications of the class.

#### 130. LIMITATION ON LENGTH OF APPOINTMENT.

Acting appointments are limited to the period of time necessary to fill the vacancy pursuant to procedures prescribed in these rules but in no case can continue beyond one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service unless specifically extended by the administrator.

#### 131. SALARY

For any credited state service which an employee serves in a classification in an acting capacity, he or she shall receive the salary for the classification as though he or she had actually been promoted.

#### 132. EXPIRATION OF APPOINTMENT.

01.	Return of Inc	cumbent.	When the i	ncumben	t of the	classificati	on returns	from le	eave of a	absence	e, or
the vacant position						ting appoin	tee is retu	rned to	the cla	ss, the	pay
grade and rate he	ld immediately	preceding	g the acting	g appointn	nent.					(	)

(	02.	Failure	of Inci	umbent t	o Return.	. Should	the e	employee	on le	eave o	f absenc	e sepai	rate fr	om	state
service, tl	ne emple	oyee ser	ving in t	the acting	appointm	ent may	conti	nue to se	rve in	that	capacity	until tl	ie vac	ancy	y has
been fille	d but in	no case	exceed	the time I	imits preso	cribed in	Rule	130.						(	)

#### 133. -- 139. (RESERVED)

#### 140. REDUCTION IN FORCE.

- 01. Conditions for Layoff. An appointing authority may lay off an employee whenever necessary due to: shortage of funds or work; reorganization; the end of a limited service appointment; employee's failure to complete interagency promotional probation when demotion options are not available; or abolishment of one (1) or more positions.
  - **02.** Layoff by Position. Reduction in force must be by classification of position.
- a. Reduction in force may be limited to or specifically exclude employees appointed under selective certification for bona fide occupational qualifications, or appointed to a classification with minimum qualification specialties. Inclusions or exclusions must include or exclude all incumbents of the classification appointed under similar selective certification, or the same option or minimum qualification specialty and must be approved in advance by the administrator.
- **b.** An appointing authority may petition the administrator to exclude an individual from a reduction in force whose retention may be required to meet agency mission critical needs. Requests must provide a documented rationale with exclusions approved in advance by the administrator.
- c. When a limited service project is completed or funding concluded, the limited service appointee is separated from state service as a layoff. However, limited service appointees have no reemployment preference and will not displace other regular permanent or limited services staff via voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff. ( )
- **03. Layoff Unit.** Reduction in force must be agency-wide or by organizational unit designated for layoff purposes. Layoff units are geographic, programmatic, or other identified subdivisions of an agency designated for layoff purposes by the appointing authority. They must be approved by the administrator before the effective date of the layoff. Organizational layoff unit designations must be renewed with a change in appointing authority or administrator.
- **04. Reduction of Hours Worked**. An involuntary reduction in the number of hours worked for a selected position constitutes a layoff unless there is an equal reduction of hours worked for all positions in the same classification in the agency or approved layoff unit for a limited period of time, such as a furlough.
- **05. Downward Reclass.** A material change in duties of one (1) or more positions resulting in an employee's reclassification to a classification allocated to one (1) pay grade lower does not constitute a layoff. More than one (1) pay grade change downward is considered a layoff, unless the change of duties is disciplinary. ( )

#### 141. CALCULATION OF RETENTION POINTS.

There will be an evaluation of all employees in the classification in the agency or organizational unit affected by the reduction in force based on a retention point system. Retention points are derived from experience as described in performance evaluations, classified credited state service, and veterans' preference as described in Rule 141.03. The appointing authority will determine a process for the impartial assessment of evaluations to assign points as follows:

Exemplary Performance	-	.100 points
Solid Sustained Performance	-	.075 points

a. b.

Rules of DHR & Idaho	Personnel Commission	PE	NDING RULE
Г	Achieves Performance Standards -	.050 points	
	Does Not Achieve Performance Standards -	.0 points	
_			( )
	formance Evaluation on File for a Twelve-Monance evaluation will receive seventy-five thousand		
should be used to pro-rat	ation of Retention Points Since Last Evaluation the retention points when calculating credited state than two thousand eighty (2,080) hours from the nance with Rule 141.01.	e service since that evalua	tion, unless that
	ns' Preference. Veterans as defined in Title 6 on of retention points equivalent to three (3)		
04. Calcul date of the layoff.	ation Date Cutoff. No points will be calculated for	or the sixty (60) days prior	to the effective
independent auditor desi employee. The request f employee's receipt of lay	of Retention Points. Each employee is entitle gnated by the administrator in cases of dispute or audit must be filed with the appointing author off notification. The decision of the independent a ty-five (35) calendar days from the date of the audit	between the appointing at ority within five (5) calen auditor is binding on both	athority and the dar days of the parties unless an
	TATE SERVICE.  vice for purposes of Rule 140 is defined as follow	vs:	( )
<b>01.</b> Service classified service, Title 6	e <b>Prior to State Personnel System</b> . All credited 7, Chapter 53, Idaho Code.	state service prior to the	establishment of
143. REDUCTION	IN FORCE DETERMINATION AND NOTIFI	CATION.	
<b>01.</b> Identification positions to be reduced or	ication of Classifications. The appointing aut reliminated.	hority will identify the	classification of
	ation of Retention Points. Retention points will be tion including those serving in underfill positions ingle-incumbent class.		
by the employee in the at	of Reduction in Force. The order of reduction in frected classification as follows: first to be laid of appointees including those serving a voluntary property of the control of the cont	f are the entrance probation	nary appointees,

Notification to Affected Employees. Each employee affected will be notified in writing of layoff and the rationale for the decision at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the effective date. Notification will include a copy of the agency layoff procedure and a copy of the computation of retention points when required.

layoff list beginning with the employee with the highest number of retention points. Employee layoffs will be made from the layoff list in inverse order. When two (2) or more employees have the same combined total of retention

The employee with the highest total retention points for the past thirty-six (36) months.

points, retention will be determined in the following sequence:

Random selection.

05. Notification to Administrator. The appointing authority must give written notice of layoff to the administrator at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to its effective date and must provide a list of persons affected by the layoff with their retention point calculations and must indicate which employees will be laid off. PLACEMENT ON REGISTER WITH REEMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE. A permanent employee laid off from their job or who chooses a voluntary demotion in lieu of a layoff, under these rules shall be placed on their classification's register with reemployment preference. Such placement will be for one (1) year from the effective date of demotion or layoff, or until the employee or former employee declines a total of three (3) separate job offers without good cause, whichever comes first. An employee or former employee may request their name be removed at any time. USE OF REGISTERS WITH REEMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE. 145. 01. Priority for Reemployment by Agency that Conducted the Layoff. The employee who has been laid off will be offered reemployment to a position in the classification from which laid off, before any person outside that agency may be promoted to, transferred to, reinstated or appointed to that classification by an appointing authority of that agency. When attempting to fill vacancies for a classification where a lay off occurred, the agency will provide an opportunity to interview and will make their hiring selection from the individuals their agency laid off from the classification, including those separated from state service under Rule 241.02 and those that took a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff. Individuals being returned to the classification from which they were laid off will be reinstated with the same salary, permanent status and their sick leave balance restored. Consideration for Hire by Other Agencies. For promotional opportunities individuals who have been laid off must be offered the opportunity to interview. Employment by Other Agency. Individuals may be reappointed or reinstated if eligible. The salary of an employee re-hired after a layoff is negotiable between the employee and new appointing authority in the current pay grade for the classification in which the employee is appointed. Return to Register. If an individual finds another agency's position unsatisfactory or does not satisfactorily complete a voluntary probation period, he may be placed back on a register for the remainder of their twelve (12) month time frame. Individuals appointed to a position, other than the classification from which laid off, will remain on preference register status for the remainder of the twelve-month (12) period if otherwise eligible. 146. (RESERVED) VOLUNTARY DEMOTION IN LIEU OF LAYOFF. Within their layoff unit, an employee with permanent status may choose to accept a voluntary demotion rather than be laid off. Demotion options are limited to a classification in which the employee held permanent status in the agency. Such demotion will not be permitted if it causes the layoff of an employee with greater retention points. 01. Eligibility. ) Qualified. Employee must meet the classification's current minimum qualifications and any minimum qualification specialties.

Exclusion. Limited service appointees are not eligible to take any voluntary demotion that would

result in the displacement of other employees. However, voluntary demotions to a vacant position are allowed with

**PAGE 15** 

the approval of the appointing authority.

**02.** Acceptance. To accept a voluntary demotion rather than a layoff, the employee must notify the appointing authority in writing of their decision no later than three (3) working days after written notification of the layoff and opportunity to demote to a specific position.

#### 148. -- 149. (RESERVED)

#### 150. PROBATIONARY PERIODS.

- **01. Probationary Period Required**. Every appointment and promotion to a classified position is probationary.
- **O2.** Types of Probationary Periods. The probationary period serves as a working test period to provide the agency an opportunity to evaluate a probationary employee's work performance and suitability for the position. There are three (3) types of probationary periods:

  ( )
- a. Entrance probation is the probationary service required of an employee at the time of his original appointment or any subsequent appointment to state classified service excluding reinstatement and transfer, the duration of which is one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service except for peace officers (defined in Section 19-5101, Idaho Code), who must serve two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.
- **b.** Promotional probation is the probationary service required when an employee is promoted, the duration of which is one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service except for peace officers (defined in Section 19-5101, Idaho Code), who must serve two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.
- c. Voluntary probation is an agreement between employees and the appointing authority for employment actions such as reinstatement, transfer, or voluntary demotion. The probationary period is negotiable but may not exceed one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service except for peace officers (defined in Section 19-5101, Idaho Code), who may serve up to two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.
- **03. Extension of Probationary Period.** Upon written request demonstrating good cause, the administrator may extend the probationary period of an employee for an additional specified period not to exceed one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service. Extension must occur before an employee has worked one thousand forty (1,040) hours or two thousand eighty (2,080) hours for peace officers.
- **04. Interruption of Probationary Period**. The probationary period in any classification must be completed within a single agency uninterrupted by termination or dismissal. An employee who separated during the probationary period must begin a new probationary period upon reappointment or promotion. ( )
- **05. Temporary Service Credit**. At the request of the hiring agency, the administrator will allow temporary service time in a given classification to be used toward fulfilling the entrance probationary requirement in that classification as established in Section 67-5309(j), Idaho Code. The temporary duties must be substantially the same as the regular permanent appointment.
- **06.** Acting Service Credit. At the request of the hiring agency, the administrator will allow acting appointment service time in a given classification to be used toward fulfilling the promotional probationary requirement in that classification as established in Section 67-5309(j), Idaho Code. The acting appointment duties must be substantially the same as the regular permanent appointment.

#### 151. SATISFACTORY SERVICE.

When a probationary employee has satisfactorily served the probationary period hours, the employee will become permanent status. Certification to permanent status is effective one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service after appointment, except that it is effective two thousand eighty (2,080) hours of credited state service after appointment for peace officer classifications unless either period has been extended ( )

#### 152. SEPARATION DURING PROBATION.

must pr	<b>01.</b> ovide the	<b>Notification</b> . If a probationary employee does not serve satisfactorily, the appointing author employee and the Division a performance evaluation indicating unsatisfactory performance. (
	02.	During Entrance and Voluntary Probation. (
		An employee who does not serve satisfactorily during the entrance or voluntary probation must e opportunity in writing to resign without prejudice; an employee who fails to resign may ut cause assigned and without the right to file for problem-solving or an appeal.
calenda	<b>b.</b> r days pri	Notice to the employee of termination for unsatisfactory service must be made at least fifteen (1 or to the effective date of termination, unless there are extenuating circumstances.
153.	UNSAT	ISFACTORY PERFORMANCE DURING A PROMOTION PROBATION PERIOD.
demotio	01. on, suspen	<b>Disciplinary Action</b> . Regardless of the probation status, when a Rule 190 violation supportion, or dismissal, such action may occur.
perform	02.	<b>During Promotional Probation</b> . If an employee on promotional probation does not me ectations:
that clas	ssification	The employee may voluntarily demote to a vacant position in any classification he or she has he in state career service. However, the employee must meet the current minimum requirements in If more than one (1) option exists for demotion, the employee should be placed in the higher paspecific assignment is up to the appointing authority.
request	<b>b.</b> their nam	If no position is available for the voluntary demotion option, the employee may be laid off and me be placed on a register for the classification where they last held permanent status.
remove	<b>c.</b> d from red	When reinstatement occurs in the classification they promoted from, the employee's name employment required preference status.
satisfac	ppointing torily cor	RE TO PROVIDE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. g authority fails to provide a performance evaluation, the employee shall be considered to ha impleted the probationary period and be certified to permanent status as provided unless to do has been extended by the administrator.
155	158.	(RESERVED)
159.	STATU	S AND TENURE.
		<b>Probationary Promotions</b> . Employees serving a promotional probationary period have continu in the classification from which promoted until they are certified as having satisfactorily complet probationary period in the classification to which promoted.
160	168.	(RESERVED)
169.	PROMO	OTIONS.
register	<b>01.</b> s (Ref. Ru	<b>Interagency Promotions</b> . All interagency promotions must be made using statewide promotionale 101.03)
and med	02.	Eligibility for Promotion. Promotional appointees must have permanent status (Ref. Rule 15

**03. Promotion, In-Grade**. To reflect unique agency organization design, an agency may choose to request an internal competitive process to recognize the advancement of an employee with permanent status from a position occupied in one classification to a position in another classification having greater points or a unique

**PAGE 17** 

specialty area, but within the same pay grade. With the approval of the administrator, an in-grade promotion will be treated in all regards as a promotion. 170. -- 178. (RESERVED) 179. **DEMOTIONS.** Demotions are reductions of an employee from a position which the employee occupies in one classification to a position in another classification in a lower pay grade. Demotions authorized under these rules apply to both probationary and permanent status employees who meet the minimum qualifications of the classification to which demoted. 180. (RESERVED) 181. -- 189. (RESERVED) 190. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS. Cause for Disciplinary Actions or Separation From State Service. Dismissal, suspension, demotion, or the reduction in pay, of a classified employee, may occur for any of the following causes during the employee's employment: Failure to perform the duties and carry out the obligations imposed by the state constitution, state statutes, or rules of the agency or the Division and Idaho Personnel Commission. Inefficiency, incompetency, or negligence in performing duties, or job performance that fails to meet established performance standards. Physical or mental incapability for performing assigned duties, if a reasonable accommodation cannot be made for the disabling condition. d. Refusal to accept a reasonable and proper assignment from an authorized supervisor. ) Insubordination or conduct unbecoming a state employee or conduct detrimental to good order and discipline in the agency. Intoxication or being under the influence of alcohol, or the misuse of medications or controlled f. substances, while on duty. Careless, negligent, or improper use or unlawful conversion of state property, equipment, or funds. Use of any influence which violates the principles of the merit system in an attempt to secure a promotion or privileges for individual advantage. Conviction of official misconduct in office, or conviction of any felony, or conviction of any other crime involving moral turpitude. Acceptance of gifts in exchange for influence or favors given in the employee's official capacity. j٠ k. Habitual pattern of failure to report for duty at the assigned time and place. l. Habitual improper use of sick leave.

Unapproved absence without leave.

m.

n.

Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information from official records.

0.	Misstatement or deception in application for employment.	( )
<b>p.</b> performance	Failure to obtain or maintain a current license or certificate lawfully required as a core of duties.	ndition in
q.	Prohibited participation in political activities.	( )
superseded of the suspe	Suspension for Investigation. An appointing authority may place an employee on administration of disciplinary causes enumerated in Rule 190.01. Each suspension for investigation by reinstatement to duty, dismissal, disciplinary demotion, or suspension within thirty (30) calendar for investigation or within an extension of an additional thirty (30) calendar days approved a property of the extensions may be granted with the approval of the Administrator.	on will be endar days
	<b>Disciplinary Suspension</b> . An appointing authority may suspend without pay an empor causes enumerated above. Disciplinary suspension of an employee with permanent status is e employee to the Commission.	oloyee for subject to
effect during have otherw that charges	Suspension on Felony Charges. An appointing authority may suspend without pay an uance of a complaint, an information or indictment for felony charges. Such suspensions may gethe time such charges are pending. Full reinstatement of all benefits and salary that the employise been entitled must be provided by the appointing authority to the employee upon a subseque or information were without grounds or the employee was not found guilty. For the purpose of withheld under Rule 33(d) of the Idaho Rules of Criminal Procedure is a conviction.	remain in yee would ent finding
and set forth	action against an employee, he must notify the employee and the administrator concurrently in the specific rules violated and the reasons for the action. Suspensions with pay for investigation at prior notice to the employee; in this case, the appointing authority must notify the administration	n writing on may be
191 199.	(RESERVED)	
200. PR	OBLEM-SOLVING AND DUE PROCESS PROCEDURES.	
01.	Overview of Procedures.	( )
procedure g or involunta	The due process procedure deals with the disciplinary matters set forth in Section 67 dismissals, suspensions without pay, and demotions, and with all involuntary transfers. The due nerally requires the employee receive notice and an opportunity to respond before a disciplinary transfer is made by the agency. Decisions regarding disciplinary dismissals, suspensions with may be appealed in accordance with Rule 201.	ue process y decision
b. procedure. l 5316, Idaho	The problem-solving procedure deals with all matters not specifically reserved for the durablem solving decisions may not be appealed to the Commission except as authorized by Sc Code.	te process ection 67-
	<b>Establishment of Agency Problem-Solving and Due Process Procedures</b> . Each part maintain written employee problem-solving and due process procedures, which have been apparator for conformity to law and Rule 200.	

with permanent, or entrance probationary status may file under the problem-solving procedure as defined by Section

67-5315(1), Idaho Code. An employee must file under the problem-solving procedure in writing not later than ten (10) working days after being notified or becoming aware of a nondisciplinary matter which may be handled through the problem-solving procedure; however, if the filing alleges an ongoing pattern of harassment or illegal discrimination, the agency is strongly encouraged to waive any time limits. The time limit for filing will be extended

Eligibility and Time for Filing Under Problem-Solving Procedure. Any classified employee

due to the employee's illness or other approved leave, up to ten (10) days after return to the job. The agency may accept a filing that is or appears to be filed late. Agency policies may provide for waiver of time elements or any intermediate step of the problem-solving procedure upon mutual agreement of the employee and appointing authority.

- **104. Elements of the Problem-Solving Procedure.** The procedure must contain a statement from the agency head encouraging employees to use the procedure for any nondisciplinary, job-related matters, and encouraging the employee, supervisors, and upper-level managers and administrators to resolve the matter at the lowest management level possible within the organization. The statement must also provide a means whereby agency representatives can obtain timely authority, if needed, to resolve the matter. The procedure must require the employee to make a reasonable attempt to discuss the issue with the immediate supervisor before filing. After a written filing is received, the procedure must provide for such additional levels of management within the employee's chain of command as are appropriate in the agency. The procedure must also provide for the use of an impartial mediator upon agreement by the employee and agency. Timelines must not exceed five (5) working days between each step unless both the employee and the agency agree, in writing, to a specific number of days to extend the timelines herein, not to exceed thirty (30) days between each step. The procedure must also inform the employee that he is entitled to be represented by a person of the employee's own choosing at each step of the procedure, except the initial informal discussion with the immediate supervisor. Two (2) or more employees may join in a single filing under the problem-solving procedure. Retaliation for filing under the problem-solving procedure, for participating as a witness, or representative is expressly prohibited. This procedure does not apply to unsatisfactory performance during entrance probation.
- **05.** Filings Alleging Sexual Harassment or Other Illegal Discrimination. Each agency's problem-solving procedure must provide an optional alternative procedure for an employee to file allegations of sexual harassment or discrimination based on race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age, or disability. The procedure must expressly prohibit sexual harassment and discrimination. Employees must be informed of their right to file complaints with the Idaho Human Rights Commission. The alternative procedure must designate a specific person or persons to receive and investigate such filings, and require that the investigation and resolution of them be conducted with maximum regard for confidentiality.
- Elements of Due Process Procedure. An agency must provide notice and an opportunity to respond before making a decision to impose any disciplinary sanction or involuntary transfer, as set forth in Section 67-5315(2), Idaho Code. With respect to notice, an agency must provide notice of the contemplated action, the basis or reason for the contemplated action, and an explanation of the evidence supporting the contemplated action. The notice must be provided to the employee and administrator concurrently. With respect to the opportunity to respond, the employee must be given the opportunity to respond to the notice and present reasons why the contemplated action should not be taken. The opportunity to respond must not occur later than five (5) working days after the employee has received notice, unless an extension is approved by the appointing authority in writing. After the employee has responded, or after the period to respond has expired or has been waived in writing by the employee, whichever occurs first, the appointing authority, or designee, must make and implement the agency's decision not later than five (5) working days thereafter, excluding days the appointing authority, or designee, is out of the office, or for other extenuating circumstances. The extension will be communicated to the employee in writing. The procedure must inform the employee of his right to be represented by a person of the employee's own choosing during the opportunity to respond. The procedure must also provide for the use of an impartial mediator upon agreement by the employee and agency. The procedure does not apply to unsatisfactory performance during entrance and promotional probation. The due process procedure is complete when the appointing authority, or designee, mails or delivers a decision to the affected employee. The decision must also be sent to the administrator concurrently.
- **07. Notification**. A copy of the approved problem-solving and due process procedures must be furnished and explained to each employee with permanent, or entrance probationary status in the agency concerned.

#### 201. APPEAL PROCEDURE.

**01. Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General.** In addition to the following rules on appeals and petitions for review, the "Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General" on contested cases, IDAPA 04.11.01.000 et seq., apply with the following exceptions, which are inconsistent with the

Commission's statute or practice: IDAPA 04.11.01.055, 202, 240, 250, 270.01, 280, 300, 302, 651, 720, 730, 740, 790, 791, 821.02, and 860. Petitions for rulemaking and declaratory rulings are addressed in Rules 270 and 271.

- **O2.** Filing of Appeal and Appearances. Every appeal filed with the Commission must be written and state the decision that is being appealed and the action requested of the Commission. The Commission must serve a copy of the appeal on the respondent and upon the legal counsel for the Commission. Notices of appearance and notices of substitution of counsel need not be filed by deputy attorneys general or members of law firms already representing a party in an appeal or petition for review.
- **03. Time for Appeal.** An appeal from a decision of an appointing authority is deemed to be timely filed if received at the office of the Commission within thirty-five (35) calendar days after completion of the agency due process procedure. Personal delivery or deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, of a written notification to the affected employee of the appointing authority's decision constitutes completion of the agency due process procedure. An appeal of a decision or action of the administrator or staff must be filed at the office of the Commission within thirty-five (35) calendar days of personal delivery of notice of the decision or action, deposit of the notice in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposit of the notice in Statehouse mail.
- **04. Non-Jurisdictional Appeals.** Appeals which are non-jurisdictional may be dismissed without motion by the hearing officer, the chair of the Commission, or his designee. If a hearing officer orders such a dismissal, the dismissal may be appealed to the Commission as a petition for review pursuant to Rule 202.01. If the chair of the Commission orders such a dismissal, it constitutes the final order of the Commission and may be appealed pursuant to Sections 67-5317(3) and 67-5318, Idaho Code.
- **05. Setting of Hearing**. Within fifteen (15) days after receiving the appeal from the Commission, the hearing officer must consult with the parties to set a mutually agreeable date for hearing. The hearing officer may thereafter postpone or continue the hearing for good cause.
- **96. Filing of Documents**. Once an appeal is referred to the hearing officer, all documents relating thereto must be filed directly with the hearing officer during the pendency of the appeal with copies provided simultaneously to opposing counsel and unrepresented parties.
- **07. Burden of Proof**. In disciplinary actions, the appointing authority has the burden of proving cause for the discipline by a preponderance of the evidence. In all other actions, the appellant has the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence.
- **08. Open Hearing**. Every hearing is public, unless the hearing officer closes the hearing for good cause. Individual parties may represent themselves (pro se) or be represented by an attorney.
- **09. Protective Orders**. The hearing officer may issue protective orders limiting access to information obtained in the course of a hearing.
- 10. Decision of Hearing Officer. The hearing officer must issue a decision in the form of a preliminary order explaining the right to file a petition for review under Section 67-5317, Idaho Code. The preliminary order, consisting of such findings of fact, conclusions of law and orders as are necessary, together with the record of the proceedings must be filed at the office of the Commission with a copy sent or delivered to the parties. A motion for reconsideration under Section 67-5243, Idaho Code, is not permitted.
- officer must make findings as to the entitlement to attorney fees and costs, if any, pursuant to Section 12-117, Idaho Code. If the hearing officer finds a prevailing party is entitled to statutory attorney fees and costs, the prevailing party must file a memorandum of costs, including a supporting affidavit stating the basis and method of computation of the amount claimed. The memorandum must be filed with the hearing officer not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the hearing officer's decision or no attorney fees and costs may be awarded. Objections to the award of attorney fees and costs must be filed not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the memorandum of costs and supporting affidavit. The hearing officer must conduct a hearing on the award of attorney fees and costs within ten (10) days of receiving any objections to the award. If no objections are timely filed with the hearing officer, or if

the parties stipulate to have the matter decided on the briefs, no hearing is required. The hearing officer determines the amount of the award and must make written findings as to the basis and reasons for the award within ten (10) days

decision	on the a	on the award of attorney fees and costs. If no hearing is required, the hearing officer must is ward of attorney fees and costs no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the prevailing costs and supporting affidavit.	
in the de	12. eterminati	Factors Considered in Award of Attorney Fees and Costs. The following factors are consion of an award of attorney fees and costs:	sidered ( )
	a.	The time and labor required;	( )
	b.	The experience and ability of the attorney;	( )
	c.	The prevailing charges for like work;	( )
	d.	The amount involved and the results obtained;	( )
	e.	Awards in similar cases; and	( )
	f.	Any other factor that appears pertinent to the award.	( )
202.	PETITI	ON FOR REVIEW PROCEDURE.	
		<b>Filing of Petition for Review</b> . A petition for review shall be filed at the office of the Comm (35) days of the hearing officer's decision issued pursuant to Rule 201.10. The petition shall fically cite the alleged errors of fact or law made by the hearing officer.	
costs. T	<b>02.</b> ing office the hearing ically stay	Stay of Hearing Officer's Decision. Upon the filing of the petition for review, the jurisdicer in the matter is ended except for resolving post-hearing motions and awarding attorney for gofficer's decision and any orders entered pursuant to Rules 201.10 and 201.11 wayed.	es and
any posi under su	t-hearing 1ch terms	<b>Nature of Hearing</b> . The hearing of the Commission on a petition for review will be limited ing issues of law and fact as may be found in the record established before the hearing offic orders. Written arguments or briefs and motions regarding the petition for review will be a as the Commission may direct in its notice of hearing, which will be issued at least twent the date set for hearing.	er and llowed
		<b>Transcript</b> . If the petition for review involves questions of fact, the appellant shall provide proceedings before the hearing officer for the Commission to review. The respondent may pay if the transcript for respondent's own use.	e a full for an
	05.	Requests for Postponement and Other Motions.	( )
designe		Except in emergencies, a request for postponement shall be filed in writing by a part later than seven (7) days before the scheduled hearing. The Chair of the Commission, or his termine whether good cause is shown for the postponement and grant or deny the request on on.	or her
Commis	ssioner, w	Motions to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction shall be decided by the Commission. All other need by the Chair of the Commission or at the Chair's discretion may be referred to chose decision on the motion may be communicated to the parties by letter or other informal by counsel to the Commission.	ne (1)

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE – DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

record of the proceedings and mail copies to the parties promptly.

- **07. Record of the Proceedings**. A verbatim record of the proceedings at hearings before the Commission shall be maintained either by electrical devices or by stenographic means, as the Commission may direct, but if any party to the action requests a stenographic record of the proceedings, the record shall be done stenographically. The requesting party shall pay the costs of reporting the proceedings.
- **08.** Attorney Fees and Costs in a Petition for Review. In its decision on petition for review, the Commission shall make findings as to the entitlement to attorney fees and costs, if any, pursuant to Section 12-117, Idaho Code. If the Commission finds the prevailing party, if any, is entitled to attorney fees and costs, the prevailing party shall file a request for attorney fees and costs, with accompanying memorandum and affidavit in support of the request described in Rule 201.11, with the Commission not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the Commission's decision. Objections to the award of attorney fees and costs shall be filed not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the request for attorney fees and costs. The Commission shall determine the amount of the award, if any, taking into account the factors defined in Rule 201.12.
- **09. Protective Orders.** The Commission may issue protective orders limiting access to information in the record.

#### 203. -- 209. (RESERVED)

#### 210. PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS.

- **01. Performance Evaluations**. Each agency shall use the statewide online performance evaluation system.
- **02. Use of Evaluations.** Performance evaluations should be used in connection with promotions, transfers, demotions, retentions, separations, and reassignments and used as the affirmative certification for merit increases, bonuses, and salary equity increases and for certifying a probationary employee to permanent status. Other uses of performance evaluations are optional with the appointing authority.
- **03. Evaluation Schedule.** All classified employees must be evaluated for their performance during probationary periods for appointments and promotions and for every two thousand eighty (2,080) hours of credited state service thereafter (generally, an annual basis). Part-time employees must be evaluated on an annual basis.

#### 211. -- 239. (RESERVED)

#### 240. WORKERS' COMPENSATION OR DISABILITY.

**O1.** Layoff After Twelve Weeks Disability. If the employee becomes disabled, whether or not due to a workers' compensation injury, and is unable to fully return to work after twelve (12) weeks' absence during any consecutive fifty-two (52) week period the employee's position may be declared vacant unless otherwise prohibited by state or federal law. The twelve (12) weeks' period of absence need not occur consecutively. The employee's name is certified to a reemployment preference register when the administrator has been notified by the physician that the employee is able to return to work. Conditional releases will be considered in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

#### 241. SEPARATION UPON FAILURE TO RETURN TO WORK.

Except for those employees on authorized leave or placed on a register with reemployment preference prescribed by Rule 241.02.a., an employee who has not returned to work within five (5) working days after approved paid or unpaid leave or release by his or her physician shall be considered as having voluntarily separated. Such separation shall be treated as a voluntary resignation, and the employee shall remain eligible for reinstatement. Written notification of his or her separation/resignation shall be mailed to the last known home address. Any objections by the employee to the notice, must be received within five (5) working days of receipt of the notice, or acceptance of the separation/resignation will be presumed. If objections are received within the timeline, a disciplinary separation (dismissal) or other formal disciplinary action may be pursued as provided in Rule 190.

#### 242. -- 249. (RESERVED)

#### 250. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE.

- **01. Investigation and Due Process Procedure.** Administrative leave may be granted by an appointing authority for employee investigations and due process procedures in accordance with Rule 190.02. ( )
- **02.** Closure or Inaccessibility. Administrative leave for closure or inaccessibility of a state office/facility due to severe weather, emergencies or incidents that could jeopardize agency operations, or the safety of others.
- **03. Other Reasons**. Administrative leave for reasons other than those listed above must be approved in advance by the administrator.

#### 251. -- 271. (RESERVED)

#### 272. POLICY MAKING AUTHORITY.

To address the need for all classified employees to be treated fairly, and in situations where the State may be considered as one (1) employer, the Division Administrator may issue guidance to provide consistent interpretation of federal law, state law, executive order or rule. Statewide policies governed by the administrator shall be adopted by appointing authorities.

273. -- 999. (RESERVED)

[Agency redlined courtesy copy]

## 15.04.01 – RULES OF THE DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND IDAHO PERSONNEL COMMISSION

#### 000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.

The rules of the Division of Human Resources and Idaho Personnel Commission are adopted pursuant to Section 67-5309, Idaho Code. The Division has authority to determine the policies of the Idaho Personnel System and make such rules as are necessary for the administration of the Personnel System. The administrator of the Division is appointed by the Governor, subject to confirmation by the Senate, and serves at the pleasure of the Governor pursuant to Section 67-5308(2), Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

#### 001. SCOPE

These rules establish the policies and procedures of the Idaho Personnel System.

002. -- 005. (RESERVED)

#### 006. WAIVER OF RULES.

The administrator reserves the right to waive any rule in specific instances when, in his/her opinion, such waivers are legal, warranted and justified in the interests of a more effective and responsive system of personnel administration.

007. -- 008. (RESERVED)

#### 009. DUTIES OF THE ADMINISTRATOR.

In addition to other duties as assigned by law, the administrator provides administrative support to the Idaho Personnel Commission, has custody of the books and records of the Division and the Commission, and maintains a

)

record of the proceedings before the Commission and its hearing officers.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>

0100	10	DEFI	NIT	<b>NOI</b>
V 771	"	1717171	111	11//11/

Each of the terms defined in these rules have the meaning given herein unless a different meaning is clearly required by the context. Additional definitions are contained in Section 67-5302, Idaho Code.

- **01.** Administrative Leave. Temporary paid leave from a job assignment where pay and benefits remain intact.
- **02. Appeal**. Any written request for relief from dismissal, demotion, suspension, or other adverse action filed with the Commission by an employee, appointing authority, or applicant. The meaning of appeal includes application, petition, or protest.
- **03. Appellant**. An employee, appointing authority, or applicant filing an appeal or a petition for review with the Commission.
- **04. Appointment, Limited**. The appointment of a person to a classified position where the work is projected to be of limited duration, for which the person has qualified by examination.
- **05. Appointment, Permanent**. The appointment of a person to a classified position who has been certified by the appointing authority to have successfully completed the required probationary period and whose employment is permanent, subject to removal or discipline only under the provisions of Title 67, Chapter 53, Idaho Code, and the rules of the Division and Idaho Personnel Commission.
- **06. Appointment, Probationary**. The appointment of a person to a classified position for which the person has qualified by examination but is serving a work trial period as a condition for certification to permanent appointment.
- **07.** Base Pay. The rate paid for performing a job, excluding bonuses, shift differentials, overtime or other compensation premiums.
- **08.** Classified Service. That body of positions in state agencies subject to Title 67, Chapter 53, Idaho Code, as defined therein and excludes temporary, and nonclassified appointments.
- **09.** Compensation Plan. The overall system of salary administration for classified service including Sections 67-5309B and 67-5309C, Idaho Code; the classification and compensation schedules, Division and Idaho Personnel Commission rules and policies, and agency policies governing employee pay.
- 10. Compensation Schedule. The pay grades established by the Division and associated rates of pay. (Ref. Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code)
- 11. Consultant. An independent contractor who provides professional or technical advice, counsel, or service. (Ref. Rule 050) (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- 12. **Dismissal**. The separation of an employee from classified service with cause assigned by the appointing authority pursuant to Rule 190.
  - **13. Division**. The Idaho Division of Human Resources. ( )
- **14. Due Process**. As related to Idaho's Personnel System for permanent classified employees, the activities required to address an individual's constitutional right to notice and an opportunity to be heard. (Ref. Section 67-5315, Idaho Code)
- 15. Employment History. The information available to the public without the employee's consent in accordance with Section 74-106, Idaho Code, for every agency for which a current or former public official works, including the official reasons for separation from employment but not including accrued leave balances or usage.

16. **Good Cause.** The conduct of a reasonable person in the same or similar circumstances. 17. **Hay Method.** A methodology for establishing the relative value of jobs and used as a dimension of the pay system. 18. Hiring List. A hiring list is a subset of a register consisting of the top twenty-five (25) individuals on the register, plus all individuals tied for the twenty-fifth position, certified as eligible for a specific recruitment. Candidates for reinstatement or transfer may be considered and are provided in addition to the top twenty-five (25). 19. **Incumbent**. Any person holding a classified or non-classified position in state service. ) Independent Contractor. Any person, firm, or corporation meeting the Internal Revenue Service's 20. test for an independent contractor or a self-employed person. (Ref. Rule 050) Involuntary Transfer. A significant change in work location, shift and/or organizational unit made as a result of a management decision as opposed to an employee's request or agreement to transfer. Layoff. An involuntary reduction in hours of work or separation of an incumbent in the classified service either by reduction in force due to shortage of work or funds, or abolishment of positions. Light or Limited Duty. A general term describing a temporary limited assignment in relation to recovery from injury, illness or other limiting condition as approved by the appointing authority. Merit Increase. The advancement of an employee's compensation within a pay grade based upon performance in accordance with Section 67-5309B(3) and (4), Idaho Code. Merit Increase Matrix. A pay distribution tool used to advance employee pay based on performance and market data. Minimum Qualification Specialty. A minimum qualification required for one (1) or more positions in a classification that is in addition to the other minimum qualifications required for all positions in the classification. Occasional or Sporadic Work. Work that is voluntarily performed by an employee in a different eapacity from the employee's regular work and is infrequent, irregular or occurring in scattered instances. (3-31-22) On-Call Time. Time when an employee is required to be available if called upon by their agency during hours that are outside of their normally defined work schedule. Pay Line Exception. A temporary assignment of pay grade, pursuant to Section 67-5309D, Idaho Code, in excess of the pay grade allocated pursuant to Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code, as approved by the administrator. Permanent Employee. An employee in the classified service who has successfully completed entrance probation. Permanent employees remain subject to separation as set forth in these rules and Section 67-5309(n), Idaho Code. Promotion. The advancement through the competitive process of an employee with permanent status from a position which he occupies in one (1) classification to a position in another classification having a higher paygrade.

3<mark>31</mark>.

the pay grade to which the employee's classification is allocated.

Reduction in Pay. A reduction of an employee's salary from one (1) pay rate to a lower rate within

**Register.** A list of names of persons or the name of one (1) person who has been determined to be

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

eligible for en administrator.	mployment in a classification on the basis of examination and merit factors as established by	y the
34 <u>2</u> .	<b>Resignation</b> . The voluntary quitting or abandonment of state employment, excluding retirem	ent.
3 <u>53</u> .	<b>Respondent</b> . The party whose interests are adverse to those of the appellant.	( )
364. based upon facemployee's per	<b>Salary Equity Increase</b> . The advancement of an employee's compensation within a pay ctors such as market demand, compression within the agency or classification, or inequities, arrivers in accordance with Section 67 5309B(3), Idaho Code. (3 31 22)	<del>nd the</del>
37 <u>5</u> . felony charges,	<b>Suspension</b> . An enforced period of absence, with or without pay, for disciplinary purpose, or pending investigation of charges made against an employee pursuant to Rule 190.	es, for
386. service for uns pursuant to Ru	<b>Termination</b> . The separation of an entrance or voluntary probationary employee from classatisfactory service during the probationary period without cause assigned by the appointing autile 152.	
<b>39<u>7</u>.</b> position to ano	<b>Transfer</b> . A change of work location of an employee in which the employee changes from other in the same classification or to another classification in the same pay grade.	ne (1)
40 <u>38</u> . while being co	Underfill. Administrator-approved appointment to a position established at a higher classification of a training plan.	cation
	4333. Prohibits employment discrimination against persons because of their service in the A	
4 <u>20</u> .	Workweek. A period of seven (7) consecutive days beginning 12:01 a.m. Sunday. (Ref. Rule (3-31-22))	<del>-073)</del>
01 <mark>40</mark> 019.	(RESERVED)	
All appointme	IC MERIT AND SALARY REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERSONNEL SYSTEM.  ents, promotions and separations in the classified service shall be based on competence, valuand individual performance.  (3-3)	id job 31-22)
<u>01.</u>	Examinations. Examinations shall be designed to evaluate factors pertinent to an indivi-	dual's
ability to perfo	orm competently the duties of the classification.	)
<u>a.</u> evaluate the su	Content of Examinations. Examinations may include any questions, tests or criteria design itability of applicants for job openings within a classification.	ned to
<u>b.</u> examination w examinations.	Job Analysis and Confidentiality. No information concerning the specific content of the divulged to unauthorized personnel by the Division or other personnel who have access	
		<i></i>
02. eligible candid	Eligible Candidates. The appointing authority shall make a selection from a hiring list contact lates.	aining )
a. examination ar	Failing Score. Failure in any part of the examination may disqualify an applicant in the nd from having his name placed on the hiring list.	entire
03. the minimum n	Authorized Pay Rates. No employee in the state classified service will be paid at a rate less greater than the maximum rate of the pay grade assigned to the classification.	s than

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

<b>a.</b> Payline Exceptions. Temporary assignments to a new pay grade may be made by the
administrator. Such assignments apply to an entire classification for the purpose of recruitment or retention and will be reviewed annually to determine the need for continuance.
<u>b.</u> <u>Salary Equity Increases. An appointing authority may, with approval by the administrator, advance</u>
an employee's salary within a pay grade based upon factors such as market demand, to address compression within an
agency or classification, or inequities.
grade does not require a change in the employee's salary, but a lower or higher rate may be negotiated between the employee and the appointing authority. If the transfer is to a classification of lower pay grade (demotion), the employee's salary is negotiable between the employee and appointing authority within the lower pay grade.
d. Salary Upon Reinstatement. Unless related to reemployment after a layoff, the salary of a reinstated employee is negotiable between the employee and appointing authority in the current pay grade for the classification in which the employee has reinstatement privileges.
e. Salary After Reappointment from Layoff. Employees appointed by the agency that laid them off will be paid in the current pay grade for the classification to which reappointed or at the same payrate the employee received immediately preceding layoff, whichever is greater, but not to exceed the maximum of the current pay grade.
<u>f.</u> Salary Upon Return from Military Duty. An employee who returns to state service from active military duty in accordance with the provisions of Section 65-508, Idaho code, and USERRA will be paid at a comparable rate in the current pay grade for the classification to which they were assigned prior to leaving for military service.
g. Reduction of Salary. The salary of an employee receiving more than the lowest rate of the pay grade for his classification may be reduced to a lower rate within the pay grade by the appointing authority for disciplinary reasons enumerated in Rule 190.
021. DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED.  No person shall be discriminated against in regards to appointments, promotions, demotions, separations, transfers, compensation, or other terms, conditions, or privileges of employment because of race, national origin, color, sex, age, religion, disability, or veteran status (unless under other than honorable conditions).  (3-31-22)
021. BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR VETERANS AND MILITARY PERSONNEL.
<b>Q1.</b> Application by Military Personnel. An application will be accepted after the closing date of the announcement from a person who was serving in the armed forces or undergoing service-connected hospitalization of no more than one (1) year following discharge, during any period in which the announcement was open. The application must be submitted within one hundred twenty (120) days of the applicant's separation from the armed forces or hospitalization and prior to the expiration of the register established as a result of an examination.
<b>Q2.</b> Return from Military Duty. An employee returning from military leave without pay who is relieved or discharged from military duty under conditions other than dishonorable will be, upon application, reinstated in his former position, or one of comparable classification, without loss of credited state service, status, or pay as prescribed by Sections 46-216, 65-508, and 65-511, Idaho Code, USERRA, or the Military Selective Service Act, Title 38, Chapter 43, U.S. Code. Application for reemployment must be made in accordance with the provisions of USERRA.
4 Application by Disabled Veterans. A disabled veteran may file an application at any time up until a selection for any classification for which the Division maintains a register as a source for future job openings or for which a register is about to be established, provided the veteran has not already been examined twice for the same classification, does not have current eligibility on that register, or is not serving in a competitive position in the same pay grade as the classification for which application is made.

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE – DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

<u>04.</u>	<u>Veterans' Preference Points.</u>	(
<u>a.</u>	Veterans' and disabled veterans' preference points must not be used to achieve a pass	ing score.
defined in Sec	Veterans' and disabled veterans' preference points, when applicable under state law, ore achieved in the examinations. Five (5) points will be added to the earned rating of a tion 65-203, Idaho Code, and the widow or widower of any veteran, as defined in Solong as the widow or widower remains unmarried.	ny veteran, as
disabled vetera	Disabled veterans', Purple Heart recipients, spouses of any eligible disabled veterar public employment because of a service-connected disability, and unmarried widows on entitled to ten (10) point preference will be placed on the open-competitive register in the examination augmented by preference points.	r widowers o
will be offered veterans with a an interview.	Disabled veterans who have a current service-connected disability of thirty percent (d) an interview when their final score places them on the hiring list. If more than ten disability rating of thirty percent (30%) or more place on a hiring list, at least ten (10) verified the disability rating of thirty percent (30%) or more place on a hiring list, at least ten (10) verified the disability rating of thirty percent (30%) or more place on a hiring list, at least ten (10) verified the disability rating of thirty percent (30%) or more place on a hiring list.	(10) disabled
All questions impermissibly	discriminate on the basis of race, national origin, color, sex, age, religion, disabveteran status are prohibited. Questions regarding veteran status for compliance v	
Oualification 1	A FIDE OCCUPATIONAL QUALIFICATION.  requirements based on age or gender may be established as necessary for specific po of the Division.	sitions by the
The maintenant ensure proper integrity of st	FLICT OF INTEREST AND PERSONAL CONDUCT.  see of a high standard of honesty, ethics, impartiality, and conduct by state employees performance of state business and strengthen the faith and confidence of the people of ate government and state employees. All appointing authorities shall establish such stary to prevent conflicts of interest.	<del>f Idaho in the</del>
No employee	<b>OTISM.</b> shall work under the immediate supervision of a supervisor who is a spouse, child, p me relation by marriage.	arent, brother
There will be	LEMPLOYMENT.  no conflicting hours of work when a classified employee is employed by more than mployee must obtain approval from all appointing authorities concerned prior to b	
02 <del>7</del> <u>4</u> 04 <u>5</u> 9.	(RESERVED)	
Nothing in the other profession	SULTANTS AND PERSONS EMPLOYED UNDER INDEPENDENT CONTRACT use rules prohibits the use of independent contractors or consultants for legal, medical unal services, provided that they are not engaged in the performance of administrative to position in the state classified service will be filled by a consultant or independent cor	, technical, or duties for any
<del>01.</del> professional sta	Limited Use Only. Individuals employed through contracts with temporary affing agencies will be utilized only for short-term situations.	services of (3-31-22)

<del>02.</del>

Conflict of Interest/Nepotism. Agency policies regarding conflict of interest/nepotism should

#### GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

address the award of work to consultants and contractors. (See Rules 024 and 025 and Ref. Section 18-1359, Idaho Code. (3 31 22)

Not to Be Treated as Employees. Independent contractors, their staff or consultants must not be treated as employees. Appointing authorities must comply with current Internal Revenue Service guidance on independent contractor and employee definitions.

#### (RESERVED)

#### ADOPTION OF CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE.

The Division will develop, adopt, and make effective a classification schedule consisting of classification specifications allocated to various pay grades in the compensation schedule for all positions based on an analysis of the duties and responsibilities of representative positions.

#### ANALYSIS OF CLASSIFICATIONS. 06<del>1</del>0.

The Division will assist appointing authorities in the analysis of positions in determining proper classification and, at the determination of the administrator, will conduct independent classification reviews of the various agencies.

#### 062.AUTHORITY.

The administrator has the responsibility and authority to classify positions in the classification schedule.

#### REVIEW OF CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE. 063.

The administrator will ensure the appropriateness and accuracy of classification specifications.

#### 0641. AMENDMENT OF CLASSIFICATION SCHEDULE.

- Changes To Classifications. Whenever it is necessary to establish or delete a classified position or to revise a position's responsibilities, the appointing authority will submit proposed changes to the administrator.
- Approval. Each appointing authority, prior to establishing any new position within the agency, will obtain the approval of the administrator for the classification of such positions and their assignment to a pay grade in the compensation schedule. Approval by the administrator of the Division of Financial Management for sufficiency of funds is also required.
- Assignment to Pay Grade Required. No person will be appointed to, employed in, or paid for services in any classified position until the position has been established, classified, and assigned to a pay grade in accordance with these rules.

#### 06<mark>52</mark>. APPROVAL OF NEW, REVISED AND DELETED CLASSIFICATIONS.

- New and Refactored Classifications. New classifications of work and revised classifications require approval by both the administrator and the Division of Financial Management administrator when there is a fiscal impact.
- Revised and Deleted Classifications. Revised classifications with no fiscal impact and classifications deleted from the classification schedule require approval only of the administrator.

#### ABOLISHMENT OF POSITIONS.

An appointing authority may abolish a position for reasons of administrative efficiency. Employees to be separated as a result shall have layoff and reemployment preference in accordance with Rules 140 through 147.

#### RECLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS. 0674.

**Procedure.** Positions may be reclassified in the same pay grade, upward, or downward as determined by an analysis by the Division of the duties and responsibilities assigned by appointing authorities to specific positions. An incumbent occupying a reclassified position shall be properly classified by an appointing authority within thirty (30) calendar days of being notified by the administrator that the duties and responsibilities assigned to the position are not properly classified.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

**02. Effective Date**. Reclassifications of positions are not effective until they are approved by the administrator, but may be retroactive to the beginning of the pay period during which approval is granted. Reclassification of an employee may not precede the effective date of the reclassification of the position. ( )

#### 968. VIOLATIONS.

Accurate position classification is the foundation for providing equal pay for equal work, identification of actual work performed, fair employment and equal opportunity for promotions, and equitable compensation. Upon the administrator's determination that classification rules have been violated, the appointing authority will be informed and provided thirty (30) days to take actions necessary to correct the situation or submit a corrective action plan to the administrator. If these actions do not occur, the administrator will inform the employee, the appointing authority, and the state controller that the employee is being compensated in violation of these rules. (Ref. Sections 67-5308 and 67-5312, Idaho Code)

#### 06<u>95</u>. (RESERVED)

#### 07066. COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES SURVEYS.

- 01. Assignment to Pay Grade. As a basis for pay equity, the Division will use a combination of point factoring and market data to determine the relative value of each classification. (Ref. Rule 074.01 and Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- **Pactoring.** The Division will use the Hay method to determine the relative value of each classification, and as a basis for internal pay equity. (Ref. Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code) (3-31-22)
- **031. Salary Surveys.** The Division will conduct or approve salary surveys, to determine salary ranges that represent labor market average rates for Hay point factored positions in classified service.
- **042. Relevant Labor Markets**. Labor markets used for wage comparison will be based on recruiting markets for specific job classifications. Consultation with various appointing authorities will also contribute to labor market determination.
- when the competition for employees is the local area market, the comparison will be made from a survey representing public and private employers in the state of Idaho.

  (3-31-22)
- b. For classifications with a regional recruiting area, the comparator market will be from public and private employers from the neighboring states and Idaho. For those with no private counterparts, the comparator market will be state governments, including, but not limited to, Arizona, Colorado, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, Utah, Washington, and Wyoming.

  (3-31-22)
- e. Recruitment and retention issues will be used to determine the need for additional special market surveys.
- 05. Compensation Schedule. Significant changes to components of the compensation plan will be presented in a public meeting after notice. (3-31-22)

#### 071. MERIT INCREASE MATRIX.

Salary increases must be based on a merit increase matrix approved by the Division. Shift and geographic premium pay, bonuses, reinstatements, transfers, promotions, salary equity increases, and recruitment and retention awards are not subject to a matrix.

(3.31.22)

#### 072. OPERATION OF COMPENSATION PLAN.

**O1.** Authorized Pay Rate. No employee in the state classified service will be paid at a rate less than

# GOVERNOR'S OFFICE – DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

the min	<del>imum n</del>	or greater than the maximum rate of the pay grade assigned to the classification.	(3-31-22
	<del>02.</del>	Starting Salary. The starting salary for a new appointee may be anywhere within	n the pay grad
<del>assigne</del> <del>market,</del>	<del>d to the</del> and rel	employee's classification and is at the appointing authority's discretion considering a ation to existing staff salaries.	<del>vailable budge</del> <del>(3-31-22</del>
adminis	<del>03.</del> strator. S ewed an	Payline Exceptions. Temporary assignments to a new pay grade may be Such assignments apply to an entire classification for the purpose of recruitment or re nually to determine the need for continuance.	made by th tention and wi (3-31-22
advance	<del>04.</del> e an emj	Salary Equity Increases. An appointing authority may, with approval by the ployee's salary within a pay grade based upon factors such as market demand, to addressey or classification, or inequities. In accordance with Section 67-5309B(3), Ic	ess compressio
employ	ee's per	formance must be considered.	(3 31 22
same p	<del>ayrate t</del>	Salary After Reappointment from Layoff. Employees appointed by the agency the .01 and 146) will be paid in the current pay grade for the classification to which reappeared the employee received immediately preceding layoff, whichever is greater, but no e current pay grade.	nat laid them of pointed or at the to exceed the (3-31-22)
	<del>06.</del>	Salary Upon Transfer.	(3-31-22
does no	<del>a.</del> ot requiree and t	A transfer between agencies (Ref. Rule 125) in the same classification or one of rea change in the employee's salary, but a lower or higher rate may be negotiat he appointing authority.	equal pay grad ed between th (3-31-22
negotia	<del>b.</del> <del>ble betv</del>	If the transfer is to a classification of lower pay grade (demotion), the employeen the employee and appointing authority within the lower pay grade.	<del>oyee's salary i</del> <del>(3-31-22</del>
reinstat	<del>07.</del> ed empl	Salary Upon Reinstatement. Unless related to reemployment after a layoff, oyee (Ref. Rule 124) is negotiable between the employee and appointing authority in	the salary of
grade fo	or the cl	assification in which the employee has reinstatement privileges.	(4 6 23
employ	<del>08.</del> ee's sale	Salary Upon Downward Reassignment. When a classification is reassigned ary will be protected to the maximum within the new pay grade.	downward th
military compar service.	able rate	Salary Upon Return from Military Duty. An employee who returns to state serve accordance with the provisions of Section 65 508, Idaho Code, and USERRA will be in the current pay grade for the classification to which he was assigned prior to leave	<del>l be paid at th</del>
0 <del>73</del> <u>67</u> .	CALO	CULATION OF PAY.	
calculat	<b>01.</b> ted in th	<b>Standard Calculation of Pay</b> . For other than police, correctional officers, or fire er e following order:	nployees, pay i
	a.	Holiday pay;	(
	b.	All hours worked on a holiday as overtime;	(
work;	c.	All hours worked over forty (40) in the workweek as overtime, excluding occasion	onal or sporadi
	d.	Vacation, sick and other paid or unpaid leaves; and	(
	e.	All remaining hours worked at the employee's regular rate of pay.	(

- **O2. Shift Differential.** Additional compensation paid to employees (including temporary or part-time employees) who work specific, designated hours. Shift differential is paid in addition to any other compensation. (Ref. Sections 67-5302(20) and 67-5328, Idaho Code; Shift differential may be awarded in amounts up to and including twenty-five percent (25%) of hourly rates, based on local market practice for similar jobs. (Ref. Section 67-5309(u), Idaho Code.
- 03. Calculation of Pay for Police, Correctional Officers, and Fire Employees. Police, correctional officers, and fire employees on a twenty eight (28) day work schedule will be compensated as described in Rules 073.01 and 073.02, except that overtime will be calculated based on one hundred sixty (160) hours in a twenty eight (28) day period instead of forty (40) hours in a workweek.

#### 04. Holiday Pay Calculation.

(3-31-22)

- **a.** Paid time off for holidays is a benefit and must be allocated in a substantially similar manner to all employees in the same classification. (3-31-22)
- b. A full time employee will receive holiday pay in accordance with the number of hours the employee works on a regular workday. If the employee's schedule is so irregular that a regular workday cannot be determined, the employee will receive eight (8) hours of holiday pay. An employee must receive some paid leave, wages or salary for the pay period in which the holiday occurs to receive the holiday benefit.

  (3 31 22)
- e. A part-time employee who has a regular work schedule shall be paid for a holiday in the same ratio as eight (8) hours is to a forty (40) hour work week, which for calculation purposes converts to two tenths (.20) x hours normally worked.
- d. To avoid inequities with regard to the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) during holiday weeks, if an employee is recording all hours for the week as Family Medical "Leave Without Pay," no hours will be coded on the holiday. Therefore, the holiday will not be counted toward the twelve (12) weeks of family medical leave.

(3 31 22)

- e. If a part time employee's hourly schedule is so irregular that a normal workweek cannot be determined, the holiday benefit is in the same proportion that the hours the employee works during a week in which a holiday occurs relate to forty (40).

  (3-31-22)
- **f.** Schedules resulting in holiday time off in excess of eight (8) hours may be approved by the appointing authority if included in the agency compensation plan. Appointing authorities may also suspend flex schedules during holiday weeks or otherwise adjust work schedules to ensure internal consistency.

  (3-31-22)
- 95. Reduction of Salary. The salary of an employee receiving more than the lowest rate of the pay grade for his classification may be reduced to a lower rate within the pay grade by the appointing authority for disciplinary reasons enumerated in Rule 190.

  (3.31.22)
- 96. Salary Administration. Each agency must develop a compensation plan designed to consider recruitment and retention and ensure pay equity within the organization. (Ref. Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code)
  (3-31-22)
- **97.** Salaries for Temporary Appointments. Except as provided for in these rules, salaries for employees hired under temporary appointments will be governed by Section 59-1603, Idaho Code. (4-6-23)

#### 074. ASSIGNMENT OF HAY EVALUATION POINTS.

- 01. Assignment to Pay Grade. Pursuant to Sections 67-5309B and C, Idaho Code, the pay grade to which a classification is assigned shall be determined by the number of Hay evaluation points assigned to each classification.

  (3-31-22)
- **62.** Guide Charts. The Hay evaluation points assigned to a classification shall be the composite numerical value of points factored from the Hay guide charts.

  (3-31-22)

- **63.** Factoring Benchmarks. The established factoring benchmarks shall be used in conjunction with the Hay Guide Charts to determine the number of points assigned to a classification. (3-31-22)
- **94.** Factoring Process. Hay evaluation points shall be assigned to a classification by review and assignment of the administrator and with notification to the administrator of the Division of Financial Management regarding potential fiscal impacts. These points are final unless appealed in accordance with Section 67-5316, Idaho Code.

  (4-6-23)

#### <del>075.</del> BONUSES.

- **Performance Bonuses.** Up to a total of two thousand dollars (\$2,000) may be awarded each fiscal year, in recognition of exemplary performance. In extraordinary circumstances exceptions to the two thousand dollar (\$2,000) limit may be granted if approved in advance by the State Board of Examiners. Documentation of the exemplary performance and related bonus award must be provided to the employee and placed in the employee's agency personnel file. (Ref. Sections 59-1603(7) and 67-5309D(1), Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- **O2.** Employee Suggestion Award. Appointing authorities may award up to a total of twenty-five percent (25%) of the savings realized from an employee's idea to save taxpayer dollars, not to exceed two thousand dollars (\$2,000). (Ref. Section 67-5309D, Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- **a.** Suggestions need to increase productivity, conserve state resources, reduce state costs, or improve the morale of state employees. (3 31 22)
- **b.** Suggestions that may deserve an award larger than two thousand dollars (\$2,000) and suggestions aimed at saving money outside the employee's state agency should be submitted through the employee's agency first, then submitted to the Division. Awards greater than two thousand dollars (\$2,000) must be approved in advance by the State Board of Examiners.

  (3-31-22)
- e. Employee suggestion awards may be funded from the expense eategory (personnel, operating, or eapital) from which the savings were realized.

  (3-31-22)

#### 0<del>76</del>68. -- 079. (RESERVED)

#### 080. RECRUITMENT.

The administrator will cooperate with the appointing authority of each agency in the operation of a coordinated recruiting program.

(3-31-22)

#### 081. PURPOSE OF EXAMINATIONS.

The administrator shall conduct examinations for the purpose of maintaining eligibility registers.

#### 0820. METHODS OF RECRUITMENT.

For the purpose of establishing eligibility registers, there are three (3) methods of recruitment: open competitive, agency promotional, or statewide promotional. The scope of advertising and outreach for each approach will vary with agency preference, needs, and labor market strategies.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

#### 083. MOVING EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT.

- **Reimbursement Limitations.** The appointing authority may reimburse moving expenses for current or newly hired state employees in an amount less than or equal to ten percent (10%) of the employee's base salary or fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000), whichever is less. Moving expense reimbursements must comply with the State Board of Examiners' State Moving Policy and Procedures that are in effect at the time the move takes place.

  (3 31 22)
- **O2.** Exceptions to Reimbursement Limitations. Exceptions to the expense reimbursement limits set forth in Rule 083.01 may be granted if approved in advance by the appointing authority. (3 31 22)

#### **084.** ANNOUNCEMENT OF RECRUITMENT.

- O1. Distribution of Announcements. The announcement of each open-competitive recruitment will be made through an internet application system and posted to other locations determined necessary by the administrator to develop a register of eligibles. If the open competitive recruitment has been requested by the appointing authority in lieu of a promotional recruitment, it will be his responsibility to post or otherwise distribute the announcement so it can be seen by all employees of that agency prior to its expiration date. (Ref. Rule 169)

  (4-6-23)
- **Posting of Promotional Announcements**. The announcement for each promotional recruitment will be supplied to the appointing authority of each affected agency. It will be his responsibility to post, electronically communicate, or otherwise distribute such announcement so it can be seen by all employees in the agency prior to the expiration date.

  (3-31-22)

#### 085. CONTENT OF ANNOUNCEMENTS.

Each announcement shall contain the title of the classification, characteristic duties and responsibilities, salary, minimum qualifications, nature of examination, qualifying score, closing date, equal opportunity and veterans' preference notice, and other pertinent information.

(3.31.22)

#### 086. APPLICATIONS.

- **91.** Form. All applications must be filed in the form approved by the administrator. (3-31-22)
- **62.** Filing of Applications. Applications are currently accepted by internet application system.
- 03. Application by Military Personnel. An application will be accepted after the closing date of the announcement from a person who was serving in the armed forces, or undergoing service-connected hospitalization of no more than one (1) year following discharge, during any period in which the announcement was open. The application must be submitted within one hundred twenty (120) days of the applicant's separation from the armed forces or hospitalization and prior to the expiration of the register established as a result of an examination. (Ref. Sections 65-503 and 67-5309(f), Idaho Code)
- **Application by Disabled Veterans**. A disabled veteran may file an application at any time up until a selection for any classification for which the Division maintains a register as a source for future job openings or for which a register is about to be established, provided the veteran has not already been examined twice for the same classification, does not have current eligibility on that register, or is not serving in a competitive position in the same pay grade as the classification for which application is made. (Ref. Sections 65-503 and 67-5309(f), Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- 95. Promotion of Entrance Probationary Employee. Any classified employee on entrance probation may file an application for a promotional opportunity but is ineligible to be certified to a department or statewide promotional hiring list until permanent status has been attained. (Ref. Rule 169.03.)

  (3-31-22)
- 06. Disclosure of Information for Hiring Purposes. By submitting an application, an individual is deemed to authorize disclosure of confidential information to state agencies for purposes of screening, testing, interviewing and hiring. (Ref. Section 74-106, Idaho Code).

  (3-31-22)

#### 087. DENIAL OF APPLICATIONS.

- **91. Basis.** The administrator may choose not to process an application if: (3-31-22)
- **a.** The applicant will not meet the minimum qualifications specified in the announcement at the time set for appointment.

  (3 31 22)
  - b. The application was not received on or before the closing date for acceptance of applications.

    (3-31-22)

- e. A background investigation or examination of an applicant discloses that the applicant committed an act which is cause for dismissal as provided in Rule 190. (3 31 22)
- **62. Further Actions.** When any such finding under Rule 087.01 is made, the administrator may deny the application and may cancel the eligibility of the applicant if he or she has already attained a place on the eligibility register. If the applicant has already received appointment, the administrator may take appropriate action to have the employee removed from the position.

  (3-31-22)

#### <del>088. - 089.</del> <del>(RESERVED)</del>

#### 090. EXAMINATIONS.

Examinations shall be designed to evaluate factors pertinent to an individual's ability to perform competently the duties of the classification. The factors tested shall be job-related and may include, but are not limited to, education and experience, knowledge, skills, abilities, aptitude, and physical ability.

(3.31.22)

#### 091. PROHIBITED FACTORS.

No part of any examination may include any question designed to reveal prohibited information including the political or religious affiliation or belief, national origin or race of any candidate.

(3-31-22)

#### 092. PREPARATION OF EXAMINATIONS.

- O1. Content of Examinations. Examinations may include any questions, tests or criteria designed to evaluate the suitability of applicants for job openings within a classification. So far as is practical, promotional examinations will be similar to corresponding open-competitive examinations and the same standards will be applied in determining scores.

  (3-31-22)
- **92. Job Analysis and Confidentiality.** Contents of each examination will be determined by the Division on the basis of appropriate professional techniques and procedures of job analysis and test development. No information concerning the specific content of the examination will be divulged to unauthorized personnel by the Division or other personnel who have access to the examinations.

  (3-31-22)
- 03. Subject-Matter Experts. The Division may, at its discretion, collaborate with appointing authorities, incumbents, subject-matter experts, or other qualified persons in the preparation of examinations.

(3.31.22)

## 093. CONDUCT AND RATING OF EXAMINATIONS INCLUDING VETERANS' PREFERENCE POINTS.

- **91.** Designation of Examiners. The examinations will be conducted and rated by persons designated by the administrator. (3-31-22)
- 92. Seoring of Examinations. Each examination will be rated for final scores on the basis of one hundred (100) point maximum. The Division will use appropriate statistical and professional techniques and procedures in determining passing points and final scores.

  (3 31 22)

#### 03. Veterans' Preference. (3-31-22)

will be added to the final score achieved in the examinations, notwithstanding the fact that the augmented final score may exceed one hundred (100) points. Five (5) percentage points will be added to the earned rating of any veteran, as defined in Section 65-203, Idaho Code, and the widow or widower of any veteran, as defined in Section 65-203, Idaho Code, as long as the widow or widower remains unmarried. Pursuant to Section 65-504, Idaho Code, ten (10) percentage points will be added to the earned rating of any disabled veteran, as defined in Section 65-502, Idaho Code, or to the unmarried widow or widower of the same, or the spouse of any eligible disabled veteran who cannot qualify for any public employment because of a service-connected disability. Employment registers will be established in order of final score except that the names of all five (5) and ten (10) percentage point preference eligibles resulting from the merit system will be placed on the register in accordance with their augmented rating. (Ref. Sections 65-506 and 67-

5309(f), Idaho Code) (3-31-22)

- b. Veterans' and disabled veterans' preference points must not be used to achieve a passing score.
  (3-31-22)
- **64.** Failing Score. Failure in any part of the examination may disqualify the applicant in the entire examination and from having his name placed on the register. Final scores will be computed in accordance with weights assigned the individual factors in the total examination.

  (3 31 22)
- 05. Examination Upon Reclassification. An employee occupying a position which is reclassified (Ref. Rule 067.01) may be required at the discretion of the administrator to pass an examination for the classification to which reclassified.

  (3-31-22)

# 094. ELIMINATION TESTS.

Wherever it is stated in the announcement that an applicant must qualify in a series of different tests or satisfy other requirements to become eligible for appointment, and the applicant fails to meet such requirements, he or she shall not be permitted to take any further tests in the examination, and such tests if previously given need not be rated.

(3-31-22)

# 005. NOTICE AND RECORD OF RESULTS OF EXAMINATION.

All competitors shall be notified of their final scores electronically or by mail. The records of scores are held as official records for the life of the resulting eligibility registers.

(3-31-22)

# 096. REVIEW AND APPEAL.

- **Q1.** Review of Examination Content and Scoring Material. Any competitor, or his/her representative authorized in writing, shall be permitted to inspect his/her own papers and records, except examination content and scoring material, upon application in person at the office of the Division in Boise during business hours. Alternative arrangements are available for competitors located outside of Boise. Review is limited to the time allowed for appeal of examination scores.

  (3-31-22)
- **Appeal of Examination Score**. Any competitor, by written request to the administrator, may appeal his or her examination score within thirty-five (35) calendar days after the notice was sent to such competitor. The administrator will review the test, may change the score, and may take any other action necessary to insure the integrity and quality of the testing process. When such review discloses error affecting the scores of other competitors, the review and adjustment includes their scores. The administrator will provide a written explanation to competitors whose scores are affected by the action taken.

  (3-31-22)

# 097. ALTERNATIVE EXAMINATION PROCESS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.

- 01. Conditions for Eligibility. Notwithstanding other provisions in these rules, an agency may appoint an individual directly into entrance or promotional probationary status in a classification if the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation, the Idaho Commission for the Blind, or the Industrial Commission certifies the following: (3-31-22)
- a. That the individual has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one (1) or more major life activities, as further defined under state or federal law; (3-31-22)
- **b.** That the individual meets the minimum qualifications of the classification and is qualified to perform the essential functions of a particular classified position with or without reasonable accommodation; and (3.31.22)
- e. That the individual lacks competitiveness in the examination process due to the disability. (Ref. Section 67-5309(e), Idaho Code.) (3-31-22)
  - **Operation Shall be made with the concurrence of the Division.**(3-31-22)

03. Probationary Period. The probationary period shall be the sole examination for individuals certified under this alternative examination process. (Ref. Rule 150).

#### <del>098. -- 100.</del> <del>(RESERVED)</del>

# 101. ELIGIBILITY REGISTERS.

Eligibility registers are established by the Division to provide for fair and impartial selection for entrance into the state classified service and for promotion on the basis of competitive merit examinations.

(3.31-22)

- **Q1.** Reemployment Preference Registers. Registers with reemployment preference for a given classification will contain the names of classified employees of permanent status who have been laid off except limited service appointments. (Ref. Rules 140 and 144).

  (3-31-22)
- **Open Competitive Registers.** Open competitive registers for a given classification will contain the names of applicants who successfully passed an open competitive examination for the classification. (3-31-22)

#### 102. PLACEMENT ON REGISTER.

- **91.** Score Order. Eligible candidates will be placed on the register for a given classification ranked in descending numerical order based on their final score on the examination for such classification. (3.31.22)
- **Veterans' Preference**. Eligible veterans or surviving spouses entitled to five (5) point preference will be placed on the open competitive register in accordance with their final score on the examination augmented by preference points. (Ref. Rule 093.03 and Section 65-504, Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
  - 03. Disabled Veterans' Preference. Preference will be awarded to disabled veterans as follows:
    (3-31-22)
- a. Disabled veterans, Purple Heart recipients, spouses of any eligible disabled veterans who cannot qualify for any public employment because of a service-connected disability, and unmarried widows or widowers of disabled veterans entitled to ten (10) point preference will be placed on the open-competitive register in order of their final score on the examination augmented by preference points. (Ref. Rule 093.03 and Sections 65-503 and 65-504, Idaho Code)
- b. Disabled veterans who have a current service connected disability of thirty percent (30%) or more will be offered an interview when their final score on the hiring list places them within the top twenty-five (25) qualified candidates. If more than ten (10) disabled veterans with a disability rating of thirty percent (30%) or more place in the top twenty five (25) qualified scores of a hiring list, at least ten (10) will be offered an interview. (Ref. Rule 093.03 and Section 65-504, Idaho Code)

#### 103. DURATION OF ELIGIBILITY REGISTERS.

- 01. Reemployment Preference Registers. Eligible candidates will remain thereon for twelve (12) months from effective date of layoff. (Ref. Rules 101.01 and 144) (3-31-22)
- Other Registers. The duration of all other registers will be determined by the administrator based on the frequency of job openings and agency need.

  (3.31.22)

# 104. REMOVAL OF NAMES.

- **Q1.** Reasons Specified. Names may be removed from any eligibility register by the administrator because of:

  (3-31-22)
- **a.** Appointment of the eligible candidate from the register to the classification or appointment to a classification in a higher pay grade.

  (3-31-22)
  - **b.** A statement by the eligible candidate that he is not willing to accept appointment under conditions

previously specified. (3-31-22)

- e. Physical, mental or other disability where it has been demonstrated that the disability will prevent the eligible candidate from satisfactorily performing the essential functions of the position with reasonable accommodation for the disability.

  (3 31 22)
- **d.** Failure of an eligible candidate to respond within seven (7) calendar days to documented good faith inquiry concerning availability for employment. (3-31-22)
- e. The eligible candidate's conduct renders him unsuitable for the position or elassification for which he applied.
- **f.** Written rejection of the eligible candidate for good cause by an appointing authority as approved by the administrator.

  (3.31-22)
  - g. Conviction of an eligible candidate of any felony. (3-31-22)
- h. False statements of material facts given in the eligible candidate's application for employment or any subsequent examinations or interviews. (3-31-22)
  - i. Dismissal of an eligible candidate from state service. (3-31-22)
- paying, promising to pay, or giving any money, thing, service or consideration to any person, directly or indirectly, for any service or influence given, used, or promised towards securing appointment. (3-31-22)
- k. Directly or indirectly obtaining information regarding examinations to which, as an applicant, he is (3-31-22)
- **l.** Refusing an interview or refusing to accept a position under the conditions set forth in the recruitment announcement. (3-31-22)
- Having been certified for a probationary appointment for three (3) separate positions in the same classification in the same agency and not been accepted for employment for good cause.

  (3-31-22)
  - n. Declining three (3) separate offers of employment or reemployment without good cause. (3-31-22)
- **Q2.** Limitations and Duration of Removal. The administrator will determine if the candidate will be removed from all registers, registers for a particular classification, or registers for specified agencies. All removals will be for one (1) year unless otherwise authorized by the administrator.

  (3-31-22)

## 105. TEMPORARY UNAVAILABILITY NOT REASON FOR REMOVAL.

Temporary unavailability of an eligible applicant, not to exceed fifteen (15) calendar days, in order that the employee may give his or her employer advance notice of separation is not proper cause for his or her removal from the register.

(3 31 22)

#### 106. RESTORATION OF NAMES TO ELICIPILITY RECISTERS.

Upon receiving appropriate evidence, the administrator shall restore the name of an eligible candidate to any eligibility register from which it has been removed for causes enumerated in Rule 104.

(3-31-22)

# 107. REVISION OF CLASSIFICATION SPECIFICATIONS.

Whenever a classification specification is revised, the names of persons on the existing eligibility register who meet the minimum qualifications for the revised classification shall be placed in score order on the eligibility register for the revised classification.

(3.31.22)

- 108. (RESERVED)
- 109. CERTIFICATION AND SELECTION.

Whenever a vacancy in a classified position is to be filled by a competitive recruitment process, the appointing authority shall make selection from a hiring list created from eligibility registers certified by the Division. Non-promotional internal or external transfers or reinstatements do not require registers certified by the Division.

(<del>3-31-22)</del>

# 110. NUMBER OF NAMES ON REGISTER.

The Division will certify a hiring list from the eligibility register, in the order of their secres, a sufficient number of names so that the appointing authority is able to select for appointment from among twenty five (25) eligible candidates for each position to be filled. If appointments are to be made to more than one (1) position, one (1) additional name shall be added for each vacancy so that the appointing authority has twenty-five (25) names to consider for each vacancy. The names of all eligible candidates with scores identical to the twenty fifth ranking eligible candidate on the register shall be provided to appointing authorities for selection purposes.

(3-31-22)

**111**081. -- 118. (RESERVED)

# 119. APPOINTMENTS, REINSTATEMENTS, TRANSFERS, AND RESIGNATIONS.

- **Q1.** Reemployment Preference Register. New appointments to a classification within an agency are not permissible if there is an agency reemployment preference register (Ref. Rule 101.01) for that classification with names of eligibles who are willing to accept employment.

  (3.31.22)
- **Q2.** Probationary Period Required. All appointments to positions in the state classified service whenever adequate eligibility registers exist for the classification are probationary appointments except as otherwise provided in Rules 040 and 150.

  (3-31-22)

## 12019. LIMITED SERVICE APPOINTMENTS.

- **01. Designation.** Classified positions expected to be of limited duration due to funding or nature of the position or project must be identified and designated in advance of announcement.
- **02. Permanent Status and Expedited Layoff.** Employees appointed under limited-service appointments have permanent classified status after successful completion of probation. These employees have the same rights and responsibilities as other permanent employees but may be subject to expedited layoff pursuant to Rule 140.01 c.
- **03. Limited Service Agreement**. Appointing authorities making limited-service appointments must prepare, no later than the date of appointment, a written agreement for signature of both the employee and appointing authority describing the non-career nature of the appointment, potential for layoff, and the duration the employee may expect to work. Renewals and updated agreements are required every two (2) years. A copy of the agreement must be kept in the employee's personnel file.

#### 1240. SEASONAL APPOINTMENT.

- **Q1.** Purpose. An appointing authority may make a seasonal appointment from a register for work that occurs intermittently during the year. (Ref. Section 67-5302(31), Idaho Code). (3-31-22)
- **021. Employee Rights**. Employees appointed under a seasonal appointment will have all obligations, rights, and privileges of any classified employee except those accorded by Rules 140 through 147, relating to reduction in force.
- **93.** Separation. Employees appointed under a seasonal appointment may be separated from the seasonal appointment and returned as frequently as intermittent workload dictates. (3-31-22)
- **94. Duration of Appointment.** If an employee has not been called to work for six thousand two hundred forty (6,240) hours (three (3) years), the seasonal appointment expires; rehire of the employee must be from a register.

  (3 31 22)

# 1221. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS (NON-CLASSIFIED).

- **01. Hours Limitation**. Temporary appointments are limited to one thousand three hundred eighty-five (1,385) hours of work in any twelve (12) month period for any one agency. Both calculations begin on the date of the original temporary appointment (Ref. Section 67 5302(33), Idaho Code). (3 31 22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- **O2. Transition to Classified Service**. Temporary employees who have served at least one thousand forty (1,040) hours of continuous service, may go from temporary status to classified entrance probation status in that same position without further examination application if the announcement for the temporary position from which the certified register was created indicates that the temporary position has the potential of becoming a permanent classified position. The classified position must be in the same classification and at the same location as announced.

  (3-31-22)((1)

# **1232.** (RESERVED)

# 1243. REINSTATEMENTS.

- **01.** Eligibility. A current or former employee will be eligible for reinstatement to a classification in which he held permanent status, or if deleted its successor, or to another classification of equal or lower pay grade under the following conditions (salary treatment is covered by Rule 072.06). (4 6 23)(\_\_\_\_)
- **a.** Reinstatement is limited to a period equal to the length of the employee's probationary and permanent employment combined. (3-31-22)
- **b.** The current or former employee must have separated from the classification for which reinstatement is desired without prejudice. A former employee must also have separated from state classified service without prejudice.

  (3-31-22)
- **eb.** The current or former employee must meet the current minimum qualifications of the classification to which reinstatement is desired. ( )
- **Q2.** Reinstatement Prohibited. Reinstatement of a current or former employee is not permissible as long as there is an agency register (Ref. Rule 101.01) for that classification with names of eligibles who have reemployment preference status.

  (3-31-22)
- **032. Examination**. A current or former employee may be required to pass an examination for the classification to which reinstatement is desired.
- 043. Probationary Period. An appointing authority may negotiate for a probationary period as a condition of reinstatement except where prohibited. (Ref. Rules 124.05 and 145.01). (3-31-22)(
- **Return from Military Duty.** An employee returning from military leave without pay (Ref. Rule 250.04) who is relieved or discharged from military duty under conditions other than dishonorable will be, upon application, reinstated in his former position, or one of comparable classification, without loss of credited state service, status, or pay as prescribed by Sections 46-216, 65-508, and 65-511, Idaho Code, USERRA, or the Military Selective Service Act, Title 38, Chapter 43, U.S. Code. Application for reemployment must be made in accordance with the provisions of USERRA. Salary treatment is covered by Rule 072.09.

  (3 31-22)

# 1254. TRANSFERS.

- **01. Authority to Transfer.** An appointing authority may transfer an employee at any time from one position to another in the same classification.
- **02. Transfer Within Pay Grade**. An appointing authority may transfer an employee from a classification in which he holds permanent status to another classification allocated to the same pay grade for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications.

- **O3. Probationary Period**. An appointing authority may negotiate with an employee for a probationary period as a condition for a voluntary transfer. Voluntary probation is not allowed for intra agency transfers. (Ref. Rule 150)
- **94.** Limitation. Transfers will not be used to abridge an employee's rights in reduction in force prescribed by Rules 140 through 147. (3-31-22)
- **05. Transfer Between Agencies**. An employee is eligible for transfer between agencies in the same classification in which he holds permanent status or to another classification in the same or lower pay grade for which the employee meets the minimum qualifications. Accrued vacation and sick leave will be transferred in accordance with Rules 230.04 and 240.02. Salary treatment is covered by Rule 072.06.

  (3 31 22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- **Restriction.** Transfer of an employee between agencies is not permissible as long as there is a agency register with reemployment preference status (Ref. Rule 101.01) for the classification in the agency to which transfer is desired with names of eligibles who are willing to accept reemployment.

  (3-31-22)
- **67.** Examination. An employee transferring between classifications may be required to pass an examination for the classification to which transfer is desired. (4-6-23)
- **68.** Involuntary Transfer. Notice and an opportunity to be heard must be given to any employee subject to an involuntary transfer. (3-31-22)

## 1265. RESIGNATION.

- **01. Notice.** A classified employee may resign at any time. A resignation is effective at the time designated by the employee, without need for written or advance notice, or acceptance of the resignation by the appointing authority.
- **Rescission and Reinstatement**. Once an employee has submitted a resignation, reinstatement is in the discretion of the appointing authority as provided in Rule 124. The appointing authority may but is not required to allow an employee to rescind a resignation prior to its effective date.

  (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
  - **Resignation in Lieu of Dismissal**. An employee may resign in lieu of being dismissed for cause.

## 12<del>76</del>. -- 128. (RESERVED)

# 129. ACTING APPOINTMENT TO A POSITION.

- **01. Conditions for Acting Appointment.** At the discretion of an appointing authority, a classified employee with permanent status may be appointed to a position in a classification of higher pay grade within his own agency in an acting capacity whenever:
  - a. The incumbent of the position in the higher classification is on authorized leave of absence; or
- **b.** A vacancy exists and there is no agency register with reemployment preference status (Ref. Rule 101.01) with names of eligibles who are willing to accept reemployment, nor adequate agency register for the classification.

  (3-31-22)
- **02. Minimum Qualifications**. To be eligible for an acting appointment, an employee must meet the minimum qualifications of the class.
- 93. Effective Date. The effective date of each acting appointment may be retroactive to the beginning of the pay period during which approval is granted. (3-31-22)

#### 130. LIMITATION ON LENGTH OF APPOINTMENT.

Acting appointments are limited to the period of time necessary to fill the vacancy pursuant to procedures prescribed in these rules but in no case can continue beyond one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service unless specifically extended by the administrator.

## 131. SALARY.

For any credited state service which an employee serves in a classification in an acting capacity, he or she shall receive the salary for the classification as though he or she had actually been promoted. ( )

# 132. EXPIRATION OF APPOINTMENT.

- **01. Return of Incumbent.** When the incumbent of the classification returns from leave of absence, or the vacant position is filled, the acting appointment expires. The acting appointee is returned to the class, the pay grade and rate held immediately preceding the acting appointment.
- **92. Failure of Incumbent to Return**. Should the employee on leave of absence separate from state service, the employee serving in the acting appointment may continue to serve in that capacity until the vacancy has been filled but in no case exceed the time limits prescribed in Rule 130.

#### 133. -- 139. (RESERVED)

#### 140. REDUCTION IN FORCE.

- 01. Conditions for Layoff. An appointing authority may lay off an employee whenever necessary due to: shortage of funds or work; reorganization; the end of a limited service appointment; employee's failure to complete interagency promotional probation when demotion options are not available; or abolishment of one (1) or more positions (ref. Rule 066).
- **Q2.** Layoff Decisions. Layoff decisions must not be based on race, color, national origin, gender, age, religion, disability, or political affiliation. Layoffs must be accomplished in a systematic manner with equity for the rights of classified employees and not do away with an employee's right to problem solving, or appeal if the layoff is in fact a dismissal.

  (3-31-22)
- O3. Assessment for Adverse Impact. In planning and conducting a reduction in force, the appointing authority must consider the effect layoff units and positions to be abolished may have on the composition of the agency work force. If layoff units or exclusions are established, adverse impact of protected classes must be assessed. The appointing authority must administer the reduction in force consistent with state and federal laws, and rules and guidelines governing adverse impact.

  (3-31-22)
  - 042. Layoff by Position. Reduction in force must be by classification of position.
- a. Reduction in force may be limited to or specifically exclude employees appointed under selective certification (Ref. Rule 112) for bona fide occupational qualifications, or appointed to a classification with minimum qualification specialties. Inclusions or exclusions must include or exclude all incumbents of the classification appointed under similar selective certification, or the same option or minimum qualification specialty and must be approved in advance by the administrator.

  (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- **b.** An appointing authority may petition the administrator to exclude an individual from a reduction in force whose retention may be required to meet agency mission critical needs. Requests must provide a documented rationale with exclusions approved in advance by the administrator.
- c. Limited service appointments are defined by the project, program, or function for which the appointments were made. When a limited service project is completed or funding concluded, the limited service appointee is separated from state service as a layoff. However, limited service appointees have no reemployment preference and will not displace other regular permanent or limited services staff via voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff.

  (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_\_)
  - 053. Layoff Unit. Reduction in force must be agency-wide or by organizational unit designated for

layoff purposes. Layoff units are geographic, programmatic, or other identified subdivisions of an agency designated for layoff purposes by the appointing authority. They must be approved by the administrator before the effective date of the layoff. Organizational layoff unit designations must be renewed with a change in appointing authority or administrator.

- **Reduction of Hours Worked**. An involuntary reduction in the number of hours worked for a selected position constitutes a layoff unless there is an equal reduction of hours worked for all positions in the same classification in the agency or approved layoff unit for a limited period of time, such as a furlough. ( )
- **075. Downward Reclass.** A material change in duties of one (1) or more positions resulting in an employee's reclassification to a classification allocated to one (1) pay grade lower does not constitute a layoff-(Ref Rule 067). More than one (1) pay grade change downward is considered a layoff, unless the change of duties is disciplinary-(Ref. Section 190).

# 141. CALCULATION OF RETENTION POINTS.

There will be an evaluation of all employees in the classification in the agency or organizational unit affected by the reduction in force based on a retention point system. Retention points are derived from experience as described in performance evaluations, classified credited state service, and veterans' preference as described in Rule 141.03. The appointing authority will determine a process for the impartial assessment of evaluations to assign points as follows:

Exemplary Performance	_	.100 points
Solid Sustained Performance		.075 points
Achieves Performance Standards	-	.050 points
Does Not Achieve Performance Standards	-	.0 points

- )
- 01. No Performance Evaluation on File for a Twelve-Month Period. All credited state service for which there is no performance evaluation will receive seventy-five thousandths (.075) points per hour. A supervisor's failure to document performance in a timely manner cannot be used to disadvantage an employee during retention point calculation.

  (3 31 22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- eighty (2,080) hours or extended to also cover the time frame up to the date of the evaluation. (4-6-23)
- **b.** Changes in prior periods not allowed. Once an evaluation has been signed by the supervisor, employee, manager, and other applicable reviewers, the document may not be changed, unless the change is a result of a problem solving dispute resolution.

  (3-31-22)
- **O2.** Calculation of Retention Points Since Last Evaluation. The most recent performance evaluation should be used to pro-rate retention points when calculating credited state service since that evaluation, unless that evaluation occurred more than two thousand eighty (2,080) hours from the date of calculation. In such cases, points are calculated in conformance with Rule 141.01.
- **03. Veterans' Preference.** Veterans as defined in Title 65, Chapter 2, Idaho Code, will receive preference by the addition of retention points equivalent to three (3) years of service at a level that achieves performance standards. (Ref. Section 65-501, Idaho Code) (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_)
- **04.** Calculation Date Cutoff. No points will be calculated for the sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the layoff.
- **05.** Audit of Retention Points. Each employee is entitled to an audit of retention points by an independent auditor designated by the administrator in cases of dispute between the appointing authority and the employee. The request for audit must be filed with the appointing authority within five (5) calendar days of the employee's receipt of layoff notification. The decision of the independent auditor is binding on both parties unless an

# GOVERNOR'S OFFICE – DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

appeal is	s filed wi	ithin thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of the auditor's notification to the affect	ed parties.
<b>142.</b> Eligible		TED STATE SERVICE. state service for purposes of Rule 140 is defined as follows:	(
	01. ed service	Service Prior to State Personnel System. All credited state service prior to the estable, Title 67, Chapter 53, Idaho Code. (Ref. Sections 67 5332 and 59 1604, Idaho Code, for service)	lishment of definitions
service.	<del>02.</del>	Classified Service. All classified credited state service since the establishment o	f classified
position	03. is subsec	Nonclassified Service. All credited state service in a position exempt from classified sequently transferred to classified service pursuant to Rule 040.	rvice if tha
143.	REDUC	CTION IN FORCE DETERMINATION AND NOTIFICATION.	
position	<b>01.</b> s to be re	<b>Identification of Classifications</b> . The appointing authority will identify the class educed or eliminated.	ification o
		Calculation of Retention Points. Retention points will be calculated for all employees of position including those serving in underfill positions. Retention points need not be olves a single-incumbent class.	assigned to e calculated
and ther layoff li from the	n the perr st beginn e layoff l	<b>Order of Reduction in Force</b> . The order of reduction in force will be by type of appoint in the affected classification as follows: first to be laid off are the entrance probationary manent appointees including those serving a voluntary probation. Employees will be plaing with the employee with the highest number of retention points. Employee layoffs which is in inverse order. When two (2) or more employees have the same combined total will be determined in the following sequence: (Ref. Rule 150.02.e.)	appointees aced on the vill be made
	a.	The employee with the highest total retention points for the past thirty-six (36) months.	(
	b.	Random selection.	(
and the include Rule 14	a copy of	Notification to Affected Employees. Each employee affected will be notified in writing for the decision at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the effective date. Notified the agency layoff procedure and a copy of the computation of retention points when reconstruction of the computation of retention points when reconstruction are constructed by the computation of t	ication wil
		<b>Notification to Administrator</b> . The appointing authority must give written notice of least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to its effective date and must provide a list of person their retention point calculations and must indicate which employees will be laid off.	
rules sh placeme employe	anent emplall be plent will be decline	EMENT ON REGISTER WITH REEMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE. ployee laid off from their job or who chooses a voluntary demotion in lieu of a layoff, laced on their classification's register with reemployment preference in unranked on their classification's register with reemployment preference in unranked on their classification's register with reemployment preference in unranked on their classification's register with reemployment preference in unranked on their classification's register with reemployment preference.  [Rule of the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the company in the company is a second of the company in the com	<del>order</del> . Sucl e or forme
145.	USE OI	F REGISTERS WITH REEMPLOYMENT PREFERENCE.	
	01.	Priority for Reemployment by Agency that Conducted the Layoff.	(
	9	The employee who has been laid off will be offered reemployment to a position in the cl	assification

**PAGE 45** 

from which laid off, before any person outside that agency may be promoted to, transferred to, reinstated or appointed to that classification by an appointing authority of that agency. Appointing authorities may reassign or transfer individuals who are in the same classification within their agency but may not demote, promote, reclassify, or make acting appointments to that classification. If that agency determines a need to fill that classification, the employee who was laid off has first priority for that position. (Ref. Rules 125.04 and 125.08) Extenuating circumstances due to short term budget, workload, location, or other complexities may be used by the appointing authority to request a temporary waiver of this rule by the administrator.

- **b.** When attempting to fill vacancies for a classification where a lay off occurred, the agency will provide an opportunity to interview and will make their hiring selection from the individuals their agency laid off from the classification, including those separated from state service under Rule 241.02 and those that took a voluntary demotion in lieu of layoff.
- c. Individuals being returned to the classification from which they were laid off will be reinstated with the same salary, permanent status and their sick leave balance restored. If the pay minimum has increased, see Rule 072.03.
- **03. Employment by Other Agency**. Individuals may be reappointed or reinstated if eligible. The salary of an employee re-hired after a layoff is negotiable between the employee and new appointing authority in the current pay grade for the classification in which the employee is appointed.
- **04. Return to Register**. If an individual finds another agency's position unsatisfactory or does not satisfactorily complete a voluntary probation period, he may be placed back on a register for the remainder of their twelve (12) month time frame. Individuals appointed to a position, other than the classification from which laid off, will remain on preference register status for the remainder of the twelve-month (12) period if otherwise eligible.

# **146.** (RESERVED)

# 147. VOLUNTARY DEMOTION IN LIEU OF LAYOFF.

Within their layoff unit, an employee with permanent status may choose to accept a voluntary demotion rather than be laid off. Demotion options are limited to a classification, or if deleted, its successor, in which the employee held permanent status in the agency. Such demotion will not be permitted if it causes the layoff of an employee with greater retention points.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

01. Eligibility. ( )

- **a.** Qualified. Employee must meet the classification's current minimum qualifications and any minimum qualification specialties.
- **b.** Exclusion. Limited service appointees are not eligible to take any voluntary demotion that would result in the displacement of other employees. However, voluntary demotions to a vacant position are allowed with the approval of the appointing authority.
- **02.** Acceptance. To accept a voluntary demotion rather than a layoff, the employee must notify the appointing authority in writing of their decision no later than three (3) working days after written notification of the layoff and opportunity to demote to a specific position.

# 148. -- 149. (RESERVED)

# 150. PROBATIONARY PERIODS.

- **01. Probationary Period Required.** Except as provided in Rule 040, eEvery appointment and promotion to a classified position is probationary.
- **O2.** Types of Probationary Periods. The probationary period serves as a working test period to provide the agency an opportunity to evaluate a probationary employee's work performance and suitability for the position. There are three (3) types of probationary periods:

  ( )
- a. Entrance probation is the probationary service required of an employee at the time of his original appointment or any subsequent appointment to state classified service excluding reinstatement and transfer, the duration of which is one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service except for peace officers (defined in Section 19-5101, Idaho Code), who must serve two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.
- **b.** Promotional probation is the probationary service required when an employee is promoted, the duration of which is one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service except for peace officers (defined in Section 19-5101, Idaho Code), who must serve two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.
- c. Voluntary probation is an agreement between employees and the appointing authority for interagency employment actions such as reinstatement, transfer, or voluntary demotion. A voluntary probation is not to be used for employment actions within the agency. The probationary period is negotiable but may not exceed one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service except for peace officers (defined in Section 19-5101, Idaho Code), who may serve up to two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.
- **03.** Extension of Probationary Period. Upon written request demonstrating good cause, the administrator may extend the probationary period of an employee for an additional specified period not to exceed one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service. Extension must occur before an employee has worked one thousand forty (1,040) hours or two thousand eighty (2,080) hours for peace officers. (Ref. Section 67 5309(j), Idaho Code)
- **04. Interruption of Probationary Period**. The probationary period in any classification must be completed within a single agency uninterrupted by termination (Ref. Rule 152.02) or dismissal (Ref. Rule 190). An employee who separated during the probationary period must begin a new probationary period upon reappointment or promotion.
- **05. Temporary Service Credit**. At the request of the hiring agency, the administrator will allow temporary service time in a given classification to be used toward fulfilling the entrance probationary requirement in that classification as established in Section 67-5309(j), Idaho Code. The temporary duties must be substantially the same as the regular permanent appointment. (Ref. Section 67-5309(y), Idaho Code, and Rules 122 and 150.01)
- **96.** Acting Service Credit. At the request of the hiring agency, the administrator will allow acting appointment service time in a given classification to be used toward fulfilling the promotional probationary requirement in that classification as established in Section 67-5309(j), Idaho Code. The acting appointment duties must be substantially the same as the regular permanent appointment. (Ref. Section 67-5309(y), Idaho Code, and Rules 129 and 150.01)

#### 151. SATISFACTORY SERVICE.

When a probationary employee has satisfactorily served the probationary period hours, the employee will become permanent status. The appointing authority shall no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the expiration of the probationary period provide the employee and the Division a performance evaluation. Certification to permanent status is effective one thousand forty (1,040) hours of credited state service after appointment, except that it is effective two thousand eighty (2,080) hours of credited state service after appointment for peace officer classifications unless either period has been extended pursuant to Rule 150.03. (Ref. Section 67-5309(j), Idaho Code, and Rule 210.04)

#### 152. SEPARATION DURING PROBATION.

**01. Notification.** If a probationary employee does not serve satisfactorily, the appointing authority

must provide the employee and the Division a performance evaluation indicating unsatisfactory performance in order to process the failure to complete probation separation within thirty (30) days after the expiration of the probationary period. (Ref. Section 67-5309(j), Idaho Code, and Rule 210.04).

# 02. During Entrance and Voluntary Probation.

- a. An employee who does not serve satisfactorily during the entrance or voluntary probation must first be given the opportunity in writing to resign without prejudice; an employee who fails to resign may be terminated without cause assigned and without the right to file for problem-solving or an appeal. (Ref. Section 67-5309(i), Idaho Code, and Rule 210.04)
- **b.** Notice to the employee of termination for unsatisfactory service must be made at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the effective date of termination, unless there are extenuating circumstances.

#### 153. UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE DURING A PROMOTION PROBATION PERIOD.

- **01. Disciplinary Action**. Regardless of the probation status, when a Rule 190 violation supports demotion, suspension, or dismissal, such action may occur.
- **02. During Promotional Probation**. If an employee on promotional probation does not meet performance expectations:
- a. The employee may voluntarily demote to a vacant position in any classification he or she has held permanent status in state career service. However, the employee must meet the current minimum requirements for that classification. If more than one (1) option exists for demotion, the employee should be placed in the higher paid position, but the specific assignment is up to the appointing authority.
- **b.** If no position is available for the voluntary demotion option, the employee may be laid off—(Ref. Rules 145 and 147) and may request their name be placed on a register for the classification where they last held permanent status.

  (4.6.23)(...)
- **c.** When reinstatement occurs in the classification they promoted from, the employee's name is removed from reemployment required preference status.

# 154. FAILURE TO PROVIDE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION.

If the appointing authority fails to provide a performance evaluation as required in Rule 151, the employee shall be considered to have satisfactorily completed the probationary period and be certified to permanent status as provided by Rule 151, unless the probationary period has been extended by the administrator. (Ref. Rule 150.03)

(3-31-22)(

#### 155. -- 158. (RESERVED)

# 159. STATUS AND TENURE.

**01. Probationary Promotions**. Employees serving a promotional probationary period have continued permanent status in the classification from which promoted until they are certified as having satisfactorily completed the promotional probationary period in the classification to which promoted. (Ref. Rules 151, 152, and 153)

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(

**O2.** Tenure of Employment. All employment in the state classified service is without definite term except where the term may be specified by law, or under conditions of a limited-service appointment. (Ref. Rule 120)

160. -- 168. (RESERVED)

169. PROMOTIONS.

# GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

## 01. Use of Promotional Registers.

(3-31-22)

- **a.** Preference for Promotion. Whenever practical, a vacancy in a classified position must be filled by the promotion of an employee in the agency in which the vacancy occurs. (Ref. Section 67-5309(g), Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- **b.** Exception. An appointing authority may request that a position be filled from a statewide promotional register (Ref. Rule 101.03) or an open competitive register (Ref. Rule 101.04) whenever he determines that such an appointment will best serve the interests of the agency.

  (3-31-22)
- Agency Registers with Reemployment Preference Status. Promotions to a classification are not permissible as long as there is an agency register with reemployment preference status (Ref. Rule 101.01) for the classification with names of eligible candidates who are willing to accept reemployment.

  (3-31-22)
- **021. Interagency Promotions**. All interagency promotions must be made using statewide promotional registers (Ref. Rule 101.03)
- **032. Eligibility for Promotion.** Promotional appointees must have permanent status (Ref. Rule 159) and meet the minimum qualifications of the promotional classification.
- **043. Promotion, In-Grade**. To reflect unique agency organization design, an agency may choose to request an internal competitive process to recognize the advancement of an employee with permanent status from a position occupied in one classification to a position in another classification having greater points or a unique specialty area, but within the same pay grade. With the approval of the administrator, an in-grade promotion will be treated in all regards as a promotion.

# 170. -- 178. (RESERVED)

#### 179. DEMOTIONS.

Demotions are reductions of an employee from a position which the employee occupies in one classification to a position in another classification in a lower pay grade. Demotions authorized under these rules apply to both probationary and permanent status employees who meet the minimum qualifications of the classification to which demoted.

# 180. (RESERVED)

#### 181. NONDISCIPLINARY DEMOTION OPTIONAL.

An appointing authority may allow a voluntary demotion when requested or accepted by an employee and approved by the appointing authority.

(3-31-22)

#### 182. DISCIPLINARY DEMOTION.

An appointing authority may make a disciplinary demotion for causes enumerated in Rule 190 that are not sufficiently severe to warrant dismissal. (3-31-22)

# 183<u>1</u>. -- 189. (RESERVED)

# 190. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS.

- 01. Cause for Disciplinary Actions or Separation From State Service. Dismissal, suspension, demotion, or the reduction in pay, of a classified employee, may occur for any of the following causes during the employee's employment:
- **a.** Failure to perform the duties and carry out the obligations imposed by the state constitution, state statutes, or rules of the agency or the Division and Idaho Personnel Commission.
- **b.** Inefficiency, incompetency, or negligence in performing duties, or job performance that fails to meet established performance standards.

c. cannot be made f	Physical or mental incapability for performing assigned duties, if a reasonable accommod for the disabling condition.	datio	n )
d.	Refusal to accept a reasonable and proper assignment from an authorized supervisor. (		)
e. discipline in the	Insubordination or conduct unbecoming a state employee or conduct detrimental to good orde agency.	er an	.d )
f. substances, while	Intoxication or being under the influence of alcohol, or the misuse of medications or conte on duty.	rolle	d )
g.	Careless, negligent, or improper use or unlawful conversion of state property, equipment, or f	unds	3. )
<b>h.</b> promotion or priv	Use of any influence which violates the principles of the merit system in an attempt to sec vileges for individual advantage.	cure	a )
i. crime involving	Conviction of official misconduct in office, or conviction of any felony, or conviction of any moral turpitude.	othe	er )
j.	Acceptance of gifts in exchange for influence or favors given in the employee's official capacity (	city.	)
k.	Habitual pattern of failure to report for duty at the assigned time and place.		)
l.	Habitual improper use of sick leave.		)
m.	Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information from official records.		)
n.	<u>Unapproved</u> Aabsence without leave. (3-31-22)(		_)
0.	Misstatement or deception in application for employment.		)
<b>p.</b> performance of d	Failure to obtain or maintain a current license or certificate lawfully required as a conditional luties.	ion i	n )
q.	Prohibited participation in political activities. (Ref. Section 67 5311, Idaho Code) (3 31 22)(		)
superseded by re of the suspension	Suspension for Investigation. An appointing authority may place an employee on administ gation of disciplinary causes enumerated in Rule 190.01. Each suspension for investigation winstatement to duty, dismissal, disciplinary demotion, or suspension within thirty (30) calendary for investigation or within an extension of an additional thirty (30) calendary days approved but the extensions may be granted with the approval of the Administrator.	≀ill b r day	e /s
	<b>Disciplinary Suspension</b> . An appointing authority may suspend without pay an employed uses enumerated above. Disciplinary suspension of an employee with permanent status is subjuployee to the Commission.	ee fo	or o
effect during the have otherwise b that charges or in	<b>Suspension on Felony Charges</b> . An appointing authority may suspend without pay an empe of a complaint, an information or indictment for felony charges. Such suspensions may rem time such charges are pending. Full reinstatement of all benefits and salary that the employee veen entitled must be provided by the appointing authority to the employee upon a subsequent finformation were without grounds or the employee was not found guilty. For the purpose of this neld under Rule 33(d) of the Idaho Rules of Criminal Procedure is a conviction.	ain i woul ndin	in ld ig

**05.** 

Notice to Administrator. Whenever an appointing authority considers it necessary to take

disciplinary action against an employee, he must notify the employee and the administrator concurrently in writing; and set forth the specific rules violated and the reasons for the action. Suspensions with pay for investigation—(Ref. Rule 190.02) may be made without prior notice to the employee; in this case, the appointing authority must notify the administrator as soon as practical.

# 191. -- 199. (RESERVED)

#### 200. PROBLEM-SOLVING AND DUE PROCESS PROCEDURES.

VI. Overview of Frocedures.	01.	l.	Overview of Procedures.	•	1
-----------------------------	-----	----	-------------------------	---	---

- **a.** The due process procedure deals with the disciplinary matters set forth in Section 67-5315(2), Idaho Code, dismissals, suspensions without pay, and demotions, and with all involuntary transfers. The due process procedure generally requires the employee receive notice and an opportunity to respond before a disciplinary decision or involuntary transfer is made by the agency. Decisions regarding disciplinary dismissals, suspensions without pay, and demotions may be appealed in accordance with Rule 201.
- **b.** The problem-solving procedure deals with all matters not specifically reserved for the due process procedure. Problem solving decisions may not be appealed to the Commission except as authorized by Section 67-5316, Idaho Code.
- **02.** Establishment of Agency Problem-Solving and Due Process Procedures. Each participating agency must maintain written employee problem-solving and due process procedures, which have been approved by the administrator for conformity to law and Rule 200.
- 03. Eligibility and Time for Filing Under Problem-Solving Procedure. Any classified employee with permanent, or entrance probationary status may file under the problem-solving procedure as defined by Section 67-5315(1), Idaho Code. An employee must file under the problem-solving procedure in writing not later than ten (10) working days after being notified or becoming aware of a nondisciplinary matter which may be handled through the problem-solving procedure; however, if the filing alleges an ongoing pattern of harassment or illegal discrimination, the agency is strongly encouraged to waive any time limits. The time limit for filing will be extended due to the employee's illness or other approved leave, up to ten (10) days after return to the job. The agency may accept a filing that is or appears to be filed late. Agency policies may provide for waiver of time elements or any intermediate step of the problem-solving procedure upon mutual agreement of the employee and appointing authority.
- Elements of the Problem-Solving Procedure. The procedure must contain a statement from the agency head encouraging employees to use the procedure for any nondisciplinary, job-related matters, and encouraging the employee, supervisors, and upper-level managers and administrators to resolve the matter at the lowest management level possible within the organization. The statement must also provide a means whereby agency representatives can obtain timely authority, if needed, to resolve the matter. The procedure must require the employee to make a reasonable attempt to discuss the issue with the immediate supervisor before filing. After a written filing is received, the procedure must provide for such additional levels of management within the employee's chain of command as are appropriate in the agency. The procedure must also provide for the use of an impartial mediator upon agreement by the employee and agency. Timelines must not exceed five (5) working days between each step unless both the employee and the agency agree, in writing, to a specific number of days to extend the timelines herein, not to exceed thirty (30) days between each step. The procedure must also inform the employee that he is entitled to be represented by a person of the employee's own choosing at each step of the procedure, except the initial informal discussion with the immediate supervisor. Two (2) or more employees may join in a single filing under the problemsolving procedure. Retaliation for filing under the problem-solving procedure, for participating as a witness, or representative is expressly prohibited. This procedure does not apply to unsatisfactory performance during entrance probation (Ref. Sections 67-5309(i), 67-5315(1)(4), Idaho Code, and Rule 152). (3-31-22)(
- **05. Filings Alleging Sexual Harassment or Other Illegal Discrimination**. Each agency's problem-solving procedure must provide an optional alternative procedure for an employee to file allegations of sexual harassment or discrimination based on race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age, or disability. The procedure must expressly prohibit sexual harassment and discrimination. Employees must be informed of their right to file

complaints with the Idaho Human Rights Commission. The alternative procedure must designate a specific person or persons to receive and investigate such filings, and require that the investigation and resolution of them be conducted with maximum regard for confidentiality.

- Elements of Due Process Procedure. An agency must provide notice and an opportunity to respond before making a decision to impose any disciplinary sanction or involuntary transfer, as set forth in Section 67-5315(2), Idaho Code. With respect to notice, an agency must provide notice of the contemplated action, the basis or reason for the contemplated action, and an explanation of the evidence supporting the contemplated action. The notice must be provided to the employee and administrator concurrently. With respect to the opportunity to respond, the employee must be given the opportunity to respond to the notice and present reasons why the contemplated action should not be taken. The opportunity to respond must not occur later than five (5) working days after the employee has received notice, unless an extension is approved by the appointing authority in writing. After the employee has responded, or after the period to respond has expired or has been waived in writing by the employee, whichever occurs first, the appointing authority, or designee, must make and implement the agency's decision not later than five (5) working days thereafter, excluding days the appointing authority, or designee, is out of the office, or for other extenuating circumstances. The extension will be communicated to the employee in writing. The procedure must inform the employee of his right to be represented by a person of the employee's own choosing during the opportunity to respond. The procedure must also provide for the use of an impartial mediator upon agreement by the employee and agency. The procedure does not apply to unsatisfactory performance during entrance and promotional probation (Ref. Sections 67 5309(j), 67 5315(2), Idaho Code, and; Rules 150 through 153). The due process procedure is complete when the appointing authority, or designee, mails or delivers a decision to the affected employee. The decision must also be sent to the administrator concurrently.
- **07. Notification.** A copy of the approved problem-solving and due process procedures must be furnished and explained to each employee with permanent, or entrance probationary status in the agency concerned.

#### 201. APPEAL PROCEDURE.

- **01. Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General.** In addition to the following rules on appeals and petitions for review, the "Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General" on contested cases, IDAPA 04.11.01.000 et seq., apply with the following exceptions, which are inconsistent with the Commission's statute or practice: IDAPA 04.11.01.055, 202, 240, 250, 270.01, 280, 300, 302, 651, 720, 730, 740, 790, 791, 821.02, and 860. Petitions for rulemaking and declaratory rulings are addressed in Rules 270 and 271.
- **O2.** Filing of Appeal and Appearances. Every appeal filed with the Commission must be written and state the decision that is being appealed and the action requested of the Commission. The Commission must serve a copy of the appeal on the respondent and upon the legal counsel for the Commission. Notices of appearance and notices of substitution of counsel need not be filed by deputy attorneys general or members of law firms already representing a party in an appeal or petition for review.
- **O3.** Time for Appeal. An appeal from a decision of an appointing authority is deemed to be timely filed if received at the office of the Commission within thirty-five (35) calendar days after completion of the agency due process procedure. Personal delivery or deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, of a written notification to the affected employee of the appointing authority's decision constitutes completion of the agency due process procedure. An appeal of a decision or action of the administrator or staff must be filed at the office of the Commission within thirty-five (35) calendar days of personal delivery of notice of the decision or action, deposit of the notice in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposit of the notice in Statehouse mail.
- **04. Non-Jurisdictional Appeals.** Appeals which are non-jurisdictional may be dismissed without motion by the hearing officer, the chair of the Commission, or his designee. If a hearing officer orders such a dismissal, the dismissal may be appealed to the Commission as a petition for review pursuant to Rule 202.01. If the chair of the Commission orders such a dismissal, it constitutes the final order of the Commission and may be appealed pursuant to Sections 67-5317(3) and 67-5318, Idaho Code.
  - **05. Setting of Hearing.** Within fifteen (15) days after receiving the appeal from the Commission, the

hearing officer must consult with the parties to set a mutually agreeable date for hearing. The hearing officer may thereafter postpone or continue the hearing for good cause.

- **96. Filing of Documents**. Once an appeal is referred to the hearing officer, all documents relating thereto must be filed directly with the hearing officer during the pendency of the appeal with copies provided simultaneously to opposing counsel and unrepresented parties.
- **07. Burden of Proof**. In disciplinary actions, the appointing authority has the burden of proving cause for the discipline by a preponderance of the evidence. In all other actions, the appellant has the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence.
- **08. Open Hearing**. Every hearing is public, unless the hearing officer closes the hearing for good cause. Individual parties may represent themselves (pro se) or be represented by an attorney.
- **09. Protective Orders**. The hearing officer may issue protective orders limiting access to information obtained in the course of a hearing.
- 10. Decision of Hearing Officer. The hearing officer must issue a decision in the form of a preliminary order explaining the right to file a petition for review under Section 67-5317, Idaho Code. The preliminary order, consisting of such findings of fact, conclusions of law and orders as are necessary, together with the record of the proceedings must be filed at the office of the Commission with a copy sent or delivered to the parties. A motion for reconsideration under Section 67-5243, Idaho Code, is not permitted.
- 11. Procedure for Award of Attorney Fees and Costs. As part of his preliminary order, the hearing officer must make findings as to the entitlement to attorney fees and costs, if any, pursuant to Section 12-117, Idaho Code. If the hearing officer finds a prevailing party is entitled to statutory attorney fees and costs, the prevailing party must file a memorandum of costs, including a supporting affidavit stating the basis and method of computation of the amount claimed. The memorandum must be filed with the hearing officer not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the hearing officer's decision or no attorney fees and costs may be awarded. Objections to the award of attorney fees and costs must be filed not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the memorandum of costs and supporting affidavit. The hearing officer must conduct a hearing on the award of attorney fees and costs within ten (10) days of receiving any objections to the award. If no objections are timely filed with the hearing officer, or if the parties stipulate to have the matter decided on the briefs, no hearing is required. The hearing officer determines the amount of the award and must make written findings as to the basis and reasons for the award within ten (10) days after the hearing on the award of attorney fees and costs. If no hearing is required, the hearing officer must issue his decision on the award of attorney fees and costs no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of the prevailing party's memorandum of costs and supporting affidavit.
- 12. Factors Considered in Award of Attorney Fees and Costs. The following factors are considered in the determination of an award of attorney fees and costs: the time and labor required;
  - **b.** The experience and ability of the attorney;
  - **c.** The prevailing charges for like work; ( )
  - **d.** The amount involved and the results obtained; ( )
  - e. Awards in similar cases; and ( )
  - f. Any other factor that appears pertinent to the award. ( )

# 202. PETITION FOR REVIEW PROCEDURE.

**01. Filing of Petition for Review.** A petition for review shall be filed at the office of the Commission within thirty-five (35) days of the hearing officer's decision issued pursuant to Rule 201.10. The petition shall be in writing and specifically cite the alleged errors of fact or law made by the hearing officer.

)

	02.	Sta	ay of Hea	ring Offi	cer's	Dec	ision. U	pon the	filing of t	he p	etition	for revi	ew, tl	he jurisd	liction	of
the hear	ing o	officer in	the matt	er is ende	d exc	ept 1	for resol	ving pos	st-hearing	mo	tions ar	nd awar	ding a	attorney	fees a	and
costs. T	he 1	hearing	officer's	decision	and	any	orders	entered	pursuant	to	Rules	201.10	and	201.11	will	be
automat	icall	y stayed				•			•						(	)

- **03. Nature of Hearing.** The hearing of the Commission on a petition for review will be limited to oral arguments regarding issues of law and fact as may be found in the record established before the hearing officer and any post-hearing orders. Written arguments or briefs and motions regarding the petition for review will be allowed under such terms as the Commission may direct in its notice of hearing, which will be issued at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date set for hearing.
- **04. Transcript**. If the petition for review involves questions of fact, the appellant shall provide a full transcript of the proceedings before the hearing officer for the Commission to review. The respondent may pay for an additional copy of the transcript for respondent's own use.

# 05. Requests for Postponement and Other Motions.

- **a.** Except in emergencies, a request for postponement shall be filed in writing by a party or representative not later than seven (7) days before the scheduled hearing. The Chair of the Commission, or his or her designee, may determine whether good cause is shown for the postponement and grant or deny the request on behalf of the Commission.
- **b.** Motions to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction shall be decided by the Commission. All other motions shall be considered by the Chair of the Commission or at the Chair's discretion may be referred to one (1) Commissioner, whose decision on the motion may be communicated to the parties by letter or other informal means, by the Chair or by counsel to the Commission.
- **06. Decision on Petition for Review**. The decision of the Commission shall include a statement of appeal rights under Section 67-5318, Idaho Code. Motion for reconsideration of Commission decisions pursuant to Section 67-5246, Idaho Code are not permitted. The Commission shall file the original copy of its decision with the record of the proceedings and mail copies to the parties promptly.
- **07. Record of the Proceedings.** A verbatim record of the proceedings at hearings before the Commission shall be maintained either by electrical devices or by stenographic means, as the Commission may direct, but if any party to the action requests a stenographic record of the proceedings, the record shall be done stenographically. The requesting party shall pay the costs of reporting the proceedings.
- **08.** Attorney Fees and Costs in a Petition for Review. In its decision on petition for review, the Commission shall make findings as to the entitlement to attorney fees and costs, if any, pursuant to Section 12-117, Idaho Code. If the Commission finds the prevailing party, if any, is entitled to attorney fees and costs, the prevailing party shall file a request for attorney fees and costs, with accompanying memorandum and affidavit in support of the request described in Rule 201.11, with the Commission not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the Commission's decision. Objections to the award of attorney fees and costs shall be filed not later than ten (10) working days after receipt of the request for attorney fees and costs. The Commission shall determine the amount of the award, if any, taking into account the factors defined in Rule 201.12.
- **09. Protective Orders.** The Commission may issue protective orders limiting access to information in the record.

#### 203. REFERRALS FROM FEDERAL AGENCIES ON DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINTS.

When the Division receives a complaint from a federal agency alleging violation of employment laws, the administrator must take prompt action to investigate. If the complaint is agency specific, the appointing authority will take necessary actions to ensure the investigation is thorough, staff are fully cooperative, and submit findings and any corrective action plan to the administrator and other proper authorities.

(3-31-22)

204<u>3</u>. -- 209. (RESERVED)

# 210. PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS.

- **O1. Performance Evaluations.** Each agency shall use the statewide online performance evaluation system; however, another system may be used, provided it meets the basic objectives of the state's online performance evaluation system as approved in advance by the administrator. Agency records and supporting documentation are subject to review by the Division and the employee's overall performance rating must be transmitted to the administrator.

  (3-31-22)(
- **92.** Approval of Form. The Division will make available a standard format for purpose of the statewide online performance evaluation system. An appointing authority may utilize another form provided it meets the basic performance criteria and ratings and is approved in advance by the administrator.

  (3.31.22)
- 03. Purpose. The purpose of performance evaluation is to provide an objective evaluation by the immediate supervisor of an employee's performance in comparison with established expectations for the position; and to identify an employee's strengths and weaknesses and where improvement is necessary. All performance evaluations must be discussed with affected employee who will be allowed opportunity to submit written comments regarding the evaluation contents.

  (3 31 22)
- **042. Use of Evaluations.** Performance evaluations should be used in connection with promotions, transfers, demotions, retentions, separations, and reassignments-(Ref. Section 67-5309(h), Idaho Code); and used as the affirmative certification for merit increases, bonuses, and salary equity increases-(Ref. Section 67-5309B, Idaho Code); and for certifying a probationary employee to permanent status-(Ref. Rule 151). Other uses of performance evaluations are optional with the appointing authority.
- **053. Evaluation Schedule.** All classified employees must be evaluated for their performance during probationary periods for appointments and promotions and for every two thousand eighty (2,080) hours of credited state service thereafter (generally, an annual basis). (Ref. Sections 67-5309(h) and (j), 67-5309B(6), Idaho Code.) Part-time employees must be evaluated on an annual basis.
- **06.** Retention of Evaluation. A copy of the performance evaluation must be retained in agency records with a copy furnished to the employee.

  (3-31-22)
- 97. Supervisors' Requirements. Supervisors are required to manage performance on a consistent basis including completion of performance evaluations on all employees under their direct supervision. (Ref. Section 67-5309B(6), Idaho Code) (3-31-22)

#### 211. -- 219. (RESERVED)

# 220. RECORDS.

# 01. Employee Service Records.

(3 - 31 - 22)

- **a.** For each employee in classified service, the Division maintains an electronic service record which must include all personnel transactions pertinent to the employee's employment history. (Ref. Section 67 5309(o), Idaho Code)
- h. Any employee may at all reasonable times during business hours review his service record maintained in the Division or maintained in any agency. Except for material used to screen and test for employment, all information maintained in an employee's service record must be made available to the employee or designated representative upon request. File contents may be corrected if found in error according to the procedure contained in Title 74, Chapter 1, Idaho Code.

  (3-31-22)
- **Q2.** Administrative Records. The administrator must permanently maintain a record of the proceedings of the Commission and a record of all hearings of appeals. (3-31-22)
- 03. Employee Personnel Action Documents. The appointing authority must furnish each employee with notice of every personnel action affecting the employee's status, pay, tenure, or other terms and conditions of

# GOVERNOR'S OFFICE - DHR & IPC Rules of DHR & Idaho Personnel Commission

Docket No. 15-0401-2301 PENDING RULE

employment, including a copy of their performance evaluations.

(3-31-22)

# 04. Transfers, Reemployment and Promotions Between Agencies.

(3-31-22)

- when an employee seeks a transfer, reemployment, or promotion between agencies, the appointing authority of the hiring agency, or designee, is entitled to examine the employee's service record and performance information before the hiring decision is made. (Ref. Section 67-5309(o), Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- **b.** All performance evaluation documents must be provided by the former agency and forwarded to the new agency when an interagency promotion, demotion, or transfer occurs. (3-31-22)

<del>221. - 229. (RESERVED)</del>

#### 230. VACATION LEAVE.

- 01. Eligibility. All classified employees, regardless of status or whether full-time or part-time, earn vacation leave and are eligible to take and be paid for unused vacation leave in accordance with Sections 67 5334, Idaho Code.
- **Q2.** Rate of Accrual. All credited state service (ref. Sections 67 5332 and 59 1604, Idaho Code, for definitions) are counted in determining leave accrual rate. (3-31-22)
- 93. Mutual Agreement. Vacation leave requested by the employee may be used only when approved by the agency. The employee and the agency must mutually agree upon such time or times when vacation leave least interferes with the efficient operation of the agency taking into consideration the vacation preference of the employee.

  (3.31-22)
- **94.** Interagency Transfer. An employee who is transferred from one state agency to another agency will be credited with accrued vacation leave by the receiving agency at the time of transfer.

  (3.31.22)

2<del>31</del>20. -- 239. (RESERVED)

#### 240. SICK LEAVE.

- **61.** Eligibility. Sick leave is earned in accordance with Section 67-5333, Idaho Code. (3-31-22)
- **92.** Interagency Transfer. An employee who is transferred from one state agency to another will be credited by the receiving agency with the amount of sick leave accrued at the time of transfer.

  (3 31 22)
- 03. Reasons for Use. Sick leave must only be used in eases of actual illness or disability or other medical and health reasons necessitating the employee's absence from work, or in situations where the employee's personal attendance is required or desired because of serious illness, disability, or death and funeral in the family. For purposes of this rule, family means a spouse, child, foster child, parent, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, or the same relation by marriage, or legal guardian.

  (3 31 22)
- 94. Serious Medical Conditions. Siek leave may be used in conjunction with Family and Medical Leave. (Ref. Rule 242)

  (3 31 22)
- 95. Notification. It is the responsibility of the employee to notify his supervisor as soon as possible in the event of sickness or injury which prevents the employee from reporting for duty.

  (3 31 22)
- Of sick leave in accordance with Section 67 5334, Idaho Code. Such transfers are to be made from employee to employee. Vacation and sick leave is retained by the donating party until it is converted to sick leave in the receiving employee's account.
  - 07. Siek Leave Abuse. A predictable and reliable level of attendance is an essential function of almost

all positions. Consistent with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Family Medical Leave Act, a supervisor may investigate suspected sick leave abuse including a pattern of unscheduled absences which have a negative impact on the requirements of the job and take appropriate action. When an employee is absent due to illness or injury in excess of three (3) days, a doctor's certificate of justifiable cause for the absence may be required of the employee at the discretion of the immediate supervisor. A doctor's certification of illness or injury may be required of an employee for periods of less than three (3) consecutive working days whenever the immediate supervisor or manager believes special investigation of the absence should be made. (Ref. Rule 190 and Section 67-5333, Idaho Code)

# 2410. WORKERS' COMPENSATION OR DISABILITY.

- 01. Use of Leave in a Workers' Compensation Claim. In the event of a disability incurred on the job covered by workers' compensation, the employee will be given the choice of either: (3-31-22)
  - **a.** Leave of absence without pay while receiving workers' compensation; or (3-31-22)
- b. Utilizing a portion of accrued sick or other paid leave to supplement workers' compensation to maintain his regular salary; however, no appointing authority may require an employee to accept sick leave, vacation leave, or compensatory time off for overtime in lieu of workers' compensation provided by law. Additionally, an employee may not waive his rights to workers' compensation and cannot accept earned leave or other benefits in lieu thereof:

  (3-31-22)
- **021. Layoff After Twelve Weeks Disability.** If the employee becomes disabled, whether or not due to a workers' compensation injury, and is unable to fully return to work after twelve (12) weeks' absence during any consecutive fifty-two (52) week period-or when accrued sick leave has been exhausted, whichever is longer, the employee's position may be declared vacant unless otherwise prohibited by state or federal law. The twelve (12) weeks' period of absence need not occur consecutively. The employee's name is certified to a reemployment preference register when the administrator has been notified by the physician that the employee is able to return to work.-(Ref. Rule 101.01) Conditional releases will be considered in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

#### 242. FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE.

- **91.** Applicability. The provisions of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) apply without regard to the exclusion for worksites employing less than fifty (50) employees in a seventy five (75) mile area, and without the limitation on reinstatement of the highest-paid employees. (Ref. 29 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.). The State is one (1) employer for the purposes of FMLA. For consistency, the administrator shall publish statewide guidance on FMLA policies.
- **Q2.** Return to Work Release. An appointing authority may request a return to work release if, due to the nature of the health condition and the job:

  (3 31 22)
  - a. Light or limited duty work or other accommodation is requested; or (3-31-22)
- b. The agency, having a reasonable basis in fact to do so, requires assurance that returning to work would not create a significant risk of substantial harm to the employee or others. (3-31-22)

# 243. MATERNITY AND PATERNITY LEAVE.

- 01. Use Of Siek Leave. Pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions generally are considered temporary disabilities and are treated as such for sick leave purposes. Maternity and paternity leave are granted under the same conditions and requirements as other compensable and non-compensable leave under these rules, including the Family and Medical Leave Act.

  (4-6-23)
- **O2.** Determination of Disability Period. The employee's physician is considered the primary authority in determining the disability period insofar as compensable sick leave is concerned. (3.31.22)

- 03. Additional Time Off. Maternity and paternity leave preceding and following the time that the person is disabled is leave without pay unless the employee elects to use accrued vacation leave or compensatory time off for overtime.

  (3-31-22)
- 04. Discrimination Prohibited. Pregnancy discrimination is prohibited. The employee may continue to work as long as she is physically capable of performing the duties of her position and may return to work as soon as she is physically able as determined by her physician.

  (3-31-22)
- 95. Adoption and Foster Care. Leave will be granted for adoption and foster care as set forth in the Family and Medical Leave Act. (Ref. Rule 242) (3-31-22)

# 2441. SEPARATION UPON FAILURE TO RETURN TO WORK.

Except for those employees on authorized leave or placed on a register with reemployment preference prescribed by Rule 241.02.a., an employee who has not returned to work within five (5) working days after approved paid or unpaid leave or release by his or her physician shall be considered as having voluntarily separated. Such separation shall be treated as a voluntary resignation, and the employee shall remain eligible for reinstatement as provided under Rule 124. Written notification of his or her separation/resignation shall be mailed to the last known home address. Any objections by the employee to the notice, must be received within five (5) working days of receipt of the notice, or acceptance of the separation/resignation will be presumed. If objections are received within the timeline, a disciplinary separation (dismissal) or other formal disciplinary action may be pursued as provided in Rule 190.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(

# 24<u>52</u>. -- 249. (RESERVED)

# 250. SPECIAL LEAVES.

## 01. Leave of Absence Without Pay.

(3-31-22)

- **a.** Approval. In addition to workers' compensation, family medical leave, disability, or other statewide leave policies, the appointing authority may grant an employee leave without pay for a specified length of time when such leave would not have an adverse effect upon the agency. The request for leave must be in writing and establish reasonable justification for approval.

  (3 31 22)
- **b.** Reemployment. The appointing authority approving the leave of absence assumes full responsibility for returning the employee to the same position or to another position in a classification allocated to the same pay grade for which the employee meets minimum qualifications.

  (3-31-22)
- er Exhaustion of Accrued Leave. Unless prohibited by workers' compensation, family medical leave, disability, or other statewide leave policies, the appointing authority has discretion on whether the employee is required to exhaust accrued vacation leave or compensatory time off for overtime before commencing leave without pay. (Ref. Rule 240)

  (3.31-22)
- **d.** Resignation. If vacation leave and compensatory time off for overtime are not exhausted and the employee resigns from state service while on leave, he will be paid for such accruals in accordance with Sections 67-5334 and 67-5328, Idaho Code.

  (3-31-22)
- 62. Leave Defaults. When an employee does not have accrued sick leave to cover an entire absence the following leave types will be used to the extent necessary to avoid leave without pay: accrued compensatory time and vacation. If abuse of sick leave is suspected see Rule 240.07.

  (3-31-22)
- 03. Military Leave With Pay. Employees who are members of the National Guard or reservists in the armed forces of the United States engaged in military duty ordered or authorized under the provisions of law, are entitled each calendar year to one hundred twenty (120) hours of military leave of absence from their respective duties without loss of pay, credited state service or evaluation of performance. Such leave is separate from vacation, sick leave, holiday, or compensatory time off for overtime. (Ref. Section 46-216, Idaho Code).

  (3-31-22)

**PAGE 58** 

04. Military Leave Without Pay. An employee whose employment is reasonably expected to continue

indefinitely, and who leaves his position either voluntarily or involuntarily in order to perform active military duty, has reemployment rights as defined in Rule 124.05. The employee will either be separated from state service or placed in "inactive" status, at the option of the appointing authority.

(3-31-22)

**05. Leave of Absence With Pay.** A period of absence from duty with the approval of the appointing authority, or as required or allowed by law or these rules, during which time the employee is compensated. Leaves of absence with pay have no adverse effect on the status of the employee and include the following: vacation leave; sick leave; special leave situations; compensatory time off for overtime worked; and administrative leave. (3 31 22)

# 06. Court and Jury Services and Problem-Solving and Due Process Leave. (3-31-22)

- a. Connected with Official State Duty. When an employee is subpoenaed or required to appear as a witness in any judicial or administrative proceeding in any capacity connected with official state duty, he is not considered absent from duty. The employee is not entitled to receive compensation from the court. Expenses (mileage, lodging, meals, and miscellaneous expenses) incurred by the employee must be reimbursed by his respective agency in accordance with agency travel regulations.

  (3-31-22)
- **b.** Private Proceedings. When an employee is required to appear as a witness or a party in any proceeding not connected with official state duty, the employee must be permitted to attend. The employee may use accrued leave or leave without pay.

  (3 31 22)
- e. Jury Service. When an employee is summoned by proper judicial authority to serve on a jury, he will be granted a leave of absence with pay for the time which otherwise the employee would have worked. The employee is entitled to keep fees and mileage reimbursement paid by the court in addition to salary. Expenses in connection with this duty are not subject to reimbursement by the state.

  (3-31-22)
- d. Problem-solving and due process procedures. Any employee who has been requested to serve as a mediator as provided by an agency problem-solving or due process procedure or to appear as a witness or representative during such a proceeding will be granted leave with pay, without charge to vacation leave or compensatory time off for overtime, to perform those duties.

  (3-31-22)
- e. Notification. An employee summoned for court and jury service or requested to serve as a witness or representative must notify his supervisor as soon as possible to obtain authorization for leave of absence.

(3-31-22)

(3-31-22)

**Religious Leave.** Appointing authorities will make reasonable accommodations to an employee's need for leave for religious observances. Such leave is charged to the employee's accrued vacation leave or compensatory time off for overtime.

(3 31 22)

# 08. Leave During Facility Closure or Inaccessibility.

- Authorization. When a state office/facility is closed or declared inaccessible by the Governor or Governor's designee because of severe weather, civil disturbances, loss of utilities or other disruptions, affected employees who are unable to work remotely or be reassigned may be: authorized administrative leave by the administrator to cover all or a portion of their scheduled hours of work during the closure or inaccessibility or subject to a mandatory furlough or a reduction in force. If an employee was not scheduled to work on the day when an office/facility is declared closed, the employee is not cligible for administrative leave.

  (3 31 22)
- b. In the interest of employee safety, appointing authorities may approve employee early release, delayed start time, or absence from work due to weather or other emergency conditions. Those affected employees will use their leave balances or leave without pay. Administrative leave or leave without pay may be granted to affected employees scheduled to work on a day the Governor or Governor's designee declares a state office/facility closed or inaccessible in accordance with Rule 250.08.a. (3 31 22)
- e. Nothing in this rule prevents an employee who is authorized to code paid administrative leave from choosing to code accrued leave balances or leave without pay. (3 31 22)

- **89.** Red Cross Disaster Services Leave. Employees who have been certified by the American Red Cross as disaster service volunteers will be granted up to one hundred twenty (120) hours of paid leave in any twelve (12) month period to participate in relief services pursuant to Section 67-5338, Idaho Code. (3-31-22)
- 10. Employee Assistance Program Leave. Employees may use sick leave or any paid or unpaid leave as approved to attend appointments through the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) during normal working hours.

#### 11. Bone Marrow and Organ Donor Leave With Pay.

 $\frac{(3-31-22)}{}$ 

- **a.** Approval. Upon request, a full time employee will be granted five (5) work days' leave with pay to serve as a bone marrow donor or thirty (30) work days' leave with pay to serve as an organ donor. The employee must provide the appointing authority with written verification that the employee is the person serving as the donor. Paid leave, as provided in these rules, is limited to one time bone marrow and one time organ donor leave per employee. (Ref. Section 67-5343, Idaho Code)

  (3-31-22)
- b. Use. An employee who is granted such leave of absence will receive compensation without interruption during the leave period. For purposes of determining credited state service, pay advancement, performance awards, or any benefit affected by a leave of absence, the service of the employee is considered uninterrupted by the paid leave of absence. (Ref. Section 67 5343, Idaho Code)

  (3 31 22)

# 2510. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE.

- **01. Investigation and Due Process Procedure**. Administrative leave may be granted by an appointing authority for employee investigations and due process procedures in accordance with Rule 190.02. ( )
- **O2.** Closure or Inaccessibility. Administrative leave for closure or inaccessibility of a state office/ facility due to severe weather, emergencies or incidents that could jeopardize agency operations, or the safety of others must be granted in accordance with Rule 250.08.
- **03. Other Reasons**. Administrative leave for reasons other than those listed above must be approved in advance by the administrator.

# 25**21**. -- 2**5**9**71**. (RESERVED)

# 260. COMPENSABLE HOURS.

- **91.** Biweekly Employees. With the exception of holiday leave, no leave may be used if it results in pay in excess of the employee's regularly scheduled work week. (3-31-22)
- **92.** Ineligible Employees. Employees who are "executive" as defined by Section 67-5302(12), Idaho Code, are ineligible to earn or receive payment for hours worked or accrued beyond their regularly scheduled work week.

  (3-31-22)

# 261. HOURS WORKED.

- 61. Hours in Performance of Job. Those hours actually spent in the performance of the employee's job, excluding holidays, vacation, sick leave other approved leaves of absence, and excluding on-call time. (3-31-22)
  - **Travel Time.** Travel time is compensated pursuant to policy set forth by the Board of Examiners.

    (3-31-22)
- 03. Hours Outside of Regular Working Hours. Attendance at lectures, meetings, training programs, and similar activities outside of the employee's regular working hours when attendance has been directed by the appointing authority or designee.

  (3-31-22)

# 262. OVERTIME.

- **61.** Employing Agencies. The state is considered as one (1) employer for determining the number of hours an employee works. If an employee works for more than one (1) agency, the agency employing the employee when the overtime occurs is liable for compensatory time off or each compensation as provided by law. (3-31-22)
- **O2.** Compensation for Overtime. Overtime accrual and compensation for classified employees is covered by Sections 67-5328 and 59-1607, Idaho Code, for nonclassified employees. Overtime is defined in Section 67-5302(20), Idaho Code. Overtime does not include any time, such as occasional or sporadic work, which is excluded from the overtime calculation by federal law.

  (3-31-22)
- 93. Modification of Workweek or Schedule. No agency will alter a previously established work week for the purpose of avoiding overtime compensation. An agency may modify the employee's regular schedule of work to avoid or minimize overtime.

  (3-31-22)

# <del>263. - 271. (RESERVED)</del>

# 272. POLICY MAKING AUTHORITY.

To address the need for all classified employees to be treated fairly, and in situations where the State may be considered as one (1) employer, the Division Administrator may issue guidance to provide consistent interpretation of federal law, state law, executive order or rule. Statewide policies governed by the administrator shall be adopted by appointing authorities.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

273. -- 999. (RESERVED)

# **IDAPA 17 – IDAHO INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION**

# 17.10.01 – ADMINISTRATIVE RULES UNDER THE CRIME VICTIMS COMPENSATION ACT DOCKET NO. 17-1001-2301 (ZBR CHAPTER REWRITE) NOTICE OF RULEMAKING – ADOPTION OF PENDING RULE

LINK: LSO Rules Analysis Memo

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** This rule has been adopted by the agency and is now pending review by the 2024 Idaho State Legislature that must be approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature to go into effect, in accordance with Section 67-5224(2)(c), Idaho Code. The pending rule will become final and effective upon the adjournment, *sine die*, of the Second Regular Session of the Sixty-seventh Idaho Legislature after approval.

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5224, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has adopted a pending rule. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 72-1004 and 72-1013, Idaho Code.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a concise explanatory statement of the reasons for adopting the pending rule and a statement of any change between the text of the proposed rule and the text of the pending rule with an explanation of the reasons for the change.

There are no changes to the pending rule and it is being adopted as originally proposed. The complete text of the proposed rule was published in the September 6, 2023 Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-9, pages 207-217.

FEE SUMMARY: The following is a description of the fee or charge imposed or increased in this rulemaking: N/A

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year:

This rulemaking is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on general funds, state funds, or any other known funds.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS: For assistance on technical questions concerning this pending rule, contact Kamerron Slay, (208) 334-6017 or kamerron.slay@iic.idaho.gov.

DATED this 28th day of September, 2023.

George Gutierrez, Director Industrial Commission 11321 W. Chinden Blvd. Boise, Idaho 83714 P.O. Box 83720 Boise, Idaho 83720-0041

Phone: 208-334-6000 Fax: 208-334-2321

# THE FOLLOWING NOTICE PUBLISHED WITH THE PROPOSED RULE

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Section(s) 72-1004 and 72-1013, Idaho Code.

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: Two public hearings concerning this rulemaking will be held as follows:

# Thursday, September 7, 2023, from 1:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m. MT

Coral Room, Chinden Campus 11321 W. Chinden Blvd., Boise, ID 83714

# Wednesday, September 20, 2023, from 1:30 p.m. to 2:30 p.m. MT

Sawtooth Hearing Room, Chinden Campus 11321 W. Chinden Blvd., Boise, ID 83714

Information on virtual attendance will be made available on the Commission's website: https://crimevictimcomp.idaho.gov/.

The hearing site(s) will be accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for accommodation must be made not later than five (5) days prior to the hearing, to the agency address below.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

In accordance with Executive Order 2020-01: Zero-Based Regulation, the Industrial Commission is striving to prevent the accumulation of costly, ineffective, outdated regulations, and reduce regulatory burden to achieve a more efficient operation of government. This rulemaking is being made by the agency, in collaboration with stakeholders, to increase transparency and streamline access to the Crime Victims Compensation Program. Changes include removal of the requirement to obtain Commission approval prior to changing physicians, removal of medical fee schedule from the chapter, and extending the time to submit bills for treatment from two years to three years.

**FEE SUMMARY:** The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased: There are no fee changes associated with this proposed rulemaking.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year as a result of this rulemaking: This rulemaking is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on general funds, state funds, or any other known funds.

**NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING:** Pursuant to Section 67-5220(1), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was conducted. The Notice of Intent to Promulgate Rules - Negotiated Rulemaking was published in the May 3, 2023 Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-5, pages 161-162 and the June 7, 2023 Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-6, pages 54-55.

**INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE:** Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, the following is a brief synopsis of why the materials cited are being incorporated by reference into this rule: There are no incorporation by reference in this chapter.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the proposed rule, contact Kamerron Slay, (208) 334-6017 or kamerron.slay@iic.idaho.gov.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding this proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before September 27, 2023.

DATED this 2nd day of August, 2023.

# THE FOLLOWING IS THE TEXT OF ZBR DOCKET NO. 17-1001-2301

# 17.10.01 – ADMINISTRATIVE RULES UNDER THE CRIME VICTIMS COMPENSATION ACT

000. Sections		AUTHORITY. and 72-1013, Idaho Code.	(	)
001. This cha	SCOPE apter incl	. udes the Industrial Commission's procedures for administering the Crime Victim's Compe	nsatio	on )
002 0	09.	(RESERVED)		
010.	DEFIN	ITIONS.		
Victim's	<b>01.</b> Division	Crime Victim's Compensation Program ("CVCP"). The program administered by the of the Idaho Industrial Commission pursuant to the Crime Victim's Compensation Act.	Crin	ne )
	02.	Employer. The employer at the time of the criminally injurious conduct.	(	)
determin	03. ned at the	<b>Good Cause</b> . "Good cause" as that term is found in the Crime Victim's Compensation Act Commission's discretion on a case-by-case basis.	will l	be )
Section	<b>04.</b> 72-1026,	<b>Medical Services</b> . For purposes of the fee schedule adopted by the Commission as author Idaho Code, the following terms apply:	ized l	эy )
with this	<b>a.</b> s rule or a	"Allowable payment" means the lower of the charge for medical services calculated in access billed by the provider.	ordan (	ce )
basis on	<b>b.</b> ly.	"Ambulatory Surgery Center (ASC)" means a facility providing surgical services on an ou	tpatie (	nt )
outpatie	<b>c.</b> nt basis.	"Hospital" is any acute care facility providing medical or rehabilitation services on an inpati	ent ar	nd )
	i.	Large Hospital means any hospital with more than one hundred (100) acute care beds.	(	)
	ii.	Small Hospital means any hospital with one hundred (100) acute care beds or less.	(	)
		"Provider" means any person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, agency, instituted providing any kind of medical service related to the treatment of a claimant for benefits untimes Compensation Act.	tion, ider tl (	or he )
	e.	"Medical Service" means medical, surgical, dental, mental health, or other attendance or tre	atmer	ıt,

# **INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION** Administrative Rules Under the Worker's Compensation Law

Docket No. 17-1001-2301 **PENDING RULE** 

supply.	pital service, medicine, apparatus, appliance, prostneses and related service, facility, equipment (	)
f. the "customar	"Reasonable" means a charge does not exceed the Provider's "usual" charge and does not exc y" charge, as defined below.	eed )
g. service.	"Usual" means the most frequent charge made by an individual Provider for a given med	lical )
<b>h.</b> determined by	"Customary" means a charge that has an upper limit no higher than the 90th percentile the Commission, of usual charges made by Idaho Providers for a given medical service.	, as )
011. CLA	IMS FOR COMPENSATION.	
	Claim for Benefits. A claim for benefits is initiated by filing an Application in the form availar's website. An Application for Compensation is deemed filed when the claimant has provided mation and the signed application is received at the Commission's office in Boise. (	
02.	Proceedings to Secure Benefits.	)
a. Division may of the CVCP	Initial Determination by CVCP Division. After sufficient information has been gathered, the CV make an initial determination granting, partially granting, or denying benefits. An initial determination shall be final and conclusive as to all matters adjudicated in the determination (	
Division may	Request for Reconsideration. Within twenty (20) days from the date that the initial determination in the many file a request with the CVCP Division that the division reconsider its decision, or the CV reconsider the matter on its own motion. The decision of the CVCP Division on reconsideration so conclusive as to all matters adjudicated in the decision.	/CP
or illiar and c	inclusive as to all matters adjudicated in the decision.	)
	RING PROCEDURES.	)
012. HEA  01. conclusive in a de novo hea by the Comminitial determ Referee. If the		uest ived the r or
012. HEA  01. conclusive in a de novo hea by the Comminitial determ Referee. If the recommended of the commended of the comme	RING PROCEDURES.  Request for Hearing Before Commission. Within forty-five (45) days from any final tial determination of the CVCP Division, a claimant who disagrees with the determination may requing on the compensability of the subject claim before the Commission. Such a request must be received ission within forty-five (45) days following the initial determination or order on reconsideration of nation. The Commission may conduct the hearing or it may assign the matter to a Commissione e matter is assigned to a Commissioner or a Referee, the Commissioner or Referee shall substitute the commissioner of Referee of Referee shall substitute the commissioner of Referee shall substitute the	uest ived the er or omit
012. HEA  01. conclusive in a de novo hea by the Comminitial determ Referee. If the recommender  02. or Referee, the lectronically of such notice known address the person means.	RING PROCEDURES.  Request for Hearing Before Commission. Within forty-five (45) days from any final tial determination of the CVCP Division, a claimant who disagrees with the determination may requing on the compensability of the subject claim before the Commission. Such a request must be received ission within forty-five (45) days following the initial determination or order on reconsideration of nation. The Commission may conduct the hearing or it may assign the matter to a Commissione e matter is assigned to a Commissioner or a Referee, the Commissioner or Referee shall subfindings and decision to the Commission for its review.  (Recommendation. If the Commission does not approve the recommendations of a Commission	tuest ived the er or omit ) oner ) atten l, or opy last it of
012. HEA  01. conclusive in a de novo hea by the Comminitial determ Referee. If the recommender  02. or Referee, the lectronically of such notice known address the person means.	Request for Hearing Before Commission. Within forty-five (45) days from any final tial determination of the CVCP Division, a claimant who disagrees with the determination may requing on the compensability of the subject claim before the Commission. Such a request must be received in the commission may conduct the hearing or it may assign the matter to a Commissione e matter is assigned to a Commissioner or a Referee, the Commissioner or Referee shall subfindings and decision to the Commission for its review.  Recommendation. If the Commission does not approve the recommendations of a Commission e Commission may review the record and enter its own findings and decision.  Notice of Hearing. The Commission shall give the claimant at least ten (10) days' advance writing and place of hearing and of the issues to be heard, either by personal service, certified mail to the email address provided by the claimant. Service by mail shall be deemed complete when a certificate in the United States post office, with postage prepaid, addressed to a party at their is as shown in the records and files of the Commission. Evidence of service by certificate or affidaviation, the same shall be filed with the Commission. Service by electronic means is deemed complete when a certificate or affidaviation of the commission. Service by electronic means is deemed complete.	tuest ived the er or omit ) oner ) atten l, or opy last it of

Record. At the hearing the Application for Compensation filed by the claimant and any other

PAGE 65

06.

documents in the Commission's file that contain information relevant to the issues in the case shall be admitted into the record. Such documents shall be marked for identification and the record shall specify that those documents are

	Commission, Commissioner, or Referee conducting the hearing shall give those documents riate under the circumstances of the particular case.	
evidence prev The Commiss	<b>Evidence</b> . At the hearing the claimant may present such testimonial or other evidently have the Commission consider in support of the claim for benefits. Such evidence mitiously considered by the CVCP Division in connection with the initial determination, or next ion shall allow a representative of the CVCP Division to present testimonial or other CVCP Division's initial determination.	nay include w evidence
	<b>Finality of Decision</b> . After a hearing, the decision of the Commission shall be final and rs adjudicated. Within twenty (20) days from the date that such decision is issued, the claims Reconsideration or the Commission may reconsider the matter on its own motion.	
<b>09.</b> may review a decision:	<b>Modification of Final Order</b> . At the request of the claimant or on its own motion the C amend any final order or decision, within three (3) years of the date of issue of such	
a.	If there is a change in circumstances that affects the claimant's entitlement to benefits;	( )
b.	To correct a manifest injustice;	( )
<b>c.</b> disclosed; or	If the order or award is based upon facts which were misrepresented or that wer	e not fully
d.	To correct payments made erroneously.	( )
013. COM	MPENSATION.	
<b>01.</b> service unless be made to the	<b>Disbursements of Compensation</b> . Eligible payments shall be made directly to the protection the claimant has already paid the provider. If the claimant has already paid the provider, payer claimant.	
services in acconce a year	Allowable Payments for Medical Services. Pursuant to Section 72-1026, Idaho dopts a medical fee schedule that is posted on the agency's website and will pay providers cordance with said schedule. The conversion factors set out in the medical fee schedule may n conjunction with the annual adjustment of the Resource-Based Relative Value Scale he Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of the LLS. Department of Health and Human	for medica be adjusted (RBRVS)

- Wage Loss Benefits. "Wages received at the time of the criminally injurious conduct" shall be the claimant's gross weekly wage; which shall be determined under Section 72-419(1)-(3), Idaho Code, if applicable, and if not, as follows:
- If the Wages were fixed by the hour, and the claimant worked or was scheduled to work the same number of hours each week, the weekly wage shall be the hourly rate times the number of hours that the claimant worked or was scheduled to work each week.
- If the Wages were fixed by the hour and the claimant did not work the same number of hours each week, or if the claimant was paid on a piecework or commission basis, the weekly wage shall be computed by averaging the amounts that the claimant was paid during his last four completed pay periods prior to the criminally injurious conduct and converting that amount to a weekly basis using a method consistent with 72-419(1)-(3); provided that, if the claimant was employed for less than four (4) pay periods before the criminally injurious conduct, the average shall be computed based upon the time period that they worked.
  - If none of the above methods are applicable, the weekly wage shall be computed in a manner

	COMMISSION re Rules Under the Worker's Compensation Law	Docket No. 17-1001-2301 PENDING RULE
consistent with	the above methods.	(
<b>04.</b> qualifies under	Weekly Compensation Benefits If Claimant Employable But Section 72-1019(7)(a), Idaho Code, the following provisions apply:	Not Employed. If a claiman
the Crime Victi	If at the time of the criminally injurious conduct the claimant was rec f that conduct the claimant becomes ineligible for those benefits, the clam's Compensation Act shall be the lesser of one hundred fifty dollars the Employment Security Law.	imant's weekly benefits under
weekly benefits two-thirds (2/3)	If at the time of the criminally injurious conduct the claimant was ent on a date certain and if they were unable to work for one (1) we under the Crime Victim's Compensation Act shall be the lesser of one of the amount that they would have earned at their scheduled employmng on the date that their employment was scheduled to begin.	ek as a result of that conduct hundred fifty dollars (\$150) or
not reside in the	If prior to the criminally injurious conduct the claimant was performing disabled from performing as a result of that conduct and it is necessary claimant's house to perform those duties, the claimant shall receive we ensation Act equal to the amount paid to the person so employed, but noter week.	to employ a person who does eekly benefits under the Crimo
d.	In other circumstances, the Commission may award an amount it dee	ems appropriate. (
05.	Treating Physician. A claimant may choose their own treating physician.	cian. (
<b>06.</b> overpayment or	<b>Overpayment</b> . The Commission may reduce future payments request a refund when overpayments are made to either the claimant o	
Reimbursement miles of any rou	<b>Reimbursement for Transportation Expenses.</b> If the claimant shall be at the mileage rate allowed by the State Board of Exact is limited to one (1) round trip per day. The claimant shall not be reimined trip, nor for traveling any round trip of fifteen (15) miles or less. Support of travel. The mileage reimbursement amount shall be created as the contract of the claimant of the claimant shall be created as the claimant shall not be reimined as the claimant shall	aminers for state employees bursed for the first fifteen (15 ch distance shall be calculated
08.	Payment of Bills.	(
	Bills for treatment and sexual assault forensic examinations must date of treatment or the date of eligibility, whichever is later, to be extended upon Commission approval.	
<b>b.</b> documentation,	For the purpose of dispersing payment, the claimant may be including a W-9 form.	required to provide certain
09.	Right to Recover.	(

(RESERVED)

b.

014. -- 999.

Section 19-5304, Idaho Code, is independent from any other legal remedy it may have, including its statutory right to subrogation under Section 72-1023, Idaho Code, and is not barred by civil settlements entered into by other victims.

The Commission's right to recover its full economic loss under a restitution order as a victim under

The Commission may reduce or waive its subrogated interest in a settlement or civil action. (

)

000.

LEGAL AUTHORITY.

# [Agency redlined courtesy copy]

# 17.10.01 - ADMINISTRATIVE RULES UNDER THE CRIME VICTIMS COMPENSATION ACT

This cha	apter is ac	lopted under the legal authority of Sections 72-1004 and 72-1013, Idaho Code. (3-31-22)()
001. This cha Act.	SCOPE apter incl	· udes the Industrial Commission's procedures for administering the Crime Victim's Compensation  ( )
		ISTRATIVE APPEALS. on 11, Subsection 5, provides for appeals to the Commission from decisions of the Crime Victims treau. (3-31-22)
00 <mark>32</mark>	009.	(RESERVED)
010.	DEFIN	TIONS.
	<del>01.</del>	Commission. The Idaho Industrial Commission. (3-31-22)
Victim's Act.	02 <u>1</u> . Bureau_	Crime Victim's Compensation Program ("CVCP"). The program administered by the Crime Division of the Idaho Industrial Commission-under pursuant to the Crime Victim's Compensation (3-31-22)()
<del>for Com</del>	0 <mark>32</mark> . <del>pensation</del>	<b>Employer</b> . The employer at the time of the criminally injurious conduct <del>on which the Application is based</del> . (3-31-22)()
determin	03. ned at the	Good Cause. "Good cause" as that term is found in the Crime Victim's Compensation Act will be Commission's discretion on a case-by-case basis.
services adopted		Medical Services. Words and terms used for determining the allowable payment for medical ese rules are defined in Subsections 010.04.a. through 010.04.h.For purposes of the fee schedule emmission as authorized by Section 72-1026, Idaho Code, the following terms apply:  (3 31 22)()
with this	a. s rule or a	"Allowable payment" means the lower of the charge for medical services calculated in accordance is billed by the provider.
basis on	<b>b.</b> ly.	"Ambulatory Surgery Center (ASC)" means a facility providing surgical services on an outpatient
outpatie	<b>c.</b> nt basis.	"Hospital" is any acute care facility providing medical or rehabilitation services on an inpatient and $($
	i.	Large Hospital means any hospital with more than one hundred (100) acute care beds. ( )
	ii.	Small Hospital means any hospital with one hundred (100) acute care beds or less.
		"Provider" means any person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, agency, institution, or providing any kind of medical service related to the treatment of a claimant for benefits under the ims Compensation Act.

- e. "Medical Service" means medical, surgical, dental, mental health, or other attendance or treatment, nurse and hospital service, medicine, apparatus, appliance, prostheses and related service, facility, equipment and supply.
- f. "Reasonable" means a charge does not exceed the Provider's "usual" charge and does not exceed the "customary" charge, as defined in Paragraph 010.04.h below. (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- g. "Usual" means the most frequent charge made by an individual Provider for a given medical service to non-industrially injured patients.
- **h.** "Customary" means a charge that has an upper limit no higher than the 90th percentile, as determined by the Commission, of usual charges made by Idaho Providers for a given medical service.
- **Wages.** Means the wages at the time of the criminally injurious conduct on which the Application for Compensation is based and includes non-eash remuneration such as lodging and meals provided by the Employer and gratuities such as tips, which are not paid by the employer, but that are received by the victim in the normal course of his employment.

  (3-31-22)

# 011. APPLICATIONSCLAIMS FOR COMPENSATION.

- **Q2.** Providing Information. Before paying benefits to any claimant, the Commission shall gather sufficient information to establish that the claimant is eligible for benefits. The Commission may require the claimant to assist the Commission in obtaining that information.

  (3-31-22)

# <u>02.</u> Proceedings to Secure Benefits.

- <u>a.</u> <u>Initial Determination by CVCP Division. After sufficient information has been gathered, the CVCP Division may make an initial determination granting, partially granting, or denying benefits. An initial determination of the CVCP Division shall be final and conclusive as to all matters adjudicated in the determination (\_\_\_\_)</u>
- **b.** Request for Reconsideration. Within twenty (20) days from the date that the initial determination is issued, the claimant may file a request with the CVCP Division that the division reconsider its decision, or the CVCP Division may reconsider the matter on its own motion. The decision of the CVCP Division on reconsideration shall be final and conclusive as to all matters adjudicated in the decision.
- 03. Employment Verification. To verify information concerning a victim's employment, the Commission may require the victim's Employer or Employers to complete an Employment Verification form or the Commission may obtain such information from an Employer by telephone.

  (3-31-22)
- 04. Order. After sufficient information has been gathered pursuant to Subsection 011.02 of this rule, the Commission may enter an award granting or partially granting benefits or an order denying benefits. The Commission may also enter orders necessary to further the purposes of the Act.

  (3 31 22)
- **95. Finality of Order.** An award or order issued by the Commission shall be final and conclusive as to all matters considered in the award or order; provided that within twenty (20) days from the date that such an award or order is issued, the claimant may file a request that the Crime Victim's Compensation Program reconsider the order, or the Crime Victim's Compensation Program may reconsider the matter on its own motion, and the order of the Crime Victim's Compensation Program shall be final upon issuance of the order on reconsideration; and provided further that, within forty five (45) days from the date that any order is issued by the Crime Victim's Compensation

Program, a claimant may file a Request for Hearing before the Commission. The Hearing shall be held in accordance with the procedures set out in Section 012 of these rules. Requests for Hearing before the Commission and requests that the Crime Victim's Compensation Program reconsider an order is deemed filed when received at the Commission's office in Boise.

(3-31-22)

- **Recipients of Payments for Medical Services.** If, pursuant to any order of the Commission or the Crime Victims Bureau, it is determined that a claimant is entitled to payment of medical expenses as provided in Section 72 1019(2), Idaho Code, or funeral or burial expenses as provided in Section 72 1019(4), Idaho Code, payment shall be made directly to the medical provider or the provider of funeral or burial services unless the claimant has already paid the provider; if the claimant has already paid the provider, payment shall be made to the claimant.

  (3 31 22)
- 07. Allowable Payments for Medical Services. The Commission shall pay providers the allowable payment for medical services under these rules adopted in accordance with Section 72 1026, Idaho Code. (3 31 22)
- a. Adoption of Standard. The Commission hereby adopts the Resource-Based Relative Value Seale (RBRVS), published by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, as amended, as the standard to be used for determining the allowable payment under the Crime Victims Compensation Act for medical services provided by providers other than hospitals and ASCs. The standard for determining the allowable payment for hospitals and ASCs shall be:

  (3 31 22)
  - i. For large hospitals: Eighty-five percent (85%) of the reasonable inpatient charge. (3-31-22)
  - ii. For small hospitals: Ninety percent (90%) of the reasonable inpatient charge. (3-31-22)
- iii. For ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs) and hospital outpatient charges: Eighty percent (80%) of the reasonable charge. (3-31-22)
- iv. Surgically implanted hardware shall be reimbursed at the rate of actual cost plus fifty percent (50%).
- v. Paragraph 011.07.e. of this rule, does not apply to hospitals or ASCs. The Commission shall determine the allowable payment for hospital and ASC services based on all relevant evidence. (3-31-22)
- b. Conversion Factors. The following conversion factors shall be applied to the fully implemented facility or non-facility Relative Value Unit (RVU) as determined by place of service found in the latest RBRVS, as amended, that was published before December 31 of the previous calendar year for a medical service identified by a code assigned to that service in the latest edition of the Physicians' Current Procedural Terminology (CPT), published by the American Medical Association, as amended:

MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE							
DESCRIPTION	CODE- RANGE(S)		CONVERSION- FACTOR				
Anesthesia	00000 - 09999		\$ <del>60.05</del>				
<del>Surgery –</del> <del>Group One</del>	22000 22000 23000 24999 25000 27299 27300 27999 29800 29999 61000 61999 62000 62259 63000 63999	Spine Shoulder, Upper Arm, & Elbow Forearm, Wrist, Hand, Pelvis & Hip Leg, Knee, & Ankle Endoscopy & Arthroscopy Skull, Meninges & Brain Repair, Neuroendoscopy & Shunts Spine & Spinal Cord	<del>\$144.48</del>				

MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE								
DESCRIPTION	RANGE(S)							
<del>Surgery</del> <del>Group Two</del>	28000 28999 64550 64999	Foot & Toes Nerves & Nervous System	<del>\$129.00</del>					
Surgery Group Three	<del>13000 19999</del> <del>20650 21999</del>	Integumentary System Musculoskeletal System	<del>\$113.52</del>					
<del>Surgery -</del> <del>Group Four</del>	20000 20615 30000 39999 40000 49999 50000 59999 60000 60999 62260 62999 64000 64549 65000 69999	Musculoskeletal System Respiratory & Cardiovascular Digestive System Urinary System Endocrine System Spine & Spinal Cord Nerves & Nervous System Eye & Ear	\$ <del>87.72</del>					
<del>Surgery -</del> <del>Group Five</del>	10000 12999 29000 29799	<del>Integumentary System</del> <del>Casts &amp; Strapping</del>	<del>\$69.14</del>					
Radiology	<del>70000 - 79999</del>	<del>Radiology</del>	<del>\$87.72</del>					
Pathology & Laboratory	80000 - 89999	Pathology & Laboratory	To Be Determined					
Medicine - Group One	90000 90749 94000 - 94999 97000 97799 97800 98999	Immunization, Injections, & Infusions Pulmonary / Pulse Oximetry Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Acupuncture, Osteopathy, & Chiropractic	<del>\$46.44</del>					
<del>Medicine -</del> <del>Group Two</del>	90750 92999 96040 96999 99000 - 99607	Psychiatry & Medicine Assessments & Special Procedures E / M & Miscellaneous Services	<del>\$66.56</del>					
<del>Medicine -</del> <del>Group Three</del>	93000 93999 95000 96020	Cardiography, Catheterization, & Vascular- Studies Allergy / Neuromuscular Procedures	<del>\$72.24</del>					

(3-31-22)

- e. The Conversion Factor for the Anesthesiology CPT Codes shall be multiplied by the Anesthesia Base Units assigned to that CPT Code by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services as of December 31 of the previous calendar year, plus the allowable time units reported for the procedure. Time units are computed by dividing reported time by fifteen (15) minutes. Time units will not be used for CPT Code 01996.
- d. Adjustment of Conversion Factors. The conversion factors set out in this rule may be adjusted each fiscal year (FY), starting with FY 2012, as determined by the Commission. (3-31-22)
- exprices Without a CPT Code, RVU or Conversion Factor. The allowable payment for medical services that do not have a current CPT code, a currently assigned RVU, or a conversion factor will be the reasonable charge for that service, based upon the usual and customary charge and other relevant evidence, as determined by the Commission. Where a service with a CPT Code, RVU, and conversion factor is, nonetheless, claimed to be exceptional or unusual, the Commission may, notwithstanding the conversion factor for that service set out in Subsection 011.07.b. of this rule, determine the allowable payment for that service, based on all relevant evidence.

(3-31-22)

- f. Coding. The Commission will generally follow the coding guidelines published by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services and by the American Medical Association, including the use of modifiers. The procedure with the largest RVU will be the primary procedure and will be listed first on the claim form. Modifiers will be reimbursed as follows:

  (3-31-22)
  - i. Modifier 50: Additional fifty percent (50%) for bilateral procedure. (3 31 22)
- ii. Modifier 51: Fifty percent (50%) of secondary procedure. This modifier will be applied to each medical or surgical procedure rendered during the same session as the primary procedure. (3-31-22)
  - iii. Modifier 80: Twenty-five percent (25%) of coded procedure. (3-31-22)
- iv. Modifier 81: Fifteen percent (15%) of coded procedure. This modifier applies to MD and non-MD assistants.
- **Wage Loss Benefits.** For the purpose of determining compensation benefits under Sections 72-1019(1) and 72-1019(3), Idaho Code, "wages received at the time of the criminally injurious conduct" shall be the victim's gross weekly wage; which shall be determined under Section 72-419(1) (3), Idaho Code, if applicable, and if not, as follows:

  (3-31-22)
- a. If the Wages were fixed by the hour, and the victim worked or was scheduled to work the same number of hours each week, the weekly wage shall be the hourly rate times the number of hours that the victim worked or was scheduled to work each week, plus one-half (1/2) the hourly wage times the number of hours worked or scheduled each week in excess of forty (40) hours if the victim was paid time and a half for work in excess of forty (40) hours per week.
- b. If the Wages were fixed by the hour and the victim did not work the same number of hours each week, or if the victim was paid on a piecework or commission basis, the weekly wage shall be computed by averaging the amounts that the victim was paid during his last four completed pay periods prior to the criminally injurious conduct and converting that amount to a weekly basis using a method consistent with 72 419(1) (3); provided that, if the victim was employed for less than four (4) pay periods before the criminally injurious conduct, the average shall be computed based upon the time period that he worked.

  (3-31-22)
- e. If none of the above methods are applicable, the weekly wage shall be computed in a manner consistent with the above methods.

  (3-31-22)
- **O9.** Treating Physician. A victim may choose his own treating physician. If, after filing an Application for Compensation, a victim changes physicians without prior approval of the Commission, or if, without prior approval of the Commission, he seeks treatment or examination by a physician to whom he was referred by his treating physician, the Commission may deny payment for such treatment or examination.

  (3-31-22)
- 10. Overpayment. If the Commission erroneously makes payments, the Commission may reduce future payments by an amount equal to the overpayment or request a refund when overpayments are made to either the claimant or the provider.

  (3-31-22)
- H. Weekly Compensation Benefits If Vietim Employable But Not Employed. If a victim is qualified under Section 72-1019(7)(a), Idaho Code, the following provisions apply: (3-31-22)
- a. If at the time of the injurious conduct the victim was receiving unemployment benefits and as a result of that conduct the victim becomes ineligible for those benefits, the claimant's weekly benefits under the Crime Victims Compensation Act shall be the lesser of one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) or his weekly benefit amount under the Employment Security Law.
- b. If at the time of the criminally injurious conduct the victim was unemployed, but scheduled to begin employment on a date certain and if he was unable to work for one (1) week as a result of that conduct, weekly

benefits under the Crime Victims Compensation Act shall be the lesser of one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) or twothirds (2/3) of the amount that he would have earned at his scheduled employment, and those benefits shall be payable beginning on the date that his employment was scheduled to begin.

- e. If prior to the criminally injurious conduct the victim was performing necessary household duties which he is disabled from performing as a result of that conduct and it is necessary to employ a person who does not reside in the victim's house to perform those duties, the victim shall receive weekly benefits under the Crime Victims Compensation Act equal to the amount paid to the person so employed, but not exceeding one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) per week.
  - d. In other circumstances, the Commission may award an amount it deems appropriate. (3-31-22)
- 12. Reimbursement for Transportation Expenses. If the claimant utilizes a private vehicle, reimbursement shall be at the mileage rate allowed by the State Board of Examiners for state employees. Reimbursement shall be provided only if services are not available in the local area and is limited to one (1) round trip per day. The claimant shall not be reimbursed for the first fifteen (15) miles of any round trip, nor for traveling any round trip of fifteen (15) miles or less. Such distance shall be calculated by the shortest practical route of travel. The mileage reimbursement amount shall be credited to the medical benefit.
- 13. Payment of Bills. Bills for treatment and sexual assault forensic examinations must be submitted within two (2) years from the date of treatment or the date of eligibility, whichever is later, to be compensable.

#### 012. HEARING PROCEDURES.

- **Q1.** Request for Hearing. If a Request for Hearing is filed, an informal hearing shall be held. The Commission may conduct the hearing or it may assign the matter to a Commissioner or Referee. If the matter is assigned to a Commissioner or a Referee, the Commissioner or Referee shall submit recommended findings and decision to the Commission for its review.

  (3 31 22)
- **Q2.** Recommendations. If the Commission does not approve the recommendations of a member or Referee, the Commission may: (3 31 22)
  - a. Review the record and enter its own findings and decision; (3-31-22)
  - b. Conduct another informal hearing and issue a decision based upon the record of both hearings; or (3-31-22)
- e. Assign the matter to another member or Referee to conduct another informal hearing and make recommendations pursuant to Subsection 012.01 above based upon the record of both hearings. (3-31-22)
- 03. Notice of Hearing. The Commission shall give the claimant at least ten (10) days' advance written notice of the time and place of hearing and of the issues to be heard, either by personal service or certified mail. Service by mail shall be deemed complete when a copy of such notice is deposited in the United States post office, with postage prepaid, addressed to a party at his last known address as shown in the records and files of the Commission. Evidence of service by certificate or affidavit of the person making the same shall be filed with the Commission.
- **94.** Transcript of Hearing. All hearings shall be tape-recorded. In addition, the Commission may arrange for a stenographic or machine transcription of any hearing. (3-31-22)
- **Q5.** Record. At the hearing the Application for Compensation filed by the claimant and any other documents in the Commission's file that contain information relevant to the issues in the case shall be admitted into the record. Such documents shall be marked for identification and the record shall specify that those documents are admitted. The Commission, member, or Referee conducting the hearing shall give those documents the weight that is appropriate under the circumstances of the particular case.

  (3 31 22)

- **66.** Evidence. At the hearing; after the claimant has presented his evidence, the Commission, or the Commissioner or Referee conducting the hearing shall allow an employee of the Commission to present evidence. After the presentation of evidence by an employee of the Commission, the Commission, or the Commissioner or Referee conducting the hearing may, in its or his discretion, allow any other person to testify.

  (3-31-22)
- **67. Finality of Decision.** After a hearing, the decision of the Commission shall be final and conclusive as to all matters adjudicated. Within twenty (20) days from the date that such decision is issued, the claimant may file a Motion for Reconsideration or the Commission may reconsider the matter on its own motion.

  (3 31 22)
- 08. Crime Victim's Compensation Program Review. At the request of the claimant or on its own motion the Crime Victim's Compensation Program may review and amend any final order or award, within three (3) years of the date of issue of such order or award:

  (3-31-22)
  - a. If there is a change in circumstances that affects the claimant's entitlement to benefits; (3.31.22)
  - b. To correct a manifest injustice; (3-31-22)
- e. If the order or award is based upon facts which were misrepresented or that were not fully disclosed; or (3-31-22)
  - d. To comply with the annual review requirements of Section 72-1021, Idaho Code. (3-31-22)
- 99. Subpoenas Shall be served in the manner provided by the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure. Witness fees and mileage shall be in the amounts provided by the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure and the Claimant shall pay the fees of any witness who is subpoened to testify in his behalf.

  (3-31-22)

#### 012. HEARING PROCEDURES.

- **Q1.** Request for Hearing Before Commission. Within forty-five (45) days from any final and conclusive initial determination of the CVCP Division, a claimant who disagrees with the determination may request a de novo hearing on the compensability of the subject claim before the Commission. Such a request must be received by the Commission within forty-five (45) days following the initial determination or order on reconsideration of the initial determination. The Commission may conduct the hearing or it may assign the matter to a Commissioner or Referee. If the matter is assigned to a Commissioner or a Referee, the Commissioner or Referee shall submit recommended findings and decision to the Commission for its review.
- **O2.** Recommendation. If the Commission does not approve the recommendations of a Commissioner or Referee, the Commission may review the record and enter its own findings and decision.
- 03. Notice of Hearing. The Commission shall give the claimant at least ten (10) days' advance written notice of the time and place of hearing and of the issues to be heard, either by personal service, certified mail, or electronically to the email address provided by the claimant. Service by mail shall be deemed complete when a copy of such notice is deposited in the United States post office, with postage prepaid, addressed to a party at their last known address as shown in the records and files of the Commission. Evidence of service by certificate or affidavit of the person making the same shall be filed with the Commission. Service by electronic means is deemed complete upon receipt by the intended party.
  - <u>04.</u> <u>Transcript of Hearing</u>. All hearings shall be recorded.
- <u>O5.</u> <u>Subpoenas.</u> Subpoenas shall be served in the manner provided by the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure. Witness fees and mileage shall be in the amounts provided by the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure and the claimant shall pay the fees of any witness who is subpoenaed to testify on their behalf.
- **96.** Record. At the hearing the Application for Compensation filed by the claimant and any other documents in the Commission's file that contain information relevant to the issues in the case shall be admitted into the record. Such documents shall be marked for identification and the record shall specify that those documents are admitted. The Commission, Commissioner, or Referee conducting the hearing shall give those documents the weight

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION Administrative Rules Under the Worker's Compensation	Docket No. 17-1001-2301 Law PENDING RULE
that is appropriate under the circumstances of the particular case.	()
<b>Q7.</b> Evidence. At the hearing the claimant may proclaimant would have the Commission consider in support of the evidence previously considered by the CVCP Division in connection The Commission shall allow a representative of the CVCP Division's support of the CVCP Division's initial determination.	on with the initial determination, or new evidence.
<b>O8. Finality of Decision</b> . After a hearing, the decision as to all matters adjudicated. Within twenty (20) days from the date a Motion for Reconsideration or the Commission may reconsider to	
Modification of Final Order. At the request of may review and amend any final order or decision, within thre decision:	the claimant or on its own motion the Commission (2) years of the date of issue of such order or ()
<u>a.</u> <u>If there is a change in circumstances that affects</u>	the claimant's entitlement to benefits; ()
<b>b.</b> To correct a manifest injustice;	()
<u>c.</u> <u>If the order or award is based upon facts when disclosed; or </u>	nich were misrepresented or that were not fully
<u>d.</u> <u>To correct payments made erroneously.</u>	
013. COMPENSATION.	
ol. <u>Disbursements of Compensation</u> . Eligible pay service unless the claimant has already paid the provider. If the clabe made to the claimant.	ments shall be made directly to the provider of the imant has already paid the provider, payment shall ()
O2. Allowable Payments for Medical Services. Commission adopts a medical fee schedule that is posted on the asservices in accordance with said schedule. The conversion factors once a year in conjunction with the annual adjustment of the published by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services of the	set out in the medical fee schedule may be adjusted Resource-Based Relative Value Scale (RBRVS),
<u>O3.</u> <u>Wage Loss Benefits.</u> "Wages received at the tin claimant's gross weekly wage; which shall be determined under Seif not, as follows:	ne of the criminally injurious conduct" shall be the ction 72-419(1)-(3), Idaho Code, if applicable, and
a. If the Wages were fixed by the hour, and the clanumber of hours each week, the weekly wage shall be the hourly worked or was scheduled to work each week.	imant worked or was scheduled to work the same rate times the number of hours that the claimant  ()
b. If the Wages were fixed by the hour and the claiweek, or if the claimant was paid on a piecework or commission averaging the amounts that the claimant was paid during his last injurious conduct and converting that amount to a weekly base provided that, if the claimant was employed for less than four (4) put the average shall be computed based upon the time period that the	four completed pay periods prior to the criminally susing a method consistent with 72-419(1)-(3); ay periods before the criminally injurious conduct,
<u>c.</u> <u>If none of the above methods are applicable, consistent with the above methods.</u>	he weekly wage shall be computed in a manner
04. Weekly Compensation Benefits If Claimant	Employable But Not Employed. If a claimant

#### INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION Docket No. 17-1001-2301 Administrative Rules Under the Worker's Compensation Law PENDING RULE qualifies under Section 72-1019(7)(a), Idaho Code, the following provisions apply: If at the time of the criminally injurious conduct the claimant was receiving unemployment benefits and as a result of that conduct the claimant becomes ineligible for those benefits, the claimant's weekly benefits under the Crime Victim's Compensation Act shall be the lesser of one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) or their weekly benefit amount under the Employment Security Law. If at the time of the criminally injurious conduct the claimant was unemployed, but scheduled to begin employment on a date certain and if they were unable to work for one (1) week as a result of that conduct, weekly benefits under the Crime Victim's Compensation Act shall be the lesser of one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) or two-thirds (2/3) of the amount that they would have earned at their scheduled employment, and those benefits shall be payable beginning on the date that their employment was scheduled to begin. If prior to the criminally injurious conduct the claimant was performing necessary household duties which they are disabled from performing as a result of that conduct and it is necessary to employ a person who does not reside in the claimant's house to perform those duties, the claimant shall receive weekly benefits under the Crime Victim's Compensation Act equal to the amount paid to the person so employed, but not exceeding one hundred fifty dollars (\$150) per week. d. In other circumstances, the Commission may award an amount it deems appropriate. <u>05.</u> **Treating Physician**. A claimant may choose their own treating physician. **06.** Overpayment. The Commission may reduce future payments by an amount equal to the overpayment or request a refund when overpayments are made to either the claimant or the provider. <u>O7.</u> <u>Reimbursement for Transportation Expenses</u>. If the claimant utilizes a private vehicle, reimbursement shall be at the mileage rate allowed by the State Board of Examiners for state employees. Reimbursement is limited to one (1) round trip per day. The claimant shall not be reimbursed for the first fifteen (15) miles of any round trip, nor for traveling any round trip of fifteen (15) miles or less. Such distance shall be calculated by the shortest practical route of travel. The mileage reimbursement amount shall be credited to the medical benefit. **08.** Payment of Bills. Bills for treatment and sexual assault forensic examinations must be submitted within three (3) years from the date of treatment or the date of eligibility, whichever is later, to be compensable. The time for submission may be extended upon Commission approval. For the purpose of dispersing payment, the claimant may be required to provide certain documentation, including a W-9 form. <u>09.</u> Right to Recover. The Commission's right to recover its full economic loss under a restitution order as a victim under Section 19-5304, Idaho Code, is independent from any other legal remedy it may have, including its statutory right to subrogation under Section 72-1023, Idaho Code, and is not barred by civil settlements entered into by other victims. The Commission may reduce or waive its subrogated interest in a settlement or civil action. ( <u>b.</u>

(RESERVED)

01<mark>34</mark>. -- 999.

#### **IDAPA 21 – DIVISION OF VETERANS SERVICES**

## 21.01.04 – RULES GOVERNING IDAHO STATE VETERANS CEMETERIES DOCKET NO. 21-0104-2301

#### NOTICE OF RULEMAKING - ADOPTION OF PENDING RULE

LINK: LSO Rules Analysis Memo

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** This rule has been adopted by the agency and is now pending review by the 2024 Idaho State Legislature that must be approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature to go into effect, in accordance with Section 67-5224(2)(c), Idaho Code. The pending rule will become final and effective upon the adjournment, *sine die*, of the Second Regular Session of the Sixty-seventh Idaho Legislature after approval.

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5224, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has adopted a pending fee rule. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 65-108 and 65-202, Idaho Code.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a concise explanatory statement of the reasons for adopting the pending fee rule and a statement of any change between the text of the proposed rule and the text of the pending fee rule with an explanation of the reasons for the change.

This Rule will expand eligibility for interment at Idaho State Veterans Cemeteries to non-retiree Guard and Reservists who completed an enlistment of service honorably but are otherwise ineligible because they were never activated federally or did not complete enough service time to retire out of the Guard or Reserves.

The text of the pending fee rule has been amended in accordance with Section 67-5227, Idaho Code. Only those sections that have changes that differ from the proposed text are printed in this bulletin. The complete text of the proposed rule was published in the March 1, 2023, Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-3, pages 26-29.

**FEE SUMMARY:** The following is a description of the fee or charge imposed or increased in this rulemaking as authorized in Section 65-202, Idaho Code. Pursuant to Section 67-5224(2)(d), Idaho Code, this pending fee rule shall not become final and effective unless affirmatively approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature.

This expands eligibility for burial to non-Veteran National Guard and Reservists. Because the VA does not provide a burial benefit to these individuals, these newly eligible individuals who wish to be buried in the State Veterans Cemetery will have to cover the cost (equivalent to the VA reimbursement/plot allowance benefit) as well as the cost of the cemetery marker either \$400 for a casket/upright marker or \$250 for all other interment/memorial marker types.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year: N/A

**ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS:** For assistance on technical questions concerning the pending rule, contact Kevin Wallior, 208-780-1308.

DATED this 6th day of October, 2023.

Kevin R. Wallior Management Assistant Idaho Division of Veterans Services 351 N. Collins Road Boise, ID 83702

Ph: 208-780-1308, fax: 208-780-1301 email: kevin.wallior@veterans.idaho.gov

## THE FOLLOWING NOTICE PUBLISHED WITH THE TEMPORARY AND PROPOSED RULE

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** The effective date of the temporary rule is March 1, 2023

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Sections 67-5221(1) and 67-5226, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has adopted a temporary rule, and proposed rulemaking procedures have been initiated. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 65-108 and 65-202, Idaho Code.

**PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:** Public hearing(s) concerning this rulemaking will be scheduled if requested in writing by twenty-five (25) persons, a political subdivision, or an agency, not later than March 15, 2023.

The hearing site(s) will be accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for accommodation must be made not later than five (5) days prior to the hearing, to the agency address below.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is the required finding and concise statement of its supporting reasons for adopting a temporary rule and a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

This Temporary Rule will expand eligibility for interment at Idaho State Veterans Cemeteries to non-retiree Guard and Reservists who completed an enlistment of service honorably but are otherwise ineligible because they were never activated federally or did not complete enough service time to retire out of the Guard or Reserves.

**TEMPORARY RULE JUSTIFICATION:** Pursuant to Section(s) 67-5226(1)(c), Idaho Code, the Governor has found that temporary adoption of the rule is appropriate for the following reasons:

The rule complies with a new federal law, PUBLIC LAW 117-103 THE CONSOLIDATED APPROPRIATIONS ACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022 (Burial Equity for Guards and Reserves Act) which expands eligibility for State Veterans Cemeteries to non-military retiree Guard and Reservists without risking eligibility for VA Construction Grants for State Veterans Cemeteries.

**FEE SUMMARY:** The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased:

This law expands eligibility for burial National Guard and Reservists but does not expand eligibility for VA burial benefits. These newly eligible individuals who wish to be buried in the State Veterans Cemetery will have to cover the cost (equivalent to the VA reimbursement/plot allowance benefit) themselves.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state general fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year: N/A

**NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING:** Pursuant to Section 67-5220(2), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was not conducted because it is prompted by a federal law.

**INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE:** Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, the following is a brief synopsis of why the materials cited are being incorporated by reference into this rule: N/A

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the temporary and proposed rule, contact Kevin Wallior, 208-780-1308.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding the proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before March 22, 2023.

DATED this 1st day of March, 2023.

#### THE FOLLOWING IS THE TEXT OF DOCKET NO. 21-0104-2301

Italicized text indicates amendments to the proposed text as adopted in the pending rule.

#### 000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.

The Idaho Legislature has given the Administrator of the Division of Veterans Services the authority to promulgate rules governing the Idaho State Veterans Cemetery pursuant to Section 65-202, Idaho Code. (3 23 22)(

#### (BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

#### 002. INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE.

01.	<b>Incorporated Documents</b> . The	lese rules incorporate by reference the following:	(3-23-22)
-----	-------------------------------------	--	-----------

**a.** The full text of 38 CFR 38.620, dated July 1, 2001. (3-23-22)

**b.** 38 U.S.C.A. Section 2402, (2004 and Supp. 2004). (3-23-22)

**c.** 38 CFR 39.5(d), dated July 1, 2008. (3-23-22)

**Observation of Section 19.1**Observation 

Observation 

Description 

Observation 

Observation 

Description 

Observation 

Obser

003. -- 009. (RESERVED)

#### 010. **DEFINITIONS.**

- **01. Administrator**. The Administrator of the Idaho Division of Veterans Services or his designee. (3-23-22)
- **O2.** Applicant. The individual requesting interment, disinterment or reinterment of a qualified person. (3-23-22)
- **03. Armed Forces Member**. A member or former member of the armed forces of the United States, the reserve component of the armed forces of the United States, the reserve officers training corps of the United States, or the armed forces of an ally of the United States who is eligible for burial in national cemeteries pursuant to 38 CFR 38.620 and 38 U.S.C. Section 2402. (3-23-22)
  - **O4.** Cemetery. Idaho State Veterans Cemeteries authorized pursuant to Section 65-108, Idaho Code. (3-23-22)
  - **05. Committal Service.** A gathering of one (1) or more individuals prior to interment or reinterment. (3-23-22)
  - **06.** Cremains. Cremated human remains. (3-23-22)
  - 07. Designated Interpretive Trail. A public recreational trail designated by a sign or marker.
  - **087. Disinterment.** The removal of human remains from their place of interment. (3-23-22)

098.	Division Th	e Idaho Division of Veterans Service	ng.	(2	23-	2	) \
U <del>Y</del> N.	Division in	e Idano Division of Veterans Service	2S	(3-	· /. j-	- /.,	Z.)

- **102. Interment.** The disposition of human remains by burial or the placement of cremains in a grave plot or in any location designated by the Administrator for use as a permanent location of cremains. (3-23-22)
- 110. Qualified Person. A person who satisfies the requirements for eligibility for interment in national cemeteries found at 38 CFR 38.620 and 38 U.S.C. Section 2402 and is not prohibited from being interred by 38 CFR 39.10(b)); or a member or former member of the reserve component of the armed forces of the United States; the reserve officers training corps of the United States; or members of the Army National Guard or Air National Guard who completed at least one term of enlistment, or officers who completed at least four years of service.

<del>(3-23-22)</del>(

(3-23-22)

- **121. Reinterment**. The interment of previously interred human remains.
- **132. Unremarried Spouse.** An individual who is the surviving spouse of a deceased armed forces member and who has not remarried. (3-23-22)
  - 143. USDVA. The United States Department of Veterans Affairs. (3-23-22)

#### (BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

#### 024. FEES FOR INTERMENT, DISINTERMENT, REINTERMENT, AND MEMORIAL.

The Administrator shall charge the following fees:

(3-23-22)

**01.** Interment. (3-23-22)

- a. A fee equal to the then current USDVA reimbursement for opening and closing an interment site containing a pre-placed crypt. The Administrator will accept, as full payment, the amount of reimbursement by the USDVA to the Division for opening and closing an interment site containing a pre-placed crypt for a qualified veteran persons eligible for USDVA reimbursement.

  (3-23-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)
- **b.** In An addition all to the fee charged under Paragraph 024.01.a. of this rule, the Administrator shall charge a fee of seven hundred dollars (\$700) for preparation of a casket burial at an interment site not containing a pre-placed crypt.
  - <u>c.</u> For interments ineligible for a USDVA provided marker, the Administrator shall charge: (\_\_\_\_\_)
  - i. \$400 for the cost of a Casket/Upright Marker; or ( )
  - ii. \$250 for all other Interment/Memorial Marker types. (\_\_\_\_\_
- **02. Disinterment.** A fee equal to the then current USDVA reimbursement for opening and closing an interment site. The expenses of removal, transportation and reinterment of remains, and the expenses of removal, transportation and reinstallation of the grave marker, if any, shall be paid by the applicant for disinterment. (3-23-22)
- **03. Reinterment**. A fee equal to the then current USDVA reimbursement for opening and closing an interment site for reinterment. The expenses of reinterment of remains and reinstallation of the grave marker, if any, shall be paid by the applicant for reinterment. (3-23-22)
- **04. Memorial Marker**. A fee of two hundred <u>fifty</u> dollars (\$200250) to order, install, and provide perpetual care of a furnished flush granite marker to commemorate an eligible deceased Veteran a qualified person whose remains have not been recovered or identified, were buried at sea, donated to science, or cremated and the remains scattered.

#### (BREAK IN CONTINUITY OF SECTIONS)

#### 040. MEMORIALS AND DONATIONS.

- **01. Flowers and Grave Decorations**. The Administrator will post the requirements for natural and artificial flowers and other grave decorations in the cemetery. Cemetery personnel may remove and discard grave decorations that fail to comply with the posted requirements or that are faded, wilted, tattered or worn. (3-23-22)
- **O2. Plaques, Statues, and Other Memorials**. The Administrator may approve plaques, statues, and other memorials to commemorate events, units, individuals, groups, and organizations. Persons wishing to install such memorials at their own cost may submit an application on a form prescribed by the Administrator. Memorials approved by the Administrator are considered donations to the cemetery. (3-23-22)
  - **03. Grave Markers**. Grave markers issued by the USDVA are approved as follows: (3-23-22)
  - **a.** Graves Upright granite markers. (3-23-22)
  - **b.** Interments in an area reserved for the interment of cremains in the soil Flush granite markers. (3-23-22)
  - c. Interment of cremains in a structure reserved for the interment of cremains Granite niche markers. (3-23-22)
- **Denations and Gifts.** The Administrator may accept gifts and donations to the Veterans Cemetery Maintenance Fund established pursuant to Section 65-107, Idaho Code. (3-23-22)

#### **IDAPA 59 – PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO**

# 59.01.01 – RULES FOR THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO (PERSI) DOCKET NO. 59-0101-2301 (ZBR CHAPTER REWRITE) NOTICE OF RULEMAKING – ADOPTION OF PENDING RULE

LINK: LSO Rules Analysis Memo

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** This rule has been adopted by the agency and is now pending review by the 2024 Idaho State Legislature and must be approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature to go into effect, in accordance with Section 67-5224(2)(c), Idaho Code. The pending rule will become final and effective upon the adjournment, *sine die*, of the Second Regular Session of the Sixty-seventh Idaho Legislature.

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5224, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has adopted a pending rule. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 59-1301, 59-1314, 59-1372, 59-1383, and 59-1392, Idaho Code.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a concise explanatory statement of the reasons for adopting the pending rule and a statement of any change between the text of the proposed rule and the text of the pending rule with an explanation of the reasons for the change.

There are changes to two sections of the pending rule. Section 200 is the addition of the words "the definition of" to clarify that the addition to Section 59-1302(16), Idaho Code, is with respect to the definition of a firefighter. Section 702 has changes to clarify the active member is the member that participates in the active member allocation. The other changes are to correct grammar.

The text of the pending rule has been amended in accordance with Section 67-5227, Idaho Code. Only those sections that have changes that differ from the proposed text are printed in this bulletin. The complete text of the proposed rule was published in the November 1, 2023, Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-11, pages 119-153.

**FEE SUMMARY:** Pursuant to Section 67-5224(2)(d), Idaho Code, this pending fee rule shall not become final and effective unless affirmatively approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature. The following is a description of the fee or charge imposed or increased in this rulemaking:

Does not apply to this rulemaking.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state General Fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year:

The change in this rule will not have any fiscal impact on the state General Fund.

**ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS:** For assistance on technical questions concerning this pending rule, contact: Cheryl George, (208) 287-9231.

DATED this 27th of November 2023.

Don Drum, Executive Director Public Employees Retirement System of Idaho P.O. Box 83720 Boise, ID 83720-0078

Phone: (208) 287-9230 Fax: (208) 334-3804

#### THE FOLLOWING NOTICE PUBLISHED WITH THE PROPOSED RULE

**AUTHORITY**: In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Section 1-2002, Idaho Code.

**PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE**: Public hearing(s) concerning this rulemaking will be scheduled if requested in writing by twenty-five (25) persons, a political subdivision, or an agency, not later than November 15, 2023.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY**: The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

In accordance with the Zero-Based Regulation E. O. 2020-01, the goal of this rulemaking is to make changes and modifications that remove obsolete language, eliminate unnecessary restrictions, and provide overall clarity.

Sections 002, 012, 013, 150, 325, 375, 376, 401, 532, 544, 548, and 600 are deleted as unnecessary; Sections 103, 114, and 503 are amended to be more easily read; Section 200 is amended to change statutory reference; Section 308 is amended to delete subsection 03 as unnecessary; Section 404 is amended to delete the last sentence as unnecessary; Section 526 deletes the phrase "will not be considered in determining benefits" as is unnecessary; Sections 532 and 543 are deleted as duplicative; Section 535 is deleted and replaced by Section 539; Section 549 amended to delete the first two sentences as unnecessary and 549.02 deleted because this is addressed in 508; Section 702 is replaced with the language from Subsection 004.01; and Section 508 is amended to comply with federal law, Secure 2.0 Act of 2022 section 107.

**FEE SUMMARY:** The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased:

There are no fees or charges associated with this rulemaking.

**FISCAL IMPACT**: The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state General Fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year: The change in this rule will not have any fiscal impact on the state General Fund.

**NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING:** Pursuant to Section 67-5220(1), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was conducted. The Notice of Intent to Promulgate Rules – Negotiated Rulemaking was published in the September 6, 2023, Idaho Administrative Bulletin, 23-9 pages 909-910.

**INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE:** Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, the following is a brief synopsis of why the materials cited are being incorporated by reference into this rule:

There are no documents incorporated by reference in this chapter of rules.

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the proposed rule(s), contact Cheryl George, (208) 287-9231.

Anyone may submit written comments regarding this proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before November 22, 2023.

DATED this 6th day of October, 2023.

#### THE FOLLOWING IS THE TEXT OF ZBR DOCKET NO. 59-0101-2301

#### 59.01.01 - RULES FOR THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO (PERSI)

<b>001.</b> Sections		ZAUTHORITY. 7, 50-1508, 50-1524, 59-1301, 59-1314, 59-1372, 59-1383, 59-1392, and 72-1405, Idaho Coc	le.	)
002.	(RESEI	RVED)		
<b>003.</b> Adminis		NISTRATIVE APPEAL. ppeals are conducted pursuant to these rules.	(	)
<b>004.</b> The defi		ITIONS.  n Section 59-1302, Idaho Code, and the following apply to this chapter:	(	)
		<b>Active Member</b> . A member participates in the active member allocation only if they are active (12) months of accrued membership service on the last day of the fiscal year. For purprinary gains, active members also include:		
member	<b>a.</b> ship serv	Seasonal employees who have a pattern of employment that includes at least six (6) movice in each of the preceding three (3) consecutive years; and	onths o	of )
	b.	Employees who are on leave of absence on the last day of the fiscal year and either:	(	)
end of tl	i. he fiscal y	Return to active service for at least thirty (30) days before December 31 immediately follow year; or	ving th	ie )
of 1994	ii. (USERR	Are entitled to benefits under the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment RigA).	ghts A	ct )
	02.	Actuary. This is the actuary retained by the Board.	(	)
	03.	Administrator. The Board.	(	)
Code, o	<b>04.</b> r an indi	<b>Applicant</b> . "Applicant" means an applicant for disability retirement under Section 59-1352 vidual requesting resumption of a disability retirement allowance under Section 59-1354A		
allocatio	05.	<b>Base Plan or Account</b> . This is the PERSI defined benefit plan not including gain erest thereon, or the individual accounts therein.	sharin (	g )
		<b>Board</b> . "Board" means the governing authority of the Public Employee Retirement System of the Section 59-1304, Idaho Code, of the Firefighters' Retirement Fund created by Chapter 1 and the Policeman's Retirement Fund created by Chapter 15, Title 50, Idaho Code.		
	07.	Choice Plan or Account. This includes two (2) elements:	(	)
together	a. with ear	The defined contribution component of the PERSI plan consisting of gain sharing allonings thereon or the individual accounts therein; and	ocation (	ıs )
1308, Id	<b>b.</b> laho Code	The plan designated to receive voluntary and employer contributions as provided in Secte, or the individual accounts therein.	ion 59	<b>)</b> -
to sectio	08.	Code. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or as hereafter amended. All c		ıs )

- **09. Compensation**. "Compensation" as used in Section 59-1342(6), Idaho Code, means "salary" as defined by Section 59-1302(31), Idaho Code.
- 10. Court Security. "Court Security" as used in Section 59-1303(3)(g), Idaho Code, means the employee's primary responsibilities are designated by court order to quell disturbances in the courthouse, to prevent the escape of prisoners, to exclude weapons from the courthouse, and to perform other related courthouse security matters.
- 11. Date of Retirement. "Date of retirement" means the effective date on which a retirement allowance becomes payable.
- 12. **Designated Beneficiary**. The individual who is designated as the beneficiary under the Plan and is the designated beneficiary under section 401(a)(9) of the IRS Code and section 1.40l(a)(9)-4, Q&A-4, of the Treasury regulations.
- 13. Employment. "Employment" as used in Section 59-1302(14)(B)(b), Idaho Code, shall mean the period of time from a member's date of hire to the member's succeeding date of separation from that state agency, political subdivision or government entity. Placing a member on leave of absence with or without pay shall not be considered as a separation from the employer.
- **14. Firefighters' Retirement Fund**. "Firefighters' Retirement Fund" or "FRF" is the retirement fund provided by Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code.
- **15. Gain Sharing.** This refers to the process of allocating extraordinary gains from the base plan into the defined contribution component of the PERSI plan as permitted in Section 414(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and as provided by Section 59-1309, Idaho Code, and these rules.
- **16. General Member**. "General member" is a PERSI member not classified as a police officer, firefighter, paid firefighter, or school employee.
- 17. Likely. For the purpose of Section 59-1302(12)(b), Idaho Code, "likely" means with reasonable medical certainty.
- **18.** Occupational Hazard. "Occupational Hazard" means an injury or ailment solely resulting from the work an applicant does or from the environment in which an applicant works.
- **19. Pension Protection Act Definitions**. Solely for purposes of the implementation by PERSI of section 402(l) of the Internal Revenue Code, the following definitions apply:
- a. Chaplain. Any individual serving as an officially recognized or designated member of a legally organized volunteer fire department or legally organized police department, or an officially recognized or designated public employee of a legally organized fire or police department who was responding to a fire, rescue, or police emergency.
- **b.** Eligible Retired Public Safety Officer. An individual who, by reason of disability or attainment of normal retirement age, is separated from service as a public safety officer with the state agency, political subdivision or government entity who maintains the eligible retirement plan from which distributions are made. ( )
- **c.** Normal Retirement Age. The member's age at the time that the member is eligible to retire with an unreduced benefit.
- **d.** Public Safety Officer. An individual serving a public agency in an official capacity, with or without compensation, as a law enforcement officer, as a firefighter, as a chaplain, or as a member of a rescue squad or ambulance crew.
  - **20. Primary Employer.** The primary employer is the state agency, political subdivision or government

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

	entity from whom the empl	loyee receives the hi	ghest aggregate salar	ry per month. (	
--	---------------------------	-----------------------	-----------------------	-----------------	--

- **21. Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho**. "Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho" or "PERSI" is the retirement system created by Chapter 13, Title 59, Idaho Code.
  - **22.** Required Beginning Date. The date specified in Section 508.02 of these rules.
- **23. Retiree**. Retiree includes any member, contingent annuitant, or surviving spouse, receiving regular monthly allowances at the close of the fiscal year. It also includes members receiving a monthly disability retirement allowance, surviving spouses who elected an annuity option under Section 59-1361(5), Idaho Code, and members who were inactive at the close of the fiscal year but retire on or before the first day of January following the end of the fiscal year, retroactive to the first day of June of the fiscal year or earlier.
- **24. Service**. For the purposes of Sections 536 and 539, "service" includes only service for which the member is normally in the administrative offices of the state agency, political subdivision or government entity or normally required to be present at any particular work station for the state agency, political subdivision or government entity.
  - **25. Surviving Spouse**. "Surviving spouse" is a person as defined in Section 15-2-802, Idaho Code.
- **26. Transportation Of Prisoners.** "Transportation of prisoners" as used in Section 59-1303(3)(g), Idaho Code, means the employee's primary responsibility is designated by court order to move prisoners from one (1) place to another.

#### 005. -- 010. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER A – PERSI RULES OF ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE Rules 011 through 099

#### 011. OPT OUT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL'S RULES - TABLE.

PERSI declines to adopt the following Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General, IDAPA 04.11.01 as follows for the reasons listed:

Rules Promulgated by the Office of the Attorney General will be followed except the following sections of IDAPA 04.11.01 will be excluded				
151	PERSI procedure uses "petitioners" or "appellants" rather than "applicants" or "claimants."			
155	PERSI procedure uses "petitioners" rather than "protestants."			
156	PERSI procedure does not separately use intervention.			
220	PERSI procedure uses "petitions" rather than "applications," "claims" or "appeals."			
250	PERSI procedure uses "petitions" rather than "protests."			
350 - 399	PERSI procedure does not separately use intervention.			
420 - 425	PERSI does not have a prosecutorial investigative function.			
566	PERSI does not hold joint hearings.			
730	PERSI statutes do not provide for preliminary orders.			
741	PERSI has no authority to award costs or fees.			

Rules Promulgated by the Office of the Attorney General will be followe except the following sections of IDAPA 04.11.01 will be excluded				
791.01.c.	The venue of all actions in which the Board is a party shall be Ada County, Idaho." Idaho Code § 59-1305(1)			
791.01.d.	The venue of all actions in which the Board is a party shall be Ada County, Idaho. Idaho Code § 59-1305(1)			

#### 012. - 099.(RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER B - PERSI RULES FOR ELIGIBILITY Rules 100 through 249

#### 100. MANDATORY MEMBERSHIP.

Membership in PERSI is mandatory for all persons who meet the statutory definition of an "employee" in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.

#### MULTIPLE EMPLOYERS -- MEMBERSHIP ELIGIBILITY.

An employee establishes separate PERSI membership eligibility with each state agency, political subdivision or government entity with which the employee meets the statutory definition of an "employee" as found in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.

- Does Not Meet the Statutory Definition. Because membership eligibility is established independently with each state agency, political subdivision or government entity, neither employer nor employee contributions are required on salary paid by employers to employees who do not meet the statutory definition of an "employee" as found in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.
- State Agencies. An employee working for more than one (1) state agency establishes eligibility based on the total hours of employment worked with all state agencies.

#### ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS NOT SUBJECT TO **TWENTY HOUR** REQUIREMENT.

Elected and appointed officials are not subject to the hourly requirement of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code.

#### ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS. 103.

- Hourly Requirement. Elected and appointed officials are not subject to the hourly requirement of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code.
- 02. Salary and Honorarium. Elected and appointed officials serving on boards, councils, or commissions who receive salary or honorarium for services performed are members of PERSI even though they receive nominal salary and do not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week.

#### 104. -- 110. (RESERVED)

#### TEACHER WORKING HALF-TIME OR MORE.

For the purposes of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code, a teacher is considered to be working half-time or more if the teacher's contract specifies that the engagement is half or more of a full contract. Teachers and all other school employees not employed under such a contractual arrangement shall be required to meet the requirement of normally working twenty (20) hours or more per week.

#### RESPONSIBILITY OF EMPLOYER TO DETERMINE EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY.

It is the responsibility of each state agency, political subdivision or government entity to make the initial

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

determination of which employees within its jurisdiction meet the requirements of eligibility for membership and to withhold the required member contributions from salary paid.

#### 113. NORMALLY WORKS TWENTY HOURS.

If a person works twenty (20) hours or more per week for more than one-half (1/2) of the weeks during the period of employment being considered, then the person meets the requirements of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code ("normally works twenty (20) hours or more per week"), and shall be considered an employee if the person meets the other requirements of Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.

#### 114. APPLICATION OF THE FIVE MONTH REQUIREMENT.

An employee working twenty (20) hours or more per week who is hired with the expectation of working less than five (5) consecutive months, becomes retroactively eligible for membership and employee and employer contributions must be immediately withheld whenever it becomes evident the period of employment will be five (5) consecutive months or longer and the employee meets the other requirements of Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code. Delinquent payments will be paid by the employer within three (3) months. Regular interest will be assessed against the outstanding balance at the rate provided in Section 59-1325, Idaho Code.

#### 115. -- 120. (RESERVED)

#### 121. CEASING TO BE AN EMPLOYEE.

A member ceases to be an employee on the day following the effective date that the member is separated from their employer. Membership service credits stop on the day the member ceases to be an employee. ( )

#### 122. LEAVE OF ABSENCE.

A member is ineligible to contribute and receive membership service credit while on leave of absence without pay or while on leave of absence with less than one-half (1/2) pay, unless the absence is occasioned by a worker's compensation claim approved by a surety. An active member separated from employment under conditions where both the member and the employer plan a later return to employment should be placed on leave of absence without pay during the planned period of absence.

- **O1.** Employer and Employee Contributions -- Leave of Absence. During the leave of absence without pay, employer and employee contributions cease. If the member is on a leave of absence as a result of an approved worker's compensation claim, employer and employee contributions are due and payable on any salary paid to the member. The member is entitled to a month of membership service credit for each month the member remains on leave of absence as a result of an approved worker's compensation claim and receives salary in addition to income benefits.
- **O2. Documentation of Leave of Absence**. The employer shall provide PERSI with documentation, on a form provided by PERSI, of a leave of absence to clarify the member's status and retirement benefit entitlement.
- **03. Status of Employee on Leave of Absence**. An employee placed on a leave of absence by an employer remains in an employee status and is ineligible for payment of any separation benefits or for payment of a service, early, disability, or vested retirement allowance. If a member on leave of absence without pay terminates employment without returning to work, the leave without pay status is negated.
- **04. Leave of Absence -- Effect on Benefit Enhancement.** An employee shall not be placed on a leave of absence without pay prior to the effective date of a benefit enhancement and then return to work after the effective date of the benefit enhancement for the purpose of qualifying for the benefit enhancement. An employee placed on unpaid leave of absence prior to the date of the benefit enhancement who returns to work after the effective date of the benefit enhancement and subsequently applies for retirement shall include with the application for retirement, certification from the state agency, political subdivision or government entity that the leave of absence was not granted for the purpose of allowing the person to qualify for the benefit enhancement.

#### 123. -- 199. (RESERVED)

#### 200. DETERMINATION OF FIREFIGHTER.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

In addition to Section 59-1302(16), Idaho Code, the definition of a firefighter member for retirement purposes is an employee appointed to the position of fire chief by a city council but not eligible to be a "paid firefighter," or the chief fire warden of a timber protective association, or is an employee of either the department of lands or of a timber protective association whose primary position and principal accountability in that position either requires direct supervision of employees engaged in the prevention, presuppression and suppression of wild land fires or requires the performance of those duties as the principal function of the position. A firefighter member for retirement purposes does not include an employee who may be required on occasion to engage in those functions as a secondary requirement of the position.

#### 201. INCORRECT CLASSIFICATION OF FIREFIGHTER.

An employer or agency which believes that any position is incorrectly classified as a firefighter position or a non-firefighter position may petition the Board for inclusion or exclusion of such position as a firefighter position. Such petition shall be in writing and explain in detail the principal duties of the position. The Board will review the petition and evidence, together with such information and evidence as may be presented by the staff of PERSI. The Board may decide the matter based upon the information supplied, may request additional information, or may request an oral presentation before the Board.

#### 202. PAID FIREFIGHTER EXCLUSION FROM RULES 200 AND 201.

The provisions of Sections 200 and 201 of this subchapter do not apply to a "paid firefighter" as defined by Sections 59-1391(f) or 72-1403(A), Idaho Code, or to any references to "firefighter" found in Title 72, Chapter 14, Idaho Code.

Statutory References: Sections 59-1302(16), 59-1391(f) and 72-1403, Idaho Code. (

203. -- 249. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER C – PERSI GENERAL PROVISIONS, CONTRIBUTION RATE, MISCELLANEOUS, AND INTEREST RATE RULES Rules 250 through 374

250. -- 302. (RESERVED)

#### 303. EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS BASED ON GROSS SALARY.

Employee contributions shall be based on the employee's total gross salary regardless of source or employer funds from which the employee is paid.

304. (RESERVED)

#### 305. MULTIPLE EMPLOYERS -- CONTRIBUTION RATE.

If the employee has met eligibility requirements with more than one (1) employer that would result in different contribution rates, contributions shall be made at the rate for the member's classification with the primary employer.

#### 306. STATE EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS.

If an employee establishes membership with the state, the employee and each agency must make contributions on the employee's salary regardless of the number of hours worked at each state agency.

#### 307. POLICE OFFICER CONTRIBUTIONS WITHHELD INCORRECTLY.

If an employee's contributions are withheld by an employer and received by PERSI at the rate established for police members on the presumption the certification required by Section 59-1303, Idaho Code, will be accepted, but if it is rejected, the employer shall adjust the employee's contribution rate to a general member rate and PERSI shall return to the employer any excess employee contributions that have occurred.

#### 308. CONTRIBUTIONS DUE WHILE MEMBER IS RECEIVING WORKER'S COMPENSATION.

**01.** Contributions Due and Payable. Contributions are due and payable on whatever percentage of salary is paid while the member is on a leave of absence occasioned by an approved worker's compensation claim and the member will be entitled to a month of membership service credit for each month the member remains

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

eligible. ( )

- **02.** Accruing Service. This means for an employee to continue accruing service the employer must continue to pay salary equal to the lesser of:
- a. The amount necessary to meet the statutory definition of employee (half-time at the pre-injury rate or more), or
  - **b.** The employee's full-time salary less the employee's worker's compensation income benefit.

#### 309. VACATION AND CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS SUBJECT TO CONTRIBUTIONS.

Compensation paid for vacation or remaining contractual payments is salary subject to employee and employer contributions and earns membership credit through the effective date of separation from employment at the usual rate of compensation.

#### 310. -- 349. (RESERVED)

#### 350. REGULAR INTEREST.

Regular interest for each calendar year shall be the greater of ninety percent (90%) of the rate of return on the PERSI fund net of all expenses for the fiscal year ending immediately prior to the calendar year as reported in the actuary's annual valuation report or one percent (1%).

#### 351. INTEREST – MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS.

Regular interest as defined in Section 59-1302(26), Idaho Code, shall accrue to and be credited monthly to a member's accumulated contributions.

#### 352. REINSTATEMENT INTEREST.

Reinstatement interest for each calendar year shall equal the average of the prime rate on June 30 of the latest three (3) years, plus one percent (1%). For purposes of this rule, the prime rate is the "prime rate" listed in the "Money Rates" section of the Wall Street Journal on June 30, or in the event no rate is listed on June 30, on the latest date preceding June 30 for which a prime rate is listed. Unless otherwise provided by statute or rule, reinstatement interest shall apply to all amounts owed to the fund.

#### 353. -- 374. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER D – PERSI DISABILITY RULES Rules 375 through 499

#### 375. -- 399. (RESERVED)

#### 400. APPLYING FOR DISABILITY RETIREMENT.

Eligible members may apply for disability retirement by completing a required form available from any PERSI office. The application process may include an interview by a PERSI representative. Applicants must release all medical records and information to PERSI. The hours worked to qualify as an employee as defined in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code, is inapplicable for purposes of determining disability.

#### **401.** (RESERVED)

#### 402. DISABILITY ASSESSMENT REVIEW.

Applicants will be assessed to determine whether they qualify for disability retirement under the applicable standard. The assessment may include without limitation, records review, medical and psychological examinations, vocational assessments, or any combination thereof as determined by PERSI. Failure to timely comply with any request made by PERSI during the assessment process shall result in automatic denial of disability retirement. At the conclusion of the assessment process, PERSI will notify applicants in writing whether or not they qualify for disability retirement.

( )

#### 403. RECONSIDERATION OF DISABILITY ASSESSMENT DECISION.

Applicants who are denied disability retirement as a result of an adverse disability assessment decision, and wish to contest that decision, are required to participate in a reconsideration process. A request for reconsideration must be made within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the disability assessment decision. Any additional information the applicant wishes to be considered must be submitted to PERSI within thirty (30) days of the request for reconsideration. The additional information will be reviewed and a reconsideration decision will be issued in writing to the applicant.

#### 404. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW OF THE RECONSIDERATION DECISION.

A reconsideration decision shall be considered a final decision under Section 59-1314(2), Idaho Code, and may be appealed to the Board for review. In any related administrative hearing, the applicant shall be limited to presenting facts and evidence made available to PERSI in the reconsideration process. No new or additional evidence may be presented at the hearing. If the applicant has additional facts or evidence that were not made available to PERSI during the assessment or reconsideration process, the applicant must submit a new application for disability retirement, proceed again through the assessment process, and pay the costs associated with the second or subsequent assessment process.

#### 405. DELEGATION.

PERSI may, by contract or otherwise, delegate all or part of these processes to third parties. Where such delegation has been made, the term "PERSI" includes those third parties. When a member requests the resumption of a disability retirement allowance pursuant to Section 59-1354A, Idaho Code, the board may delegate its authority under Section 59-1354A, Idaho Code, to a third party. Where such delegation has been made, the term "Board" includes those third parties.

#### 406. REASSESSMENT OF DISABILITY RETIREES.

Disability retirees are subject to reassessment of their disability at any time to determine whether they continue to be disabled under the standard in Section 59-1302(12), Idaho Code. However, pursuant to Section 59-1302(12)(b), Idaho Code, after two (2) years of continuous disability retirement, a disability retiree is not required to undergo medical examinations more often than every twelve (12) months. Disability retirees who are notified that they have been selected for reassessment are under the same obligation as applicants to supply information.

#### 407. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS.

Attorney's fees and costs incurred by an applicant in his efforts to obtain disability retirement are the sole responsibility of the applicant and shall not be paid by PERSI except for fees related to judicial review for which applicant is found to be entitled under applicable law.

#### 408. -- 424. (RESERVED)

#### 425. BURDEN ON APPLICANT.

Applicant must demonstrate that, on or before applicant's last day of employment, he was disabled under the disability standard. The last day of employment is the last day applicant earned compensation, including annual leave and sick leave. When a member requests the resumption of a disability retirement allowance pursuant to Section 59-1354A, Idaho Code, the member must demonstrate that he could not successfully return to work because of the same disability on which his disability retirement was based.

#### 426. STATUTORY STANDARD.

In applying the disability standard in Section 59-1302(12), Idaho Code, substantially all avenues of employment are reasonably closed if the applicant is permanently prevented, due to bodily injury or disease, from performing every substantial and material duty of any occupation for which the applicant is reasonably qualified by education, training or experience.

#### 427. (RESERVED)

#### 428. HIRE-ABILITY OF APPLICANT.

The inability of the applicant to secure employment in and around the area where the applicant resides is not considered in determining whether or not the applicant is disabled. If the applicant is able to perform every substantial and material duty of any jobs existing in the economy for which the applicant is reasonably qualified by

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

education, training or experience, the applicant will not be considered disabled regardless of other factors that might affect the applicant's ability to actually secure employment, such as employer decisions and practices or the fact that there are no open positions or that the applicant is not selected for those positions.

**429.** -- **449.** (RESERVED)

#### 450. COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION OF DISABILITY ALLOWANCE.

The commencement and duration of payment of disability benefits is governed by Section 59-1354, Idaho Code. For purposes of Section 59-1354(1)(b), Idaho Code, a member "becomes eligible" on the first of the month following the date selected by the member which follows the date on which the member is unable to and thereafter does not return to work on a regular basis for two (2) consecutive weeks but not later than the date on which the member ceases to make contributions.

#### 451. DETERMINING WORKER'S COMPENSATION OFFSET.

To determine the offset required by Section 59-1353, Idaho Code, the amount payable under the provisions of any worker's compensation law which represents income benefits as defined in Section 72-102, Idaho Code, shall be converted to a monthly equivalent and deducted from the monthly retirement allowance.

#### 452. EFFECT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE ON DISABILITY ALLOWANCE.

Unused sick leave entitlement provided for by either Section 33-1228, 33-2109A, or 67-5339, Idaho Code, shall not be considered salary or compensation in the application of Section 59-1354(1), Idaho Code.

453. -- 474. (RESERVED)

#### 475. APPLICATION OF THIS SUBCHAPTER TO FRF DISABILITY RETIREMENT.

All the provisions of this subchapter, except Sections 375, 376, 406, 426, 427, 451 and 452, apply also to applications for disability retirement under the FRF plan to the extent they do not conflict with the provisions of Title 72, Chapter 14, Idaho Code.

476. -- 499. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER E – PERSI SEPARATION FROM SERVICE RULES Rules 500 through 524

#### 500. REPAYMENT OF SEPARATION BENEFITS -- EMPLOYEE STATUS.

Repayment of a separation benefit must commence while the member is an employee, as defined in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code. For purposes of this rule the term employee includes employees accruing benefits under the Department of Employment Retirement Plan, the Firefighters' Retirement Fund, and the Policeman's Retirement Fund.

#### 501. INTEREST ACCRUAL AND CALCULATION ON SEPARATION BENEFITS.

Repayment of separation benefits as provided in Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, for employees whose most recent date of reemployment is after January 23, 1990, shall include payment of interest that shall accrue from the date each separation benefit was issued. Repayment of separation benefits as provided in Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, for employees whose most recent date of reemployment is before January 23, 1990, shall include payment of interest as determined by the law, statutes and rules in effect on the date of last reinstatement to employee status, except as provided in Section 502 of this subchapter.

### **502.** REPAYMENT OF SEPARATION BENEFITS BY EMPLOYEES PREVIOUSLY PRECLUDED FROM REPAYMENT.

Any employee who was precluded from repaying a separation benefit due to the fact they failed to meet the requirements of Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, may reinstate their previous credited service by repaying the full amount of their accumulated contributions provided such repayment includes payment of regular interest accruing from the date of each such separation benefit payment.

#### 503. METHODS OF REPAYMENT OF SEPARATION BENEFITS.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

01.	<b>Periodic and Lump-Sum Payments.</b> Where an active member elects to repay a separation be	oenefit
	revious service as provided in Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, the member may request that repaym	
made in perio	odic payments or in a lump-sum payment. No service will be reinstated until the full repayment ha	ıs been
made.		( )

- **Repayments Initiated on or After March 1, 2000**. For all repayments initiated on or after March 1, 2000, except as provided in Section 501 of this subchapter, a repayment amount will be determined which shall be the sum of the separation benefit(s) plus regular interest from the date of the benefit payment(s) until the date of the first payment. The repayment amount will be amortized over the repayment period at the reinstatement rate in effect on the date of the first periodic payment.
- **03. Repayments Initiated Before March 1, 2000.** For all periodic repayments initiated before March 1, 2000, a repayment amount will be determined which shall be the sum of the separation benefit(s) plus regular interest from the date of the benefit payment(s) until the date of the first payment. The repayment amount will be amortized over the repayment period at four point seventy-five percent (4.75%) interest. This is a grandfathered rate based on the rate in effect December 31, 1999, and will apply so long as payments exceed interest charges on a calendar year basis. If payments fail to exceed interest charges in any calendar year, the grandfathered rate will be forfeited and replaced by the reinstatement rate beginning in January immediately after the year in which the failure occurs. For purposes of these rules, a repayment is initiated by signing an agreement and making a payment. ( )
- **04.** Repayments Under Section 59-1331(2), Idaho Code. For (waiting period) payments made pursuant to Section 59-1331(2), Idaho Code, the repayment amount is the sum of contributions that would have been made plus regular interest from December 31, 1975 until the date of the first payment. The repayment amount will be amortized over the payment period at the reinstatement rate in effect on the date of the first periodic payment.

#### 504. IN-SERVICE TRANSFERS TO REINSTATE SERVICE.

To the extent permitted by federal law, and in accordance with any regulation or other guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service, an active member may transfer funds from a 401(k), a 403(b), or an eligible 457(b) plan, in which they are currently eligible to participate, to the Base Plan for purposes of buying back service previously forfeited due to receiving a separation benefit, purchasing service related to eligible waiting periods, or purchasing service for periods of delinquent contributions.

#### 505. (RESERVED)

#### 506. ROLLOVERS ACCEPTED INTO THE BASE PLAN.

The PERSI Base Plan will accept participant rollover contributions and direct rollovers of distributions made after December 31, 2001, for purposes of reinstating or purchasing service as permitted under the plan, from the following plans. No after-tax contributions may be rolled over into the Base Plan.

- O1. Qualified Plans. A qualified plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code).
  - **O2.** Annuity Contracts. An annuity contract described in section 403(b) of the IRS Code.
- **03. 457 Plans.** An eligible plan under section 457(b) of the IRS Code which is maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state.
- **04. IRAs.** Any portion of a distribution from an individual retirement account or annuity described in section 408(a) or 408(b) of the IRS Code that is eligible to be rolled over and would otherwise be includable in gross income.

#### 507. DIRECT ROLLOVERS OUT OF THE BASE PLAN.

A direct rollover is a payment by the plan to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee. (

**01. Rollover Election.** Notwithstanding any provision of the plan to the contrary that would otherwise limit a distributee's election under this part, a distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

plan administrator, to have any portion of an eligible rollover distribution that is equal to at least five hundred dollars (\$500) paid directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee in a direct rollover.

(44.44)			,
portion	<b>02.</b> of the bal	Eligible Rollover Distribution. An eligible rollover distribution is any distribution of all or lance to the credit of the distributee, except that an eligible rollover distribution does not include (	
	ncies) of	Any distribution that is one (1) of a series of substantially equal periodic payments (not annually) made for the life (or life expectancy) of the distributee or the joint lives (or join the distributee and the distributee's designated beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten (10)	t life
Code);	b.	Any distribution to the extent such distribution is required under section 401(a)(9) of the	IRS
	c.	Any amount that is distributed on account of hardship; (	)
the excl	<b>d.</b> lusion for	The portion of any distribution that is not includable in gross income (determined without regaret unrealized appreciation with respect to employer securities); and	ard to
during a	<b>e.</b> a year.	Any other distribution(s) that is reasonably expected to total less than two hundred dollars (\$	(S200)
portion	03.	After-Tax Contributions. For purposes of the direct rollover provisions in Subsection 507.	

- **03. After-Tax Contributions.** For purposes of the direct rollover provisions in Subsection 507.02, a portion of a distribution shall not fail to be an eligible rollover distribution merely because the portion consists of after-tax employee contributions that are not includable in gross income. However, such portion may be transferred only to an individual retirement account or annuity described in section 408(a) or (b) of the IRS Code, or to a qualified defined contribution plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of the IRS Code that agrees to separately account for the amounts so transferred, including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which is includable in gross income and the portion of such distribution which is not so includable.
- **04.** Eligible Retirement Plan. An eligible retirement plan is an individual retirement account described in section 408(a) of the IRS Code, an individual retirement annuity described in section 408(b) of the IRS Code, a Roth IRA described in Section 408A of the IRS Code, an annuity plan described in section 403(a) of the IRS Code, an annuity contract described in section 403(b) of the IRS Code, an eligible plan under section 457(b) of the IRS Code which is maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state and which agrees to separately account for amounts transferred into such plan from this plan, or a qualified plan described in section 401(a) of the IRS Code, that accepts the distributee's eligible rollover distribution.
- **05. Alternate Payees.** A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's or former employee's spouse or former spouse, who is the alternate payee under a domestic retirement order, approved as provided in Sections 59-1319 and 1320, Idaho Code, are distributees with regard to the interest of the spouse or former spouse.

#### 508. REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS.

- **01. Default Application of Federal Requirements.** With respect to distributions under the Base Plan, and except as provided in Subsection 508.06, the Plan will apply the minimum distribution requirements of section 401(a)(9) of the IRS Code in accordance with a good faith interpretation of section 401(a)(9), notwithstanding any provision of the Base Plan to the contrary.
- **02.** Required Beginning Date. Except as otherwise provided in Subsections 508.04 through 508.08, distributions under the Base Plan shall begin not later than April 1 following the later of (a) the commencement year or (b) the year in which the member retires. For purposes of Section 508, the "commencement year" is the calendar year in which the member reaches the applicable age, as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) as now in effect and thereafter amended.

03.	PERSI Selects	Retirement Op	tion. Any	member	required to	take mi	nimum	distributio	ns, as
provided in this	Section 508, and	fails to complete	and subm	it an appro	oved retirem	ent applic	ation ar	nd select e	ither a
regular or option	al retirement allo	wance by April 1	following	g the later	of (a) the co	mmencer	nent yea	ar or (b) th	e year
in which the mer	mber retires shall	be deemed to hav	e made th	e followir	ng selection:		•	(	( )

- **a.** If single, a regular retirement allowance and no other selection shall be required or permitted.
- **b.** If married, Option 1 and no other selection shall be required or permitted, unless proof is provided that spouse has no community property interest in the benefit.
- **04. Lifetime Distributions.** Distribution shall be made over the life of the participant or the lives of the participant and his beneficiary; or over a period certain not extending beyond the life expectancy of the member or the joint life and last survivor expectancy of the member and his beneficiary. ( )
- **05. Timing of Required Distributions.** A required distribution shall be deemed to have been made during the commencement year if actually made by the following April 1, but such delayed distribution shall not change the amount of such distribution, and the distribution otherwise required during the subsequent calendar year shall be calculated as if the first distribution had been made on the last day of the commencement year. ( )
- **06.** Adjustment of Required Distributions. Benefits paid prior to the commencement year shall reduce the aggregate amount subject to (but shall not otherwise negate) the minimum distribution requirements described herein.
- **07. Benefits Deferred Beyond Service Retirement.** The first payment of benefits of an inactive member following deferment beyond service retirement will be in a lump sum that includes payment for those months of service dating from the date of service retirement when a monthly retirement payment would have started through the current monthly payment. Subsequent payments will be for the monthly retirement allowance only.
- **08. Death Benefits.** All death benefits payable under the Base Plan will be distributed as soon as administratively practicable after request, but must in any event be distributed within fifteen (15) months of the member's death, unless the identity of the beneficiary is not ascertainable.

#### 509. TRANSFERS TO NON-SPOUSE BENEFICIARIES.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Base Plan to the contrary that would otherwise limit the options of the beneficiary of a deceased member who is not the member's spouse, the administrator shall, upon the request of such a beneficiary, transfer a lump sum distribution to the trustee of an individual account established under Section 408 of the IRS Code in accordance with the provisions of Section 402(e)(11) of the IRS Code.

#### 510. -- 524. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER F – PERSI RETIREMENT RULES Rules 525 through 649

## 525. AVERAGE MONTHLY SALARY COMPUTATION -- EQUITABLE TREATMENT -- DIFFERENT WORK PERIODS.

Equitable treatment for all members can be achieved only if members whose career patterns covering the same time frame and who received identical annual salaries during each of the twelve-month periods of that time frame accrue the same monthly service retirement allowance. To achieve this equity for the member whose annual salary has been paid on other than a twelve-month salary schedule during any contractual or like twelve-month period, the average monthly salary used for each one of those twelve-month periods will be determined from the total base period salary by using a divisor representing the months of membership service which would have been accumulated at that rate over a full base period.

#### 526. UNUSUAL COMPENSATION PATTERN EFFECT ON RETIREMENT CALCULATION.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

Upon application for a retirement benefit, any portion of compensation which represents payments in excess of and inconsistent with the usual compensation pattern, for example, but not limited to lump sum contract payouts, excess vacation paid but not taken, paid sick leave, or a clothing allowance.

#### 527. MAXIMUM RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE (RULE 111).

If the amount of a member's initial retirement allowance on the date of retirement would exceed the average salary during the member's highest thirty-six (36) consecutive calendar months of salary, then the member's initial retirement allowance will be limited to the greater of: the average salary during the highest thirty-six (36) consecutive calendar months of salary; or the initial retirement allowance based on credited service through April 1990. Optional retirement allowances will be computed after any limitation above has been applied.

## 528. MEMBER NOTIFIED OF AVAILABLE RETIREMENT OPTIONS PRIOR TO BOARD APPROVAL.

The Retirement Board shall not act on any application for retirement unless the member has previously been provided with notification of the regular retirement option and options one (1) and two (2) election available to the member including the value of the monthly allowance of each. The value of options three (3) and four (4) will be provided if the member so requests the value of the option and provides information required to calculate that option (such as but not limited to social security benefit estimates) which is not available to PERSI but that can be provided by the member.

#### **529.** -- **530.** (RESERVED)

#### 531. RETIREMENT APPLICATIONS.

Except as provided in this rule, a member is required to complete and submit an approved retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance. The member's signature must be notarized. The application for retirement indicating the election made by the retiring member shall also be signed by the spouse certifying the spouse understands and consents to the election made by the member. The spouse's signature must be notarized. Until an application for retirement is filed, no benefit payment is required. Applications with retroactive retirement dates are entitled to lump sum payments and do not include interest.

#### 532. (RESERVED)

## 533. ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIAL WORKING FOR MULTIPLE STATE AGENCIES, POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS OR GOVERNMENT ENTITIES.

An active member separated from employment by one (1) state agency, political subdivision or government entity for whom he or she did normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week and who is age sixty-two (62) or older and eligible to retire but remains an elected or appointed official with a different state agency, political subdivision or government entity, may retire and continue in that elected or appointed position provided that position is one in which he or she does not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week. The member shall receive retirement allowances under the conditions provided by Section 538.

#### 534. ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIAL RETIRING IN PLACE.

An active member serving as an elected or appointed official who does not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week who is age sixty-two (62) or older and eligible to retire and who is not an eligible employee with another state agency, political subdivision or government entity pursuant to Section 101 may then retire and continue in that position. The member shall receive retirement allowances under the conditions provided by Section 538.

#### 535. (RESERVED)

#### 536. RETIRED MEMBER BECOMING AN ACTIVE MEMBER.

**Return to Service**. A PERSI retired member employed in a position which involves service of normally twenty (20) hours or more per week for a period of five (5) or more consecutive months or longer will return to the status of an active member. Retirement benefits will suspend on reemployment and employee and employer contributions will resume to provide additional retirement credits. If a retired member is reemployed in a position which involves service of twenty (20) hours or more per week for a period of less than five (5) consecutive months, their monthly retirement benefits will continue to be paid. If the member's reemployment should equal or

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

exceed the five (5) month period for any reason, the member will be required to repay the retirement benefits paid during the five (5) month period which they were reemployed and they will return to the status of an active member. Employee and employer contributions will be due for the five (5) consecutive month period.

#### 537. REEMPLOYMENT LESS THAN FIVE CONSECUTIVE MONTHS.

If the period of reemployment develops to be less than five (5) consecutive months, contributions will be refunded and retirement allowances will resume as of the date they were discontinued.

## 538. REEMPLOYMENT -- WORKING LESS THAN TWENTY HOURS OR LESS THAN FIVE CONSECUTIVE MONTHS.

Monthly retirement allowances will continue to be paid to the PERSI retired member who returns to employment in a position where the member does not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week or the reemployment is for a period which does not total five (5) consecutive months and the state agency, political subdivision or government entity so certifies. In such cases, employee and employer contributions are neither required nor acceptable and no new retirement credits can be earned.

#### 539. RETIRED MEMBER BECOMING AN ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIAL.

A PERSI retired member who is subsequently elected or appointed by an employer to public office and who is not normally required to perform services of twenty (20) hours or more per week in that position may continue to receive retirement allowances in the status of a reemployed retired member under conditions outlined by Section 537.

#### 540. SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT AFTER REEMPLOYMENT.

Upon subsequent separation from employment after reemployment, the member's original monthly retirement allowance will resume with appropriate cost-of-living adjustments plus the addition of a separate allowance computed with respect to salary and service credited during the reemployment period. ( )

#### 541. EARLY RETIREMENT MEMBER -- REEMPLOYMENT.

A PERSI member who had been receiving an early retirement allowance and who returns to employment as an active member may refund all retirement benefits previously paid plus regular interest accrued from the date each monthly allowance had been paid, thereby negating the previous retirement status. The month of last contribution prior to the negated retirement and the month of initial contribution upon return to active membership shall be considered consecutive months of contributions in the determination of an appropriate salary base period upon subsequent retirement.

#### 542. BENEFIT ENHANCEMENT -- QUALIFICATION.

To qualify for a benefit enhancement, a person must remain an active member through the day following the effective date of the enhancement.

#### 543. – 544. (RESERVED)

#### 545. PRE-ERISA VESTING RULES.

- **01. Termination or Partial Termination**. Upon the effective date of any termination or partial termination or upon a complete discontinuation of contributions:
  - a. No persons who were not theretofore members shall be eligible to become members; (
  - **b.** No further benefits shall accrue; and ( )
- **c.** The accrued benefits of all members not theretofore vested and not theretofore forfeited shall immediately become fully vested.

#### 546. FORFEITURES.

Forfeitures will not be applied to increase the benefits any employee would otherwise receive under the Base Plan.

( )

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

547.	ACTUARIAL	ASSUMPTIONS	TO	BE SPI	ECIFIED.

Whenever the amount of any Base Plan benefit is to be determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions, such assumptions will be specified in rule in a manner that precludes employer discretion.

#### 548. (RESERVED)

549.	DEFINED	RENEFIT DOLL	AR LIMITATION.

The "maximum permissible benefit" is the defined benefit dollar limitation (adjusted where required, as provided in Subsection 549.01 and, if applicable, in Subsections 549.02 through 549.04 of these rules).

- **01.** Less Than Ten Years of Service. If the participant has fewer than ten (10) years of participation in the plan, the defined benefit dollar limitation shall be multiplied by a fraction:
  - a. The numerator of which is the number of years (or part thereof) of participation in the plan; and
  - **b.** The denominator of which is ten (10).
- **O2.** Benefit Begins at Age Sixty-Five. If the benefit of a participant begins after the participant attains age sixty-five (65), the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the participant at the later age is the annual benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity beginning at the later age that is actuarially equivalent to the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the participant at age sixty-five (65) (adjusted under Subsection 549.01, if required). The actuarial equivalent of the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable at an age after age sixty-five (65) is determined as set forth in IRS regulation under section 415(b)(2) of the IRS Code.
- **03. Transition**. Benefit increases resulting from the increase in the limitations of section 415(b) of the IRS Code shall be provided to all current and former participants (with benefits limited by section 415(b)) who have an accrued benefit under the plan immediately prior to the effective date of this Section (other than an accrued benefit resulting from a benefit increase solely as a result of the increases in limitations under section 415(b)).

#### 550. COMPUTATION OF BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES OF WITHDRAWN EMPLOYER.

- **01. PERSI's Responsibility**. PERSI's responsibility to a withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity or its employees is limited to the vested accrued actuarial benefits of the system's members upon the date of complete withdrawal.
- **02. Withdrawal Liability Calculations**. On the occasion that a withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity fails to pay, in full with accrued interest from date of withdrawal, the withdrawal liability calculated in accordance with Section 59-1326(7), Idaho Code, PERSI shall exhaust all efforts to collect the outstanding withdrawal liability as follows:
- **a.** Collect the full withdrawal liability from withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity at date of withdrawal. If full withdrawal liability is not paid, then;
- **b.** Contract with withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity, in accordance with section 59-1326(9) and file a lien on the assets of the withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity. If scheduled payments are not timely made or assets are insufficient or unavailable, then;
- **c.** PERSI will pursue collection efforts against the authorizing state agency, political subdivision or governmental entity that caused the withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity to be formed. If these collection efforts are ineffective, then;
- **d.** PERSI will cause an actuarial study to be performed for the withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity and its employees to determine the actuarial value of the accrued benefits at time of withdrawal and will reduce an employee's benefit to match funded status.

#### 551. COMPUTING VALUE OF SICK LEAVE.

For those members who accrue sick leave based upon each month of service, the rate of pay for purposes of computing the monetary value of a retired member's unused sick leave as outlined in Sections 59-1365, 67-5333, and 33-2109A, Idaho Code, shall be the base hourly rate of compensation reported by the employer during the month of separation from employment prior to retirement, not including any temporary increases, bonuses, or payoffs. For those members employed on a contract basis under Section 33-1228, Idaho Code, the rate of pay for purposes of computing the monetary value of a retiring member's unused sick leave based upon each month of service shall be determined at a daily rate by dividing the annual contract amount by the required days of work. No temporary increases, bonuses or payoffs shall be included in the contract amount. Where the daily rate is affected by changes in the work week such as adoption of a four (4) day work week or similar events, adjustments shall be made to convert the daily rate to maintain equity within the pool. No other forms of leave may be converted to sick leave or otherwise considered in computing the value of unused sick leave.

#### 552. SICK LEAVE FUNDING RATES.

The sick leave pools shall be funded by employer contributions as follows:

- **01. State Agencies and Junior College Districts.** All employer groups participating in the pools established by Sections 33-2109A and 67-5333, Idaho Code, shall contribute point sixty-five percent (.65%) of employee covered payroll.
- **02. Schools.** All employer groups participating in the pool established by Section 33-1228, Idaho Code, shall contribute the percentage of employee covered payroll based on the number of days of paid sick leave permitted during the contract year for certified teachers as set forth in the following table:

Beginning:	July 1, 2006
9-10 days	1.16%
11-14 days	1.26%
More than 14 days	Individual rate to be set by the Retirement Board based on current cost and actuarial data and reviewed annually

Where a four (4) day work week or similar policies have been adopted, adjustments shall be made to convert the number of days of paid sick leave to the contribution level necessary to maintain equity within the pool.

**03. Subdivisions.** All political subdivision or government entity groups participating in the pool established by Section 59-1365, Idaho Code, shall make contributions as provided in Section 578.

#### 553. LIMITATION ON INSURANCE PROGRAMS.

The health, accident, and life insurance programs maintained by state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities as outlined in Sections 59-1365, 33-1228, and 33-2109A, Idaho Code, are limited to plans where the policy holder is the state agency, political subdivision or government entity or a consortium of state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities. Insurance programs outlined in Section 67-5333, Idaho Code, shall be maintained by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity. The board may require plans to sign an agreement before participating.

#### 554. PAYMENT OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS.

Upon certification by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity and the insurance carrier that a plan qualifies under Section 553 of this subchapter, the board may pay the monthly premiums for a retired member using unused sick leave account funds as prescribed by Idaho Code.

- **01. Adjustments**. Coverage and premium changes or adjustments must be submitted to PERSI no less than thirty (30) days prior to their effective date unless PERSI has previously agreed in writing to a shorter period.
- **02. Duration of Payments.** Premium payments will continue to be made from the unused sick leave account until credits are insufficient to make a premium payment, or until the retiree's death, whichever first occurs.

#### 555. SEPARATION BY REASON OF RETIREMENT.

Unused sick leave benefits are credited only to employees who are eligible to retire at the time they separate from the state agency, political subdivision or government entity. When an employee separates from service and does not immediately retire, unused sick leave benefits are credited to the member but not available for use unless the member actually retires without intervening employment resulting in PERSI participation. The existence of available unused sick leave credits does not necessarily mean they are usable. A member must also be eligible to participate in the retiree plan offered by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity from which the member retired. Except for school district employees transferring from one (1) district to another, unused sick leave credits may not be transferred from one (1) state agency, political subdivision or government entity to another. If a member negates their retirement under Section 541 and returns to work for a new PERSI state agency, political subdivision or government entity, unused sick leave credits are also negated and eligibility for unused sick leave credits must be reestablished with the new state agency, political subdivision or government entity.

#### 556. PROHIBITION AGAINST CASH OPTION.

All state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities participating in any PERSI administered sick leave pool are prohibited from offering or permitting any employee to convert unused sick leave to cash, other forms of leave, or any other benefit, even if the employee is not eligible to receive credits. Failure to comply with this prohibition will result in the state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities inability to participate in PERSI administered unused sick leave pools.

#### 557. -- 575. (RESERVED)

#### 576. PARTICIPATION IN SUBDIVISION UNUSED SICK LEAVE POOL.

Any PERSI state agency, political subdivision or government entity meeting the following requirements may elect to participate in the unused sick leave pool authorized by Section 59-1365, Idaho Code: ( )

- **01. No Current Plan.** The state agency, political subdivision or government entity does not participate in any other statutorily created plan that offers benefits for unused sick leave, including but not limited to, those plans created under Sections 33-1228, 33-2109, and 67-5333, Idaho Code.
- **02.** All Inclusive Participation. All of a participating state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities employees who are PERSI members and who accrue sick leave must be participants in the plan, except that state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities may exclude certain distinctive classes of employees for legitimate business reasons. For example, a city could exclude employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement, or a county may choose to exclude elected officials.
- **03. No Other Options for Unused Sick Leave**. No employee may be given any option to receive benefits from unused sick leave other than through this plan. For example, no employee, other than those properly excluded under Subsection 576.02, may be given the option of exchanging sick leave for cash or other forms of payment or leave.
- **04. Fixed Annual Accrual of Sick Leave.** State agency, political subdivision or government entity must comply with a policy that offers a fixed amount of sick leave annually that is applicable to all employees or employee groups. A "personal leave" option that fails to distinguish between sick, vacation, or other forms of leave is not permitted.

  ( )
- **05. Medicare Eligible Retirees**. State agencies, political subdivisions or government entities plan must provide coverage to all retired employees eligible for unused sick leave credits, including retirees that become Medicare eligible.
- **06. Annual Application**. State agency, political subdivision or government entity must annually update and submit an application for participation in the Subdivision Unused Sick Leave Pool on the form prescribed by PERSI.

#### 577. OPERATION OF SUBDIVISION POOL.

Upon separation from employment by retirement, in accordance with Chapter 13, Title 59, Idaho Code, every

**PAGE 100** 

employee of a participating state agency, political subdivision or government entity shall, upon payment by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity under Section 578, receive a credit for unused sick leave in the same manner and under the same terms as provided in Section 67-5333(1), Idaho Code.

#### 578. FUNDING OF SUBDIVISION POOL.

Participating state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities shall, within ten (10) days of retiree's last day in pay status, pay to PERSI a sum equal to the retiree's unused sick leave credit, together with any administrative fees the board may require. Investment earnings on funds paid into this pool will remain in the pool, together with any reversions due to the death of a retiree, and may be used by the board to pay some or all administrative costs.

#### 579. TERMINATION, WITHDRAWAL, OR REMOVAL FROM SUBDIVISION POOL.

Any state agency, political subdivision or government entity failing to meet the requirements of participation provided by Section 576 shall be terminated from participation in the Subdivision Pool. Any state agency, political subdivision or government entity failing to meet the funding requirements provided by Section 578 shall be terminated from participation in the Subdivision Pool, provided however, a state agency, political subdivision or government entity may submit a detailed explanation for its failure to meet the funding requirements as required in Section 578 and subject to PERSI approval. State agencies, political subdivisions or government entities that have withdrawn or have been terminated shall not be allowed to rejoin.

#### 580. -- 600. (RESERVED)

#### 601. FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE.

Notwithstanding Sections 525 and 526 of this subchapter, the retirement allowances of firefighter members, as defined by Section 59-1391(b), Idaho Code, shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code.

#### 602. REEMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED FRF FIREFIGHTER.

A paid firefighter retired under the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, (FRF), Idaho Code, who returns to employment as a paid firefighter with the same fire department from which retired shall be considered reemployed in the manner provided for PERSI members by Section 59-1356(1), Idaho Code. Retirement benefits shall then terminate and contributions shall again commence under conditions specified prior to retirement. The terminated benefit shall resume upon subsequent retirement with adjustments made in the manner prescribed by Section 59-1356(1), Idaho Code, as they would apply to the member's retirement benefit entitlement computed under the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code.

#### 603. -- 624. (RESERVED)

#### 625. PURCHASE OF SERVICE GENERALLY.

No member may purchase more than forty-eight (48) months of membership service, whether purchased under Section 59-1362, or 59-1363, Idaho Code, or a combination thereof. In all cases, the cost of purchasing service shall be the full actuarial costs, as determined by the board, of providing additional benefits resulting from the purchased service. Service may only be purchased at the time of retirement. In no event can a member revoke a purchase of service after payment has been made.

#### 626. TIME OF RETIREMENT.

Within ninety (90) days before a member's effective date of retirement, the member may request the cost of service to be purchased. Costs provided for purchased service are valid only for the effective date requested. Purchased service will be calculated into the member's benefit only to the extent that it is paid by the effective date. In no event shall service be credited for which payment has not been made. Service may be purchased with after-tax dollars or with eligible rollover distributions. The member's service class at the time of purchase determines the class of service that may be purchased.

#### 627. RETIREMENT DELAYED OR NEGATED AFTER PURCHASE.

If a member purchases service and thereafter revokes their application for retirement or negates their retirement as provided in Rule 541, the contributions made to purchase the service shall remain in the system until a distributable event occurs. If the distributable event results in payment of a monthly retirement benefit or an optional death benefit,

the purchase price of the service previously purchased will be recalculated based on factors existing on the date the new benefit becomes effective. If, based on the new factors, the purchase price is higher than previously determined, the number of months purchased will be reduced to reflect the higher cost unless the member elects to pay the difference. If the purchase price is lower, the difference will be paid to the member as a lump-sum payment within sixty (60) days after the date of retirement unless the member elects to convert the difference into additional months and can do so without exceeding the forty-eight (48) month limit, the IRS limit referenced in Subsection 705.05, or any other statutory limitation, including the limitation in Section 59-1342(6), Idaho Code.

#### 628. TREATMENT OF PURCHASE OF SERVICE CONTRIBUTIONS.

Contributions made for purposes of purchasing service, and interest earnings thereon, are not considered for purposes of determining death benefits under Section 59-1361(3), Idaho Code, and distributions under Section 59-1309(5), Idaho Code. When determining death benefits under Section 59-1361(3), Idaho Code, first calculate two hundred percent (200%) of accumulated contributions, excluding contributions and interest related to purchased service, then add member contributions and interest related to purchased service. Member contributions and interest will also be included in any separation benefit. In no event shall employer contributions for purchased service be included in any separation benefit or lump-sum death benefit.

#### 629. EMPLOYER PARTICIPATION.

State agency, political subdivision or government entity participation must be in the form of lump-sum payments at the time of retirement. In the event a state agency, political subdivision or government entity makes a contribution on behalf of a member and a distribution other than periodic payments occurs prior to the actual retirement effective date, the state agency, political subdivision or government entity may claim a credit against future contributions equal to the amount of the contribution. State agency, political subdivision or government entity contributions must be accompanied by or preceded by a written statement endorsed by the governing body or officer of the state agency, political subdivision or government entity verifying that the participation is properly authorized and that the state agency, political subdivision or government entity indemnifies PERSI against any loss resulting from failure of the state agency, political subdivision or government entity, or any person acting on its behalf, to act within its authority.

#### 630. ADDITIONAL LIMITS ON PURCHASED SERVICE.

The Internal Revenue Code imposes limits on the amount of retirement benefits that can be paid to a retiree under a defined benefit plan. Benefits acquired through purchase of service are subject to these limits for some purposes. In no event can a member purchase service that would result in the member exceeding the limits imposed in Section 415(n)(1)(A) of the IRS Code. In addition, a member's initial retirement benefit, including purchased service, continues to be subject to the limitation in Section 59-1342(6), Idaho Code.

#### 631. -- 649. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER G – PERSI GAIN SHARING RULES Rules 650 through 755

#### 650. EXISTENCE OF EXTRAORDINARY GAINS.

The existence of extraordinary gains triggers the possibility that allocations will be made as provided in Section 59-1309, Idaho Code. However, the existence of extraordinary gains does not obligate the retirement board to make an allocation. The Board may choose not to allocate extraordinary gains, or it may choose to allocate all or part of the extraordinary gains. Extraordinary gains exist when, at the close of the fiscal year, the value of plan assets exceeds plan liabilities as determined by the actuary, plus a sum necessary to absorb a one (1) standard deviation market event without increasing contribution rates, as determined by the Board. The amount of extraordinary gains available for possible distribution equals the amount by which the assets exceed the sum of the liabilities and the one standard deviation.

#### 651. VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS.

This is the total assets held in the PERSI base plan, as reported in the actuarial valuation at the end of the fiscal year.

#### 652. PLAN LIABILITIES.

This is the actuarial liability of the PERSI base plan, including but not limited to, the cost of the proposed COLA to

)

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

be effective in March following the close of the fiscal year, the cost of any benefit enhancements to the base plan approved by the legislature, and the cost of actuarial gains and losses, as reported in the actuarial valuation for the fiscal year.

#### 653. ONE STANDARD DEVIATION.

This is the amount of reserve necessary to absorb normal market fluctuations and is a function of the risk associated with investment holdings and strategies, and will be determined by the Board based on those factors.

#### 654. BOARD DISCRETION.

The Board retains full discretion in determining whether to allocate extraordinary gains when they exist. Because of the broad range of factors that might be relevant to such a determination, and to assure that the Board will not be limited in exercising its discretion, these rules do not attempt to identify any of the factors that might be considered in the Board's fiduciary capacity. When extraordinary gains exist, the Board will decide whether they will be allocated no later than the first day of December following the end of the fiscal year. Such decision shall be in writing and shall constitute an amendment to the plan document for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any successor thereto. In the absence of any such decision, the allocation for that year shall be zero (0.00).

#### 655. -- 674. (RESERVED)

#### 675. ALLOCATION BETWEEN GROUPS.

If extraordinary gains exist, and the Board determines that all or part of such gains should be allocated, an allocation will be made among the three (3) groups identified by Section 59-1309, Idaho Code. The three (3) groups and allocations are:

9	Active PERSI members - 38 percent (38%):	(	١
a.	Active I Exst memocis - 30 beteem (30/0).	(	и

676. -- 699. (RESERVED)

#### 700. ACTIVE MEMBER ALLOCATION.

After the amount to be allocated to the active member group has been determined, it shall be allocated among the members of the group. The active member allocation determines each member's initial share before considering any applicable individual limits. Each member's initial share shall be determined by dividing that member's accumulated contributions in the base plan at the close of the fiscal year by the total accumulated contributions in the base plan of all members of the group at the close of the fiscal year, multiplied by the amount allocated to the active member group. In no event shall a member's initial share, before considering individual limits, exceed the maximum annual contribution limit under Section 415(c) of the IRS Code applicable for the limitation year.

#### 701. MINIMUM ALLOCATION AMOUNT.

Due to the costs associated with maintaining individual choice accounts, no allocation shall be made to any member whose allocation share does not exceed thirty-eight dollars (\$38) after considering individual limits, unless the member had a PERSI choice account on the last day of the fiscal year and has not withdrawn funds before the allocation date.

#### 702 ACTIVE MEMBER

A member participates in the active member allocation only if such member is active and has at least twelve (12) months of accrued membership service on the last day of the fiscal year. For purposes of allocating extraordinary gains, active members also include:

a.	Seasonal	employees	who ha	ve a patter	n of emp	oloyment i	that inclu	udes at	least six	(6)	months	of
membership ser	vice in eacl	h of the prec	eding th	ree (3) cons	secutive	years; and	l				(	)

b	. Empl	loyees w	ho are on l	leave of a	absence on tl	he last da	y of the fiscal	year and either:	( )	)
---	--------	----------	-------------	------------	---------------	------------	-----------------	------------------	-----	---

following the end of the fiscal year; or

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

of 1994 (USERRA).
<b>703. ACCUMULATED CONTRIBUTIONS.</b> For purposes of allocating extraordinary gains within the active member group, accumulated contributions do not include contributions or interest related to the purchase of permissive service credits or contributions or interest in the Choice Plan or accounts.
704. TRANSFER TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION CHOICE ACCOUNTS.  After each member's initial share has been determined, it will be transferred to an individual account as permitted under Section 414(k) of the IRS Code, subject to individual limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Board may transfer allocations anytime after necessary compensation data is received and processed by the Board. ( )
705. LIMITATIONS ON ALLOCATION.  In no event shall a member's final allocation exceed the limits imposed by Section 415(c) of the IRS Code, based on compensation earned during the calendar year that included the end of the fiscal year.
706. INTERVENING RETIREMENT.  When a member is included in the active member pool but retires prior to the transfer of allocations, the member's allocation will be made as a one-time payment directly to the member rather than a transfer to an individual account. Such allocations will not be limited by Section 705 but will be subject to the limitations of Section 729.
707. INTERVENING WITHDRAWAL OF CONTRIBUTIONS.  When a member is included in the active member pool but terminates prior to the transfer of allocations, the allocation will be made to the member's individual account if the member has not withdrawn contributions from the Base account prior to the date of transfer of the allocation. No member who has withdrawn contributions from the Base account prior to the transfer of the allocation is eligible to receive an allocation.
708. INTERVENING DEATH OF ACTIVE MEMBER.  When a member would have been included in the active member allocation but dies prior to the transfer of allocations, no allocation shall be made to the member, beneficiary or estate except that an optional death benefit recipient will receive the active member's allocation as limited by Section 729.
709. TREATMENT OF GAIN SHARING ALLOCATIONS IN THE CHOICE ACCOUNT.  Gain sharing allocations transferred to individual Choice Accounts have no effect on an individual's Base Plan benefit. Gain sharing allocations, and the earnings thereon, will be accounted for separately from other Choice Plan contributions but will be treated as one plan for purposes of reporting, investing, distributions, and fees to the extent they are applicable. Related provisions of the Plan adopted by the Board to facilitate voluntary and employer contributions are applicable to gain sharing allocations to the extent not inconsistent with these rules and Sections 59-1308 and 59-1309, Idaho Code. However, no loans or hardship withdrawals may be taken against gain sharing

Return to active service for at least thirty (30) days before the December 31st immediately

#### 725. RETIREE ALLOCATION.

(RESERVED)

After the amount to be allocated to the retiree group has been determined, it shall be allocated among the members of the group. The retiree allocation determines each member's share before considering any applicable individual limits. Each member's initial share shall be determined by dividing that retiree's monthly benefit at the close of the fiscal year by the total monthly benefits payable to all members of the group at the close of the fiscal year, multiplied by the amount allocated to the retiree group.

#### 726. RETIREE.

account balances.

710. -- 724.

For purposes of allocating extraordinary gains, a member must be a retiree as defined in this subchapter.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

#### 727. MONTHLY BENEFIT.

This is the monthly benefit for the last month of the fiscal year but does not include benefits related to other months that may also have been paid during the last month of the fiscal year. In no event shall a retiree's share be determined based on more than the retiree's annual benefit, not including any gain sharing allocations, divided by twelve (12).

#### 728. PAYMENT OF ALLOCATION.

After each retiree's initial share has been determined, it will be paid no later than February 1 following the close of the fiscal year directly to the retiree either together with the retiree's monthly benefit or separately, subject to individual limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code.

#### 729. LIMITATIONS ON ALLOCATION.

Prior to allocation, a retiree's initial share shall be further limited as necessary to comply with the limits of Section 415(b) of the IRS Code.

#### 730. INTERVENING DEATH OF A RETIREE.

When a retiree is included in the retiree allocation but dies prior to the transfer of allocations, no allocation shall be made unless benefit payments are continuing to be made to a contingent annuitant.

#### 731. INTERVENING REEMPLOYMENT.

When a retiree is included in the retiree allocation but becomes reemployed as defined in Section 59-1356, Idaho Code, prior to the date of distribution, the retiree allocation shall be made in the form of an active member allocation, and shall be subject to active member limitations.

#### 732. NEGATED RETIREMENT.

Gain sharing allocations received by a retiree are not included in the amounts required to be repaid when negating retirement under Section 541.

#### 733. -- 749. (RESERVED)

#### 750. EMPLOYER ALLOCATION.

After the amount to be allocated to the employer group has been determined, it shall be allocated among the members of the group. Each employer's share shall be determined by dividing that employer's contribution liability for the fiscal year by the total contribution liability for all members of the group for the fiscal year, multiplied by the amount allocated to the employer group.

#### 751. EMPLOYER.

Participation in the employer pool is limited to those entities defined as an employer in this subchapter.

#### 752. CONTRIBUTION LIABILITY.

This includes only employer contributions that are accrued during the fiscal year and required to be paid by Section 59-1322, Idaho Code, unreduced by gain sharing credits. It does not include contributions made to fund sick leave pools, to pay costs of other plans such as the Firefighters Retirement Fund, or to contributions required by Sections 33-107A and 33-107B, Idaho Code. Only adjustments related to fiscal year contributions will be considered. ( )

#### 753. CREDIT OF ALLOCATION.

After each employer's share has been determined, it will be credited against the employer's future contribution invoices. The credits shall be applied only to offset future employee and employer contributions required to be remitted by Section 59-1325(1), Idaho Code, until the credit is exhausted. An employer may elect to use the credits solely against employer contributions to the extent that no carry-over credits (as described in Section 754) result.

#### 754. CARRY-OVER OF CREDIT.

Should the credit exceed the employer's contribution invoices for the succeeding twelve (12) month period, any remaining credits will carry over to the following year together with an additional credit representing an interest payment. The interest credit shall equal the balance of remaining credits multiplied by a ratio representing the regular rate of interest. This process shall be repeated annually until all credits have been used.

#### 755. WITHDRAWAL OF EMPLOYER.

When an employer is included in the employer pool but withdraws from the system as provided in Section 59-1326, Idaho Code, prior to allocation of credits, the employer shall not be entitled to receive any credits. When an employer is entitled to carry-over credits but withdraws prior to using all its credits, it shall not be entitled to additional credits based on interest payments.

756. -- 999. (RESERVED)

#### [Agency redlined courtesy copy]

Italicized text indicates changes between the text of the proposed rule as adopted in the pending rule.

59	.01.01 –	RULES FOR THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO (PE	RSI)	
	RSI rules	AUTHORITY.  are adopted under the legal authority of Sections 50-1507, 50-1508, 50-1524, 59-1301, 59-9-1392, and 72-1405, Idaho Code.  (3-31-2)	1314, 5	59- )
002. <del>Written</del> <del>North E</del>	interpret	CEN INTERPRETATIONS—AGENCY GUIDELINES.(RESERVED) ations of these rules, to the extent they exist, are available from PERSI, at the Boise Officet, Boise, Idaho 83702.	<del>see at 6</del>	<del>07</del> 22)
<b>003.</b> Admini		VISTRATIVE APPEAL.  ppeals are conducted pursuant to these rules.	(	)
<b>004.</b> The def		ITIONS.  a Section 59-1302, Idaho Code, and the following apply to this chapter:	(	)
		<b>Active Member</b> . A member participates in the active member allocation only if they are a live (12) months of accrued membership service on the last day of the fiscal year. For purdinary gains, active members also include:		
membe	<b>a.</b> rship serv	Seasonal employees who have a pattern of employment that includes at least six (6) nice in each of the preceding three (3) consecutive years; and	nonths (	of )
	b.	Employees who are on leave of absence on the last day of the fiscal year and either:	(	)
end of t	i. he fiscal :	Return to active service for at least thirty (30) days before December 31 immediately follower; or	owing t	the )
of 1994	ii. (USERR	Are entitled to benefits under the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment RA).	Rights A	Act )
	02.	Actuary. This is the actuary retained by the Board.	(	)
	03.	Administrator. The Board.	(	)
	04.	Applicant. "Applicant" means an applicant for disability retirement under Section 59-13	52, Ida	ıho

Code.

Code, or an individual requesting resumption of a disability retirement allowance under Section 59-1354A, Idaho

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

- **05. Base Plan or Account**. This is the PERSI defined benefit plan not including gain sharing allocations or interest thereon, or the individual accounts therein.
- **96. Board**. "Board" means the governing authority of the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho as provided by Section 59-1304, Idaho Code, of the Firefighters' Retirement Fund created by Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code, and the Policeman's Retirement Fund created by Chapter 15, Title 50, Idaho Code.
  - **07.** Choice Plan or Account. This includes two (2) elements:
- **a.** The defined contribution component of the PERSI plan consisting of gain sharing allocations together with earnings thereon or the individual accounts therein; and
- **b.** The plan designated to receive voluntary and employer contributions as provided in Section 59-1308, Idaho Code, or the individual accounts therein.
- **08. Code**. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or as hereafter amended. All citations to sections of the IRS Code are to such sections as they may from time to time be amended or renumbered. ( )
- **09. Compensation**. "Compensation" as used in Section 59-1342(6), Idaho Code, means "salary" as defined by Section 59-1302(31), Idaho Code.
- 10. Court Security. "Court Security" as used in Section 59-1303(3)(g), Idaho Code, means the employee's primary responsibilities are designated by court order to quell disturbances in the courthouse, to prevent the escape of prisoners, to exclude weapons from the courthouse, and to perform other related courthouse security matters.
- 11. Date of Retirement. "Date of retirement" means the effective date on which a retirement allowance becomes payable.
- 12. **Designated Beneficiary**. The individual who is designated as the beneficiary under the Plan and is the designated beneficiary under section 401(a)(9) of the IRS Code and section 1.40l(a)(9)-4, Q&A-4, of the Treasury regulations.
- 13. Employer. Entities that may qualify as political subdivisions include, among others, general purpose governmental entities, such as cities and counties (whether or not incorporated as municipal corporations), and special purpose governmental entities, such as special assessment districts that provide for roads, water, sewer, gas, light, reclamation, drainage, irrigation, levee, school, harbor, port improvements, and other governmental purposes for a State or local governmental unit.

  (4 6 23)
- 143. Employment. "Employment" as used in Section 59-1302(14)(B)(b), Idaho Code, shall mean the period of time from a member's date of hire to the member's succeeding date of separation from that state agency, political subdivision or government entity. Placing a member on leave of absence with or without pay shall not be considered as a separation from the employer.
- **154. Firefighters' Retirement Fund**. "Firefighters' Retirement Fund" or "FRF" is the retirement fund provided by Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code.
- **165. Gain Sharing.** This refers to the process of allocating extraordinary gains from the base plan into the defined contribution component of the PERSI plan as permitted in Section 414(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and as provided by Section 59-1309, Idaho Code, and these rules.
- 176. General Member. "General member" is a PERSI member not classified as a police officer, firefighter, paid firefighter, or school employee. (4-6-23)
- **187. Likely.** For the purpose of Section 59-1302(12)(b), Idaho Code, "likely" means with reasonable medical certainty.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
198. the work an appl	Occupational Hazard. "Occupational Hazard" means an injury or ailment solely resulting from the environment in which an applicant works.	om )
2019. section 402(l) of	<b>Pension Protection Act Definitions</b> . Solely for purposes of the implementation by PERSI the Internal Revenue Code, the following definitions apply:	of )
	Chaplain. Any individual serving as an officially recognized or designated member of a legal teer fire department or legally organized police department, or an officially recognized or designate of a legally organized fire or police department who was responding to a fire, rescue, or police of a legally organized fire or police department who was responding to a fire, rescue, or police of a legally organized fire or police department who was responding to a fire, rescue, or police of a legally organized fire or police department who was responding to a fire, rescue, or police of a legal or a legal	ed
<b>b.</b> normal retirement or government e	Eligible Retired Public Safety Officer. An individual who, by reason of disability or attainment nt age, is separated from service as a public safety officer with the state agency, political subdivision tity who maintains the eligible retirement plan from which distributions are made.	of on )
c. unreduced benef	Normal Retirement Age. The member's age at the time that the member is eligible to retire with fit.	an )
d. compensation, a ambulance crew	Public Safety Officer. An individual serving a public agency in an official capacity, with or without a law enforcement officer, as a firefighter, as a chaplain, or as a member of a rescue squad .	
240. entity from who	<b>Primary Employer</b> . The primary employer is the state agency, political subdivision or government the employee receives the highest aggregate salary per month.	nt (
<b>221.</b> or "PERSI" is th	Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho. "Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho retirement system created by Chapter 13, Title 59, Idaho Code.	o" )
2 <mark>32</mark> .	Required Beginning Date. The date specified in Section 508.02 of these rules. (	)
allowance, survi who were inactiv	Retiree. Retiree includes any member, contingent annuitant, or surviving spouse, receiving regularies at the close of the fiscal year. It also includes members receiving a monthly disability retirementating spouses who elected an annuity option under Section 59-1361(5), Idaho Code, and members at the close of the fiscal year but retire on or before the first day of January following the end of the active to the first day of June of the fiscal year or earlier.	ent ers
	<b>Service</b> . For the purposes of Sections 536 and 539, "service" includes only service for which the ally in the administrative offices of the state agency, political subdivision or government entity that to be present at any particular work station for the state agency, political subdivision ty.	or
2 <u>65</u> .	<b>Surviving Spouse</b> . "Surviving spouse" is a person as defined in Section 15-2-802, Idaho Code.	)
27 <u>6</u> . Idaho Code, mea	<b>Transportation Of Prisoners</b> . "Transportation of prisoners" as used in Section 59-1303(3)(ans the employee's primary responsibility is designated by court order to move prisoners from one (	

005. -- 010. (RESERVED)

place to another.

## SUBCHAPTER A – PERSI RULES OF ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE Rules 011 through 099

#### 011. OPT OUT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL'S RULES – TABLE.

PERSI declines to adopt the following Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General, IDAPA 04.11.01 as follows for the reasons listed:

	Rules Promulgated by the Office of the Attorney General will be followed except the following sections of IDAPA 04.11.01 will be excluded									
151	PERSI procedure uses "petitioners" or "appellants" rather than "applicants" or "claimants."									
155	PERSI procedure uses "petitioners" rather than "protestants."									
156	PERSI procedure does not separately use intervention.									
220	PERSI procedure uses "petitions" rather than "applications," "claims" or "appeals."									
250	PERSI procedure uses "petitions" rather than "protests."									
350 - 399	PERSI procedure does not separately use intervention.									
420 - 425	PERSI does not have a prosecutorial investigative function.									
566	PERSI does not hold joint hearings.									
730	PERSI statutes do not provide for preliminary orders.									
741	PERSI has no authority to award costs or fees.									
791.01.c.	The venue of all actions in which the Board is a party shall be Ada County, Idaho." Idaho Code § 59-1305(1)									
791.01.d.	The venue of all actions in which the Board is a party shall be Ada County, Idaho. Idaho Code § 59-1305(1)									

#### (

)

#### 012. VENUE

Venue under Section 67-5272, Idaho Code, is not applicable on its face. Venue is Ada County, Idaho, per Section 59-1305, Idaho Code. (3-31-22)

#### 013. OBTAINING COPIES OF IRAP.

An official copy of IDAPA 04.11.01, "Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General," can be obtained through the Office of the Administrative Rules Coordinator, Division of Financial. Management. (3 31 22)

0142. – 099. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER B – PERSI RULES FOR ELIGIBILITY Rules 100 through 249

#### 100. MANDATORY MEMBERSHIP.

Membership in PERSI is mandatory for all persons who meet the statutory definition of an "employee" in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.

#### 101. MULTIPLE EMPLOYERS -- MEMBERSHIP ELIGIBILITY.

An employee establishes separate PERSI membership eligibility with each state agency, political subdivision or government entity with which the employee meets the statutory definition of an "employee" as found in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.

**01. Does Not Meet the Statutory Definition**. Because membership eligibility is established independently with each state agency, political subdivision or government entity, neither employer nor employee contributions are required on salary paid by employers to employees who do not meet the statutory definition of an "employee" as found in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

**02. State Agencies.** An employee working for more than one (1) state agency establishes eligibility based on the total hours of employment worked with all state agencies.

## 102. ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS NOT SUBJECT TO TWENTY HOUR REQUIREMENT.

Elected and appointed officials are not subject to the hourly requirement of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code.

#### 103. ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS—MEMBERS OF PERSI.

Elected and appointed officials serving on boards, councils, or commissions who receive salary or honorarium for services performed are members of PERSI even though they receive nominal salary and do not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week.

(3-31-22)

- <u>01.</u> <u>Hourly Requirement</u>. Elected and appointed officials are not subject to the hourly requirement of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code. (\_\_\_\_\_)
- <u>02.</u> <u>Salary and Honorarium</u>. Elected and appointed officials serving on boards, councils, or commissions who receive salary or honorarium for services performed are members of PERSI even though they receive nominal salary and do not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week.

#### 104. -- 110. (RESERVED)

#### 111. TEACHER WORKING HALF-TIME OR MORE.

For the purposes of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code, a teacher is considered to be working half-time or more if the teacher's contract specifies that the engagement is half or more of a full contract. Teachers and all other school employees not employed under such a contractual arrangement shall be required to meet the requirement of normally working twenty (20) hours or more per week.

#### 112. RESPONSIBILITY OF EMPLOYER TO DETERMINE EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY.

It is the responsibility of each state agency, political subdivision or government entity to make the initial determination of which employees within its jurisdiction meet the requirements of eligibility for membership and to withhold the required member contributions from salary paid.

#### 113. NORMALLY WORKS TWENTY HOURS.

If a person works twenty (20) hours or more per week for more than one-half (1/2) of the weeks during the period of employment being considered, then the person meets the requirements of Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a), Idaho Code ("normally works twenty (20) hours or more per week"), and shall be considered an employee if the person meets the other requirements of Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code. Statutory References: Section 59-1302(14)(A)(a).

(3-31-22)(....)

#### 114. APPLICATION OF THE FIVE MONTH REQUIREMENT.

An employee working twenty (20) hours or more per week who is hired with the expectation of working less than five (5) consecutive months, becomes retroactively eligible for membership and employee and employer contributions must be immediately withheld whenever it becomes evident the period of employment will be five (5) consecutive months or longer and the employee meets the other requirements of Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code. Delinquent payments will be paid by the employer within three (3) months. Regular interest will be assessed against the outstanding balance at the rate provided in Section 59-1325, Idaho Code.

- **61.** Employee and Employer Contributions. Employee and Employer contributions must be immediately withheld by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity and forwarded when it becomes evident the period of employment will be five (5) consecutive months or more, and the employee meets the other requirements of Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code. Delinquent employee and employer contributions on all prior months of employment, shall be paid by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity pursuant to Subsection 114.02 of this chapter.

  (3-31-22)
- **92.** Delinquent Contributions. Employer shall collect and pay delinquent contributions of employer and employee within three (3) months once it becomes evident the period of employment will be five (5) consecutive

months or more. If the delinquent contributions are not paid within three (3) months, regular interest will be assessed against the outstanding balance until the delinquent employee contributions are paid in full.

(3 31 22)

#### 115. -- 120. (RESERVED)

#### 121. CEASING TO BE AN EMPLOYEE.

A member ceases to be an employee on the day following the effective date that the member is separated from their employer. Membership service credits stop on the day the member ceases to be an employee.

#### 122. LEAVE OF ABSENCE.

A member is ineligible to contribute and receive membership service credit while on leave of absence without pay or while on leave of absence with less than one-half (1/2) pay, unless the absence is occasioned by a worker's compensation claim approved by a surety. An active member separated from employment under conditions where both the member and the employer plan a later return to employment should be placed on leave of absence without pay during the planned period of absence.

- **01.** Employer and Employee Contributions -- Leave of Absence. During the leave of absence without pay, employer and employee contributions cease. If the member is on a leave of absence as a result of an approved worker's compensation claim, employer and employee contributions are due and payable on any salary paid to the member. The member is entitled to a month of membership service credit for each month the member remains on leave of absence as a result of an approved worker's compensation claim and receives salary in addition to income benefits.
- **O2. Documentation of Leave of Absence**. The employer shall provide PERSI with documentation, on a form provided by PERSI, of a leave of absence to clarify the member's status and retirement benefit entitlement.
- **03. Status of Employee on Leave of Absence**. An employee placed on a leave of absence by an employer remains in an employee status and is ineligible for payment of any separation benefits or for payment of a service, early, disability, or vested retirement allowance. If a member on leave of absence without pay terminates employment without returning to work, the leave without pay status is negated.
- **04. Leave of Absence -- Effect on Benefit Enhancement.** An employee shall not be placed on a leave of absence without pay prior to the effective date of a benefit enhancement and then return to work after the effective date of the benefit enhancement for the purpose of qualifying for the benefit enhancement. An employee placed on unpaid leave of absence prior to the date of the benefit enhancement who returns to work after the effective date of the benefit enhancement and subsequently applies for retirement shall include with the application for retirement, certification from the state agency, political subdivision or government entity that the leave of absence was not granted for the purpose of allowing the person to qualify for the benefit enhancement.

#### 123. -- <del>149.</del> (RESERVED)

#### 150. POLICE OFFICER MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATION.

The executive director or the executive director's designee may accept or reject the employer's certification that an employee's primary position with the employer is a police officer for retirement purposes as required in Section 59-1303, Idaho Code. Acceptance of the certification shall not limit PERSI's right to review and reclassify the position for retirement purposes based upon an audit or other relevant information presented to PERSI. A position title or occasional assignments to active law enforcement service or hazardous law enforcement duties does not create a condition for designation as a police officer member for retirement purposes.

(3-31-22)

#### <del>151.</del>—199. (RESERVED)

#### **200. DETERMINATION OF FIREFIGHTER.**

A "firefighter" means an employee whose primary occupation with an employer as defined by Section 59-1302(16), Idaho Code, is that of preventing and extinguishing fires. AIn addition to Section 59-1302(16), Idaho Code, the definition of a firefighter member for retirement purposes is an employee appointed to the position of fire chief by a city council but not eligible to be a "paid firefighter," or the chief fire warden of a timber protective association, or is

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

an employee of either the department of lands or of a timber protective association whose primary position and principal accountability in that position either requires direct supervision of employees engaged in the prevention, presuppression and suppression of wild land fires or requires the performance of those duties as the principal function of the position. A firefighter member for retirement purposes does not include an employee who may be required on occasion to engage in those functions as a secondary requirement of the position.

Statutory References: Sections 59-1302(16), 59-1391(f) and 72-1403, Idaho Code.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(

#### 201. INCORRECT CLASSIFICATION OF FIREFIGHTER.

An employer or agency which believes that any position is incorrectly classified as a firefighter position or a non-firefighter position may petition the Board for inclusion or exclusion of such position as a firefighter position. Such petition shall be in writing and explain in detail the principal duties of the position. The Board will review the petition and evidence, together with such information and evidence as may be presented by the staff of PERSI. The Board may decide the matter based upon the information supplied, may request additional information, or may request an oral presentation before the Board.

Statutory References: Sections 59-1302(16), 59-1391(f) and 72-1403, Idaho Code.

<del>3-31-22)</del>(

#### 202. PAID FIREFIGHTER EXCLUSION FROM RULES 200 AND 201.

The provisions of Sections 200 and 201 of this subchapter do not apply to a "paid firefighter" as defined by Sections 59-1391(f) or 72-1403(A), Idaho Code, or to any references to "firefighter" found in Title 72, Chapter 14, Idaho Code.

Statutory References: Sections 59-1302(16), 59-1391(f) and 72-1403, Idaho Code.

( )

203. -- 249. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER C – PERSI GENERAL PROVISIONS, CONTRIBUTION RATE, MISCELLANEOUS, AND INTEREST RATE RULES Rules 250 through 374

250. -- 302. (RESERVED)

#### 303. EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS BASED ON GROSS SALARY.

Employee contributions shall be based on the employee's total gross salary regardless of source or employer funds from which the employee is paid.

304. (RESERVED)

#### 305. MULTIPLE EMPLOYERS -- CONTRIBUTION RATE.

If the employee has met eligibility requirements with more than one (1) employer that would result in different contribution rates, contributions shall be made at the rate for the member's classification with the primary employer.

(

#### 306. STATE EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS.

If an employee establishes membership with the state, the employee and each agency must make contributions on the employee's salary regardless of the number of hours worked at each state agency.

#### 307. POLICE OFFICER CONTRIBUTIONS WITHHELD INCORRECTLY.

If an employee's contributions are withheld by an employer and received by PERSI at the rate established for police members on the presumption the certification required by Section 59-1303, Idaho Code, will be accepted, but if it is rejected, the employer shall adjust the employee's contribution rate to a general member rate and PERSI shall return to the employer any excess employee contributions that have occurred.

#### 308. CONTRIBUTIONS DUE WHILE MEMBER IS RECEIVING WORKER'S COMPENSATION.

**01.** Contributions Due and Payable. Contributions are due and payable on whatever percentage of salary is paid while the member is on a leave of absence occasioned by an approved worker's compensation claim and the member will be entitled to a month of membership service credit for each month the member remains eligible.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

- **02.** Accruing Service. This means for an employee to continue accruing service the employer must continue to pay salary equal to the lesser of:
- a. The amount necessary to meet the statutory definition of employee (half-time at the pre-injury rate or more), or
  - **b.** The employee's full-time salary less the employee's worker's compensation income benefit.
- 03. Maintaining Eligibility for Injured Workers. The intent of this rule is to permit employers to maintain eligibility for injured workers without having to pay salary that, when added to the employee's worker's compensation income benefit, would exceed the employee's total salary prior to the injury. Section 122 is inapplicable to the extent it conflicts with this rule.

#### 309. VACATION AND CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS SUBJECT TO CONTRIBUTIONS.

Compensation paid for vacation or remaining contractual payments is salary subject to employee and employer contributions and earns membership credit through the effective date of separation from employment at the usual rate of compensation.

310. -- 324. (RESERVED)

#### 325. TRANSFER OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO PERSI.

Employee and employer contributions shall be calculated and forwarded to PERSI by each employer for each employee that meets the statutory definition of "employee" as defined in Section 59-1302 (14), Idaho Code. All Contributions shall be remitted, together with an approved report to PERSI no later than five (5) days after each pay date as provided in Section 59-1325(1), Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)

<del>326.</del> 349. (RESERVED)

#### 350. REGULAR INTEREST.

Regular interest for each calendar year shall be the greater of ninety percent (90%) of the rate of return on the PERSI fund net of all expenses for the fiscal year ending immediately prior to the calendar year as reported in the actuary's annual valuation report or one percent (1%).

#### 351. INTEREST – MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS.

Regular interest as defined in Section 59-1302(26), Idaho Code, and Section 300 in this subchapter, shall accrue to and be credited monthly to a member's accumulated contributions.

#### 352. REINSTATEMENT INTEREST.

Reinstatement interest for each calendar year shall equal the average of the prime rate on June 30 of the latest three (3) years, plus one percent (1%). For purposes of this rule, the prime rate is the "prime rate" listed in the "Money Rates" section of the Wall Street Journal on June 30, or in the event no rate is listed on June 30, on the latest date preceding June 30 for which a prime rate is listed. Unless otherwise provided by statute or rule, reinstatement interest shall apply to all amounts owed to the fund.

353. -- 374. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER D – PERSI DISABILITY RULES Rules 375 through 499

#### 375. GENERAL RULE.

Only members of PERSI with five (5) years of credited service are eligible for disability retirement except as provided in Section 59-1352(2), Idaho Code. (3-31-22)

376. SERVICE RELATED DISABILITY FOR POLICE, GENERAL MEMBERS, AND FIREFIGHTERS.

Police, general members, and certain firefighter members are eligible for disability retirement beginning from the first day of employment when the disability is caused by occupational hazards, as provided in Section 59 1352(2), Idaho Code.

37<del>7</del>5. -- 399. (RESERVED)

#### 400. APPLYING FOR DISABILITY RETIREMENT.

Eligible members may apply for disability retirement by completing a required form available from any PERSI office. The application process may include an interview by a PERSI representative. Applicants must release all medical records and information to PERSI. The hours worked to qualify as an employee as defined in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code, is inapplicable for purposes of determining disability.

#### 401. INITIAL APPLICATION REVIEW (RESERVED)

Applications will first be reviewed to determine whether the applicant meets eligibility requirements. If all eligibility requirements are met, the application will proceed to disability assessment review. If all eligibility requirements are not met, the applicant will be notified in writing.

(3-31-22)

#### 402. DISABILITY ASSESSMENT REVIEW.

Applicants will be assessed to determine whether they qualify for disability retirement under the applicable standard. The assessment may include without limitation, records review, medical and psychological examinations, vocational assessments, or any combination thereof as determined by PERSI. Failure to timely comply with any request made by PERSI during the assessment process shall result in automatic denial of disability retirement. At the conclusion of the assessment process, PERSI will notify applicants in writing whether or not they qualify for disability retirement.

#### 403. RECONSIDERATION OF DISABILITY ASSESSMENT DECISION.

Applicants who are denied disability retirement as a result of an adverse disability assessment decision, and wish to contest that decision, are required to participate in a reconsideration process. A request for reconsideration must be made within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the disability assessment decision. Any additional information the applicant wishes to be considered must be submitted to PERSI within thirty (30) days of the request for reconsideration. The additional information will be reviewed and a reconsideration decision will be issued in writing to the applicant.

#### 404. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW OF THE RECONSIDERATION DECISION.

A reconsideration decision shall be considered a final decision under Section 59-1314(2), Idaho Code, and may be appealed to the Board for review. In any related administrative hearing, the applicant shall be limited to presenting facts and evidence made available to PERSI in the reconsideration process. No new or additional evidence may be presented at the hearing. If the applicant has additional facts or evidence that were not made available to PERSI during the assessment or reconsideration process, the applicant must submit a new application for disability retirement, proceed again through the assessment process, and pay the costs associated with the second or subsequent assessment process. This rule is intended to promote the efficient use of fund resources by encouraging full and complete disclosure of information during the disability assessment process.

(3 31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

#### 405. DELEGATION.

PERSI may, by contract or otherwise, delegate all or part of these processes to third parties. Where such delegation has been made, the term "PERSI" includes those third parties. When a member requests the resumption of a disability retirement allowance pursuant to Section 59-1354A, Idaho Code, the board may delegate its authority under Section 59-1354A, Idaho Code, to a third party. Where such delegation has been made, the term "Board" includes those third parties.

#### 406. REASSESSMENT OF DISABILITY RETIREES.

Disability retirees are subject to reassessment of their disability at any time to determine whether they continue to be disabled under the standard in Section 59-1302(12), Idaho Code. However, pursuant to Section 59-1302(12)(b), Idaho Code, after two (2) years of continuous disability retirement, a disability retiree is not required to undergo medical examinations more often than every twelve (12) months. Disability retirees who are notified that they have been selected for reassessment are under the same obligation as applicants to supply information.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

#### 407. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS.

Attorney's fees and costs incurred by an applicant in his efforts to obtain disability retirement are the sole responsibility of the applicant and shall not be paid by PERSI except for fees related to judicial review for which applicant is found to be entitled under applicable law.

408. -- 424. (RESERVED)

#### 425. BURDEN ON APPLICANT.

Applicant must demonstrate that, on or before applicant's last day of employment, he was disabled under the disability standard. The last day of employment is the last day applicant earned compensation, including annual leave and sick leave. When a member requests the resumption of a disability retirement allowance pursuant to Section 59-1354A, Idaho Code, the member must demonstrate that he could not successfully return to work because of the same disability on which his disability retirement was based.

#### **426.** STATUTORY STANDARD.

In applying the disability standard in Section 59-1302(12), Idaho Code, substantially all avenues of employment are reasonably closed if the applicant is permanently prevented, due to bodily injury or disease, from performing every substantial and material duty of any occupation for which the applicant is reasonably qualified by education, training or experience.

427. (RESERVED)

#### 428. HIRE-ABILITY OF APPLICANT.

The inability of the applicant to secure employment in and around the area where the applicant resides is not considered in determining whether or not the applicant is disabled. If the applicant is able to perform every substantial and material duty of any jobs existing in the economy for which the applicant is reasonably qualified by education, training or experience, the applicant will not be considered disabled regardless of other factors that might affect the applicant's ability to actually secure employment, such as employer decisions and practices or the fact that there are no open positions or that the applicant is not selected for those positions.

**429.** -- **449.** (RESERVED)

#### 450. COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION OF DISABILITY ALLOWANCE.

The commencement and duration of payment of disability benefits is governed by Section 59-1354, Idaho Code. For purposes of Section 59-1354(1)(b), Idaho Code, a member "becomes eligible" on the first of the month following the date selected by the member which follows the date on which the member is unable to and thereafter does not return to work on a regular basis for two (2) consecutive weeks but not later than the date on which the member ceases to make contributions.

#### 451. DETERMINING WORKER'S COMPENSATION OFFSET.

To determine the offset required by Section 59-1353, Idaho Code, the amount payable under the provisions of any worker's compensation law which represents income benefits as defined in Section 72-102, Idaho Code, shall be converted to a monthly equivalent and deducted from the monthly retirement allowance.

#### 452. EFFECT OF UNUSED SICK LEAVE ON DISABILITY ALLOWANCE.

Unused sick leave entitlement provided for by either Section 33-1228, 33-2109A, or 67-5339, Idaho Code, shall not be considered salary or compensation in the application of Section 59-1354(1), Idaho Code.

453. -- 474. (RESERVED)

#### 475. APPLICATION OF THIS SUBCHAPTER TO FRF DISABILITY RETIREMENT.

All the provisions of this subchapter, except Sections 375, 376, 406, 426, 427, 451 and 452, apply also to applications for disability retirement under the FRF plan to the extent they do not conflict with the provisions of Title 72, Chapter 14, Idaho Code.

476. -- 499. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER E – PERSI SEPARATION FROM SERVICE RULES Rules 500 through 524

#### 500. REPAYMENT OF SEPARATION BENEFITS -- EMPLOYEE STATUS.

Repayment of a separation benefit must commence while the member is an employee, as defined in Section 59-1302(14), Idaho Code. For purposes of this rule the term employee includes employees accruing benefits under the Department of Employment Retirement Plan, the Firefighters' Retirement Fund, and the Policeman's Retirement Fund.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1360, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)(

#### 501. INTEREST ACCRUAL AND CALCULATION ON SEPARATION BENEFITS.

Repayment of separation benefits as provided in Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, for employees whose most recent date of reemployment is after January 23, 1990, shall include payment of interest that shall accrue from the date each separation benefit was issued. Repayment of separation benefits as provided in Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, for employees whose most recent date of reemployment is before January 23, 1990, shall include payment of interest as determined by the law, statutes and rules in effect on the date of last reinstatement to employee status, except as provided in Section 502 of this subchapter.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1360, Idaho Code.

<del>3-31-22)</del>(\_\_\_

## 502. REPAYMENT OF SEPARATION BENEFITS BY EMPLOYEES PREVIOUSLY PRECLUDED FROM REPAYMENT.

Any employee who was precluded from repaying a separation benefit due to the fact they failed to meet the requirements of Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, may reinstate their previous credited service by repaying the full amount of their accumulated contributions provided such repayment includes payment of regular interest accruing from the date of each such separation benefit payment.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1360, Idaho Code.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(

#### 503. METHODS OF REPAYMENT OF SEPARATION BENEFITS.

- **01. Periodic and Lump-Sum Payments**. Where an active member elects to repay a separation benefit to reinstate previous service as provided in Section 59-1360, Idaho Code, the member may request that repayment be made in periodic payments or in a lump-sum payment. No service will be reinstated until the full repayment has been made.
- **Repayments Initiated on or After March 1, 2000**. For all repayments initiated on or after March 1, 2000, except as provided in Section 501 of this subchapter, a repayment amount will be determined which shall be the sum of the separation benefit(s) plus regular interest from the date of the benefit payment(s) until the date of the first payment. The repayment amount will be amortized over the repayment period at the reinstatement rate in effect on the date of the first periodic payment.
- 03. Repayments Initiated Before March 1, 2000. For all periodic repayments initiated before March 1, 2000, a repayment amount will be determined which shall be the sum of the separation benefit(s) plus regular interest from the date of the benefit payment(s) until the date of the first payment. The repayment amount will be amortized over the repayment period at four point seventy-five percent (4.75%) interest. This is a grandfathered rate based on the rate in effect December 31, 1999, and will apply so long as payments exceed interest charges on a calendar year basis. If payments fail to exceed interest charges in any calendar year, the grandfathered rate will be forfeited and replaced by the reinstatement rate beginning in January immediately after the year in which the failure occurs. For purposes of these rules, a repayment is initiated by signing an agreement and making a payment.

( )

**04.** Repayments Under Section 59-1331(2), Idaho Code. For (waiting period) payments made pursuant to Section 59-1331(2), Idaho Code, a the repayment amount shall be determined which shall be is the sum of contributions that would have been made plus regular interest from December 31, 1975 until the date of the first payment. The repayment amount will be amortized over the payment period at the reinstatement rate in effect on the date of the first periodic payment.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

**PAGE 116** 

#### 504. IN-SERVICE TRANSFERS TO REINSTATE SERVICE.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 **PENDING RULE** 

To the extent permitted by federal law, and in accordance with any regulation or other guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service, an active member may transfer funds from a 401(k), a 403(b), or an eligible 457(b) plan, in which they are currently eligible to participate, to the Base Plan for purposes of buying back service previously forfeited due

	ring a separation of delinquent cont		service	related	to	eligible	waiting	periods,	or	purchasing	service (
505.	(RESERVED)										

		uent contributions.	(	)
505.	(RESEI	RVED)		
Decemb	RSI Base per 31, 20	OVERS ACCEPTED INTO THE BASE PLAN.  Plan will accept participant rollover contributions and direct rollovers of distributions mad 01, for purposes of reinstating or purchasing service as permitted under the plan, from the foliax contributions may be rolled over into the Base Plan.		
Code (C	<b>01.</b> Code).	Qualified Plans. A qualified plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Internal Re	evenu (	e )
	02.	Annuity Contracts. An annuity contract described in section 403(b) of the IRS Code.	(	)
politica	<b>03.</b> l subdivis	<b>457 Plans</b> . An eligible plan under section 457(b) of the IRS Code which is maintained by ion of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state.	a state	;, )
section income.		<b>IRAs</b> . Any portion of a distribution from an individual retirement account or annuity descr 408(b) of the IRS Code that is eligible to be rolled over and would otherwise be includable in		
<b>507.</b> A direct		T ROLLOVERS OUT OF THE BASE PLAN. is a payment by the plan to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee.	(	)
plan adı	ministrato	<b>Rollover Election</b> . Notwithstanding any provision of the plan to the contrary that would other's election under this part, a distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed or, to have any portion of an eligible rollover distribution that is equal to at least five hundred thy to an eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee in a direct rollover.	by th	e
portion	<b>02.</b> of the bal	Eligible Rollover Distribution. An eligible rollover distribution is any distribution of all ance to the credit of the distributee, except that an eligible rollover distribution does not include the credit of the distribute.		y )
	ncies) of	Any distribution that is one (1) of a series of substantially equal periodic payments (n annually) made for the life (or life expectancy) of the distributee or the joint lives (or jo the distributee and the distributee's designated beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten (10 ten).	int lif	è
Code);	b.	Any distribution to the extent such distribution is required under section 401(a)(9) of the	he IR	S )
	c.	Any amount that is distributed on account of hardship;	(	)
the excl	<b>d.</b> lusion for	The portion of any distribution that is not includable in gross income (determined without renet unrealized appreciation with respect to employer securities); and	gard t	o )
	e.	Any other distribution(s) that is reasonably expected to total less than two hundred dollars	(\$200	)

After-Tax Contributions. For purposes of the direct rollover provisions in Subsection 507.02, a portion of a distribution shall not fail to be an eligible rollover distribution merely because the portion consists of after-tax employee contributions that are not includable in gross income. However, such portion may be transferred only to an individual retirement account or annuity described in section 408(a) or (b) of the IRS Code, or to a

during a year.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

qualified defined contribution plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of the IRS Code that agrees to separately account for the amounts so transferred, including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which is includable in gross income and the portion of such distribution which is not so includable.

- **04.** Eligible Retirement Plan. An eligible retirement plan is an individual retirement account described in section 408(a) of the IRS Code, an individual retirement annuity described in section 408(b) of the IRS Code, a Roth IRA described in Section 408A of the IRS Code, an annuity plan described in section 403(a) of the IRS Code, an annuity contract described in section 403(b) of the IRS Code, an eligible plan under section 457(b) of the IRS Code which is maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state and which agrees to separately account for amounts transferred into such plan from this plan, or a qualified plan described in section 401(a) of the IRS Code, that accepts the distributee's eligible rollover distribution.
- **05. Alternate Payees.** A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's or former employee's spouse or former spouse, who is the alternate payee under a domestic retirement order, approved as provided in Sections 59-1319 and 1320, Idaho Code, are distributees with regard to the interest of the spouse or former spouse.

#### 508. REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS.

- **01. Default Application of Federal Requirements.** With respect to distributions under the Base Plan, and except as provided in Subsection 508.06, the Plan will apply the minimum distribution requirements of section 401(a)(9) of the IRS Code in accordance with a good faith interpretation of section 401(a)(9), notwithstanding any provision of the Base Plan to the contrary.
- **Required Beginning Date.** Except as otherwise provided in Subsections 508.04 through 508.08, distributions under the Base Plan shall begin not later than April 1 following the later of (a) the commencement year or (b) the year in which the member retires. For purposes of Section 508, the "commencement year" is the calendar year in which the member reaches age seventy two (72) the applicable age, as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) as now in effect and thereafter amended.
- **03. PERSI Selects Retirement Option**. Any member required to take minimum distributions, as provided in this Section 508, and fails to complete and submit an approved retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance by April 1 following the later of (a) the commencement year or (b) the year in which the member retires shall be deemed to have made the following selection:
  - **a.** If single, a regular retirement allowance and no other selection shall be required or permitted.
- **b.** If married, Option 1 and no other selection shall be required or permitted, unless proof is provided that spouse has no community property interest in the benefit.
- **04. Lifetime Distributions.** Distribution shall be made over the life of the participant or the lives of the participant and his beneficiary; or over a period certain not extending beyond the life expectancy of the member or the joint life and last survivor expectancy of the member and his beneficiary.
- **05. Timing of Required Distributions.** A required distribution shall be deemed to have been made during the commencement year if actually made by the following April 1, but such delayed distribution shall not change the amount of such distribution, and the distribution otherwise required during the subsequent calendar year shall be calculated as if the first distribution had been made on the last day of the commencement year. ( )
- **06.** Adjustment of Required Distributions. Benefits paid prior to the commencement year shall reduce the aggregate amount subject to (but shall not otherwise negate) the minimum distribution requirements described herein.
- 07. Benefits Deferred Beyond Service Retirement. The first payment of benefits of an inactive member following deferment beyond service retirement will be in a lump sum that includes payment for those

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

months of service dating from the date of service retirement when a monthly retirement payment would have started through the current monthly payment. Subsequent payments will be for the monthly retirement allowance only.

( )

**08. Death Benefits.** All death benefits payable under the Base Plan will be distributed as soon as administratively practicable after request, but must in any event be distributed within fifteen (15) months of the member's death, unless the identity of the beneficiary is not ascertainable.

#### 509. TRANSFERS TO NON-SPOUSE BENEFICIARIES.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Base Plan to the contrary that would otherwise limit the options of the beneficiary of a deceased member who is not the member's spouse, the administrator shall, upon the request of such a beneficiary, transfer a lump sum distribution to the trustee of an individual account established under Section 408 of the IRS Code in accordance with the provisions of Section 402(e)(11) of the IRS Code.

510. -- 524. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER F – PERSI RETIREMENT RULES Rules 525 through 649

## 525. AVERAGE MONTHLY SALARY COMPUTATION -- EQUITABLE TREATMENT -- DIFFERENT WORK PERIODS.

Equitable treatment for all members can be achieved only if members whose career patterns covering the same time frame and who received identical annual salaries during each of the twelve-month periods of that time frame accrue the same monthly service retirement allowance. To achieve this equity for the member whose annual salary has been paid on other than a twelve-month salary schedule during any contractual or like twelve-month period, the average monthly salary used for each one of those twelve-month periods will be determined from the total base period salary by using a divisor representing the months of membership service which would have been accumulated at that rate over a full base period.

Statutory Reference: Sections 59-1302(5A), 59-1391(b), Idaho Code.

(3 31 22)(

#### 526. UNUSUAL COMPENSATION PATTERN EFFECT ON RETIREMENT CALCULATION.

Upon application for a retirement benefit, any portion of compensation which represents payments in excess of and inconsistent with the usual compensation pattern, for example, but not limited to lump sum contract payouts, excess vacation paid but not taken, paid sick leave, or a clothing allowance will not be considered in determining benefits.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(\_\_\_\_

#### 527. MAXIMUM RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE (RULE 111).

If the amount of a member's initial retirement allowance on the date of retirement would exceed the average salary during the member's highest thirty-six (36) consecutive calendar months of salary, then the member's initial retirement allowance will be limited to the greater of: the average salary during the highest thirty-six (36) consecutive calendar months of salary; or the initial retirement allowance based on credited service through April 1990. Optional retirement allowances will be computed after any limitation above has been applied.

## 528. MEMBER NOTIFIED OF AVAILABLE RETIREMENT OPTIONS PRIOR TO BOARD APPROVAL.

The Retirement Board shall not act on any application for retirement unless the member has previously been provided with notification of the regular retirement option and options one (1) and two (2) election available to the member including the value of the monthly allowance of each. The value of options three (3) and four (4) will be provided if the member so requests the value of the option and provides information required to calculate that option (such as but not limited to social security benefit estimates) which is not available to PERSI but that can be provided by the member.

**529.** -- **530.** (RESERVED)

#### 531. RETIREMENT APPLICATIONS.

Except as provided in this rule, a member is required to complete and submit an approved retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance. The member's signature must be notarized. The application

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

for retirement indicating the election made by the retiring member shall also be signed by the spouse certifying the spouse understands and consents to the election made by the member. The spouse's signature must be notarized. Until an application for retirement is filed, no benefit payment is required. Applications with retroactive retirement dates are entitled to lump sum payments and do not include interest.

## 532. PAYMENT DATE OF EARLY OR SERVICE RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE — GENERAL MEMBERS. (RESERVED)

As set forth by Section 59 1344, Idaho Code, a PERSI member's service retirement allowance or early retirement allowance is payable on the first of the month following the month in which the member ceases to be an employee while eligible for either of these forms of retirement.

Statutory References: Section 59 1344 and 59 1356(2), Idaho Code.

(3 31 22)

### 533. ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIAL WORKING FOR MULTIPLE STATE AGENCIES, POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS OR GOVERNMENT ENTITIES.

An active member separated from employment by one (1) state agency, political subdivision or government entity for whom he or she did normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week and who is age sixty-two (62) or older and eligible to retire but remains an elected or appointed official with a different state agency, political subdivision or government entity, may retire and continue in that elected or appointed position provided that position is one in which he or she does not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week. The member shall receive retirement allowances under the conditions provided by Section 538.

Statutory References: Sections 59-1344 and 59-1356(2), Idaho Code.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(

#### 534. ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIAL RETIRING IN PLACE.

An active member serving as an elected or appointed official who does not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week who is age sixty-two (62) or older and eligible to retire and who is not an eligible employee with another state agency, political subdivision or government entity pursuant to Section 101 may then retire and continue in that position. The member shall receive retirement allowances under the conditions provided by Section 538.

Statutory References: Sections 59-1344 and 59-1356(2), Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)(

#### 535. RESTRICTIONS ON REEMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED MEMBERS.(RESERVED)

There are no restrictions placed upon employment or earnings of retired members except with respect to employment by a state agency, political subdivision or government entity member of PERSI. Unless specified otherwise, the conditions of reemployment outlined in this subchapter apply for employment with any state agency, political subdivision or government entity member of the system.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)

#### 536. RETIRED MEMBER BECOMING AN ACTIVE MEMBER.

**Return to School District.** A PERSI retired member who qualifies to return to employment with a school district under Section 59-1356(4), Idaho Code, must return in the same job capacity to fulfill the intent of the statute, to fill hard-to-fill positions. A school teacher must return to work as a school teacher, a qualified bus driver must return to work as a bus driver, an administrator must return to work as an administrator.

(3 31 22)

#### 537. REEMPLOYMENT LESS THAN FIVE CONSECUTIVE MONTHS.

If the period of reemployment develops to be less than five (5) consecutive months, contributions will be refunded and retirement allowances will resume as of the date they were discontinued.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(

### 538. REEMPLOYMENT -- WORKING LESS THAN TWENTY HOURS OR LESS THAN FIVE CONSECUTIVE MONTHS.

Monthly retirement allowances will continue to be paid to the PERSI retired member who returns to employment in a position where the member does not normally work twenty (20) hours or more per week or the reemployment is for a period which does not total five (5) consecutive months and the state agency, political subdivision or government entity so certifies. In such cases, employee and employer contributions are neither required nor acceptable and no new retirement credits can be earned.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)(

#### 539. RETIRED MEMBER BECOMING AN ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIAL.

A PERSI retired member who is subsequently elected or appointed by an employer to public office and who is not normally required to perform services of twenty (20) hours or more per week in that position may continue to receive retirement allowances in the status of a reemployed retired member under conditions outlined by Section 537.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)( )

#### 540. SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT AFTER REEMPLOYMENT.

Upon subsequent separation from employment after reemployment, the member's original monthly retirement allowance will resume with appropriate cost-of-living adjustments plus the addition of a separate allowance computed with respect to salary and service credited during the reemployment period.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

#### 541. EARLY RETIREMENT MEMBER -- REEMPLOYMENT.

A PERSI member who had been receiving an early retirement allowance and who returns to employment as an active member may refund all retirement benefits previously paid plus regular interest accrued from the date each monthly allowance had been paid, thereby negating the previous retirement status. The month of last contribution prior to the negated retirement and the month of initial contribution upon return to active membership shall be considered consecutive months of contributions in the determination of an appropriate salary base period upon subsequent retirement.

Statutory Reference: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

<del>(3-31-22)</del>(\_\_\_\_

#### 542. BENEFIT ENHANCEMENT -- QUALIFICATION.

To qualify for a benefit enhancement, a person must remain an active member through the day following the effective date of the enhancement.

## 543. <u>- 544.</u> <u>POST RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE ADJUSTMENTS - PERSI</u> <u>RETIREES.</u>(RESERVED)

The Board shall annually determine the post retirement cost of living adjustment (COLA) for the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI) pursuant to Section 59-1355, Idaho Code. The Board shall have discretion in adopting a yearly discretionary and/or retro active COLA. The Board shall yearly adopt this COLA no later than the December Board meeting of each year with an effective date of March 1 of the next year.

Statutory References: Section 59-1355, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)

#### 544. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION TABLES.

The actuarial tables used for determining optional and early retirement benefits are as follows:

TABLE A - PAGE 1
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO
EARLY RETIREMENT FACTORS
If the date of last contribution is prior to 10/1/92
Months Years
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
0 1.00 .970 .940 .910 .880 .850 .770 .690 .610 .530 .450

	TABLE A - PAGE 1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO EARLY RETIREMENT FACTORS													
Months														
4 2	<del>.998</del> <del>.995</del>	<del>.968</del> <del>.965</del>	<del>.93</del> 8 <del>.935</del>	<del>.908</del> <del>.905</del>	<del>.878</del> <del>.875</del>	.843 .837	<del>.763</del> <del>.757</del>	.683 .677	. <del>597</del>	. <del>523</del> . <del>517</del>				
3 4	<del>.993</del> <del>.990</del>	<del>.963</del> <del>.960</del>	<del>.933</del> <del>.930</del>	<del>.903</del> <del>.900</del>	. <del>873</del> . <del>870</del>	. <del>830</del> . <del>823</del>	<del>.750</del> <del>.743</del>	<del>.670</del> <del>.663</del>	.590 .583	.510 .503				
5 6 7	<del>.988</del> <del>.985</del>	<del>.958</del> <del>.955</del>	<del>.928</del> <del>.925</del>	<del>.898</del> <del>.895</del>	<del>.868</del> <del>.865</del>	<del>.817</del> <del>.810</del> 803	<del>.737</del> <del>.730</del>	<del>.657</del> <del>.650</del>	<del>.577</del> <del>.570</del>	<del>.497</del> <del>.490</del>				
* 8 9														
10 11	.975 .973	.945 .943	.915 .913	.885 .883	.855 .853	.783 .777	<del>.703</del> <del>.697</del>	.623 .617	.543 .537	.463 .457				

First sixty months reduction: 0.2500% Next sixty months reduction: 0.6667%

(3 - 31 - 22)

## TABLE A PAGE 2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO EARLY RETIREMENT FACTORS

If the date of last contribution is on or after 10/1/92 but prior to 10/1/93

<b>Months</b>						<del>Yoars</del>					
	<b>a</b>	4	2	<del>sp</del>	4	μħ	ф	7	8	9	<del>10</del>
0	<del>1.00</del>	<del>.970</del>	<del>.940</del>	<del>.910</del>	<del>.880</del>	<del>.850</del>	<del>.777</del>	<del>.705</del>	<del>.632</del>	<del>.560</del>	<del>.487</del>
4	<del>.998</del>	<del>.968</del>	<del>.938</del>	<del>.908</del>	<del>.878</del>	<del>.844</del>	<del>.77</del> 1	<del>.699</del>	<del>.626</del>	<del>.554</del>	
2	<del>.99</del> 5	<del>.965</del>	<del>.935</del>	<del>.905</del>	<del>.875</del>	<del>.838</del>	<del>.765</del>	<del>.693</del>	<del>.620</del>	<del>.548</del>	
3	<del>.993</del>	<del>.963</del>	<del>.933</del>	<del>.903</del>	<del>.873</del>	<del>.832</del>	<del>.759</del>	<del>.687</del>	<del>.614</del>	<del>.542</del>	
4	<del>.990</del>	<del>.960</del>	<del>.930</del>	<del>.900</del>	<del>.870</del>	<del>.826</del>	<del>.753</del>	<del>.681</del>	<del>.608</del>	<del>.536</del>	
5	<del>.988</del>	<del>.958</del>	<del>.92</del> 8	<del>.898</del>	<del>.868</del>	<del>.820</del>	<del>.7</del> 47	<del>.675</del>	<del>.602</del>	<del>.530</del>	
6	<del>.985</del>	<del>.955</del>	<del>.925</del>	<del>.895</del>	<del>.865</del>	<del>.814</del>	<del>.741</del>	<del>.669</del>	<del>.596</del>	<del>.524</del>	
7	<del>.983</del>	<del>.953</del>	<del>.923</del>	<del>.893</del>	<del>.863</del>	<del>.808.</del>	<del>.735</del>	<del>.663</del>	<del>.590</del>	<del>.518</del>	
8	<del>.980</del>	<del>.950</del>	<del>.920</del>	<del>.890</del>	<del>.860</del>	<del>.802</del>	<del>.729</del>	<del>.657</del>	<del>.58</del> 4	<del>.512</del>	
9	<del>.978</del>	<del>.948</del>	<del>.918</del>	<del>.888.</del>	<del>.858</del>	<del>.796</del>	<del>.723</del>	<del>.651</del>	<del>.578</del>	<del>.506</del>	
<del>10</del>	<del>.975</del>	<del>.945</del>	<del>.915</del>	<del>.885</del>	<del>.855</del>	<del>.790</del>	<del>.717</del>	<del>.645</del>	<del>.572</del>	<del>.500</del>	
11	<del>.973</del>	<del>.943</del>	<del>.913</del>	<del>.883</del>	<del>.853</del>	<del>.78</del> 4	<del>.71</del> 1	<del>.639</del>	<del>.566</del>	<del>.494</del>	

First sixty months reduction: 0.2500% Next sixty months reduction: 0.6042%

(3-31-22)

	TABLE A PAGE 3  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO  EARLY RETIREMENT FACTORS  If the date of last contribution is on or after 10/1/93 but prior to 10/1/94													
<del>Months</del>	Months Years													
	0	4	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	<del>10</del>			
θ	<del>1.00</del>	<del>.970</del>	<del>.940</del>	<del>.910</del>	<del>.880</del>	<del>.850</del>	<del>.785</del>	<del>.720</del>	<del>.655</del>	<del>.590</del>	<del>.525</del>			
4	<del>.998</del>	<del>.968</del>	<del>.938</del>	<del>.908</del> .	<del>.878</del>	<del>.845</del>	<del>.780</del>	<del>.715</del>	<del>.650</del>	<del>.585</del>				
2	<del>.995</del>	<del>.965</del>	<del>.935</del>	<del>.905</del>	<del>.875</del>	<del>.839</del>	<del>.774</del>	<del>.709</del>	<del>.644</del>	<del>.579</del>				
3	<del>.993</del>	<del>.963</del>	<del>.933</del>	<del>.903</del>	<del>.873</del>	<del>.834</del>	<del>.769</del>	<del>.704</del>	<del>.639</del>	<del>.574</del>				
4	<del>.990</del>	<del>.960</del>	<del>.930</del>	<del>.900</del>	<del>.870</del>	<u>-828</u>	<del>.763</del>	<del>.698</del>	<del>.633</del>	<del>.568</del>				
5	<del>.988</del>	<del>.95</del> 8	<del>.928</del>	<del>.898</del> .	<del>.868</del>	<del>.823</del>	<del>.758</del>	<del>.693</del>	<del>.628</del>	<del>.563</del>				
Φ	<del>.985</del>	<del>.955</del>	<del>.925</del>	<del>.895</del>	<del>.865</del>	<del>.817</del>	<del>.752</del>	<del>.687</del>	<del>.622</del>	<del>.557</del>				
7	<del>.983</del>	<del>.953</del>	<del>.923</del>	<del>.893</del>	<del>.863</del>	<del>.812</del>	<del>.747</del>	<del>.682</del>	<del>.617</del>	<del>.552</del>				
Ф	<del>.980</del>	<del>.950</del>	<del>.920</del>	<del>.890</del>	<del>.860</del>	<del>.807</del>	<del>.742</del>	<del>.677</del>	<del>.612</del>	<del>.547</del>				
ð	<del>.978</del>	<del>.948</del>	<del>.918</del>	<del>.888</del> .	<del>.858</del>	<del>.801</del>	<del>.736</del>	<del>.671</del>	<del>.606</del>	<del>.541</del>				
<del>10</del>	<del>.975</del>	<del>.945</del>	<del>.915</del>	<del>.885</del>	<del>.855</del>	<del>.796</del>	<del>.731</del>	<del>.666</del>	<del>.601</del>	<del>.536</del>				
44	<del>.973</del>	<del>.943</del>	<del>.913</del>	<del>.883</del>	<del>.853</del>	<del>.790</del>	<del>.725</del>	<del>.660</del>	<del>.595</del>	<del>.530</del>				

First sixty months reduction: 0.2500% Next sixty months reduction: 0.5417%

(3 31 22)

	TABLE A PAGE 4  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO  EARLY RETIREMENT FACTORS  Date of last contribution is on or after 10/1/94 or later												
Months		Years											
	0	4	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	<del>10</del>		
0	<del>1.0</del>	<del>.970</del>	<del>.940</del>	<del>.910</del>	<del>.880</del>	<del>.850</del>	<del>.792</del>	<del>.735</del>	<del>.677</del>	<del>.620</del>	<del>.562</del>		
4	<del>.998</del>	<del>.968</del>	<del>.938</del>	<del>.908</del>	<del>.878</del>	<del>.845</del>	<del>.788</del>	<del>.730</del>	<del>.673</del>	<del>.615</del>			
2	<del>.995</del>	<del>.965</del>	<del>.935</del>	<del>.905</del>	<del>.875</del>	<del>.840</del>	<del>.783</del>	<del>.725</del>	<del>.668</del>	<del>.610</del>			
3	<del>.993</del>	<del>.963</del>	<del>.933</del>	<del>.903</del>	<del>.873</del>	<del>.836</del>	<del>.778</del>	<del>.721</del>	<del>.663</del>	<del>.606</del>			
4	<del>.990</del>	<del>.960</del>	<del>.930</del>	<del>.900</del>	<del>.870</del>	<del>.831</del>	<del>.773</del>	<del>.716</del>	<del>.658</del>	<del>.601</del>			
5	<del>.988</del>	<del>.95</del> 8	<del>.92</del> 8	<del>.89</del> 8	<del>.868</del>	<del>.826</del>	<del>.769</del>	<del>.7</del> 11	<del>.65</del> 4	<del>.596</del>			
6	<del>.985</del>	<del>.955</del>	<del>.925</del>	<del>.895</del>	<del>.865</del>	<del>.821</del>	<del>.764</del>	<del>.706</del>	<del>.649</del>	<del>.591</del>			
7	<del>.983</del>	<del>.953</del>	<del>.923</del>	<del>.893</del>	<del>.863</del>	<del>.816</del>	<del>.759</del>	<del>.701</del>	<del>.644</del>	<del>.586</del>			
8	<del>.980</del>	<del>.950</del>	<del>.920</del>	<del>.890</del>	<del>.860</del>	<del>.812</del>	<del>.75</del> 4	<del>.697</del>	<del>.639</del>	<del>.582</del>			
9	<del>.978</del>	<del>.948</del>	<del>.918</del>	<del>.888</del> .	<del>.858</del>	<del>.807</del>	<del>.749</del>	<del>.692</del>	<del>.634</del>	<del>.577</del>			

TABLE A PAGE 4
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO
EARLY RETIREMENT FACTORS
Date of last contribution is on or after 10/1/94 or later
-
Months Years
10 -975 -945 -915 -885 -855 -852 -745 -687 -630 -572
11 .973 .943 .913 .883 .853 .797 .740 .682 .625 .567

(3 31 22)

#### TABLE B - Page 1 **PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO** RETIREMENT REDUCTION FACTORS FOR OPTIONS 3 AND 4 AND CERTAIN DEATH BENEFITS Options 3 and 4: Years and Months Until Member Would Be Social Security Retirement Age Death Benefits: Additional Years and Months Until Member Would Qualifyfor an Unreduced Service Retirement Allowance **AFTER Applying Table A factors Months Years** o Ŧ \*\* 3 g 10 2 6 7 ø 1.00 <del>.923</del> <del>.853</del> <del>.787</del> <del>.727</del> <del>.671</del> <del>.620</del> <del>.572</del> <del>.528</del> <del>.488</del> <del>.451</del> 4 993 .917 .847 <del>.782</del> <del>.722</del> <del>.616</del> <del>.568</del> <del>.525</del> <del>.485</del> <del>.667</del> .521 <del>.987</del> <del>.9</del>11 <del>.841</del> .777 <del>.717</del> <del>.612</del> <del>.565</del> .481 2 <del>.662</del> <del>.980</del> <del>.905</del> <del>.836</del> <del>.713</del> <del>.561</del> <del>.518</del> <del>.478</del> 3 <del>.772</del> <del>.658</del> <del>.608</del> <del>.974</del> <del>.899</del> <del>.830</del> <del>.708</del> <del>.654</del> <del>.604</del> <del>.515</del> <del>.475</del> 4 <del>.767</del> <del>.557</del> .649 .511 5 <del>.967</del> <del>.893</del> <del>.825</del> <del>.762</del> <del>.703</del> <del>.600</del> <del>.55</del>4 .472 <del>.819</del> <del>.699</del> <del>.645</del> <del>.469</del> 6 <del>.961</del> <del>.887</del> <del>.756</del> <del>.596</del> <del>.550</del> <del>.508</del> <del>.881</del> <del>.814</del> <del>.694</del> <del>.641</del> <del>.592</del> <del>.546</del> <del>.504</del> <del>.466</del> <del>.955</del> <del>.75</del>1 8 <del>.948</del> <del>.876</del> <del>.808</del>. <del>.746</del> <del>.689</del> <del>.636</del> <del>.588</del> .543 .501 .463 g <del>.942</del> <del>.870</del> <del>.803</del> <del>.742</del> <del>.685</del> <del>.632</del> <del>.584</del> <del>.539</del> <del>.498</del> <del>.460</del>

- <del>(3-31-22)</del>

<del>.680</del>

<del>.676</del>

<del>.628</del>

.624

<del>.580</del>

.576

<del>.535</del>

<del>.532</del>

<del>.494</del>

.491

<del>.457</del>

.454

<del>.936</del>

<del>.930</del>

<del>.864</del>

<del>.858</del>

<del>.798</del>

.793

<del>.737</del>

<del>.732</del>

<del>10</del>

77

#### **TABLE B - Page 2**

#### **PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO**

RETIREMENT REDUCTION FACTORS FOR OPTIONS 3 AND 4 AND CERTAIN DEATH BENEFITS

Options 3 and 4: Years and Months Until Member Would Be Social Security Retirement Age
Death Benefits: Additional Years and Months Until Member Would Qualify

for an Unreduced Service Retirement Allowance
AFTER Applying Table A factors

<b>Months</b>						<del>Years</del>					
	<del>10</del>	<b>11</b>	<del>12</del>	<del>13</del>	<del>14</del>	<del>15</del>	<del>16</del>	<del>17</del>	<del>18</del>	<del>19</del>	<del>20</del>
0	<del>.451</del>	<del>.416</del>	<del>.384</del>	<del>.355</del>	<del>.327</del>	<del>.302</del>	<del>.279</del>	<del>.258</del>	<del>.238</del>	<del>.220</del>	<del>.203</del>
4	<del>.448</del>	<del>.413</del>	<del>.382</del>	<del>.352</del>	<del>.325</del>	<del>.300</del>	<del>.277</del>	<del>.256</del>	<del>.236</del>	<del>.218</del>	
2	<del>.445</del>	<del>.411</del>	<del>.379</del>	<del>.350</del>	<del>.323</del>	<del>.298</del>	<del>.276</del>	<del>.254</del>	<del>.235</del>	<del>.217</del>	
3	<del>.442</del>	<del>.408</del>	<del>.377</del>	<del>.348</del>	<del>.321</del>	<del>.296</del>	<del>.274</del>	<del>.253</del>	<del>.233</del>	<del>.215</del>	
4	<del>.439</del>	<del>.405</del>	<del>.37</del> 4	<del>.345</del>	<del>.319</del>	<del>.29</del> 4	<del>.272</del>	<del>.25</del> 1	<del>.232</del>	<del>.21</del> 4	
<b>ሲ</b>	<del>.436</del>	<del>.402</del>	<del>.372</del>	<del>.343</del>	<del>.317</del>	<del>.293</del>	<del>.270</del>	<del>.249</del>	<del>.230</del>	<del>.213</del>	
6	<del>.433</del>	<del>.400</del>	<del>.369</del>	<del>.341</del>	<del>.315</del>	<del>.291</del>	<del>.268</del>	<del>.248</del>	<del>.229</del>	<del>.211</del>	
7	<del>.430</del>	<del>.397</del>	<del>.367</del>	<del>.339</del>	.313	<del>.289</del>	<del>.267</del>	<del>.246</del>	<del>.227</del>	<del>.210</del>	
8	<del>.427</del>	<del>.394</del>	<del>.364</del>	<del>.336</del>	<del>.311</del>	<del>.287</del>	<del>.265</del>	<del>.244</del>	<del>.226</del>	<del>.208</del>	
9	<del>.42</del> 4	<del>.392</del>	<del>.362</del>	<del>.33</del> 4	<del>.308</del>	<del>.285</del>	<del>.263</del>	<del>.243</del>	<del>.224</del>	<del>.207</del>	
<del>10</del>	<u>.422</u>	<del>.389</del>	<del>.359</del>	<del>.332</del>	<del>.306</del>	<del>.283</del>	<del>.261</del>	<del>.2</del> 41	<del>.223</del>	<del>.206</del>	

(3 31 22)

#### TABLE B - Page 3

<del>.281</del>

<del>.260</del>

<del>.240</del>

<del>.221</del>

<del>.204</del>

<del>.304</del>

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO
RETIREMENT REDUCTION FACTORS FOR OPTIONS 3 AND 4

**AND CERTAIN DEATH BENEFITS** 

Options 3 and 4: Years and Months Until Member

Would Be Social Security Retirement Age

Death Benefits: Additional Years and Months Until Member Would Qualify for an Unreduced Service Retirement Allowance

**AFTER Applying Table A Factors** 

Months .			Ye	<del>ars</del>		
	<del>20</del>	<del>21</del>	<del>22</del>	<del>23</del>	<del>2</del> 4	<del>25</del>
9	<del>.203</del>	<del>.187</del>	<del>.173</del>	<del>.160</del>	<del>.148</del>	<del>.136</del>
4	<del>.202</del>	<del>.186</del>	<del>.172</del>	<del>.159</del>	<del>.147</del>	<del>.135</del>
2	<del>.200</del>	<del>.185</del>	<del>.171</del>	<del>.158</del>	<del>.146</del>	<del>.134</del>
3	<del>.199</del>	<del>.184</del>	<del>.170</del>	<del>.157</del>	<del>.145</del>	<del>.134</del>
4	<del>.198</del>	<del>.183</del>	<del>.169</del>	<del>.156</del>	.144	<del>.133</del>

.419

.387

<del>.357</del>

<del>.330</del>

11

#### TABLE B - Page 3

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO
RETIREMENT REDUCTION FACTORS FOR OPTIONS 3 AND 4
AND CERTAIN DEATH BENEFITS

Options 3 and 4: Years and Months Until Member-Would Be Social Security Retirement Age

Death Benefits: Additional Years and Months Until Member Would Qualifyfor an Unroduced Service Retirement Allowance AFTER Applying Table A Factors

<del>Months</del>			Ye	a <del>rs</del>		
5	<del>.196</del>	<del>.181</del>	<del>.167</del>	<del>.155</del>	<del>.143</del>	<del>.132</del>
6	<del>.195</del>	<del>.180</del>	<del>.166</del>	<del>.154</del>	<del>.142</del>	<del>.131</del>
7	<del>.19</del> 4	<del>.179</del>	<del>.165</del>	<del>.153</del>	<del>.141</del>	<del>.130</del>
8	<del>.192</del>	<del>.178</del>	<del>.164</del>	<del>.152</del>	<del>.140</del>	<del>.129</del>
9	<del>.191</del>	<del>.177</del>	<del>.163</del>	<del>.151</del>	<del>.139</del>	<del>.128</del>
<del>10</del>	<del>.190</del>	<del>.175</del>	<del>.162</del>	<del>.150</del>	<del>.138</del>	<del>.127</del>
44	<del>.189</del>	<del>.174</del>	<del>.161</del>	<del>.149</del>	<del>.137</del>	<del>.127</del>

(3 31 22)

# TABLE C Page 1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO CONTINGENT ANNUITANT FACTORS For persons retiring before July 1, 1995

	Age Difference in Years	Factors -		
		Option 1 Option 2		
	<del>15*</del>	<del>0.600</del>	<del>0.750</del>	
	14	<del>0.610</del>	<del>0.758</del>	
	<del>13</del>	<del>0.621</del>	<del>0.766</del>	
	<del>12</del>	<del>0.631</del>	<del>0.775</del>	
		<del>0.642</del>	<del>0.782</del>	
<del>Member</del>	<del>10</del>	<del>0.652</del>	<del>0.789</del>	
<del>Older</del>	9	<del>0.663</del>	<del>0.797</del>	
<del>Than</del>	<del>Q</del>	<del>0.674</del>	<del>0.804</del>	
Contingent Annuitant	7	<del>0.685</del>	<del>0.812</del>	
	Φ	<del>0.697</del>	<del>0.821</del>	
	5	<del>0.708</del>	<del>0.830</del>	
	4	<del>0.720</del>	0.838	
	3	<del>0.732</del>	<del>0.846</del>	

TABLE C - Page 1  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO  CONTINGENT ANNUITANT FACTORS  For persons retiring before July 1, 1995				
	Age Difference in Years	Fac	<del>lors</del>	
	2	0.746	<del>0.855</del>	
	4	<del>0.762</del>	<del>0.865</del>	
	9	<del>0.780</del>	<del>0.876</del>	
	4	<del>0.799</del>	<del>0.887</del>	
	2	<del>0.823</del>	<del>0.902</del>	
	3	<del>0.836</del>	<del>0.910</del>	
	4	0.847	<del>0.918</del>	
	5	<del>0.856</del>	<del>0.92</del> 4	
Member	6	<del>0.865</del>	<del>0.930</del>	
Younger	7	<del>0.873</del>	<del>0.935</del>	
Than	8	0.881	0.940	
Contingent Annuitant	9	<del>0.888</del>	<del>0.944</del>	
	<del>10</del>	<del>0.897</del>	<del>0.949</del>	
	11	<del>0.906</del>	0.955	
	<del>12</del>	<del>0.916</del>	<del>0.961</del>	
	<del>13</del>	<del>0.926</del>	<del>0.967</del>	
	14	0. <del>93</del> 4	<del>0.969</del>	
	<del>15 or more</del>	<del>0.940</del>	<del>0.970</del>	

\*For each year the member is more than fifteen (15) years older than the contingent annuitant subtract .01 from the factor for Option 1 and subtract .006 from the factor for Option 2. (3-31-22)

TABLE C Page 2					
PUBLI	C EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT S		<del>O</del>		
_	CONTINGENT ANNUITANT	r July 1 1005			
	or porcone rouning on or and	ı — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —			
	Age Difference in Years	Fac	<del>lors</del>		
		Option 1	Option 2		
	<del>15 *</del>	<del>0.690</del>	<del>0.810</del>		
	14	0.700	<del>0.816</del>		
	13	0.710	<del>0.822</del>		

#### PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO **CONTINGENT ANNUITANT FACTORS** For persons retiring on or after July 1, 1995 **Age Difference in Years Factors** 12 0.720 0.828 44 0.834 0.730 <del>10</del> <del>Member</del> 0.735 0.840 9 0.740 Older 0.846 8 0.745 <del>0.852</del> Than Contingent Annuitant 0.750 0.858 0.755 0.864 6 5 0.760 0.870 4 0.765 0.876 3 0.770 0.882 0.785 0.888 4 0.800 0.894 θ 0.815 0.900

Ŧ

2 3

\*

5

6

7

8

9

10

44

<del>12</del>

13

44

15 or more

0.835

0.855

0.875

0.890

<del>0.900</del>

<del>0.910</del>

0.920

<del>0.930</del>

0.940

0.944

<del>0.946</del>

0.948

0.950

0.952

0.954

0.915

0.925

0.935

0.945 0.950

<del>0.955</del>

0.960

0.965

0.967

0.969

0.971

0.973

0.975

0.977

0.979

TABLE C - Page 2

Member Younger

Than
Contingent Annuitant

<sup>\*</sup>For each year the member is more than fifteen (15) years older than the contingent annuitant subtract .01 from the

factor for Option 1 and subtract .006 from the factor for Option 2. (Amended 96)

(3-31-22)

TABLE C Page 3  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO CONTINGENT ANNUITANT FACTORS For persons retiring on or after July 1, 2011				
	Age Difference in Years	Factors -		
		Option 1	Option 2	
	<del>15</del> *	<del>0.729</del>	<del>0.851</del>	
	14	<del>0.736</del>	<del>0.856</del>	
	<del>13</del>	<del>0.743</del>	<del>0.861</del>	
	<del>12</del>	<del>0.750</del>	<del>0.866</del>	
	11	<del>0.757</del>	<del>0.871</del>	
Member	<del>10</del>	<del>0.764</del>	<del>0.876</del>	
<del>Older</del>	9	<del>0.771</del>	<del>0.881</del>	
Than	8	<del>0.778</del>	<del>0.886</del>	
Contingent Annuitant	7	<del>0.785</del>	<del>0.891</del>	
	6	<del>0.792</del>	<del>0.896</del>	
	5	<del>0.799</del>	<del>0.902</del>	
	4	0.808	0.908	
	3	<del>0.818</del>	0.914	
	2	<del>0.833</del>	<del>0.920</del>	
	4	0.848	<del>0.926</del>	
	0	0.863	<del>0.932</del>	
	4	<del>0.875</del>	0.938	
	2	<del>0.887</del>	0.944	
	3	0.895	0.949	
	4	<del>0.902</del>	0.954	
	5	0.909	0.959	
Member	6	<del>0.916</del>	<del>0.963</del>	
Younger	7	0.923	<del>0.966</del>	
Than	8	0.930	<del>0.968</del>	
Contingent Annuitant	9	0.940	<del>0.970</del>	
	<del>10</del>	0.944	<del>0.972</del>	
	11	<del>0.946</del>	0.974	

TABLE C Page 3  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO  CONTINGENT ANNUITANT FACTORS  For persons retiring on or after July 1, 2011				
	Age Difference in Years	Fac	<del>lors</del>	
	<del>12</del>	<del>0.948</del>	<del>0.976</del>	
	<del>13</del>	<del>0.950</del>	<del>0.978</del>	
	14	<del>0.952</del>	<del>0.980</del>	
	<del>15 or more</del>	<del>0.954</del>	<del>0.982</del>	

<sup>\*</sup>For each year the member is more than fifteen (15) years older than the contingent annuitant subtract .01 from the factor for Option 1 and subtract .01 from the factor for Option 2. (3-31-22)

#### 545. PRE-ERISA VESTING RULES

545.	PKE-E	RISA VESTING RULES.	
termina	01. ation or up	<b>Termination or Partial Termination</b> . Upon the effective date of any termination or on a complete discontinuation of contributions:	partia (
	a.	No persons who were not theretofore members shall be eligible to become members;	(
	b.	No further benefits shall accrue; and	(
immed	<b>c.</b> iately bec	The accrued benefits of all members not theretofore vested and not theretofore forfeite ome fully vested.	d shal
<b>546.</b> Forfeit		EITURES. not be applied to increase the benefits any employee would otherwise receive under the Base	Plan.

#### 547. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS TO BE SPECIFIED.

Whenever the amount of any Base Plan benefit is to be determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions, such assumptions will be specified in rule in a manner that precludes employer discretion.

#### 548. COMPENSATION LIMIT. (RESERVED)

- **91. Limit.** Except for members of the system prior to July 1, 1996, as provided in Section 59-1302(31)(B), Idaho Code, the annual compensation of each participant taken into account in determining benefit accruals in any plan year beginning after December 31, 2001, shall not exceed two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000). Annual compensation means compensation during the calendar year (the determination period). In determining benefit accruals for determination periods beginning before January 1, 2002, compensation shall be two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000).
- **92.** Limit Adjustment. The two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000) limit on annual compensation in Subsection 548.01 shall be adjusted for cost of living increases in accordance with Section 401(a)(17)(B) of the IRS Code. The cost-of-living adjustment in effect for a calendar year applies to annual compensation for the determination period that begins with or within such calendar year.

  (3-31-22)

#### 549. DEFINED BENEFIT DOLLAR LIMITATION.

The "defined benefit dollar limitation" is one hundred sixty thousand dollars (\$160,000), as adjusted, effective January 1 of each year thereafter, under Section 415(d) of the IRS Code in such manner as the Secretary shall prescribe, and payable in the form of a straight life annuity. A limitation as adjusted under Section 415(d) will apply to limitation years ending with or within the calendar year for which the adjustment applies. The "maximum permissible benefit" is the defined benefit dollar limitation (adjusted where required, as provided in Subsection

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

549.01 and, if ap	oplicable, in Subsections 549.02 through 549.04 of these rules).	(3-31-22)()
01. the plan, the defi	<b>Less Than Ten Years of Service</b> . If the participant has fewer than ten (10) years of ined benefit dollar limitation shall be multiplied by a fraction:	of participation in
a.	The numerator of which is the number of years (or part thereof) of participation in	the plan; and
<b>b.</b>	The denominator of which is ten (10).	( )
dollar limitation The defined benerogulation under	Benefit Begins Prior to Age Sixty Two. If the benefit of a participant begins prior benefit dollar limitation applicable to the participant at such earlier age is an annustraight life annuity beginning at the earlier age that is the actuarial equivalent of the applicable to the participant at age sixty two (62) (adjusted under Subsection 54) effit dollar limitation applicable at an age prior to age sixty two (62) is determined a section 415(b)(2) of the IRS Code. This Subsection 549.02 does not apply to participant of credited service for which the member was classified as a police officer	al benefit payable ne defined benefit
benefit payable defined benefit d if required). The	Benefit Begins at Age Sixty-Five. If the benefit of a participant begins after the possible, the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the participant at the later in the form of a straight life annuity beginning at the later age that is actuarially dollar limitation applicable to the participant at age sixty-five (65) (adjusted under Sectionarial equivalent of the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable at an age at ed as set forth in IRS regulation under section 415(b)(2) of the IRS Code.	age is the annual equivalent to the ubsection 549.01,
an accrued benef	<b>Transition</b> . Benefit increases resulting from the increase in the limitations of section provided to all current and former participants (with benefits limited by section at under the plan immediately prior to the effective date of this Section (other than a benefit increase solely as a result of the increases in limitations under section 415(b)	415(b)) who have in accrued benefit
550. COMP	UTATION OF BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES OF WITHDRAWN EMPLOY	ER.
01. governmental en the date of comp	<b>PERSI's Responsibility</b> . PERSI's responsibility to a withdrawing political tity or its employees is limited to the vested accrued actuarial benefits of the system elete withdrawal, Section 59-1326(10), Idaho Code.	
calculated in ac	Withdrawal Liability Calculations. On the occasion that a withdrawing politic nitity fails to pay, in full with accrued interest from date of withdrawal, the withdrawal section 59-1326(7), Idaho Code, PERSI shall exhaust all efforturawal liability as follows:	thdrawal liability
<b>a.</b> at date of withdr	Collect the full withdrawal liability from withdrawing political subdivision or go awal. If full withdrawal liability is not paid, then;	vernmental entity
	Contract with withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity, in accord file a lien on the assets of the withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entitude to timely made or assets are insufficient or unavailable, then;	ance with section ntity. If scheduled
	PERSI will pursue collection efforts against the authorizing state agency, political tity that caused the withdrawing political subdivision or governmental entity to be a are ineffective, then;	
	PERSI will cause an actuarial study to be performed for the withdrawing politicatity and its employees to determine the actuarial value of the accrued benefits at the employee's benefit to match funded status.	

#### 551. COMPUTING VALUE OF SICK LEAVE.

For those members who accrue sick leave based upon each month of service, the rate of pay for purposes of computing the monetary value of a retired member's unused sick leave as outlined in Sections 59-1365, 67-5333, and 33-2109A, Idaho Code, shall be the base hourly rate of compensation reported by the employer during the month of separation from employment prior to retirement, not including any temporary increases, bonuses, or payoffs. For those members employed on a contract basis under Section 33-1228, Idaho Code, the rate of pay for purposes of computing the monetary value of a retiring member's unused sick leave based upon each month of service shall be determined at a daily rate by dividing the annual contract amount by the required days of work. No temporary increases, bonuses or payoffs shall be included in the contract amount. Where the daily rate is affected by changes in the work week such as adoption of a four (4) day work week or similar events, adjustments shall be made to convert the daily rate to maintain equity within the pool. No other forms of leave may be converted to sick leave or otherwise considered in computing the value of unused sick leave.

#### 552. SICK LEAVE FUNDING RATES.

The sick leave pools shall be funded by employer contributions as follows:

- **01. State Agencies and Junior College Districts.** All employer groups participating in the pools established by Sections 33-2109A and 67-5333, Idaho Code, shall contribute point sixty-five percent (.65%) of employee covered payroll.
- **02. Schools.** All employer groups participating in the pool established by Section 33-1228, Idaho Code, shall contribute the percentage of employee covered payroll based on the number of days of paid sick leave permitted during the contract year for certified teachers as set forth in the following table:

Beginning:	July 1, 2006
9-10 days	1.16%
11-14 days	1.26%
More than 14 days	Individual rate to be set by the Retirement Board based on current cost and actuarial data and reviewed annually

Where a four (4) day work week or similar policies have been adopted, adjustments shall be made to convert the number of days of paid sick leave to the contribution level necessary to maintain equity within the pool.

**03. Subdivisions.** All political subdivision or government entity groups participating in the pool established by Section 59-1365, Idaho Code, shall make contributions as provided in Section 578.

#### 553. LIMITATION ON INSURANCE PROGRAMS.

The health, accident, and life insurance programs maintained by state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities as outlined in Sections 59-1365, 33-1228, and 33-2109A, Idaho Code, are limited to plans where the policy holder is the state agency, political subdivision or government entity or a consortium of state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities. Insurance programs outlined in Section 67-5333, Idaho Code, shall be maintained by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity. The board may require plans to sign an agreement before participating.

#### 554. PAYMENT OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS.

Upon certification by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity and the insurance carrier that a plan qualifies under Section 553 of this subchapter, the board may pay the monthly premiums for a retired member using unused sick leave account funds as prescribed by Idaho Code.

- **01. Adjustments**. Coverage and premium changes or adjustments must be submitted to PERSI no less than thirty (30) days prior to their effective date unless PERSI has previously agreed in writing to a shorter period.
- **02. Duration of Payments.** Premium payments will continue to be made from the unused sick leave account until credits are insufficient to make a premium payment, or until the retiree's death, whichever first occurs.

(

#### 555. SEPARATION BY REASON OF RETIREMENT.

Unused sick leave benefits are credited only to employees who are eligible to retire at the time they separate from the state agency, political subdivision or government entity. When an employee separates from service and does not immediately retire, unused sick leave benefits are credited to the member but not available for use unless the member actually retires without intervening employment resulting in PERSI participation. The existence of available unused sick leave credits does not necessarily mean they are usable. A member must also be eligible to participate in the retiree plan offered by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity from which the member retired. Except for school district employees transferring from one (1) district to another, unused sick leave credits may not be transferred from one (1) state agency, political subdivision or government entity to another. If a member negates their retirement under Section 541 and returns to work for a new PERSI state agency, political subdivision or government entity, unused sick leave credits are also negated and eligibility for unused sick leave credits must be reestablished with the new state agency, political subdivision or government entity.

#### 556. PROHIBITION AGAINST CASH OPTION.

All state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities participating in any PERSI administered sick leave pool are prohibited from offering or permitting any employee to convert unused sick leave to cash, other forms of leave, or any other benefit, even if the employee is not eligible to receive credits. Failure to comply with this prohibition will result in the state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities inability to participate in PERSI administered unused sick leave pools.

#### 557. -- 575. (RESERVED)

#### 576. PARTICIPATION IN SUBDIVISION UNUSED SICK LEAVE POOL.

Any PERSI state agency, political subdivision or government entity meeting the following requirements may elect to participate in the unused sick leave pool authorized by Section 59-1365, Idaho Code: ( )

- **01. No Current Plan.** The state agency, political subdivision or government entity does not participate in any other statutorily created plan that offers benefits for unused sick leave, including but not limited to, those plans created under Sections 33-1228, 33-2109, and 67-5333, Idaho Code.
- **02.** All Inclusive Participation. All of a participating state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities employees who are PERSI members and who accrue sick leave must be participants in the plan, except that state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities may exclude certain distinctive classes of employees for legitimate business reasons. For example, a city could exclude employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement, or a county may choose to exclude elected officials.
- **03.** No Other Options for Unused Sick Leave. No employee may be given any option to receive benefits from unused sick leave other than through this plan. For example, no employee, other than those properly excluded under Subsection 576.02, may be given the option of exchanging sick leave for cash or other forms of payment or leave.
- **04. Fixed Annual Accrual of Sick Leave**. State agency, political subdivision or government entity must comply with a policy that offers a fixed amount of sick leave annually that is applicable to all employees or employee groups. A "personal leave" option that fails to distinguish between sick, vacation, or other forms of leave is not permitted.
- **05. Medicare Eligible Retirees**. State agencies, political subdivisions or government entities plan must provide coverage to all retired employees eligible for unused sick leave credits, including retirees that become Medicare eligible.
- **06. Annual Application**. State agency, political subdivision or government entity must annually update and submit an application for participation in the Subdivision Unused Sick Leave Pool on the form prescribed by PERSI.

#### 577. OPERATION OF SUBDIVISION POOL.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

Upon separation from employment by retirement, in accordance with Chapter 13, Title 59, Idaho Code, every employee of a participating state agency, political subdivision or government entity shall, upon payment by the state agency, political subdivision or government entity under Section 578, receive a credit for unused sick leave in the same manner and under the same terms as provided in Section 67-5333(1), Idaho Code.

#### 578. FUNDING OF SUBDIVISION POOL.

Participating state agencies, political subdivisions or government entities shall, within ten (10) days of retiree's last day in pay status, pay to PERSI a sum equal to the retiree's unused sick leave credit, together with any administrative fees the board may require. Investment earnings on funds paid into this pool will remain in the pool, together with any reversions due to the death of a retiree, and may be used by the board to pay some or all administrative costs.

#### 579. TERMINATION, WITHDRAWAL, OR REMOVAL FROM SUBDIVISION POOL.

Any state agency, political subdivision or government entity failing to meet the requirements of participation provided by Section 576 shall be terminated from participation in the Subdivision Pool. Any state agency, political subdivision or government entity failing to meet the funding requirements provided by Section 578 shall be terminated from participation in the Subdivision Pool, provided however, a state agency, political subdivision or government entity may submit a detailed explanation for its failure to meet the funding requirements as required in Section 578 and subject to PERSI approval. State agencies, political subdivisions or government entities that have withdrawn or have been terminated shall not be allowed to rejoin.

580. -- <del>599</del>600. (RESERVED)

#### 600. PAYMENT DATE OF RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE FOR FRF MEMBERS.

A paid firefighter who retires under the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code, is entitled to a retirement allowance computed from the date following separation from employment, payable at the end of the calendar month following separation from employment.

(3-31-22)

#### 601. FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE.

Notwithstanding Sections 525 and 526 of this subchapter, the retirement allowances of firefighter members, as defined by Section 59-1391(b), Idaho Code, shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code.

#### 602. REEMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED FRF FIREFIGHTER.

A paid firefighter retired under the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, (FRF), Idaho Code, who returns to employment as a paid firefighter with the same fire department from which retired shall be considered reemployed in the manner provided for PERSI members by Section 59-1356(1), Idaho Code. Retirement benefits shall then terminate and contributions shall again commence under conditions specified prior to retirement. The terminated benefit shall resume upon subsequent retirement with adjustments made in the manner prescribed by Section 59-1356(1), Idaho Code, as they would apply to the member's retirement benefit entitlement computed under the provisions of Chapter 14, Title 72, Idaho Code.

Statutory References: Section 59-1356, Idaho Code.

(3-31-22)(

#### 603. -- 624. (RESERVED)

#### 625. PURCHASE OF SERVICE GENERALLY.

No member may purchase more than forty-eight (48) months of membership service, whether purchased under Section 59-1362, or 59-1363, Idaho Code, or a combination thereof. In all cases, the cost of purchasing service shall be the full actuarial costs, as determined by the board, of providing additional benefits resulting from the purchased service. Service may only be purchased at the time of retirement. In no event can a member revoke a purchase of service after payment has been made.

#### **626.** TIME OF RETIREMENT.

Within ninety (90) days before a member's effective date of retirement, the member may request the cost of service to be purchased. Costs provided for purchased service are valid only for the effective date requested. Purchased service will be calculated into the member's benefit only to the extent that it is paid by the effective date. In no event shall service be credited for which payment has not been made. Service may be purchased with after-tax dollars or with

eligible rollover distributions. The member's service class at the time of purchase determines the class of service that may be purchased.

#### 627. RETIREMENT DELAYED OR NEGATED AFTER PURCHASE.

If a member purchases service and thereafter revokes their application for retirement or negates their retirement as provided in Rule 541, the contributions made to purchase the service shall remain in the system until a distributable event occurs. If the distributable event results in payment of a monthly retirement benefit or an optional death benefit, the purchase price of the service previously purchased will be recalculated based on factors existing on the date the new benefit becomes effective. If, based on the new factors, the purchase price is higher than previously determined, the number of months purchased will be reduced to reflect the higher cost unless the member elects to pay the difference. If the purchase price is lower, the difference will be paid to the member as a lump-sum payment within sixty (60) days after the date of retirement unless the member elects to convert the difference into additional months and can do so without exceeding the forty-eight (48) month limit, the IRS limit referenced in Subsection 705.05, or any other statutory limitation, including the limitation in Section 59-1342(6), Idaho Code.

#### 628. TREATMENT OF PURCHASE OF SERVICE CONTRIBUTIONS.

Contributions made for purposes of purchasing service, and interest earnings thereon, are not considered for purposes of determining death benefits under Section 59-1361(3), Idaho Code, and distributions under Section 59-1309(5), Idaho Code. When determining death benefits under Section 59-1361(3), Idaho Code, first calculate two hundred percent (200%) of accumulated contributions, excluding contributions and interest related to purchased service, then add member contributions and interest related to purchased service. Member contributions and interest will also be included in any separation benefit. In no event shall employer contributions for purchased service be included in any separation benefit or lump-sum death benefit.

#### 629. EMPLOYER PARTICIPATION.

State agency, political subdivision or government entity participation must be in the form of lump-sum payments at the time of retirement. In the event a state agency, political subdivision or government entity makes a contribution on behalf of a member and a distribution other than periodic payments occurs prior to the actual retirement effective date, the state agency, political subdivision or government entity may claim a credit against future contributions equal to the amount of the contribution. State agency, political subdivision or government entity contributions must be accompanied by or preceded by a written statement endorsed by the governing body or officer of the state agency, political subdivision or government entity verifying that the participation is properly authorized and that the state agency, political subdivision or government entity indemnifies PERSI against any loss resulting from failure of the state agency, political subdivision or government entity, or any person acting on its behalf, to act within its authority.

#### 630. ADDITIONAL LIMITS ON PURCHASED SERVICE.

The Internal Revenue Code imposes limits on the amount of retirement benefits that can be paid to a retiree under a defined benefit plan. Benefits acquired through purchase of service are subject to these limits for some purposes. In no event can a member purchase service that would result in the member exceeding the limits imposed in Section 415(n)(1)(A) of the IRS Code. In addition, a member's initial retirement benefit, including purchased service, continues to be subject to the limitation in Section 59-1342(6), Idaho Code.

631. -- 649. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER G – PERSI GAIN SHARING RULES Rules 650 through 755

#### 650. EXISTENCE OF EXTRAORDINARY GAINS.

The existence of extraordinary gains triggers the possibility that allocations will be made as provided in Section 59-1309, Idaho Code. However, the existence of extraordinary gains does not obligate the retirement board to make an allocation. The Board may choose not to allocate extraordinary gains, or it may choose to allocate all or part of the extraordinary gains. Extraordinary gains exist when, at the close of the fiscal year, the value of plan assets exceeds plan liabilities as determined by the actuary, plus a sum necessary to absorb a one (1) standard deviation market event without increasing contribution rates, as determined by the Board. The amount of extraordinary gains available for possible distribution equals the amount by which the assets exceed the sum of the liabilities and the one standard deviation.

#### 651. VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS.

This is the total assets held in the PERSI base plan, as reported in the actuarial valuation at the end of the fiscal year.

#### 652. PLAN LIABILITIES.

This is the actuarial liability of the PERSI base plan, including but not limited to, the cost of the proposed COLA to be effective in March following the close of the fiscal year, the cost of any benefit enhancements to the base plan approved by the legislature, and the cost of actuarial gains and losses, as reported in the actuarial valuation for the fiscal year.

#### 653. ONE STANDARD DEVIATION.

This is the amount of reserve necessary to absorb normal market fluctuations and is a function of the risk associated with investment holdings and strategies, and will be determined by the Board based on those factors.

#### 654. BOARD DISCRETION.

The Board retains full discretion in determining whether to allocate extraordinary gains when they exist. Because of the broad range of factors that might be relevant to such a determination, and to assure that the Board will not be limited in exercising its discretion, these rules do not attempt to identify any of the factors that might be considered in the Board's fiduciary capacity. When extraordinary gains exist, the Board will decide whether they will be allocated no later than the first day of December following the end of the fiscal year. Such decision shall be in writing and shall constitute an amendment to the plan document for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any successor thereto. In the absence of any such decision, the allocation for that year shall be zero (0.00).

#### 655. -- 674. (RESERVED)

#### 675. ALLOCATION BETWEEN GROUPS.

If extraordinary gains exist, and the Board determines that all or part of such gains should be allocated, an allocation will be made among the three (3) groups identified by Section 59-1309, Idaho Code. The three (3) groups and allocations are:

- a. Active PERSI members 38 percent (38%); (1)
- **b.** PERSI retirees twelve percent (12%); and
- c. PERSI employers fifty percent (50%)

#### 676. -- 699. (RESERVED)

#### 700. ACTIVE MEMBER ALLOCATION.

After the amount to be allocated to the active member group has been determined, it shall be allocated among the members of the group. The active member allocation determines each member's initial share before considering any applicable individual limits. Each member's initial share shall be determined by dividing that member's accumulated contributions in the base plan at the close of the fiscal year by the total accumulated contributions in the base plan of all members of the group at the close of the fiscal year, multiplied by the amount allocated to the active member group. In no event shall a member's initial share, before considering individual limits, exceed the maximum annual contribution limit under Section 415(c) of the IRS Code applicable for the limitation year.

#### 701. MINIMUM ALLOCATION AMOUNT.

Due to the costs associated with maintaining individual choice accounts, no allocation shall be made to any member whose allocation share does not exceed thirty-eight dollars (\$38) after considering individual limits, unless the member had a PERSI choice account on the last day of the fiscal year and has not withdrawn funds before the allocation date.

#### 702. ACTIVE MEMBER.

A member participates in the active member allocation only if he is an active member as defined in this subchapter. Whenever a member is placed on leave of absence under circumstances making that member eligible for benefits

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

under USERRA, the employer shall notify PERSI in writing within thirty (30) days and attach a copy of the member's orders. A member participates in the active member allocation only if such member is active and has at least twelve (12) months of accrued membership service on the last day of the fiscal year. For purposes of allocating extraordinary gains, active members also include:

- a. Seasonal employees who have a pattern of employment that includes at least six (6) months of membership service in each of the preceding three (3) consecutive years; and
  - **b.** Employees who are on leave of absence on the last day of the fiscal year and either:
- i. Return to active service for at least thirty (30) days before the December 31st immediately following the end of the fiscal year; or
- <u>ii.</u> Are entitled to benefits under the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA).

#### 703. ACCUMULATED CONTRIBUTIONS.

For purposes of allocating extraordinary gains within the active member group, accumulated contributions do not include contributions or interest related to the purchase of permissive service credits or contributions or interest in the Choice Plan or accounts.

#### 704. TRANSFER TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION CHOICE ACCOUNTS.

After each member's initial share has been determined, it will be transferred to an individual account as permitted under Section 414(k) of the IRS Code, subject to individual limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Board may transfer allocations anytime after necessary compensation data is received and processed by the Board.

#### 705. LIMITATIONS ON ALLOCATION.

In no event shall a member's final allocation exceed the limits imposed by Section 415(c) of the IRS Code, based on compensation earned during the calendar year that included the end of the fiscal year.

#### 706. INTERVENING RETIREMENT.

When a member is included in the active member pool but retires prior to the transfer of allocations, the member's allocation will be made as a one-time payment directly to the member rather than a transfer to an individual account. Such allocations will not be limited by Section 705 but will be subject to the limitations of Section 729. ( )

#### 707. INTERVENING WITHDRAWAL OF CONTRIBUTIONS.

When a member is included in the active member pool but terminates prior to the transfer of allocations, the allocation will be made to the member's individual account if the member has not withdrawn contributions from the Base account prior to the date of transfer of the allocation. No member who has withdrawn contributions from the Base account prior to the transfer of the allocation is eligible to receive an allocation.

#### 708. INTERVENING DEATH OF ACTIVE MEMBER.

When a member would have been included in the active member allocation but dies prior to the transfer of allocations, no allocation shall be made to the member, beneficiary or estate except that an optional death benefit recipient will receive the active member's allocation as limited by Section 729.

#### 709. TREATMENT OF GAIN SHARING ALLOCATIONS IN THE CHOICE ACCOUNT.

Gain sharing allocations transferred to individual Choice Accounts have no effect on an individual's Base Plan benefit. Gain sharing allocations, and the earnings thereon, will be accounted for separately from other Choice Plan contributions but will be treated as one plan for purposes of reporting, investing, distributions, and fees to the extent they are applicable. Related provisions of the Plan adopted by the Board to facilitate voluntary and employer contributions are applicable to gain sharing allocations to the extent not inconsistent with these rules and Sections 59-1308 and 59-1309, Idaho Code. However, no loans or hardship withdrawals may be taken against gain sharing account balances.

710. -- 724. (RESERVED)

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

#### 725. RETIREE ALLOCATION.

After the amount to be allocated to the retiree group has been determined, it shall be allocated among the members of the group. The retiree allocation determines each member's share before considering any applicable individual limits. Each member's initial share shall be determined by dividing that retiree's monthly benefit at the close of the fiscal year by the total monthly benefits payable to all members of the group at the close of the fiscal year, multiplied by the amount allocated to the retiree group.

#### 726 RETIREE

For purposes of allocating extraordinary gains, a member must be a retiree as defined in this subchapter. ( )

#### 727. MONTHLY BENEFIT.

This is the monthly benefit for the last month of the fiscal year but does not include benefits related to other months that may also have been paid during the last month of the fiscal year. In no event shall a retiree's share be determined based on more than the retiree's annual benefit, not including any gain sharing allocations, divided by twelve (12).

#### 728. PAYMENT OF ALLOCATION.

After each retiree's initial share has been determined, it will be paid no later than February 1 following the close of the fiscal year directly to the retiree either together with the retiree's monthly benefit or separately, subject to individual limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code.

#### 729. LIMITATIONS ON ALLOCATION.

Prior to allocation, a retiree's initial share shall be further limited as necessary to comply with the limits of Section 415(b) of the IRS Code.

#### 730. INTERVENING DEATH OF A RETIREE.

When a retiree is included in the retiree allocation but dies prior to the transfer of allocations, no allocation shall be made unless benefit payments are continuing to be made to a contingent annuitant.

#### 731. INTERVENING REEMPLOYMENT.

When a retiree is included in the retiree allocation but becomes reemployed as defined in Section 59-1356, Idaho Code, prior to the date of distribution, the retiree allocation shall be made in the form of an active member allocation, and shall be subject to active member limitations.

#### 732. NEGATED RETIREMENT.

Gain sharing allocations received by a retiree are not included in the amounts required to be repaid when negating retirement under Section 541.

#### 733. -- 749. (RESERVED)

#### 750. EMPLOYER ALLOCATION.

After the amount to be allocated to the employer group has been determined, it shall be allocated among the members of the group. Each employer's share shall be determined by dividing that employer's contribution liability for the fiscal year by the total contribution liability for all members of the group for the fiscal year, multiplied by the amount allocated to the employer group.

#### 751. EMPLOYER.

Participation in the employer pool is limited to those entities defined as an employer in this subchapter. (

#### 752. CONTRIBUTION LIABILITY.

This includes only employer contributions that are accrued during the fiscal year and required to be paid by Section 59-1322, Idaho Code, unreduced by gain sharing credits. It does not include contributions made to fund sick leave pools, to pay costs of other plans such as the Firefighters Retirement Fund, or to contributions required by Sections 33-107A and 33-107B, Idaho Code. Only adjustments related to fiscal year contributions will be considered.

#### 753. CREDIT OF ALLOCATION.

Docket No. 59-0101-2301 PENDING RULE

After each employer's share has been determined, it will be credited against the employer's future contribution invoices. The credits shall be applied only to offset future employee and employer contributions required to be remitted by Section 59-1325(1), Idaho Code, until the credit is exhausted. An employer may elect to use the credits solely against employer contributions to the extent that no carry-over credits (as described in Section 754) result.

#### 754. CARRY-OVER OF CREDIT.

Should the credit exceed the employer's contribution invoices for the succeeding twelve (12) month period, any remaining credits will carry over to the following year together with an additional credit representing an interest payment. The interest credit shall equal the balance of remaining credits multiplied by a ratio representing the regular rate of interest. This process shall be repeated annually until all credits have been used.

#### 755. WITHDRAWAL OF EMPLOYER.

When an employer is included in the employer pool but withdraws from the system as provided in Section 59-1326, Idaho Code, prior to allocation of credits, the employer shall not be entitled to receive any credits. When an employer is entitled to carry-over credits but withdraws prior to using all its credits, it shall not be entitled to additional credits based on interest payments.

756. -- 999. (RESERVED)

#### **IDAPA 59 - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO**

# 59.02.01 – RULES FOR THE JUDGES' RETIREMENT FUND DOCKET NO. 59-0201-2301 (ZBR CHAPTER REWRITE) NOTICE OF RULEMAKING – ADOPTION OF PENDING RULE

LINK: LSO Rules Analysis Memo

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** This rule has been adopted by the agency and is now pending review by the 2024 Idaho State Legislature and must be approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature to go into effect, in accordance with Section 67-5224(2)(c), Idaho Code. The pending rule will become final and effective upon the adjournment, *sine die*, of the Second Regular Session of the Sixty-seventh Idaho Legislature.

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5224, Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has adopted a pending rule. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 59-1301, 59-1314, 59-1372, 59-1383, and 59-1392, Idaho Code.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a concise explanatory statement of the reasons for adopting the pending rule and a statement of any change between the text of the proposed rule and the text of the pending rule with an explanation of the reasons for the change.

There is a change to 59.02.01.002 to reflect that the rule is now Rule 2 not Rule 3. There is a change to add a new Subsection 59.02.01.010.17 to the pending rule. This addition was missed in the proposed rule and is necessary to accurately reflect service credit. There is a change to correct typographical and grammatical errors to Section 59.01.02.100 and 59.01.02.402.

The text of the pending rule has been amended in accordance with Section 67-5227, Idaho Code. Only those sections that have changes that differ from the proposed text are printed in this bulletin. The complete text of the proposed rule was published in the November 1, 2023, Idaho Administrative Bulletin, Vol. 23-11, pages 154 - 168.

**FEE SUMMARY:** Pursuant to Section 67-5224(2)(d), Idaho Code, this pending fee rule shall not become final and effective unless affirmatively approved by concurrent resolution of the Legislature. The following is a description of the fee or charge imposed or increased in this rulemaking:

Does not apply to this rulemaking.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state General Fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year:

The change in this rule will not have any fiscal impact on the state General Fund.

**ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS:** For assistance on technical questions concerning this pending rule, contact: Cheryl George, (208) 287-9231.

DATED this 27th of November, 2023.

Don Drum Executive Director Public Employees Retirement System of Idaho P.O. Box 83720, Boise, ID 83720-0078 Phone: (208) 287-9230

Fax: (208) 334-3804

#### THE FOLLOWING NOTICE PUBLISHED WITH THE PROPOSED RULE

**AUTHORITY**: In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections, 59-1301, 59-1314, 59-1372, 59-1383 and 59-1392.

**PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE**: Public hearing(s) concerning this rulemaking will be scheduled if requested in writing by twenty-five (25) persons, a political subdivision, or an agency, not later than November 15, 2023.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY**: The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

JRF Rule, IDAPA 59.02.01.02, 04, .05, .06, .07, and .11 are deleted as unnecessary. Rule 59.02.01.10.04 is deleted since this rule is not applicable to the JRF as there are not purchase options by statute. Rule 59.02.01.10.64 is deleted because this rule is not applicable because judges do not have purchase options. Rule 59.02.01.12 is amended to make specific reference to the JRF. New definition is added for "Inactive Member and "Retired Member". The definition for "Member" is revised. The definition of "Normal Retirement Age" is deleted because the JRF plan makes no distinction between early and normal retirement. Rule 59.02.01.100.02.a is amended to define the commencement year when a member is required to take a minimum distribution as defined in the Internal Revenue Code section 401(a). This change is a result of Secure 2.0 Act 2022. Rule 59.02.01.100 new subsection .03 is added to add the enforcement mechanism for when PERSI has to issue payments under this section and to specify the retirement option that would be selected. Rule 59.02.01.100.03 becomes the new subsection .04 and is amended to simplify the language used and make it consistent with proper terms. Rule 59.02.01.100 subsection .05 and .06 are deleted since if any prior payments were made, the distribution would not be issued as payments would have continued. Rule 59.02.01.102 is deleted because there aren't any options for annual additions in the JRF plan. JRF doesn't have a purchase of service. Rule 59.02.01.103.01 deleted the last sentence because the only option for a forced distribution would be a lump-sum payment direct to the member or the initiation of monthly retirement benefits. There isn't an option for a forced distribution to be made as a rollover to another plan. Rule 59.02.01.103.03 is deleted because the JRF doesn't allow for post-tax contributions to be made to the plan, so this is unnecessary. Rule 59.02.01.252 is deleted because it refers to tables that are also being deleted. Rule 59.02.01.300 and .301 are deleted as the statute provides that PERSI Board sets the contribution rates, and the rates will be posted on the PERSI web page. Rule 59.02.01.352,.359, are amended to provide gender inclusive language. Rule 59.02.01.401 is deleted because COLAs are in statute (1-2001(2)(a)(ii - iii). Rule 59.02.01.403 is amended by removing the last sentence as it is redundant. It is part of the Required Minimum Distribution section. Appendix A is deleted as it is not needed in the rules and the table will be available on the PERSI website.

FEE SUMMARY: The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased: N/A

**FISCAL IMPACT**: The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state General Fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year: The change in this rule will not have any fiscal impact on the state General Fund.

**NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING:** Pursuant to Section 67-5220(1), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was conducted. The Notice of Intent to Promulgate Rules – Negotiated Rulemaking was published in the September 6, 2023, Idaho Administrative Bulletin, 23-9 pages 911-912.

**INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE**: Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, the following is a brief synopsis of why the materials cited are being incorporated by reference into this rule: N/A

ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS: For assistance on technical questions concerning the proposed rule(s), contact Cheryl George, (208) 287-9231.

## PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

Anyone may submit written comments regarding this proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before November 22, 2023.

DATED this 6th day of October, 2023.

#### THE FOLLOWING IS THE TEXT OF ZBR DOCKET NO. 59-0201-2301

#### 59.02.01 - RULES FOR THE JUDGES' RETIREMENT FUND

#### SUBCHAPTER A – GENERAL PROVISIONS Rules 001 through 099

Section		AAUTHORITY (RULE 0). Idaho Code.	(	)
001.	TITLE	AND SCOPE (RULE 1).		
	01.	Title. The title of this chapter is IDAPA 59.02.01, "Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund."		)
	02.	<b>Scope</b> . This chapter relates to retirement under the Judges' Retirement Fund.	(	)
002. Adminis		VISTRATIVE APPEAL (RULE 2).  ppeals are conducted pursuant to IDAPA 59.01.01.	(	)
003 (	009.	(RESERVED)		
<b>010.</b> The foll	<b>DEFIN</b> owing de	ITIONS (RULE 10). finitions apply to this chapter:	(	)
under th	<b>01.</b> ne Judges	<b>Accrued Benefit</b> . The actuarial value of the retirement benefit to which the Member is Retirement Fund upon attainment of Normal Retirement Age.	entitle (	ed )
provide	<b>02.</b> d by Idah	<b>Active Member</b> . Each justice or judge who participates in the Judges' Retirement Fo Code.	und (	as )
	03.	Administrator. The Board.	(	)
benefits	<b>04.</b> under the	<b>Beneficiary</b> . The designated person (or, if none, the Member's estate) who is entitled to e Plan after the death of a Member.		ve )
	05.	<b>Board</b> . The retirement board established in Section 59-1304, Idaho Code.	(	)
to Section	<b>06.</b> ons of the	<b>Code</b> . The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or as hereafter amended. All code are to such Sections as they may from time to time be amended or renumbered.		ns )
commis	07. sions, bo	<b>Compensation</b> . All cash compensation for services to the Employer, including salary, wagnuses, and overtime pay, that is includible in the Member's gross income for the calendar year.		

amounts that would be cash compensation for services to the Employer includible in the Member's gross income for the calendar year but for a compensation reduction election under Sections 125, 132(f), 401(k), 403(b), or 457(b) of

#### PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO Docket No. 59-0201-2301 Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund PENDING RULE the Code. Contingent Annuitant. The person designated by a Member under certain retirement options to receive payments upon the death of the Member. The person so designated must be born and living on the effective date of retirement. 09. **Designated Beneficiary**. The individual who is designated as the beneficiary under the Plan and is the designated beneficiary under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and Section 1.401(a)(9)-4, Q&A-4, of the Treasury regulations. 10. Employer. The State of Idaho Judicial Branch. ) 11. **Inactive Member.** A former active member who is not receiving a retirement allowance or has not received a refund of contributions. Judges' Retirement Fund. The Judges' Retirement Fund established under Title 1, Chapter 20, Idaho Code, and rules applicable to the Judges' Retirement Fund. The Judges' Retirement Fund is intended to satisfy Code Section 401(a) as applicable to governmental plans described in Code Section 414(d). It is maintained for the exclusive benefit of Members and their beneficiaries. 13. **Member**. An active member, inactive member, or a retired member. 14. **Plan**. The plan of benefits under the Judges' Retirement Fund. 15. **Required Beginning Date.** The date specified in Rule 100 of these rules. 16. **Retired Member**. A former active member receiving retirement compensation. Service Credit. Being shown on Employer's payroll as an Active Member receiving a salary. For each calendar month, service is credited only when the Active Member is employed for fifteen (15) days or more during the calendar month. Severance from Employment. The date that the Member dies, retires, or otherwise has a separation from employment with the Employer, as determined by the Administrator (and taking into account guidance issued under the Code). ) 011. -- 099. (RESERVED) SUBCHAPTER B – DISTRIBUTIONS Rules 100 through 250 100. REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS (RULE 100). Default Application of Federal Requirements. With respect to distributions under the Judges' Retirement Fund, and except as provided in Subsection 100.06, the Judges' Retirement Fund will apply the minimum distribution requirements of Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code) in accordance with a good faith interpretation of Section 401(a)(9), notwithstanding any provision of the Judges' Retirement Fund to the contrary. Required Beginning Date. Except as otherwise provided in Subsections 100.03 through 100.06, distributions under the Judges' Retirement Fund shall begin not later than April 1 following the later of: The commencement year, which is defined as the year in which a member reaches the applicable age, as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) as now in effect and thereafter amended. b. The year in which they retire.

03.		Retirement Optio					
required in this	Section 100 and	fails to complete and	submit an appro	oved retiremen	t application ar	nd select	either a
regular or optic	onal retirement all	lowance by April 1 f	following the late	er of the comr	nencement yea	r or the y	ear the
member separat	tes from employm	ent, the member shal	l be deemed to h	ave made the f	following select	tion.	( )

a.	If single, a regular retirement allowance and no other selection shall be required or permitted.	
		)

- **b.** If married, a one hundred percent (100%) spousal option and no other selection shall be required or permitted unless proof is provided that the spouse has no community property interest in the benefit. ( )
- **04. Lifetime Distributions**. Distribution shall be made over the life of the Member or the lives of the Member and their contingent annuitant.
- **05. Timing of Required Distributions.** A required distribution shall be deemed to have been made during the Commencement Year if actually made by the following April 1, but such delayed distribution shall not change the amount of such distribution, and the distribution otherwise required during the subsequent calendar year shall be calculated as if the first distribution had been made on the last day of the Commencement Year. ( )
- **06. Death Benefits.** All death benefits payable in a lump sum will be distributed as soon as administratively practicable after request, but must in any event be distributed within fifteen (15) months of the member's death, unless the identity of the beneficiary is not ascertainable.

#### 101. MAXIMUM LIMITATIONS ON BENEFITS (RULE 101).

Beginning effective January 1, 2002, the "defined benefit dollar limitation" is one hundred sixty thousand dollars (\$160,000), as adjusted, effective January 1 of each year thereafter, under Section 415(d) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code) in such manner as the Secretary shall prescribe, and payable in the form of a straight life annuity. A limitation as adjusted under Section 415(d) will apply to limitation years ending with or within the calendar year for which the adjustment applies. The "maximum permissible benefit" is the defined benefit dollar limitation (adjusted where required, as provided in Subsection 101.01 and, if applicable, in Subsections 101.02 through 101.04).

- **01.** Less Than Ten Years of Service. If the Member has fewer than ten (10) years of participation in the Judges' Retirement Fund, the defined benefit dollar limitation shall be multiplied by a fraction:
- a. The numerator of which is the number of years (or part thereof) of participation in the Judges' Retirement Fund; and
  - **b.** The denominator of which is ten (10).
- **O2. Benefit Begins Prior to Age Sixty-Two.** If the benefit of a Member begins prior to age sixty-two (62), the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at such earlier age is an annual benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity beginning at the earlier age that is the actuarial equivalent of the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at age sixty-two (62) (adjusted under Rule 101.01, if required). The defined benefit dollar limitation applicable at an age prior to age sixty-two (62) is determined as set forth in IRS regulation under Section 415(b)(2) of the Code.
- **O3. Benefit Begins at Age Sixty-Five.** If the benefit of a Member begins after the Member attains age sixty-five (65), the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at the later age is the annual benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity beginning at the later age that is actuarially equivalent to the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at age sixty-five (65) (adjusted under Rule 101.01, if required.) The actuarial equivalent of the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable at an age after age sixty-five (65) is determined as set forth in IRS regulation under Section 415(b)(2) of the Code.
- **04. Transition**. Benefit increases resulting from the increase in the limitations of Section 415(b) of the Code shall be provided to all current and former Members (with benefits limited by Section 415(b)) who have an accrued benefit under the Judges' Retirement Fund immediately prior to the effective date of this Rule (other than an accrued benefit resulting from a benefit increase solely as a result of the increases in limitations under Section

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

415(b).)

**05. Aggregation**. If any member participates in two (2) or more qualified defined benefit plans maintained by the employer (or a predecessor employer), the combined benefits from all such plans may not exceed the "maximum permissible benefit" described in this Rule 101.

## 102. ROLLOVER DISTRIBUTIONS (RULE 102).

- **01. Direct Rollovers.** A Member of the Judges' Retirement Fund or a beneficiary of a Member (including a Member's former spouse who is the alternate payee under an approved domestic relations order) who is entitled to an eligible rollover distribution may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrator, to have all or any portion of the distribution paid directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the Member in a direct rollover.
- **O2.** Eligible Rollover Distribution Defined. For purposes of this Rule, an eligible rollover distribution means any distribution of all or any portion of a Member's account balance, except that an eligible rollover distribution does not include (a) any installment payment for a period of ten (10) years or more, (b) any distribution made as a result of an unforeseeable emergency, or (c) for any other distribution, the portion, if any, of the distribution that is a required minimum distribution under Code Section 401(a)(9). In addition, an eligible retirement plan means an individual retirement account described in Section 408(a) of the Code, an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Code, a qualified trust described in Section 401(a) of the Code, an annuity plan described in Section 403(a) or 403(b) of the Code, or an eligible governmental plan described in Section 457(b) of the Code, that accepts the eligible rollover distribution. Effective January 1, 2008, an eligible retirement plan shall also mean a Roth IRA described in Section 408A of the Code.
- **03. Alternate Payees.** A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's or former employee's spouse or former spouse, who is the alternate payee under a domestic retirement order, approved as provided in Rule 402 are distributees with regard to the interest of the spouse or former spouse.
- **04.** Transfers to Non-Spouse Beneficiaries. This Rule 103.05 applies to distributions made on or after July 1, 2008. Notwithstanding any provision of the Judges' Retirement Fund to the contrary that would otherwise limit the options of the Beneficiary of a deceased Member who is not the Member's spouse, the administrator shall, upon the request of such a Beneficiary transfer a lump sum distribution to the trustee of an individual retirement account established under Section 408 of the Code in accordance with the provisions of Code Section 402(e)(11).

103. -- 250. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER C – ASSUMPTIONS Rules 251 through 299

# 251. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS TO BE SPECIFIED (RULE 251).

Whenever the amount of any benefit is to be determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions, such assumptions will be specified in a manner that precludes employer discretion.

252. -- 299. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER D – CONTRIBUTION RATES Rules 300 through 349

300. VACATION AND CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS SUBJECT TO CONTRIBUTIONS (RULE 300). Compensation paid for vacation is salary subject to employee and employer contributions.

# **301.** REPORTS (RULE **301**).

The Employer shall provide to the Board such reports, including compensation and contribution reports, as are required by the Board to verify contributions benefits required or provided and unless extended in writing by the

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

executive director such reports shall be provided no later than five (5) business days after each pay date.

**302. -- 349.** (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER E – DISABILITY RETIREMENT Rules 350 through 399

#### 350. APPLYING FOR DISABILITY RETIREMENT (RULE 350).

Eligible members may apply for disability retirement, as provided for in Section 1-2001(4)(a), Idaho Code, by completing a required form available from any PERSI office. The application process may include an interview by a Board representative. Applicants must release all medical records and information to the Board or its agent. ( )

#### 351. INITIAL APPLICATION REVIEW (RULE 351).

Applications will first be reviewed to determine whether the applicant meets applicable eligibility requirements. If eligibility requirements are met, the application will proceed to disability assessment review. If all eligibility requirements are not met, the applicant will be notified in writing.

#### 352. DISABILITY ASSESSMENT REVIEW (RULE 352).

An applicant will be assessed to determine whether they qualify for disability retirement under the applicable standard. The assessment may include without limitation, records review, medical and psychological examinations, vocational assessments, or any combination thereof as determined by the Board. Failure to timely comply with any request made by the Board during the assessment process shall result in automatic denial of disability retirement. At the conclusion of the assessment process, the Board will notify the applicant in writing whether or not they qualify for disability retirement.

#### 353. RECONSIDERATION OF DISABILITY ASSESSMENT DECISION (RULE 353).

Applicants, who are denied disability retirement as a result of an adverse disability assessment decision, and wish to contest that decision, are required to participate in a reconsideration process. A request for reconsideration must be made within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the disability assessment decision. Any additional information the applicant wishes to be considered must be submitted within thirty (30) days of the request for reconsideration. The additional information will be reviewed and a reconsideration decision will be issued in writing to the applicant.

## 354. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW OF THE RECONSIDERATION DECISION (RULE 354).

A reconsideration decision shall be considered a final decision, and may be appealed to the Board for review. In any related administrative hearing, the applicant shall be limited to presenting facts and evidence made available in the reconsideration process. No new or additional evidence may be presented at the hearing. If the applicant has additional facts or evidence that were not made available during the assessment or reconsideration process, the applicant must submit a new application for disability retirement, proceed again through the assessment process, and pay the costs associated with the second or subsequent assessment process. This rule is intended to promote the efficient use of fund resources by encouraging full and complete disclosure of information during the disability assessment process.

## 355. DELEGATION (RULE 355).

The Board may, by contract or otherwise, delegate all or part of these processes to third parties. Where such delegation has been made, the term "Board" includes those third parties. Where such delegation has been made, the term "Board" includes those third parties.

## 356. REASSESSMENT OF DISABILITY RETIREES (RULE 356).

A disability retiree is subject to reassessment of his disability at any time to determine whether he continues to be disabled under the standard in Section 1-2001(4)(a), Idaho Code. However, after two (2) years of continuous disability retirement, a disability retiree is not required to undergo medical examinations more often than every twelve (12) months. A disability retiree notified that he has been selected for reassessment is under the same obligation as applicants to supply information.

# 357. BURDEN ON APPLICANT (RULE 357).

Applicant must demonstrate that, on or before applicant's last day of employment, they were disabled under the

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

disability standard. The last day of employment is the last day applicant earned compensation, including annual leave and sick leave.

#### 358. STATUTORY STANDARD (RULE 358).

In applying the disability standard in Section 1-2001(4)(a), Idaho Code, the applicant is prevented from further performance of the duties of his office if the applicant is permanently prevented, due to bodily injury or disease, from performing every substantial and material duty of his office.

## 359. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS (RULE 359).

Attorney's fees and costs incurred by an applicant in their efforts to obtain disability retirement are the sole responsibility of the applicant and shall not be paid by the Board except for fees related to judicial review for which applicant is found to be entitled under applicable law.

**360. -- 399.** (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER F – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS Rules 400 through 999

# 400. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE -- CROSS REFERENCE (RULE 400).

See IDAPA 59.01.01, "Rules of Administrative Procedure of PERSI," concerning rules for administrative procedure.

## 401. APPROVED DOMESTIC RETIREMENT ORDERS (RULE 401).

As permitted under Code Section 414(p)(11), the Plan shall recognize and give effect to domestic retirement orders that have been approved in accordance with Plan procedures. An order shall be approved only if it substantially meets the requirements for a qualified domestic relations order under Code Section 414(p), except for Subsection (9) thereof, as determined by the Administrator or its agent. Amounts segregated for the accounts of alternate payees pursuant to a Plan approved domestic retirement order shall be available for immediate distribution to the alternate payee. Distributions pursuant to a domestic retirement order to an alternate payee who is a spouse or former spouse of the Member shall be taxable to the alternate payee rather than the Member to the extent permitted under Code Section 414(p)(12). Distributions pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order to an alternate payee who is not a spouse or former spouse of the Member shall be taxable to the Member.

## 402. RETIREMENT APPLICATION AND SPOUSAL CONSENT (RULE 402).

A member is required to complete and submit a retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance. The member's signature must be notarized. The application for retirement indicating the election made by the retiring member shall also be signed by the spouse certifying they understand and consent to the election made by the member. The spouse's signature must be notarized.

## 403. FORFEITURES (RULE 403).

Forfeitures will not be applied to increase the benefits any member would otherwise receive.

## 404. PRE-ERISA VESTING (RULE 404).

Upon any termination of the Plan or upon any complete discontinuance of contributions under the Plan, the rights of all Members to benefits accrued to the date of such termination or discontinuance, to the extent then funded, shall become one hundred percent (100%) vested.

## 405. EXCLUSIVE PURPOSE (RULE 405).

The Board shall hold the assets of the Judges' Retirement Fund in trust for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to Members and Beneficiaries and paying reasonable expenses of administration. It shall be impossible by operation of the Judges' Retirement Fund, by termination, by power of revocation or amendment, by the happening of any contingency, by collateral arrangement or by other means, for any part of the corpus or income of the Judges' Retirement Fund, or any funds contributed thereto, to inure to the benefit of any Employer or otherwise be used for or diverted to purposes other than providing benefits to Members and Beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Judges' Retirement Fund.

#### 406. BENEFITS DURING MILITARY SERVICES (RULE 406).

)

	01.	Death Benefits.	(	)
January Code.	<b>a.</b> 1, 2007,	This Subsection 407.01 applies to a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund who dies on of while performing qualified military service as defined in Chapter 43, Title 38 of the United	or afte State (	r s )
		The period of military service that results in the member's death will be counted whether the member qualifies for the death benefit described in Section 2009-1(b) to the Section 401(a)(37),		
	02.	Determination of Return to Employment for Benefit Accrual Purposes.	(	)
	a. on or aftered States	This Subsection 407.02 applies to a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund who becomes dir January 1, 2007, while performing qualified military service as defined in Chapter 43, Title Code.		
		For benefit accrual purposes, a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund shall be treated as byment on the day before the death or disability and then terminated on the date of death or disability Code Section 414(u)(8).		
	03.	Differential Wage Payments.	(	)
January service a	<b>a.</b> 1, 2009, as defined	This Subsection 407.02 applies to a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund who, on o receives differential wage payments from his or her Employer while performing qualified metal in Chapter 43, Title 38 of the United States Code.		
perform	<b>b.</b> ing qualif	A member of the Judges' Retirement Fund shall be treated as employed by the Employer fied military service to the extent required by Code Section 3401(h).	whil	e )
<b>407.</b> 9	99.	(RESERVED)		
Ita	licized te.	[Agency redlined courtesy copy]  xt indicates changes between the text of the proposed rule as adopted in the pending rule	e <b>.</b>	
		59.02.01 – RULES FOR THE JUDGES' RETIREMENT FUND		
		SUBCHAPTER A – GENERAL PROVISIONS Rules 001 through 099		
000. The Rul	LEGAL es for the	AUTHORITY (RULE 0).  Judges' Retirement Fund rules are adopted under the legal authority of Section 1-2012, Idaho (3-31-22)	Code	٠. )
001.	TITLE .	AND SCOPE (RULE 1).		
	01.	Title. The title of this chapter is IDAPA 59.02.01, "Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund."	(	)
	02.	<b>Scope</b> . This chapter relates to retirement under the Judges' Retirement Fund.	(	)

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

## 002. WRITTEN INTERPRETATIONS - AGENCY GUIDELINES (RULE 2).

Written interpretations of these rules, to the extent they exist, are available from PERSI (Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho), at the locations listed in Rule 4 of these rules.

(3-31-22)

## 0032. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL (RULE 32).

Administrative appeals are conducted pursuant to IDAPA 59.01.01, "Rules of Administrative Procedure," Rules 101 through 104 and 150 through 789.

# 004. OFFICE OFFICE HOURS MAILING ADDRESS AND STREET ADDRESS (RULE 4).

Office hours are 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday. PERSI's mailing and street addresses, telephone numbers, and fax numbers are as follows:

#### 905. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT COMPLIANCE (RULE 5).

All rules required to be adopted by this chapter are public records.

(3 31 22)

## 006. CITATION (RULE 6).

The official citation of this chapter is IDAPA 59.02.01.000, et seq. For example, this section's citation is IDAPA 59.02.01.006. In documents submitted to the Board or issued by the Board these rules may be cited as Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund and section number less leading zeros. For example, this rule may be cited as Rules for the Judges' Retirement Fund Rule 7.

(3.31.22)

## 007. EFFECTIVE DATE (RULE 7).

Unless otherwise indicated in the bracketed material following each rule, the effective date of every rule in this chapter is July 1, 2014.

0083. -- 009. (RESERVED)

#### 010. DEFINITIONS (RULE 10).

The following definitions apply to this chapter:

- ( )
- **01.** Accrued Benefit. The actuarial value of the retirement benefit to which the Member is entitled under the Judges' Retirement Fund upon attainment of Normal Retirement Age.
- **02.** Active Member. Each justice or judge who participates in the Judges' Retirement Fund as provided by Idaho Code.
  - **03.** Administrator. The Board.
- **Q4.** Annual Additions. Annual additions are the total of all after-tax Member contributions in a year (not including rollovers) and forfeitures allocated to a Member's account under the Judges' Retirement Fund and all other qualified plans to which contributions are made based on the Member's service with the Employer. (3 31 22)
- **054. Beneficiary**. The designated person (or, if none, the Member's estate) who is entitled to receive benefits under the Plan after the death of a Member.
  - **8065. Board.** The retirement board established in Section 59-1304, Idaho Code.
- **076. Code**. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or as hereafter amended. All citations to Sections of the Code are to such Sections as they may from time to time be amended or renumbered.
- **087. Compensation.** All cash compensation for services to the Employer, including salary, wages, fees, commissions, bonuses, and overtime pay, that is includible in the Member's gross income for the calendar year, plus amounts that would be cash compensation for services to the Employer includible in the Member's gross income for the calendar year but for a compensation reduction election under Sections 125, 132(f), 401(k), 403(b), or 457(b) of the Code.
  - **098.** Contingent Annuitant. The person designated by a Member under certain retirement options to

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

receive payments upon the death of the Member. The person so designated must be born and living on the effective date of retirement.

- 1009. **Designated Beneficiary**. The individual who is designated as the beneficiary under the Plan and is the designated beneficiary under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and Section 1.40l(a)(9)-4, Q&A-4, of the Treasury regulations.
- 11. Differential Wage Payments. Differential Wage Payments as defined in 26 U.S.C. 3401(h). A differential wage payment generally refers to an employer payment to an employee called to active duty in the uniformed services for more than thirty (30) days that represents all or a portion of the compensation he would have received from the employer if he were performing services for the employer.

  (3 31 22)
- 11. Inactive Member. A former active member who is not receiving a retirement allowance or has not received a refund of contributions.
- 132. Judges' Retirement Fund. The Judges' Retirement Fund established under Title 1, Chapter 20, Idaho Code, and rules applicable to the Judges' Retirement Fund. The Judges' Retirement Fund is intended to satisfy Code Section 401(a) as applicable to governmental plans described in Code Section 414(d). It is maintained for the exclusive benefit of Members and their beneficiaries.
- 143. Member. An individual who is currently accruing benefits or who has previously accrued benefits under the Plan and who has not received a distribution of his entire benefit under the Plan active member, inactive member, or a retired member.

  (3 31 22)(\_\_\_\_)
- 15. Normal Retirement Age. The age (or combination of age and years of service) at which a Member is entitled to an actuarially unreduced retirement benefit under the Plan. A Member will be fully vested upon attainment of Normal Retirement Age.

  (3-31-22)
  - 164. Plan. The plan of benefits under the Judges' Retirement Fund. (
  - 175. Required Beginning Date. The date specified in Rule 100 of these rules.
  - 16. Retired Member. A former active member receiving retirement compensation.
- <u>17.</u> <u>Service Credit.</u> Being shown on Employer's payroll as an Active Member receiving a salary. For each calendar month, service is credited only when the Active Member is employed for fifteen (15) days or more during the calendar month.
- **18. Severance from Employment**. The date that the Member dies, retires, or otherwise has a separation from employment with the Employer, as determined by the Administrator (and taking into account guidance issued under the Code).
- 011. -- 099. (RESERVED)

# SUBCHAPTER B – DISTRIBUTIONS Rules 100 through 250

## 100. REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS (RULE 100).

**01. Default Application of Federal Requirements.** With respect to distributions under the Judges' Retirement Fund, and except as provided in Subsection 100.06, the Judges' Retirement Fund will apply the minimum distribution requirements of Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code) in accordance with a good faith interpretation of Section 401(a)(9), notwithstanding any provision of the Judges' Retirement Fund to the contrary.

<b>02. Required Beginning Date</b> . Except as otherwise provided in Subsections 100.03 through 100.06 distributions under the Judges' Retirement Fund shall begin not later than April 1 following the later of:
a. The calendar year (hereinafter referred to as the "Commencement Year") in which the member reaches age seventy and one half (70 ½); and The commencement year, which is defined as the year in which a member reaches the applicable age, as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) as now in effect and thereafter amended.
b. The year in which-he they retires. (3-31-22)(
<u>Q3.</u> <u>PERSI Selects Retirement Option</u> . Any member required to take minimum distributions, as required in this Section 100 and fails to complete and submit an approved retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance by April 1 following the later of the commencement year or the year the member separates from employment, the member shall be deemed to have made the following selection.
<u>a.</u> <u>If single, a regular retirement allowance and no other selection shall be required or permitted.</u>
<u>b.</u> <u>If married, a one hundred percent (100%) spousal option and no other selection shall be required on permitted unless proof is provided that the spouse has no community property interest in the benefit.</u>
034. Lifetime Distributions. Distribution shall be made over the life of the Member or the lives of the Member and their contingent annuitant his beneficiary; or over a period certain not extending beyond the life expectancy of the member or the joint life and last survivor expectancy of the member and his beneficiary.  (3 31 22)(
<b>045. Timing of Required Distributions.</b> A required distribution shall be deemed to have been made during the Commencement Year if actually made by the following April 1, but such delayed distribution shall not change the amount of such distribution, and the distribution otherwise required during the subsequent calendar year shall be calculated as if the first distribution had been made on the last day of the Commencement Year.
05. Adjustment of Required Distributions. Benefits paid prior to the Commencement Year shall reduce the aggregate amount subject to (but shall not otherwise negate) the minimum distribution requirements described herein.
06. Annuity Benefits Payable on Death of a Member. All death benefits payable in the form of an annuity will begin to be paid as soon as administratively practicable after the member's death, but must in any event begin to be paid before the end of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the member died. (3-31-22)
<b>076. Death Benefits</b> . All death benefits payable in a lump sum will be distributed as soon as administratively practicable after request, but must in any event be distributed within fifteen (15) months of the member's death, unless the identity of the beneficiary is not ascertainable.
101. MAXIMUM LIMITATIONS ON BENEFITS (RULE 101). Beginning effective January 1, 2002, the "defined benefit dollar limitation" is one hundred sixty thousand dollars (\$160,000), as adjusted, effective January 1 of each year thereafter, under Section 415(d) of the Internal Revenue

Retirement Fund; and

Code (Code) in such manner as the Secretary shall prescribe, and payable in the form of a straight life annuity. A limitation as adjusted under Section 415(d) will apply to limitation years ending with or within the calendar year for which the adjustment applies. The "maximum permissible benefit" is the defined benefit dollar limitation (adjusted where required, as provided in Subsection 101.01 and, if applicable, in Subsections 101.02 through 101.04).

the Judges' Retirement Fund, the defined benefit dollar limitation shall be multiplied by a fraction:

Less Than Ten Years of Service. If the Member has fewer than ten (10) years of participation in

The numerator of which is the number of years (or part thereof) of participation in the Judges'

- **b.** The denominator of which is ten (10).
- **O2. Benefit Begins Prior to Age Sixty-Two.** If the benefit of a Member begins prior to age sixty-two (62), the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at such earlier age is an annual benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity beginning at the earlier age that is the actuarial equivalent of the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at age sixty-two (62) (adjusted under Rule 101.01, if required). The defined benefit dollar limitation applicable at an age prior to age sixty-two (62) is determined as set forth in IRS regulation under Section 415(b)(2) of the Code.
- **O3. Benefit Begins at Age Sixty-Five.** If the benefit of a Member begins after the Member attains age sixty-five (65), the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at the later age is the annual benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity beginning at the later age that is actuarially equivalent to the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable to the Member at age sixty-five (65) (adjusted under Rule 101.01, if required.) The actuarial equivalent of the defined benefit dollar limitation applicable at an age after age sixty-five (65) is determined as set forth in IRS regulation under Section 415(b)(2) of the Code.
- **04. Transition**. Benefit increases resulting from the increase in the limitations of Section 415(b) of the Code shall be provided to all current and former Members (with benefits limited by Section 415(b)) who have an accrued benefit under the Judges' Retirement Fund immediately prior to the effective date of this Rule (other than an accrued benefit resulting from a benefit increase solely as a result of the increases in limitations under Section 415(b).)
- **05. Aggregation.** If any member participates in two (2) or more qualified defined benefit plans maintained by the employer (or a predecessor employer), the combined benefits from all such plans may not exceed the "maximum permissible benefit" described in this Rule 101.

#### 102. MAXIMUM LIMITATION ON ANNUAL ADDITIONS (RULE 102).

- 91. Annual Additions Limitation. Effective January 1, 2002, annual additions shall not exceed the lesser of: (3-31-22)
  - **a.** Forty thousand dollars (\$40,000); or (3-31-22)
  - b. One hundred percent (100%) of the Member's compensation. (3 31 22
- **O2.** Annual Adjustments. As of January 1 of each calendar year on and after January 1, 2002, the dollar limitation in Subsection 102.01 of these rules, with respect to both active and retired members, shall be adjusted for increases in the cost of living, taking into consideration applicable guidelines. (3-31-22)
- 03. Other Qualified Plans. To the extent that any Member of the Judges Retirement Plan is also a member of any other qualified plan, and annual additions to all plans covering the Member would otherwise exceed the limits set forth above, annual additions to such other qualified plan shall be reduced to the extent necessary to avoid exceeding the limitations on annual additions.

  (3.31.22)

#### 1032. ROLLOVER DISTRIBUTIONS (RULE 1032).

- **01. Direct Rollovers.** A Member of the Judges' Retirement Fund or a beneficiary of a Member (including a Member's former spouse who is the alternate payee under an approved domestic relations order) who is entitled to an eligible rollover distribution may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrator, to have all or any portion of the distribution paid directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the Member in a direct rollover. Effective January 1, 2006, in the event of a mandatory distribution greater than one thousand dollars (\$1,000), if the Member does not elect to have such distribution paid directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the Member in a direct rollover or to receive the distribution directly, then the plan administrator will pay the distribution in a direct rollover to an individual retirement plan designated by the plan administrator. (3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_\_\_)
  - **O2.** Eligible Rollover Distribution Defined. For purposes of this Rule, an eligible rollover distribution

means any distribution of all or any portion of a Member's account balance, except that an eligible rollover distribution does not include (a) any installment payment for a period of ten (10) years or more, (b) any distribution made as a result of an unforeseeable emergency, or (c) for any other distribution, the portion, if any, of the distribution that is a required minimum distribution under Code Section 401(a)(9). In addition, an eligible retirement plan means an individual retirement account described in Section 408(a) of the Code, an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Code, a qualified trust described in Section 401(a) of the Code, an annuity plan described in Section 403(a) or 403(b) of the Code, or an eligible governmental plan described in Section 457(b) of the Code, that accepts the eligible rollover distribution. Effective January 1, 2008, an eligible retirement plan shall also mean a Roth IRA described in Section 408A of the Code.

- 03. After Tax Contributions. For purposes of the direct rollover provisions in Rule 103.01, a portion of a distribution shall not fail to be an eligible rollover distribution merely because the portion consists of after-tax employee contributions that are not includible in gross income. However, such portion may be transferred only to an individual retirement account or annuity described in section 408(a) or (b) of the Code, or to a qualified defined contribution plan described in section 401(a) or 403(a) of the Code that agrees to separately account for the amounts so transferred, including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which is includible in gross income and the portion of such distribution which is not so includible.

  (3 31 22)
- **04.3 Alternate Payees.** A distributee includes an employee or former employee. In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's or former employee's spouse or former spouse, who is the alternate payee under a domestic retirement order, approved as provided in Rule 402 are distributees with regard to the interest of the spouse or former spouse.
- **054. Transfers to Non-Spouse Beneficiaries.** This Rule 103.05 applies to distributions made on or after July 1, 2008. Notwithstanding any provision of the Judges' Retirement Fund to the contrary that would otherwise limit the options of the Beneficiary of a deceased Member who is not the Member's spouse, the administrator shall, upon the request of such a Beneficiary transfer a lump sum distribution to the trustee of an individual retirement account established under Section 408 of the Code in accordance with the provisions of Code Section 402(e)(11).

104<u>3</u>. -- 250. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER C – ASSUMPTIONS Rules 251 through 299

#### 251. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS TO BE SPECIFIED (RULE 251).

Whenever the amount of any benefit is to be determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions, such assumptions will be specified in a manner that precludes employer discretion.

## 252. ACTUARIAL TABLES (RULE 252).

The actuarial tables used for determining optional retirement benefits are set forth in Appendix A, which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof.

(3-31-22)

25<mark>32</mark>. -- 299. (RESERVED)

#### SUBCHAPTER D – CONTRIBUTION RATES Rules 300 through 349

## 300. EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION RATE (RULE 300).

The employer contribution rate shall be fifty five point twenty eight percent (55.28%) of salaries until next determined by the Board. Beginning July 1, 2017, the employer contribution rate shall be sixty-two point fifty-three percent (62.53%) of salaries until next determined by the Board.

(3-31-22)

## 301. EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION RATE (RULE 301).

The employee contribution rate shall be ten point twenty-three percent (10.23%) of salary until next determined by the Board. Beginning July 1, 2017, the employee contribution rate shall be eleven point fifty seven percent (11.57%) of salaries until next determined by the Board.

(3-31-22)

# 3020. VACATION AND CONTRACTUAL PAYMENTS SUBJECT TO CONTRIBUTIONS (RULE 3020). Compensation paid for vacation is salary subject to employee and employer contributions.

## 3031. REPORTS (RULE 3031).

The Employer shall provide to the Board such reports, including compensation and contribution reports, as are required by the Board to verify contributions benefits required or provided and unless extended in writing by the executive director such reports shall be provided no later than five (5) business days after each pay date.

304<u>2</u>. -- 349. (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER E – DISABILITY RETIREMENT Rules 350 through 399

#### 350. APPLYING FOR DISABILITY RETIREMENT (RULE 350).

Eligible members may apply for disability retirement, as provided for in Section 1-2001(4)(a), Idaho Code, by completing a required form available from any PERSI office. The application process may include an interview by a Board representative. Applicants must release all medical records and information to the Board or its agent.

## 351. INITIAL APPLICATION REVIEW (RULE 351).

Applications will first be reviewed to determine whether the applicant meets applicable eligibility requirements. If eligibility requirements are met, the application will proceed to disability assessment review. If all eligibility requirements are not met, the applicant will be notified in writing.

## 352. DISABILITY ASSESSMENT REVIEW (RULE 352).

An applicant will be assessed to determine whether he qualifies they qualify for disability retirement under the applicable standard. The assessment may include without limitation, records review, medical and psychological examinations, vocational assessments, or any combination thereof as determined by the Board. Failure to timely comply with any request made by the Board during the assessment process shall result in automatic denial of disability retirement. At the conclusion of the assessment process, the Board will notify the applicant in writing whether or not he qualifies they qualify for disability retirement.

(3-31-22)(\_\_\_\_\_)

## 353. RECONSIDERATION OF DISABILITY ASSESSMENT DECISION (RULE 353).

Applicants, who are denied disability retirement as a result of an adverse disability assessment decision, and wish to contest that decision, are required to participate in a reconsideration process. A request for reconsideration must be made within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the disability assessment decision. Any additional information the applicant wishes to be considered must be submitted within thirty (30) days of the request for reconsideration. The additional information will be reviewed and a reconsideration decision will be issued in writing to the applicant.

#### 354. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW OF THE RECONSIDERATION DECISION (RULE 354).

A reconsideration decision shall be considered a final decision, and may be appealed to the Board for review. In any related administrative hearing, the applicant shall be limited to presenting facts and evidence made available in the reconsideration process. No new or additional evidence may be presented at the hearing. If the applicant has additional facts or evidence that were not made available during the assessment or reconsideration process, the applicant must submit a new application for disability retirement, proceed again through the assessment process, and pay the costs associated with the second or subsequent assessment process. This rule is intended to promote the efficient use of fund resources by encouraging full and complete disclosure of information during the disability assessment process.

#### 355. DELEGATION (RULE 355).

The Board may, by contract or otherwise, delegate all or part of these processes to third parties. Where such delegation has been made, the term "Board" includes those third parties. Where such delegation has been made, the term "Board" includes those third parties.

# 356. REASSESSMENT OF DISABILITY RETIREES (RULE 356).

A disability retiree is subject to reassessment of his disability at any time to determine whether he continues to be

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

disabled under the standard in Section 1-2001(4)(a), Idaho Code. However, after two (2) years of continuous disability retirement, a disability retiree is not required to undergo medical examinations more often than every twelve (12) months. A disability retiree notified that he has been selected for reassessment is under the same obligation as applicants to supply information.

## 357. BURDEN ON APPLICANT (RULE 357).

Applicant must demonstrate that, on or before applicant's last day of employment, he was they were disabled under the disability standard. The last day of employment is the last day applicant earned compensation, including annual leave and sick leave.

## 358. STATUTORY STANDARD (RULE 358).

In applying the disability standard in Section 1-2001(4)(a), Idaho Code, the applicant is prevented from further performance of the duties of his office if the applicant is permanently prevented, due to bodily injury or disease, from performing every substantial and material duty of his office.

## 359. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS (RULE 359).

Attorney's fees and costs incurred by an applicant in-his their efforts to obtain disability retirement are the sole responsibility of the applicant and shall not be paid by the Board except for fees related to judicial review for which applicant is found to be entitled under applicable law.

(3-31-22)

**360. -- 399.** (RESERVED)

## SUBCHAPTER F – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS Rules 400 through 999

#### 400. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE -- CROSS REFERENCE (RULE 400).

See IDAPA 59.01.01, "Rules of Administrative Procedure of PERSI," concerning rules for administrative procedure.

## 401. POST RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE ADJUSTMENTS (RULE 401).

- O1. Adjustments Under Section 59-1355, Idaho Code. For those retirees whose post retirement allowance adjustment is to be determined in accordance with Section 59-1355, Idaho Code, the Board shall annually consider the post retirement cost of living adjustment (COLA) pursuant to Section 59-1355, Idaho Code. The Board has the discretion afforded under Section 59-1355, Idaho Code, related to a discretionary and/or retro active COLA. The Board shall annually consider the COLA no later than the December Board meeting of each year with an effective date of July 1 of the next year.
- 02. Adjustments Under Section 1-2001(2)(a)(ii). For those retirees whose COLA is to be determined in accordance with Section 1-2001(2)(a)(ii), Idaho Code, the COLA, if any, shall have an effective date of July 1 of the applicable year.

  (3 31-22)

# 4021. APPROVED DOMESTIC RETIREMENT ORDERS (RULE 4021).

As permitted under Code Section 414(p)(11), the Plan shall recognize and give effect to domestic retirement orders that have been approved in accordance with Plan procedures. An order shall be approved only if it substantially meets the requirements for a qualified domestic relations order under Code Section 414(p), except for Subsection (9) thereof, as determined by the Administrator or its agent. Amounts segregated for the accounts of alternate payees pursuant to a Plan approved domestic retirement order shall be available for immediate distribution to the alternate payee. Distributions pursuant to a domestic retirement order to an alternate payee who is a spouse or former spouse of the Member shall be taxable to the alternate payee rather than the Member to the extent permitted under Code Section 414(p)(12). Distributions pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order to an alternate payee who is not a spouse or former spouse of the Member shall be taxable to the Member.

#### 4032. RETIREMENT APPLICATION AND SPOUSAL CONSENT (RULE 4032).

A member is required to complete and submit a retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance. The member's signature must be notarized. The application for retirement indicating the election made by the retiring member shall also be signed by the spouse certifying they understands and consents to

Docket No. 59-0201-2301 PENDING RULE

the election made by the member. The spouse's signature must be notarized. If an inactive member reaches service retirement age, or an active member who has reached service retirement age separates from service, and has failed to complete and submit an approved retirement application and select either a regular or optional retirement allowance within ninety (90) days thereafter, the member shall be deemed to have selected a regular retirement allowance and no other selection shall be required or permitted.

(3 31 22)(

# no other selection shall be required or permitted. **4043.** FORFEITURES (RULE **4043**). Forfeitures will not be applied to increase the benefits any member would otherwise receive. ) PRE-ERISA VESTING (RULE 4054). Upon any termination of the Plan or upon any complete discontinuance of contributions under the Plan, the rights of all Members to benefits accrued to the date of such termination or discontinuance, to the extent then funded, shall become one hundred percent (100%) vested. **EXCLUSIVE PURPOSE (RULE 4065).** 40<del>6</del>5. The Board shall hold the assets of the Judges' Retirement Fund in trust for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to Members and Beneficiaries and paying reasonable expenses of administration. It shall be impossible by operation of the Judges' Retirement Fund, by termination, by power of revocation or amendment, by the happening of any contingency, by collateral arrangement or by other means, for any part of the corpus or income of the Judges' Retirement Fund, or any funds contributed thereto, to inure to the benefit of any Employer or otherwise be used for or diverted to purposes other than providing benefits to Members and Beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Judges' Retirement Fund. BENEFITS DURING MILITARY SERVICES (RULE 4076). **40<del>7</del>6**. 01. Death Benefits. ) This Subsection 407.01 applies to a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund who dies on or after January 1, 2007, while performing qualified military service as defined in Chapter 43, Title 38 of the United States Code. The period of military service that results in the member's death will be counted in the determination of whether the member qualifies for the death benefit described in Section 2009-1(b) to the extent required by Code Section 401(a)(37), 02. **Determination of Return to Employment for Benefit Accrual Purposes.** ) This Subsection 407.02 applies to a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund who becomes disabled or dies on or after January 1, 2007, while performing qualified military service as defined in Chapter 43, Title 38 of the United States Code. For benefit accrual purposes, a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund shall be treated as having returned to employment on the day before the death or disability and then terminated on the date of death or disability to the extent permitted by Code Section 414(u)(8). 03. **Differential Wage Payments.** ) This Subsection 407.02 applies to a member of the Judges' Retirement Fund who, on or after January 1, 2009, receives differential wage payments from his or her Employer while performing qualified military service as defined in Chapter 43, Title 38 of the United States Code.

40<mark>87</mark>. -- 999. (RESERVED)

performing qualified military service to the extent required by Code Section 3401(h).

A member of the Judges' Retirement Fund shall be treated as employed by the Employer while

Judges' Retirement Fund of the State of Idaho 100% Contingent Annuitant Factors for Spouses Judges hired before July 1, 2012

1		Spouse																	
Judge	Ē	5pouse 40	41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57
Juuge	50	0.92242	0.92474	0.92710	0.92949	0.93192	0.93437	0.93685	0.93933	0.94182	0.94431	0.94678	0.94923	0.95166	0.95406	0.95641	0.95872	0.96097	0.96316
	51	0.91758	0.91995	0.92236	0.92482	0.92732	0.92985	0.93241	0.93500	0.93759	0.94019	0.94278	0.94536	0.94792	0.95045	0.95296	0.95541	0.95782	0.96016
	52	0.91243	0.91484	0.91731	0.91983	0.92240	0.92500	0.92765	0.93032	0.93302	0.93572	0.93843	0.94113	0.94382	0.94650	0.94915	0.95176	0.95432	0.95683
	53	0.90695	0.90940	0.91192	0.91449	0.91712	0.91979	0.92251	0.92527	0.92806	0.93087	0.93369	0.93651	0.93934	0.94215	0.94494	0.94771	0.95043	0.95310
	54	0.90114	0.90362	0.90618	0.90880	0.91148	0.91422	0.91701	0.91985	0.92273	0.92563	0.92856	0.93150	0.93445	0.93739	0.94033	0.94325	0.94613	0.94897
	55	0.89498	0.89750	0.90009	0.90275	0.90548	0.90827	0.91112	0.91404	0.91699	0.91999	0.92301	0.92606	0.92913	0.93221	0.93529	0.93836	0.94140	0.94440
	56	0.88851	0.89105	0.89366	0.89636	0.89913	0.90197	0.90488	0.90785	0.91088	0.91396	0.91708	0.92023	0.92341	0.92662	0.92983	0.93304	0.93624	0.93941
	57	0.88174	0.88429	0.88693	0.88965	0.89245	0.89533	0.89829	0.90132	0.90441	0.90756	0.91077	0.91401	0.91730	0.92062	0.92396	0.92731	0.93066	0.93400
	58	0.87468	0.87725	0.87990	0.88264	0.88546	0.88837	0.89137	0.89445	0.89760	0.90081	0.90409	0.90741	0.91080	0.91423	0.91769	0.92118	0.92467	0.92816
	59	0.86737	0.86994	0.87260	0.87535	0.87819	0.88112	0.88415	0.88727	0.89046	0.89373	0.89707	0.90047	0.90394	0.90747	0.91104	0.91465	0.91828	0.92192
	60	0.85979	0.86236	0.86501	0.86777	0.87062	0.87357	0.87662	0.87976	0.88300	0.88631	0.88970	0.89317	0.89671	0.90033	0.90400	0.90772	0.91147	0.91525
	61	0.85196	0.85451	0.85717	0.85992	0.86277	0.86573	0.86879	0.87196	0.87521	0.87856	0.88200	0.88552	0.88912	0.89281	0.89657	0.90039	0.90426	0.90816
	62	0.84393	0.84647	0.84911	0.85185	0.85470	0.85766	0.86072	0.86390	0.86717	0.87055	0.87401	0.87757	0.88123	0.88498	0.88881	0.89272	0.89669	0.90071
	63	0.83567	0.83819	0.84081	0.84354	0.84637	0.84932	0.85238	0.85556	0.85884	0.86223	0.86572	0.86930	0.87300	0.87680	0.88069	0.88467	0.88873	0.89285
	64	0.82725	0.82974	0.83233	0.83504	0.83786	0.84079	0.84384	0.84700	0.85028	0.85368	0.85718	0.86078	0.86450	0.86834	0.87228	0.87632	0.88045	0.88465
	65	0.81863	0.82108	0.82365	0.82632	0.82912	0.83202	0.83505	0.83820	0.84147	0.84486	0.84836	0.85197	0.85570	0.85956	0.86354	0.86762	0.87181	0.87608
	66	0.80982	0.81224	0.81477	0.81741	0.82016	0.82304	0.82604	0.82917	0.83242	0.83578	0.83927	0.84288	0.84662	0.85049	0.85448	0.85859	0.86282	0.86715
	67	0.80090	0.80328	0.80576	0.80837	0.81108	0.81392	0.81689	0.81998	0.82320	0.82654	0.83001	0.83360	0.83733	0.84120	0.84520	0.84932	0.85358	0.85794
	68	0.79182	0.79415	0.79659	0.79915	0.80182	0.80462	0.80754	0.81059	0.81377	0.81708	0.82051	0.82407	0.82778	0.83164	0.83563	0.83976	0.84402	0.84841
	69	0.78251	0.78479	0.78718	0.78968	0.79230	0.79504	0.79792	0.80092	0.80405	0.80732	0.81071	0.81423	0.81791	0.82173	0.82570	0.82981	0.83407	0.83846
	70	0.77303	0.77526	0.77759	0.78003	0.78260	0.78528	0.78810	0.79105	0.79412	0.79733	0.80067	0.80414	0.80777	0.81156	0.81549	0.81957	0.82381	0.82818
		Spouse				1		1	1										
Judge		58	59	60	61	62													
-	50 51	0.96529		0.00000			63	64	65	66	67	68	69	70	71	72	73	74	75
	21		0.96735	0.96933	0.97125	0.97308	0.97484	0.97653	0.97814	0.97967	0.98112	0.98251	0.98382	0.98506	0.98623	0.98733	0.98837	0.98934	0.99026
	F-2	0.96245	0.96466	0.96681	0.97125 0.96887	0.97308 0.97086	0.97484 0.97277	0.97653 0.97460	0.97814 0.97635	0.97967 0.97802	0.98112 0.97960	0.98251 0.98111	0.98382 0.98254	0.98506 0.98389	0.98623 0.98517	0.98733 0.98637	0.98837 0.98750	0.98934 0.98856	0.99026 0.98956
	52	0.95927	0.96466 0.96165	0.96681 0.96396	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873
	53	0.95927 0.95571	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774
	53 54	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656
	53 54 55	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517
	53 54 55 56	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97845	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356
	53 54 55 56 57	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97845 0.97607	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356
	53 54 55 56 57 58	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438 0.96059	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939 0.96606	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97845 0.97607 0.97338	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97766	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92918	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438 0.96059 0.95642	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939 0.96606 0.96236	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862 0.96516	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106 0.96783	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97845 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97766 0.97509	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171 0.97961 0.97725
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92918 0.92283	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438 0.96059 0.95642 0.95181	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862 0.96516 0.96130	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106 0.96783 0.96422	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97645 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280 0.96967	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171 0.97961 0.97725
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92918 0.92283 0.91605	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662 0.92000	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411 0.92788	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93779	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141 0.93562	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93941	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438 0.96059 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95509 0.95029	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862 0.96516 0.96130 0.95702	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106 0.96783 0.96422 0.96021	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280 0.96967 0.96618	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171 0.97961 0.97725 0.97458
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92918 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93279 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93779 0.93177	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141 0.93562 0.92940	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.95277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93941 0.93342	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96478 0.96639 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95509 0.95029	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862 0.96516 0.96130 0.95702	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106 0.96783 0.96422 0.96021	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97845 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95914	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.97806 0.97558 0.97558 0.97280 0.96667 0.96618	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.977994 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171 0.97961 0.97725 0.97458 0.97158
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477 0.89703	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298 0.90552	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.9166 0.94698 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711 0.90981	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.933779 0.93177 0.92533 0.91841	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141 0.93562 0.92940	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95040 0.94497 0.93941 0.93342	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738 0.93115	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96639 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95509 0.95029 0.94506 0.93936	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939 0.96266 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371 0.94876	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862 0.96130 0.95702 0.95235	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97106 0.96783 0.96622 0.96521 0.95581	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95914	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97558 0.97280 0.976618 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98525 0.98196 0.97994 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537 0.96138	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171 0.97961 0.97725 0.97458 0.97158
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477 0.89703 0.88893	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.9218 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298 0.90552 0.89768	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711 0.90981	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.95625 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.9388 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123 0.91411	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93177 0.92533 0.92533	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.944141 0.93562 0.92269 0.92269	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96227 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93941 0.932695 0.932695	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96552 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738 0.93115	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438 0.96059 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95509 0.95029 0.94506 0.93336	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97501 0.96939 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371 0.94876 0.94836	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97450 0.97450 0.96612 0.96516 0.95235 0.95235 0.94720	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97406 0.96783 0.96422 0.96521 0.95581 0.95581 0.95095	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95916 0.95457	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280 0.96967 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537 0.96138	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.97961 0.97725 0.97725 0.97458 0.96826 0.96455
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477 0.89703 0.88893 0.88045	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125 0.89328 0.8489	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662 0.9200 0.91298 0.90552 0.89768	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711 0.90981 0.90981	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123 0.91411 0.90659	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93779 0.93177 0.92533 0.91841 0.91107	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96982 0.96792 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141 0.93562 0.92940 0.92269 0.92569	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93342 0.93342 0.92695 0.92004 0.91263	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.93738 0.93115 0.93115 0.92448 0.91731	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96738 0.96659 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529 0.92887	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.95335 0.95945 0.95950 0.95029 0.94506 0.93336 0.93336	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97501 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371 0.94876 0.94876 0.93308	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97450 0.97450 0.96612 0.96516 0.96130 0.95702 0.95235 0.94720	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106 0.96783 0.96422 0.96021 0.95581 0.95905 0.95905 0.94566	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98392 0.98054 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95914 0.95457 0.94959	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805 0.95805	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97769 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537 0.96138 0.95700 0.95216	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.97961 0.97725 0.97458 0.97158 0.96455 0.96455 0.96488
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477 0.89703 0.88893	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.9218 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298 0.90552 0.89768	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711 0.90981	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.95625 0.95861 0.95456 0.95009 0.94520 0.9388 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123 0.91411	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93177 0.92533 0.92533	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.944141 0.93562 0.92269 0.92269	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96227 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93941 0.932695 0.932695	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96552 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738 0.93115	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96778 0.96438 0.96059 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95509 0.95029 0.94506 0.93336	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97501 0.96939 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371 0.94876 0.94836	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97450 0.97450 0.96612 0.96516 0.95235 0.95235 0.94720	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97406 0.96783 0.96422 0.96521 0.95581 0.95581 0.95095	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95916 0.95457	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280 0.96967 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537 0.96138	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98656 0.98517 0.97961 0.97725 0.97725 0.97458 0.96826 0.96455
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.91209 0.91209 0.90477 0.89703 0.88893 0.8045 0.8158	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.9458 0.93509 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125 0.88489 0.88489 0.87611	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95713 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298 0.90552 0.89768 0.88941 0.88073 0.87172	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.92171 0.90981 0.90212 0.88542 0.88542 0.87651	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96525 0.95861 0.95456 0.9509 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123 0.91411 0.90659 0.89618 0.89118	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93779 0.93177 0.92533 0.91841 0.9107 0.90327 0.89499 0.88634	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96948 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141 0.93562 0.92940 0.92269 0.91556 0.90795 0.89985 0.89135	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97495 0.96227 0.96621 0.95277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93942 0.92695 0.92004 0.91263 0.90473 0.90473	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738 0.93715 0.92448 0.91731	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.96078 0.96643 0.96059 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529 0.92887 0.92195 0.91450	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97762 0.97296 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95509 0.95029 0.95029 0.93321 0.92655 0.91336	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371 0.94876 0.94333 0.93746 0.93108	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97450 0.96516 0.96130 0.95702 0.95235 0.94720 0.94162 0.93533 0.92891	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97406 0.96783 0.96422 0.96021 0.95081 0.95581 0.9595 0.94566 0.93386 0.93386 0.93386 0.93386	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97607 0.97607 0.97630 0.96701 0.96326 0.95914 0.95457 0.94411 0.93165	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.98026 0.97558 0.97558 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805 0.95805 0.95337 0.94821 0.94254 0.93640	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98525 0.98373 0.98196 0.97969 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96138 0.95700 0.95216 0.95268	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98556 0.98517 0.97961 0.97725 0.97458 0.97158 0.96826 0.96455 0.95596 0.95596 0.95596
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477 0.88703 0.88893 0.88895 0.87158	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92283 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125 0.89328 0.89489 0.87611	0.96681 0.96396 0.96075 0.95715 0.95715 0.94868 0.94381 0.93851 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298 0.90552 0.89768 0.88941 0.88073	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95591 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.94188 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711 0.90912 0.90212	0.97308 0.97086 0.96838 0.96548 0.96548 0.9525 0.95861 0.95450 0.95009 0.94520 0.93988 0.93411 0.92788 0.92123 0.91411 0.90659 0.89861 0.89861	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.93779 0.93177 0.92533 0.91841 0.91107	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96702 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.95162 0.94674 0.94141 0.93562 0.92940 0.92269 0.91556 0.91556	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93342 0.92695 0.92004 0.91263 0.91263	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738 0.93115 0.92448	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97349 0.97081 0.96438 0.96059 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529 0.92195 0.92195	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97545 0.97012 0.96694 0.95045 0.95045 0.95029 0.94506 0.93321 0.93321	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97732 0.97501 0.97237 0.96939 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95371 0.94876 0.94333 0.93746 0.93108	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97450 0.97473 0.96862 0.96516 0.9630 0.95702 0.95235 0.94720 0.94162 0.93553 0.93553	0.98623 0.98517 0.98393 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97108 0.96728 0.9622 0.96021 0.95581 0.95581 0.9595 0.93388	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97607 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95914 0.94547 0.944959 0.94411	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98218 0.9826 0.97806 0.97558 0.97280 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805 0.95805 0.95805	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97766 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537 0.95136 0.95700	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98774 0.98556 0.98517 0.98356 0.98171 0.97961 0.97725 0.97458 0.97458 0.96826 0.96455 0.96495 0.95596
	53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67	0.95927 0.95571 0.95176 0.94737 0.94255 0.93730 0.93164 0.92556 0.91904 0.91209 0.90477 0.89703 0.88893 0.87158 0.86242 0.85292	0.96466 0.96165 0.95827 0.95449 0.95028 0.94564 0.94058 0.93509 0.92283 0.91605 0.91605 0.90887 0.90125 0.89328 0.87611 0.86702 0.85756	0.9681 0.96396 0.9675 0.95715 0.95715 0.95313 0.94868 0.94331 0.93851 0.93279 0.92662 0.92000 0.91298 0.90552 0.89768 0.88941 0.8873 0.87172	0.97125 0.96887 0.96619 0.96316 0.95974 0.95591 0.95166 0.94698 0.93636 0.93038 0.92395 0.91711 0.90981 0.90212 0.89399 0.88542 0.87651	0.97308 0.97086 0.96835 0.96548 0.96225 0.95861 0.95456 0.95456 0.95450 0.93451 0.92788 0.92123 0.91411 0.90659 0.89861 0.88139 0.88139 0.87217	0.97484 0.97277 0.97042 0.96773 0.96468 0.96123 0.95738 0.95313 0.94845 0.94335 0.93779 0.91177 0.92533 0.91841 0.91107 0.90327 0.88634 0.88634 0.87723	0.97653 0.97460 0.97240 0.96988 0.96902 0.96377 0.96012 0.95608 0.914141 0.93562 0.9240 0.92269 0.91556 0.90795 0.89385 0.88239	0.97814 0.97635 0.97431 0.97195 0.96927 0.96621 0.96277 0.95894 0.95471 0.95006 0.94497 0.93341 0.932695 0.92004 0.91263 0.9045 0.91263	0.97967 0.97802 0.97612 0.97393 0.97143 0.96856 0.96532 0.96171 0.95770 0.95329 0.94844 0.94312 0.93738 0.93115 0.92448 0.91731 0.9062 0.90151 0.9062	0.98112 0.97960 0.97785 0.97582 0.97582 0.97081 0.96778 0.96639 0.95642 0.95181 0.94675 0.94127 0.93529 0.92887 0.92195 0.91450 0.90661	0.98251 0.98111 0.97950 0.97762 0.97752 0.97545 0.97012 0.96694 0.96338 0.95945 0.95029 0.94506 0.9336 0.93321 0.93252 0.94506 0.9336	0.98382 0.98254 0.98106 0.97933 0.97931 0.97501 0.97237 0.96693 0.96606 0.96236 0.95825 0.95871 0.94876 0.94333 0.93746 0.93108 0.92417 0.91679 0.91679	0.98506 0.98389 0.98254 0.98095 0.97910 0.97695 0.97450 0.97173 0.96862 0.96516 0.95702 0.95702 0.94162 0.93553 0.92891 0.92182 0.92182	0.98623 0.98517 0.98397 0.98247 0.98077 0.97880 0.97653 0.97395 0.97106 0.96783 0.96422 0.96021 0.95095 0.94566 0.93988 0.93356 0.92677 0.92677	0.98733 0.98637 0.98525 0.98392 0.98236 0.98054 0.97645 0.97645 0.97636 0.97338 0.97038 0.96701 0.96326 0.95914 0.95457 0.94959 0.94411 0.93812 0.93812 0.93812 0.93812 0.93812	0.98837 0.98750 0.98648 0.98527 0.98385 0.98218 0.97806 0.97806 0.97588 0.97280 0.96618 0.96232 0.95805 0.95805 0.95805 0.95805	0.98934 0.98856 0.98764 0.98655 0.98555 0.98373 0.98196 0.97994 0.97769 0.97509 0.97219 0.96895 0.96537 0.96138 0.95200 0.95216 0.94683 0.94104 0.93469	0.99026 0.98956 0.98873 0.98874 0.98656 0.98517 0.98356 0.97951 0.97725 0.97458 0.97158 0.97458 0.96826 0.96645 0.95596 0.95596 0.95596

Judges' Retirement Fund of the State of Idaho 50% Contingent Annuitant Factors for Spouses Judges hired on or after July 1, 2012

		c																	
Judge	Ė	Spouse 40	41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57
Juuge	50	0.96636	0.96745	0.96855	0.96966	0.97078	0.97190	0.97304	0.97417	0.97529	0.97641	0.97752	0.97861	0.97968	0.98074	0.98177	0.98278	0.98375	0.98470
	51	0.96407	0.96519	0.96633	0.96748	0.96865	0.96982	0.97101	0.97219	0.97338	0.97455	0.97572	0.97688	0.97802	0.97915	0.98025	0.98133	0.98238	0.98340
	52	0.96161	0.96277	0.96394	0.96514	0.96635	0.96757	0.96880	0.97004	0.97128	0.97252	0.97376	0.97498	0.97619	0.97739	0.97857	0.97973	0.98085	0.98195
	53	0.95896	0.96015	0.96136	0.96260	0.96385	0.96512	0.96640	0.96770	0.96899	0.97030	0.97159	0.97288	0.97417	0.97544	0.97669	0.97793	0.97914	0.98032
	54	0.95612	0.95734	0.95859	0.95986	0.96115	0.96247	0.96380	0.96515	0.96650	0.96786	0.96922	0.97058	0.97194	0.97329	0.97462	0.97593	0.97723	0.97849
	55	0.95306	0.95432	0.95560	0.95691	0.95824	0.95960	0.96098	0.96238	0.96379	0.96521	0.96664	0.96806	0.96949	0.97091	0.97233	0.97372	0.97510	0.97645
	56	0.94981	0.95109	0.95240	0.95375	0.95512	0.95652	0.95795	0.95940	0.96087	0.96234	0.96383	0.96532	0.96682	0.96832	0.96981	0.97129	0.97276	0.97420
	57	0.94635	0.94766	0.94901	0.95038	0.95180	0.95324	0.95471	0.95621	0.95772	0.95926	0.96081	0.96237	0.96394	0.96551	0.96708	0.96865	0.97020	0.97173
	58	0.94269	0.94403	0.94540	0.94681	0.94826	0.94974	0.95125	0.95280	0.95437	0.95596	0.95757	0.95919	0.96083	0.96247	0.96412	0.96577	0.96741	0.96904
	59	0.93884	0.94020	0.94160	0.94304	0.94452	0.94603	0.94759	0.94918	0.95080	0.95244	0.95411	0.95579	0.95749	0.95921	0.96094	0.96267	0.96440	0.96612
	60	0.93477	0.93615	0.93758	0.93905	0.94056	0.94211	0.94370	0.94533	0.94700	0.94869	0.95041	0.95216	0.95393	0.95572	0.95752	0.95933	0.96115	0.96296
	61	0.93049	0.93190	0.93335	0.93484	0.93638	0.93796	0.93959	0.94126	0.94297	0.94471	0.94649	0.94829	0.95012	0.95198	0.95386	0.95575	0.95765	0.95955
	62	0.92603	0.92745	0.92892	0.93043	0.93200	0.93361	0.93527	0.93698	0.93873	0.94052	0.94234	0.94420	0.94609	0.94801	0.94996	0.95193	0.95391	0.95590
	63	0.92134	0.92278	0.92427	0.92581	0.92739	0.92903	0.93073	0.93247	0.93425	0.93608	0.93795	0.93986	0.94181	0.94380	0.94581	0.94786	0.94992	0.95200
	64	0.91647	0.91792	0.91942	0.92098	0.92259	0.92426	0.92597	0.92775	0.92957	0.93144	0.93335	0.93530	0.93731	0.93935	0.94143	0.94355	0.94569	0.94785
	65	0.91138	0.91284	0.91436	0.91593	0.91756	0.91924	0.92099	0.92279	0.92464	0.92655	0.92850	0.93050	0.93255	0.93465	0.93679	0.93897	0.94118	0.94342
	66	0.90606	0.90753	0.90906	0.91065	0.91229	0.91400	0.91576	0.91759	0.91947	0.92141	0.92340	0.92543	0.92753	0.92968	0.93188	0.93412	0.93640	0.93872
	67	0.90056	0.90204	0.90358	0.90517	0.90683	0.90855	0.91034	0.91218	0.91409	0.91606	0.91808	0.92015	0.92229	0.92449	0.92674	0.92904	0.93138	0.93377
	68	0.89484	0.89632	0.89786	0.89947	0.90114	0.90287	0.90467	0.90653	0.90846	0.91045	0.91250	0.91461	0.91678	0.91902	0.92132	0.92367	0.92608	0.92853
	69	0.88882	0.89031	0.89185	0.89346	0.89514	0.89688	0.89869	0.90057	0.90252	0.90453	0.90660	0.90874	0.91095	0.91322	0.91556	0.91796	0.92042	0.92293
	70	0.88256	0.88404	0.88559	0.88720	0.88888	0.89063	0.89245	0.89434	0.89630	0.89833	0.90042	0.90258	0.90481	0.90712	0.90950	0.91194	0.91445	0.91701
	Ė	Spouse																	
Judge		58	59	60	61	62	63	64	65	66	67	68	69	70	71	72	73	74	75
	50	0.98562	0.98650	0.98735	0.98816	0.98894	0.98968	0.99039	0.99106	0.99170	0.99230	0.99288	0.99342	0.99393	0.99441	0.99487	0.99529	0.99569	0.99606
	51	0.98439	0.98535	0.98627	0.98715	0.98799	0.98880	0.98958	0.99031	0.99101	0.99167	0.99230	0.99289	0.99345	0.99398	0.99447	0.99494	0.99537	0.99578
-	52	0.98302	0.98405	0.98505	0.98600	0.98692	0.98781	0.98865	0.98945	0.99022	0.99094	0.99163	0.99228	0.99289	0.99347	0.99401	0.99452	0.99500	0.99544
-	53	0.98146	0.98258	0.98366	0.98470	0.98570	0.98666	0.98758	0.98846	0.98929	0.99009	0.99084	0.99156	0.99223	0.99286	0.99346	0.99402	0.99455	0.99503
	54 55	0.97972	0.98093	0.98209	0.98322	0.98431	0.98535	0.98636	0.98732 0.98601	0.98823	0.98911	0.98993	0.99072	0.99146	0.99216 0.99133	0.99282	0.99343	0.99401	0.99455
	_																		
	56 57	0.97562	0.97701	0.97836	0.97968	0.98096	0.98220	0.98339	0.98453	0.98563	0.98668	0.98768	0.98863	0.98953	0.99039	0.99119	0.99194	0.99265	0.99331
	_																		
-	58 59	0.97065	0.97223	0.97379 0.97118	0.97532	0.97681	0.97826	0.97966	0.98102	0.98233	0.98359	0.98480	0.98595	0.98704	0.98808	0.98906	0.98999	0.99086	0.99167
<u> </u>								0.97750	0.97670	0.98040	0.98177	0.98309	0.98257	0.98390	0.98516	0.98636	0.98749	0.98856	0.99069
1		0.96476	0.96655	0.06833	0.07007	0.97170													
-	60	0.96476	0.96655	0.96832	0.97007	0.97179	0.97347												0.08830
	61	0.96145	0.96334	0.96522	0.96708	0.96891	0.97071	0.97248	0.97420	0.97588	0.97750	0.97907	0.98059	0.98204	0.98342	0.98474	0.98600	0.98718	0.98830
	61 62	0.96145 0.95790	0.96334 0.95989	0.96522 0.96188	0.96708 0.96385	0.96891 0.96580	0.97071 0.96772	0.97248 0.96961	0.97420 0.97147	0.97588 0.97328	0.97750 0.97504	0.97907 0.97675	0.98059 0.97840	0.98204 0.97998	0.98342 0.98150	0.98474 0.98296	0.98600 0.98434	0.98718 0.98565	0.98689
	61 62 63	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393	0.98689 0.98530
	61 62 63 64	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408 0.95002	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617 0.95221	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826 0.95441	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035 0.95660	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242 0.95879	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447 0.96096	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649 0.96311	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848 0.96523	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042 0.96732	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233 0.96937	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418 0.97137	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597 0.97332	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770 0.97520	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937 0.97702	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096 0.97876	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248 0.98043	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393 0.98203	0.98689 0.98530 0.98354
	61 62 63 64 65	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408 0.95002 0.94569	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617 0.95221 0.94797	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826 0.95441 0.95026	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035 0.95660 0.95257	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242 0.95879 0.95487	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447 0.96096 0.95716	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649 0.96311 0.95945	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848 0.96523 0.96171	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042 0.96732 0.96394	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233 0.96937 0.96614	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418 0.97137 0.96829	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597 0.97332 0.97039	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770 0.97520 0.97243	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937 0.97702 0.97441	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096 0.97876 0.97632	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248 0.98043 0.97815	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393 0.98203 0.97990	0.98689 0.98530 0.98354 0.98157
	61 62 63 64 65 66	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408 0.95002 0.94569 0.94106	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617 0.95221 0.94797 0.94344	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826 0.95441 0.95026 0.94583	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035 0.95660 0.95257 0.94824	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242 0.95879 0.95487 0.95065	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447 0.96096 0.95716 0.95307	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649 0.96311 0.95945 0.95548	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848 0.96523 0.96171 0.95788	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042 0.96732 0.96394 0.96026	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233 0.96937 0.96614 0.96260	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418 0.97137 0.96829 0.96491	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597 0.97332 0.97039 0.96718	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770 0.97520 0.97243 0.96939	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937 0.97702 0.97441 0.97153	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096 0.97876 0.97632 0.97361	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248 0.98043 0.97815 0.97561	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393 0.98203 0.97990 0.97754	0.98689 0.98530 0.98354 0.98157 0.97937
	61 62 63 64 65 66 67	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408 0.95002 0.94569 0.94106 0.93619	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617 0.95221 0.94797 0.94344 0.93865	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826 0.95441 0.95026 0.94583 0.94113	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035 0.95660 0.95257 0.94824 0.94364	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242 0.95879 0.95487 0.95065 0.94617	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447 0.96096 0.95716 0.95307 0.94870	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649 0.96311 0.95945 0.95548 0.95124	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848 0.96523 0.96171 0.95788 0.95378	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042 0.96732 0.96394 0.96026 0.95630	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233 0.96937 0.96614 0.96260 0.95880	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418 0.97137 0.96829 0.96491 0.96127	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597 0.97332 0.97039 0.96718 0.96370	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770 0.97520 0.97243 0.96939 0.96608	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937 0.97702 0.97441 0.97153 0.96840	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096 0.97876 0.97632 0.97361 0.97065	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248 0.98043 0.97815 0.97561 0.97283	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393 0.98203 0.97990 0.97754 0.97494	0.98689 0.98530 0.98354 0.98157 0.97937 0.97695
	61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408 0.95002 0.94569 0.94106 0.93619 0.93102	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617 0.95221 0.94797 0.94344 0.93865 0.93356	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826 0.95441 0.95026 0.94583 0.94113 0.93614	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035 0.95660 0.95257 0.94824 0.94364 0.93874	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242 0.95879 0.95487 0.95065 0.94617 0.94137	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447 0.96096 0.95716 0.95307 0.94870 0.94402	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649 0.96311 0.95945 0.95548 0.95124 0.94668	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848 0.96523 0.96171 0.95788 0.95378 0.94935	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042 0.96732 0.96394 0.96026 0.95630 0.95202	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233 0.96937 0.96614 0.96260 0.95880 0.95467	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418 0.97137 0.96829 0.96491 0.96127 0.95729	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597 0.97332 0.97039 0.96718 0.96370 0.95989	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770 0.97520 0.97243 0.966939 0.96608 0.96245	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937 0.97702 0.97441 0.97153 0.96840 0.96495	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096 0.97876 0.97632 0.97361 0.97065 0.96739	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248 0.98043 0.97815 0.97561 0.97283 0.96976	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393 0.98203 0.97990 0.97754 0.97494 0.97205	0.98689 0.98530 0.98354 0.98157 0.97937 0.97695 0.97425
	61 62 63 64 65 66 67	0.96145 0.95790 0.95408 0.95002 0.94569 0.94106 0.93619	0.96334 0.95989 0.95617 0.95221 0.94797 0.94344 0.93865	0.96522 0.96188 0.95826 0.95441 0.95026 0.94583 0.94113	0.96708 0.96385 0.96035 0.95660 0.95257 0.94824 0.94364	0.96891 0.96580 0.96242 0.95879 0.95487 0.95065 0.94617	0.97071 0.96772 0.96447 0.96096 0.95716 0.95307 0.94870	0.97248 0.96961 0.96649 0.96311 0.95945 0.95548 0.95124	0.97420 0.97147 0.96848 0.96523 0.96171 0.95788 0.95378	0.97588 0.97328 0.97042 0.96732 0.96394 0.96026 0.95630	0.97750 0.97504 0.97233 0.96937 0.96614 0.96260 0.95880	0.97907 0.97675 0.97418 0.97137 0.96829 0.96491 0.96127	0.98059 0.97840 0.97597 0.97332 0.97039 0.96718 0.96370	0.98204 0.97998 0.97770 0.97520 0.97243 0.96939 0.96608	0.98342 0.98150 0.97937 0.97702 0.97441 0.97153 0.96840	0.98474 0.98296 0.98096 0.97876 0.97632 0.97361 0.97065	0.98600 0.98434 0.98248 0.98043 0.97815 0.97561 0.97283	0.98718 0.98565 0.98393 0.98203 0.97990 0.97754 0.97494	0.98689 0.98530 0.98354 0.98157 0.97937 0.97695

Judges' Retirement Fund of the State of Idaho 100% Contingent Annuitant Factors for Spouses Judges hired on or after July 1, 2012

		Spouse																	
Judge	Ē	40	41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57
	50	0.89139	0.89464	0.89794	0.90129	0.90469	0.90812	0.91158	0.91507	0.91855	0.92203	0.92549	0.92892	0.93232	0.93568	0.93898	0.94221	0.94536	0.94843
	51	0.88461	0.88792	0.89131	0.89475	0.89825	0.90179	0.90538	0.90900	0.91263	0.91627	0.91989	0.92350	0.92709	0.93064	0.93414	0.93758	0.94095	0.94423
	52	0.87740	0.88078	0.88424	0.88776	0.89135	0.89501	0.89871	0.90245	0.90623	0.91001	0.91380	0.91758	0.92135	0.92510	0.92881	0.93246	0.93605	0.93956
	53	0.86973	0.87316	0.87668	0.88028	0.88396	0.88771	0.89152	0.89538	0.89929	0.90322	0.90717	0.91112	0.91507	0.91901	0.92292	0.92679	0.93060	0.93434
	54	0.86159	0.86507	0.86865	0.87232	0.87607	0.87991	0.88382	0.88779	0.89182	0.89589	0.89998	0.90409	0.90822	0.91235	0.91647	0.92055	0.92458	0.92856
	55	0.85297	0.85650	0.86012	0.86385	0.86767	0.87158	0.87557	0.87965	0.88379	0.88798	0.89222	0.89648	0.90078	0.90510	0.90941	0.91370	0.91796	0.92216
	56	0.84391	0.84747	0.85113	0.85490	0.85878	0.86275	0.86683	0.87099	0.87524	0.87955	0.88391	0.88832	0.89277	0.89726	0.90176	0.90626	0.91074	0.91518
	57	0.83443	0.83801	0.84170	0.84551	0.84943	0.85346	0.85760	0.86185	0.86618	0.87059	0.87507	0.87961	0.88421	0.88886	0.89354	0.89824	0.90293	0.90759
	58	0.82456	0.82815	0.83186	0.83569	0.83965	0.84372	0.84792	0.85223	0.85664	0.86114	0.86572	0.87038	0.87512	0.87992	0.88477	0.88965	0.89454	0.89942
	59	0.81432	0.81791	0.82164	0.82549	0.82947	0.83357	0.83781	0.84217	0.84665	0.85123	0.85590	0.86066	0.86552	0.87046	0.87546	0.88051	0.88559	0.89068
	60	0.80371	0.80730	0.81102	0.81488	0.81887	0.82300	0.82727	0.83167	0.83619	0.84084	0.84559	0.85044	0.85540	0.86046	0.86560	0.87080	0.87606	0.88135
	61	0.79275	0.79632	0.80003	0.80389	0.80788	0.81202	0.81631	0.82074	0.82530	0.82999	0.83480	0.83972	0.84477	0.84994	0.85520	0.86054	0.86596	0.87143
	62	0.78150	0.78506	0.78875	0.79259	0.79658	0.80072	0.80501	0.80946	0.81404	0.81876	0.82362	0.82860	0.83372	0.83897	0.84434	0.84981	0.85536	0.86099
	63	0.76994	0.77346	0.77713	0.78095	0.78492	0.78905	0.79333	0.79778	0.80237	0.80712	0.81200	0.81702	0.82220	0.82752	0.83297	0.83854	0.84422	0.84999
	64	0.75815	0.76163	0.76527	0.76905	0.77300	0.77710	0.78137	0.78581	0.79040	0.79515	0.80005	0.80509	0.81030	0.81568	0.82119	0.82685	0.83263	0.83851
	65	0.74608	0.74952	0.75311	0.75685	0.76076	0.76483	0.76907	0.77349	0.77806	0.78280	0.78770	0.79275	0.79799	0.80339	0.80896	0.81467	0.82053	0.82652
	66	0.73374	0.73713	0.74067	0.74437	0.74823	0.75226	0.75646	0.76084	0.76538	0.77010	0.77498	0.78003	0.78526	0.79068	0.79627	0.80203	0.80795	0.81401
	67	0.72126	0.72459	0.72807	0.73171	0.73552	0.73949	0.74365	0.74798	0.75248	0.75716	0.76201	0.76704	0.77226	0.77767	0.78327	0.78905	0.79501	0.80112
	68	0.70855	0.71181	0.71523	0.71881	0.72255	0.72646	0.73056	0.73483	0.73928	0.74391	0.74872	0.75370	0.75890	0.76429	0.76988	0.77566	0.78163	0.78777
	69 70	0.69551	0.69870	0.70205 0.68862	0.70555	0.70922 0.69564	0.71306	0.71708	0.72129	0.72568	0.73024 0.71627	0.73499	0.73992 0.72580	0.74507 0.73088	0.75042 0.73618	0.75598	0.76174	0.76769	0.77384
	9	Spouse					-			-						-			
Judge		58	59	60	61	62	63	64	65	66	67	68	69	70	71	72	73	74	75
	50	0.95140	0.95429	0.95707	0.95974	0.96232	0.96478	0.96714	0.96939	0.97153	0.97357	0.97551	0.97735	0.97908	0.98072	0.98227	0.98372	0.98508	0.98636
	51	0.94743	0.95053	0.95353	0.95642	0.95921	0.96188	0.96444	0.96689	0.96922	0.97144	0.97356	0.97556	0.97745	0.97924	0.98092	0.98250	0.98399	0.98538
	52	0.94298	0.94631	0.94955	0.95267	0.95568	0.95858	0.96137	0.96403	0.96657	0.96899	0.97130	0.97348	0.97555	0.97750	0.97935	0.98108	0.98270	0.98422
	53	0.93800	0.94157	0.94505	0.94842	0.95168	0.95482	0.95784	0.96073	0.96351	0.96615	0.96867	0.97106	0.97332	0.97546	0.97748	0.97938	0.98116	0.98283
	54 55	0.93246	0.93628	0.94001	0.94363	0.94715	0.95055	0.95383	0.95698	0.96000	0.96288	0.96563	0.96825	0.97074	0.97308	0.97530	0.97739	0.97935	0.98119
	_								0.95269	0.95598	0.95913			0.96773		0.97276			
	56 57	0.91957	0.92390	0.92815 0.92133	0.93232	0.93638	0.94034	0.94417	0.94788	0.95145	0.95489	0.95817	0.96131	0.96430	0.96714 0.96354	0.96983	0.97236	0.97475	0.97698
	58	0.91223	0.91081	0.91391	0.92378	0.92328	0.93438	0.93227	0.93659	0.94048	0.94483	0.93371	0.95248	0.95607	0.95948	0.96273	0.96581	0.96872	0.97146
	59	0.89578	0.90086	0.90590	0.91090	0.92328	0.92069	0.93524	0.93009	0.93461	0.93899	0.94323	0.93248	0.95122	0.95496	0.95853	0.96191	0.96512	0.96815
	60	0.88665	0.89197	0.89727	0.90254	0.91384	0.92003	0.92344	0.92295	0.92781	0.93254	0.93712	0.94155	0.93122	0.94991	0.95382	0.95754	0.96107	0.96441
	61	0.87693	0.88246	0.88800	0.89353	0.89903	0.90448	0.90987	0.92233	0.92037	0.92545	0.93040	0.93520	0.93983	0.94429	0.94857	0.95265	0.95653	0.96021
	62	0.86668	0.87241	0.87818	0.88395	0.88972	0.89546	0.90116	0.90679	0.91233	0.91777	0.92309	0.92827	0.93329	0.93813	0.94279	0.94725	0.95152	0.95556
	63	0.85584	0.86176	0.86773	0.87373	0.87976	0.88578	0.89177	0.89772	0.90361	0.90941	0.91510	0.92067	0.92608	0.93133	0.93640	0.94126	0.94593	0.95037
	64	0.84450	0.85059	0.85675	0.86297	0.86922	0.87550	0.88179	0.88805	0.89427	0.90042	0.90649	0.91245	0.91827	0.92393	0.92942	0.93471	0.93980	0.94467
	65	0.83263	0.83885	0.84517	0.85158	0.85805	0.86458	0.87113	0.87769	0.88423	0.89073	0.89716	0.90351	0.90974	0.91583	0.92176	0.92749	0.93303	0.93834
	66	0.82021	0.82655	0.83302	0.83959	0.84625	0.85299	0.85979	0.86662	0.87347	0.88031	0.88710	0.89384	0.90047	0.90699	0.91336	0.91955	0.92556	0.93134
	67	0.80739	0.81383	0.82040	0.82711	0.83394	0.84087	0.84789	0.85498	0.86211	0.86926	0.87640	0.88351	0.89055	0.89748	0.90431	0.91096	0.91745	0.92372
	-	0.79409	0.80059	0.80725	0.81407	0.82103	0.82813	0.83534	0.84265	0.85004	0.85748	0.86495	0.87241	0.87984	0.88720	0.89447	0.90159	0.90856	0.91533
	68																		
	69	0.78018	0.78671	0.79343	0.80033	0.80740	0.81463	0.82200	0.82951	0.83712	0.84482	0.85259	0.86039	0.86819	0.87595	0.88365	0.89124	0.89871	0.90599
													0.86039 0.84753	0.86819 0.85567	0.87595 0.86381	0.88365 0.87194	0.89124 0.87998	0.89871 0.88794	0.90599

Judges' Retirement Fund of the State of Idaho 50% Contingent Annuitant Factors for Non-Spouses For all Judges, irrespective of hire date

ludas	I.	Von-Spouse	41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57
Judge	50	0.91590	0.91862	0.92136	0.92414	0.92694	0.92976	0.93259	0.93541	0.93823	0.94102	0.94379	0.94651	0.94920	0.95184	0.95442	0.95694	0.95939	0.96175
	51	0.91017	0.91802	0.91583	0.91871	0.92162	0.92456	0.93233	0.93048	0.93344	0.93638	0.93931	0.94220	0.94506	0.94787	0.95063	0.95333	0.95596	0.95851
	52	0.90402	0.90692	0.90986	0.91284	0.91587	0.91892	0.92201	0.92511	0.92821	0.93131	0.93439	0.93745	0.94048	0.94348	0.94642	0.94931	0.95213	0.95488
	53	0.89740	0.90038	0.90341	0.90649	0.90962	0.91280	0.91601	0.91924	0.92249	0.92574	0.92898	0.93221	0.93542	0.93860	0.94174	0.94482	0.94784	0.95079
	54	0.89029	0.89335	0.89647	0.89965	0.90288	0.90617	0.90950	0.91287	0.91626	0.91966	0.92306	0.92646	0.92985	0.93321	0.93655	0.93983	0.94306	0.94623
	55	0.88266	0.88579	0.88900	0.89227	0.89561	0.89900	0.90246	0.90595	0.90948	0.91303	0.91659	0.92016	0.92373	0.92728	0.93081	0.93431	0.93775	0.94113
	56	0.87452	0.87773	0.88101	0.88437	0.88781	0.89131	0.89488	0.89850	0.90216	0.90586	0.90958	0.91331	0.91706	0.92080	0.92453	0.92824	0.93190	0.93550
	57	0.86588	0.86915	0.87251	0.87596	0.87949	0.88309	0.88677	0.89051	0.89431	0.89815	0.90202	0.90592	0.90984	0.91377	0.91770	0.92161	0.92550	0.92933
	58	0.85673	0.86007	0.86350	0.86703	0.87065	0.87435	0.87813	0.88199	0.88592	0.88989	0.89391	0.89797	0.90206	0.90618	0.91031	0.91443	0.91853	0.92260
	59	0.84709	0.85049	0.85399	0.85760	0.86129	0.86509	0.86897	0.87294	0.87699	0.88110	0.88526	0.88947	0.89374	0.89804	0.90236	0.90669	0.91101	0.91530
	60	0.83693	0.84038	0.84395	0.84762	0.85140	0.85527	0.85926	0.86333	0.86749	0.87173	0.87603	0.88039	0.88482	0.88929	0.89380	0.89834	0.90287	0.90740
	61	0.82624	0.82974	0.83337	0.83710	0.84095	0.84491	0.84898	0.85315	0.85742	0.86178	0.86621	0.87071	0.87530	0.87994	0.88464	0.88937	0.89412	0.89887
	62	0.81507	0.81862	0.82229	0.82609	0.83000	0.83403	0.83819	0.84245	0.84683	0.85130	0.85585	0.86049	0.86522	0.87003	0.87490	0.87983	0.88478	0.88976
	63	0.80336	0.80695	0.81067	0.81451	0.81849	0.82259	0.82682	0.83117	0.83564	0.84021	0.84489	0.84965	0.85452	0.85949	0.86453	0.86964	0.87480	0.87999
	64	0.79117	0.79480	0.79856	0.80245	0.80648	0.81064	0.81494	0.81937	0.82392	0.82860	0.83338	0.83826	0.84327	0.84838	0.85358	0.85886	0.86421	0.86961
	65	0.77844	0.78210	0.78589	0.78982	0.79390	0.79811	0.80247	0.80697	0.81161	0.81637	0.82125	0.82624	0.83137	0.83662	0.84198	0.84743	0.85296	0.85856
	66	0.76515	0.76883	0.77265	0.77662	0.78073	0.78499	0.78941	0.79397	0.79868	0.80352	0.80849	0.81358	0.81883	0.82420	0.82970	0.83530	0.84101	0.84680
	67	0.75140	0.75510	0.75894	0.76294	0.76708	0.77138	0.77584	0.78046	0.78523	0.79014	0.79519	0.80038	0.80572	0.81122	0.81684	0.82259	0.82846	0.83442
	68	0.73709	0.74080	0.74465	0.74867	0.75284	0.75717	0.76167	0.76634	0.77116	0.77613	0.78125	0.78652	0.79196	0.79755	0.80330	0.80918	0.81519	0.82132
	69	0.72206	0.72577	0.72964	0.73366	0.73785	0.74221	0.74674	0.75144	0.75630	0.76133	0.76651	0.77184	0.77736	0.78305	0.78890	0.79491	0.80105	0.80733
	70	0.70640	0.71011	0.71397	0.71800	0.72220	0.72657	0.73112	0.73585	0.74075	0.74582	0.75105	0.75644	0.76203	0.76780	0.77374	0.77985	0.78612	0.79253
ludas	_ n	lon-Spouse 58	59	60	61	62	63	64	65	66	67	68	69	70	71	72	73	74	75
Judge	50	0.96404	0.96624	0.96836	0.97039	0.97234	0.97419	0.97596	0.97765	0.97925	0.98076	0.98220	0.98355	0.98483	0.98604	0.98717	0.98823	0.98923	0.99016
	51	0.96098	0.96337	0.96567	0.96787	0.97234	0.97419	0.97394	0.97763	0.97923	0.97918	0.98220	0.98223	0.98363	0.98494	0.98618	0.98734	0.98923	0.98945
	52	0.95754	0.96012	0.96261	0.96501	0.96731	0.96951	0.97162	0.97363	0.97554	0.97735	0.97907	0.98069	0.98223	0.98367	0.98503	0.98630	0.98749	0.98860
	53	0.95366	0.95645	0.95914	0.96175	0.96425	0.96665	0.96895	0.97114	0.97323	0.97522	0.97711	0.97889	0.98058	0.98216	0.98365	0.98505	0.98636	0.98758
	54	0.94931	0.95232	0.95523	0.95805	0.96077	0.96338	0.96589	0.96829	0.97058	0.97276	0.97484	0.97680	0.97865	0.98040	0.98204	0.98359	0.98503	0.98638
	55	0.94444	0.94767	0.95082	0.95387	0.95682	0.95967	0.96241	0.96503	0.96754	0.96993	0.97221	0.97437	0.97641	0.97834	0.98015	0.98186	0.98346	0.98495
	56	0.93905	0.94252	0.94590	0.94920	0.95240	0.95549	0.95847	0.96133	0.96408	0.96670	0.96920	0.97158	0.97383	0.97596	0.97797	0.97986	0.98163	0.98329
	57	0.93311	0.93683	0.94046	0.94402	0.94747	0.95082	0.95406	0.95719	0.96019	0.96306	0.96581	0.96842	0.97091	0.97326	0.97548	0.97757	0.97953	0.98137
	58	0.92662	0.93058	0.93448	0.93830	0.94202	0.94565	0.94916	0.95256	0.95583	0.95898	0.96199	0.96487	0.96760	0.97020	0.97265	0.97497	0.97715	0.97919
	59	0.91957	0.92379	0.92795	0.93203	0.93604	0.93994	0.94375	0.94744	0.95100	0.95444	0.95773	0.96089	0.96390	0.96676	0.96948	0.97204	0.97445	0.97672
	60	0.91191	0.91638	0.92081	0.92517	0.92946	0.93366	0.93777	0.94176	0.94563	0.94937	0.95298	0.95643	0.95974	0.96289	0.96589	0.96872	0.97140	0.97391
	61	0.90362	0.90835	0.91305	0.91769	0.92227	0.92678	0.93119	0.93550	0.93969	0.94376	0.94769	0.95147	0.95509	0.95856	0.96186	0.96499	0.96796	0.97075
	62	0.89475	0.89973	0.90469	0.90962	0.91449	0.91930	0.92404	0.92867	0.93320	0.93760	0.94187	0.94600	0.94996	0.95376	0.95740	0.96085	0.96413	0.96722
	63	0.88520	0.89044	0.89566	0.90087	0.90604	0.91116	0.91622	0.92119	0.92606	0.93082	0.93544	0.93993	0.94426	0.94842	0.95241	0.95621	0.95983	0.96325
	64	0.87505	0.88053	0.88601	0.89150	0.89696	0.90239	0.90777	0.91309	0.91831	0.92343	0.92843	0.93329	0.93800	0.94254	0.94691	0.95108	0.95507	0.9588
	65	0.86421	0.86992	0.87566	0.88141	0.88717	0.89291	0.89861	0.90427	0.90985	0.91534	0.92072	0.92598	0.93109	0.93603	0.94080	0.94538	0.94976	0.95393
	05				0.07050	0.87663	0.88267	0.88870	0.89470	0.90064	0.90651	0.91229	0.91795	0.92347	0.92883	0.93403	0.93903	0.94384	0.94843
	66	0.85266	0.85859	0.86457	0.87059														
	66 67	0.84048	0.84662	0.85284	0.85911	0.86542	0.87176	0.87811	0.88444	0.89075	0.89699	0.90317	0.90924	0.91519	0.92099	0.92664	0.93208	0.93734	
	66 67 68	0.84048 0.82756	0.84662 0.83390	0.85284 0.84034	0.85911 0.84685	0.86542 0.85343	0.87176 0.86005	0.86671	0.87338	0.89075 0.88004	0.88666	0.89324	0.89973	0.90611	0.91236	0.91847	0.92439	0.93012	0.93563
	66 67 68 69	0.84048 0.82756 0.81374	0.84662 0.83390 0.82027	0.85284 0.84034 0.82691	0.85911 0.84685 0.83365	0.86542 0.85343 0.84048	0.87176 0.86005 0.84738	0.86671 0.85434	0.87338 0.86133	0.89075 0.88004 0.86834	0.88666 0.87534	0.89324 0.88231	0.89973 0.88923	0.90611 0.89606	0.91236 0.90277	0.91847 0.90936	0.92439 0.91577	0.93012 0.92201	0.94237 0.93563 0.92802
	66 67 68	0.84048 0.82756	0.84662 0.83390	0.85284 0.84034	0.85911 0.84685	0.86542 0.85343	0.87176 0.86005	0.86671	0.87338	0.89075 0.88004	0.88666	0.89324	0.89973	0.90611	0.91236	0.91847	0.92439	0.93012	0.93

Judges' Retirement Fund of the State of Idaho 100% Contingent Annuitant Factors for Non-Spouses For all Judges, irrespective of hire date

	Non-Spous	e																
Judge	40	41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57
50	0.84485	0.84948	0.85420	0.85898	0.86384	0.86874	0.87369	0.87867	0.88365	0.88862	0.89356	0.89846	0.90332	0.90811	0.91282	0.91744	0.92194	0.92633
51	NA	0.83989	0.84472	0.84964	0.85464	0.85970	0.86483	0.86999	0.87518	0.88038	0.88556	0.89071	0.89584	0.90091	0.90591	0.91083	0.91564	0.92033
52	NA	NA	0.83462	0.83966	0.84479	0.85001	0.85530	0.86065	0.86604	0.87145	0.87686	0.88226	0.88765	0.89300	0.89830	0.90352	0.90864	0.91365
53	NA	NA	NA	0.82898	0.83423	0.83958	0.84503	0.85055	0.85613	0.86174	0.86738	0.87302	0.87867	0.88430	0.88989	0.89541	0.90086	0.90620
	NA	NA	NA	NA	0.82296	0.82844	0.83402	0.83970	0.84545	0.85127	0.85712	0.86299	0.86889	0.87479	0.88067	0.88650	0.89226	0.89794
		NA	NA	NA	NA	0.81654	0.82225	0.82807	0.83399	0.83998	0.84603	0.85212	0.85826	0.86442	0.87058	0.87671	0.88280	0.88881
	NA	NA	NA	NA		NA	0.80976	0.81570	0.82177	0.82792	0.83416	0.84045	0.84682	0.85323	0.85966	0.86608	0.87248	0.87882
		NA	NA	NA			NA	0.80264	0.80883	0.81513	0.82153	0.82801	0.83459		0.84792	0.85463	0.86132	0.86799
	NA	NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	0.79520	0.80163	0.80818	0.81483	0.82160	0.82846	0.83538	0.84235	0.84934	0.85632
		NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	NA	0.78747	0.79415	0.80095	0.80789		0.82209	0.82930	0.83656	0.84383
	NA	NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	NA	NA	0.77941	0.78634	0.79343	0.80065	0.80800	0.81543	0.82294	0.83050
		NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	0.77103	0.77825	0.78562	0.79314	0.80078	0.80851	0.81632
	NA	NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	0.76246	0.76996	0.77763	0.78544	0.79338	0.80141
		NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	0.75360		0.76934	0.77746	0.78570
	NA	NA NA	NA	NA			NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA	0.74456	0.75264	0.76089	0.76931
	NA		NA	NA			NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA	NA		0.74361	0.75217
		NA NA	NA NA	NA NA			NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	0.72564 NA	0.73430 0.71588
		NA	NA	NA		NA NA	NA	NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA		0.71366 NA
		NA	NA	NA			NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA		NA
		NA	NA	NA			NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA		NA
70	14/5	INA	INA	IVA	IVA	IVA	IVA	IVA	IVA	INA	IVA	14/5	14/5	INA	IVA	INA	IVA I	INA
	Non-Spous	P																
Judge	58	59	60	61	62	63	64	65	66	67	68	69	70	71	72	73	74	75
50		0.93469	0.93867	0.94249	0.94617	0.94969	0.95306	0.95627	0.95933	0.96225	0.96501	0.96764	0.97012	0.97246	0.97466	0.97674	0.97869	0.98051
51		0.92932	0.93361	0.93774	0.94172	0.94554	0.94920	0.95270	0.95603	0.95921	0.96222	0.96508	0.96778	0.97034	0.97274	0.97500	0.97713	0.97911
52	0.91855	0.92331	0.92792	0.93239	0.93669	0.94083	0.94481	0.94861	0.95224	0.95571	0.95900	0.96212	0.96507	0.96786	0.97050	0.97297	0.97529	0.97746
53	0.91143	0.91653	0.92150	0.92631	0.93096	0.93545	0.93977	0.94391	0.94786	0.95164	0.95524	0.95866	0.96189	0.96495	0.96783	0.97054	0.97309	0.97547
54	0.90351	0.90897	0.91430	0.91948	0.92450	0.92936	0.93404	0.93854	0.94285	0.94697	0.95091	0.95465	0.95819	0.96155	0.96472	0.96770	0.97050	0.97313
55		0.90055	0.90625	0.91181	0.91722	0.92246	0.92753	0.93242	0.93712	0.94162	0.94592	0.95001	0.95390	0.95759	0.96108	0.96436	0.96745	0.97035
56	0.88510	0.89128	0.89736	0.90331	0.90912	0.91477	0.92025	0.92555	0.93065	0.93555	0.94025	0.94473	0.94900	0.95305	0.95689	0.96051	0.96392	0.96712
57	0.87461	0.88116	0.88762	0.89397	0.90018	0.90625	0.91216	0.91789	0.92342	0.92875	0.93388	0.93878	0.94346	0.94791	0.95213	0.95612	0.95989	0.96342
58	0.86327	0.87018	0.87702	0.88377	0.89040	0.89689	0.90324	0.90941	0.91540	0.92119	0.92676	0.93212	0.93724	0.94212	0.94676	0.95116	0.95531	0.95922
59	0.85111	0.85837	0.86558	0.87272	0.87976	0.88669	0.89349	0.90012	0.90658	0.91284	0.91889	0.92472	0.93031	0.93566	0.94076	0.94559	0.95018	0.95449
60	0.83808	0.84567	0.85324	0.86076	0.86822	0.87558	0.88283	0.88993	0.89687	0.90362	0.91018	0.91651	0.92260	0.92844	0.93403	0.93934	0.94439	0.94915
61	0.82419	0.83209	0.84001	0.84790	0.85576	0.86355	0.87124	0.87882	0.88625	0.89351	0.90057	0.90743	0.91405	0.92041	0.92653	0.93235	0.93790	0.94316
62	0.80954	0.81773	0.82597	0.83422	0.84246	0.85066	0.85880	0.86684	0.87476	0.88253	0.89013	0.89752	0.90469	0.91161	0.91828	0.92465	0.93074	0.93652
63	0.79405	0.80251	0.81104	0.81962	0.82822	0.83682	0.84539	0.85389	0.86230	0.87059	0.87872	0.88667	0.89440	0.90189	0.90914	0.91609	0.92276	0.92910
64	0.77786	0.78655	0.79535	0.80424	0.81318	0.82215	0.83112	0.84007	0.84896	0.85775	0.86642	0.87492	0.88324	0.89132	0.89917	0.90673	0.91401	0.92096
65	0.76089	0.76978	0.77882	0.78797	0.79722	0.80654	0.81589	0.82526	0.83461	0.84390	0.85309	0.86216	0.87106	0.87975	0.88822	0.89641	0.90433	0.91192
66		0.75222	0.76145	0.77084	0.78036	0.78999	0.79970	0.80946	0.81924	0.82901	0.83872	0.84834	0.85782	0.86712	0.87623	0.88507	0.89366	0.90191
67	0.72485	0.73404	0.74343	0.75302	0.76277	0.77267	0.78270	0.79283	0.80301	0.81323	0.82343	0.83358 0.81773	0.84364	0.85355 0.83885	0.86330	0.87281	0.88207	0.89103
68	0.70584 NA		0.72464	0.73438	0.74433	0.75447	0.74572	0.77522	0.78577	0.79640	0.80707	0.81773	0.82834	0.83885	0.84924	0.85941	0.86938	
		0.69530	i U.7U490															0.86570
70	NA	NA	0.68440	0.69432	0.70452	0.71499	0.72571	0.73665	0.74781	0.75913	0.77061	0.78218	0.79382	0.80545	0.81706	0.82855	0.83991	0.85106